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EXPLANATORY NOTE

This annual report on Form Z8-or this annual report, is being filed by theistnant, Stratasys Ltd., an Israeli company. Asdbed in its
previous filings with the Securities and Exchangenthission, or the SEC, the registrant (formerlywnas Objet Geometries Ltd. and then
Objet Ltd.) was party to a merger with Stratasys,,la Delaware corporation, that was completeBecrember 1, 2012, referred to as the
Stratasys-Objet merger or the merger. The Strat@kyst merger was structured as a reverse merdggtratasys, Inc. with and into an indirect,
wholly owned subsidiary of Objet Ltd., in which @bj-td. served as the legal acquirer. For accogrgirposes, however, Stratasys, Inc. was
treated as the acquiring company, and the Stratabjet merger is accounted for as a reverse acquisinder the acquisition method of
accounting for business combinations. As a rethdthistorical financial statements of Stratasys, for all periods up until the effective time
of the Stratasy®bjet merger on December 1, 2012 are our histofiicahcial statements. The consolidated finandatkesnents of the registre
included in this annual report include the operatiof Stratasys Ltd. (formerly Objet Ltd.) only nDecember 1, 2012, the date on which the
Stratasys-Objet merger was consummated.

Given the significance of the Stratasys-Objet menge encourage you to review the separate higlidiiitancial statements of Objet Ltd.
for information related to the historical resulfsoperations and financial condition of Objet LTthose separate financial statements were
included in the proxy statement/prospectus includetie registrant’s Registration Statement on FBrd initially filed by the registrant with
the SEC on June 8, 2012, and in Exhibit 99.1 tdRbport of Foreign Private Issuer on Form 6-K filgdthe registrant on September 3, 2013.

Unless otherwise indicated or the context otherngsgiires, references to “Stratasys,” “our compafiiie Company,” “the combined
company,” “the registrant,” “we,” “us,” and “ouréfer to Stratasys Ltd. (formerly known as Objet.),tdnd its consolidated subsidiaries.
References to “Objet” generally refer to Objet Lddd its consolidated subsidiaries prior to theaffe time of the Stratasys-Objet merger on
December 1, 2012. We may also use “Objet” to reféhe line of products previously sold by ObjedlLand the related current, ongoing
operations that have continued following the StggaObjet merger. References to “Stratasys, lgerierally refer to Stratasys, Inc., a Delay
corporation, and its consolidated subsidiariesrpadhe effective time of the Stratasys-Objet neerput sometimes (as the context requires)
refer to thecurrent, ongoing operations of our Stratasys, $obsidiary. The historical financial informatiort $grth in this annual report, unle
otherwise indicated or the context otherwise rexpjireflects the consolidated results of operatimkfinancial position of: (i) Stratasys, Inc.
prior to the merger; and (ii) Stratasys Ltd. sittee merger.

Unless otherwise indicated herein, all numbers@iws in this annual report related to ordinargrek and options of our company that
predated the effectiveness of the Stratasys-Olgegen have been adjusted to reflect the 1-for-8r&9érse stock split that was effected with
respect to all of Objet’s outstanding ordinary sisammediately prior to the effective time of theaBasys-Objet merger.
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CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENT S

Certain information included or incorporated byerehce in this annual report may be deemed todrevéfrd-looking statements” within
the meaning of the Private Securities LitigatiorfdrR@ Act of 1995, Section 27A of the Securities A€t1933, and Section 21E of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Forward-lookiragesnents are often characterized by the use offailooking terminology such as “may,”
“will,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “estimate,” “contimie,” “believe,
these statements are identified.

should,” “intend,” “project” or dter similar words, but are not the only way

These forward-looking statements may include, beinat limited to, statements relating to our obijes, plans and strategies, statements
that contain projections of results of operationsfdinancial condition and all statements (ottiean statements of historical facts) that addres
activities, events or developments that we intexggect, project, believe or anticipate will or magcur in the future.

Forward-looking statements are not guaranteestofdiperformance and are subject to risks and taioées. We have based these
forward-looking statements on assumptions and assa¥s made by our management in light of theieggpce and their perception of
historical trends, current conditions, expectedreitdevelopments and other factors they beliestappropriate.

Important factors that could cause actual resd#selopments and business decisions to differ ma#liefrom those anticipated in these
forward-looking statements include, among otharghi

« the extent of our success at introducing new orawgd products and solutions that gain market share

« the extent of our success at efficiently and susfodly integrating the operations of various comparthat we have acquired or may
acquire;

- the impact of competition and new technologies;

» general market, political and economic conditianthie countries in which we operate;
« projected capital expenditures and liquidity;

« changes in our strategy;

« government regulations and approvals;

« changes in customers’ budgeting priorities;

« the overall global economic environment;

- litigation and regulatory proceedings; and

« those factors referred to in Item 3.D “Key Inforimoat- Risk Factors”, Item 4 “Information on the Cpamy”, and Iltem 5 “Operating
and Financial Review and Prosp¢’, as well as in this annual report genere

Readers are urged to carefully review and considevarious disclosures made throughout this ameyalrt, which are designed to advise
interested parties of the risks and factors that aféect our business, financial condition, resolk®perations and prospects.
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Any forward-looking statements in this annual ré@ose made as of the date hereof, and we undemtakéligation to publicly update or
revise any forward-looking statements, whether gesalt of new information, future events or othisey except as required by law.

USE OF TRADE NAMES

Unless the context otherwise indicates or requfi®satasys,” “For a 3D World,” “Objet,” “PolyJet,'Connex,” “Eden,” “FDM”, “Fortus,”
“Dimension,” “Uprint,” “Mojo,” “FullCure,” “Stratays Direct Manufacturing,” “Solidscape,” “Solid Cagyuts,” “GrabCAD,” “MakerBot,”
“Thingiverse,” “Replicator,” “RedEYE,” “Harvest Téoologies” and all product names and trade named lng us in this annual report are our
trademarks and service marks, which may be regidtercertain jurisdictions. Although we have oetitthe “®” and “TM” trademark
designations for such marks in this annual redirtjights to such trademarks and service marksavertheless reserved. Furthermore, the
“Stratasys” and “Objettlesign logos are our property. This annual repamtains additional trade names, trademarks andcgsemvarks of othe
companies. We do not intend our use or displaytteérocompanies’ tradenames, trademarks or servickao imply a relationship with, or
endorsement or sponsorship of us by, these otmepanies.



CERTAIN ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONVENTIONS

In this annual report, unless the context otherngsgiires:

references to the “Stratasys-Objet merger” reféhéomerger consummated on December 1, 2012 wh&teatasys, Inc., a Delaware
corporation, merged with and into an indirect, ijrawned Delaware subsidiary of Objet Ltd. (now lmas Stratasys Ltd.), an
Israeli company, with Stratasys, Inc. surviving therger and becoming an indirect, whadlyned subsidiary of Objet (which chang
its name to Stratasys Ltd. at that tirr

references to the “Stratasys-Objet merger agre€mefiet to the Agreement and Plan of Merger, daeof April 13, 2012, as
amended, by and among Stratasys, Inc.; Objet Stlirat Holdings Inc., a Delaware corporation anthdinect, wholly-owned

subsidiary of Objet (“Holdco”); and Oaktree Merdec., a Delaware corporation and a direct, whollyred subsidiary of Holdco,
pursuant to which the merger was consumme

references to the “MakerBot transaction” referite merger consummated on August 15, 2013 wherebpéZation Technology
Corporation, a Delaware corporation (now known asd® Corporation), or MakerBot, which is the dirparent company of
MakerBot Industries, LLC, merged with and into adirect, wholly-owned subsidiary of Stratasys Ltdith MakerBot becoming an
indirect, wholly-owned subsidiary of Stratasys Lt

references to the “Solid Concepts acquisition”®olfd Concepts transaction” refer to the acquisitonsummated on July 14, 2014
whereby Stratasys Ltd. acquirSolid Concepts Inc

references to the “ Harvest Technologies acquisitiefer to the acquisition consummated on Augusl4 whereby Stratasys Ltd.
acquiredHarvest Technologies In

references to “ordinary shares”, “our shares” andlar expressions refer to our Ordinary Sharesninal value NIS 0.01 per share;
references to “dollars”, “U.S. dollars”, “U.S. $hd “$” are to United States Dollars;

references to “shekels” and “NIS” are to New Isr&#iekels, the Israeli currency;

references to the “articles” or “amended articla® to our Amended and Restated Articles of Assiotiawhich became effective
upon the closing of the merger, as subsequentiyhdetk

references to the “Companies Law” are to Israebe@anies Law, 5759-1999, as amended;
references to the “Securities Act” are to the SiéiesrAct of 1933, as amended,;

references to the “Exchange Act” are to the SeiegriExchange Act of 1934, as amended;
references to “NASDAQ” are to the Nasdaq Stock Mgrind

references to the “SEC” are to the United Statesitees and Exchange Commission.
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PART I
ITEM 1. IDENTITY OF DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AN D ADVISERS.
Not Applicable.
ITEM 2. OFFER STATISTICS AND EXPECTED TIMETABLE.
Not Applicable.
ITEM 3. KEY INFORMATION.
A. Selected Financial Data.

Stratasys, Inc. was treated as the acquiring coynathe Stratasys-Objet merger for accounting pses and the Stratas@dsjet merge
was accounted for as a reverse acquisition undeadquisition method of accounting for business lioations. As a result, the histori
financial statements of Stratasys, Inc. prior t® éffective time of the merger on December 1, 20d@ame our historical financial stateme
The consolidated financial statements includechis &nnual report include the operations of Styatddd. (formerly Objet Ltd.) for the yet
ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 and for the nesrtbd December 31, 2012 (as the Strat@dyjet merger was consummated on Dece
1, 2012). Therefore, while the balance sheet data presdretiedv reflects the financial position of Stratatyd. as of December 31, 2014, 2!
and 2012, respectively, the consolidated staterokwiperations data reflects the results of opematiof Stratasys Ltd. for the years er
December 31, 2014 and 2013 and from December Lighr®ecember 31, 2012, and the results of opembtbistratasys, Inc. from Januat
through November 30, 2012. The below selected diolaged financial data reflects the consolidatesutis of operations and financial posit
of Stratasys, Inc. as of, and for the years enbedember 31, 2011 and 2010.

The historical selected consolidated statemenipefations data for the years 2014, 2013 and 201®ttee selected consolidated bal:
sheet data at December 31, 2014 and 2013 havedsemed from our audited consolidated financiatesteents set forth elsewhere in
annual report. The selected consolidated statenoémgerations data for the years 2011 and 201d tlam selected consolidated balance
data as of December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, heame derived from our previously reported auditedsotidated financial statements, wt
are not included in this annual report. The setkfiteancial data should be read in conjunction vathr consolidated financial statements
accompanying notes and “Operating and Financialdeand Prospectsippearing in Item 5 of this annual report, andour@ified entirely b
reference to such consolidated financial stateménis historical results set forth herein are rextassarily indicative of our future results.
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(in thousands, except per share data) Year Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

Statement of Operations Data
Net sales $ 750,12¢ 3 484,40 % 215,24  $ 155,89: § 117,84.
Gross profit 362,39 226,17. 109,91: 82,40« 56,08t¢
Research and development expe 82,27( 52,31( 19,65¢ 14,36( 9,75¢
Selling, general and administrative expe 351,99: 202,04( 73,13( 39,03¢ 32,86:
Goodwill impairment 102,471 — — — —
Change in fair value of obligations in connectic

with acquisitions (26,15() 754 — — —
Operating income (los! (148,189 (28,93) 17,12: 29,00¢ 13,46¢
Net income (loss (119,470) (26,90°) 8,82: 20,62¢ 9,37(
Net income (loss) attributable to Stratasys | (119,420 (26,959 8,491 20,62¢ 9,37(
Net income (loss) per basic shi (2.39 (0.69 0.3¢ 0.9¢ 0.4¢
Net income (loss) per basic share attributab

Stratasys Ltd (2.39) (0.69 0.37 0.9¢ 0.4¢€
Weighted average basic shares outstan 50,01¢ 42,07¢ 22,81 21,13 20,57¢
Net income (loss) per diluted sh: (2.39 (0.6%) 0.37 0.9t 0.4¢
Net income (loss) per diluted share attributabl

Stratasys Ltd (2.39) (0.6¢) 0.3¢ 0.9t 0.4¢
Weighted average diluted shares outstan 50,01¢ 42,09¢ 23,77¢ 21,65 21,13(
Balance Sheet Data:
Working capital $ 546,06 $ 714,400 $ 230,92¢ $ 64,08¢ $ 60,19¢
Total asset 2,899,10° 2,782,22. 1,731,51. 221,771 178,46!
Equity $ 2,531,233 $ 2,499,78 $ 1,572,15 $ 183,31, $ 152,28

In addition to the audited consolidated financatiadpresented above, we also present below unduatibeforma combined statement of
operations data for our company for the year emkstember 31, 2012 that give effect to the Strat&iyiet merger as if it had been completec
on January 1, 2012. This data has been preparaistam with SEC Regulation S-X, Article 11. Famare complete presentation of this data
and an explanation of the underlying assumptioesl irs deriving it, please see the unaudited prm#ocondensed combined statements of
operations that are included in the “Operating Re’5section of “Operating and Financial Review @hdspects” in Item 5 below.

Year Ended

December 31,
(in thousands, except per share data) 2012

Pro Forma

Statement of Operations Data
Net sales $ 359,05«
Gross profit 163,92
Research and development expe 36,92!
Selling, general and administrative expe 141,23.
Operating los! (14,237
Net loss (21,519
Net loss attributable to Stratasys L (21,577
Net loss per basic sha (0.5¢
Net loss per basic share attributable to Strathas< (0.5¢)
Weighted average basic shares outstan 36,98’
Net loss per diluted sha (0.5¢)
Net loss per diluted share attributable to Stratddy. (0.5¢)
Weighted average diluted shares outstan 36,98

B. Capitalization and Indebtedness.

Not Applicable.



C. Reasons for the Offer and Use of Proceeds.

Not Applicable.

D. Risk Factors.

You should carefully consider the risks describeld, together with all of the other informationtiis annual report on Form 20-F. The
risks described below are not the only risks fagisgAdditional risks and uncertainties not curtginown to us or that we currently deem to
be immaterial may also materially and adverselgetfbur business operations. If any of these rsltgally occurs our business, financial
condition and results of operations could suffed &éime price of our shares could decline.

Risks related to our business and financial conditin

We may not be able to introduce new 3D printergylitperformance systems and consumables acceptableistomers or to improve th
technology, software or consumables used in ourreunt systems in response to changing technology and-user needs.

We derive most of our revenues from the sale oftagdmanufacturing systems and related consumables markets in which we oper;
are subject to rapid and substantial innovationtandnological change, mainly driven by technolabadvances and end-user requirements
and preferences, as well as the emergence of @edatds and practices. Our ability to compete éséhmarkets depends, in large part, on ou
success in enhancing our existing products andldgivg new additive manufacturing systems and nemsumables that will address the
increasingly sophisticated and varied needs ofgactive endisers, and respond to technological advances andtity standards and practi
on a cost-effective and timely basis or otherwiaim gnarket acceptance.

Even if we successfully enhance our existing systentreate new systems, it is likely that newesyst and technologies that we develop
will eventually supplant our existing systems attbur competitors will create systems that willlaee our systems. As a result, any of our
products may be rendered obsolete or uneconomyaalibor others’ technological advances.

Our operating results and financial condition mayuictuate.

The operating results and financial condition of company may fluctuate from quarter to quarter year to year and are likely to
continue to vary due to a number of factors, manytich will not be within our control. If our opating results do not meet the guidance that
we provide to the market place or the expectatadrsecurities analysts or investors, the markesepoif our ordinary shares will likely decline.
Fluctuations in our operating results and financa@idition may be due to a number of factors, idicig those listed below and those identified
throughout this “Risk factors” section:

» the degree of market acceptance of our procand service;

» the mix of productand servicethat we sell during any perio

* long sales cycle

» unforeseen liabilities or difficulties in integnatj our acquisitions

» changes in the amount that that we spend to devatouire or license new products, consumablebnt#ogies or businesse

» changes in the amounts that we spend to promotproducts and service

» changes in the cost of satisfying our warrantygailons and servicing our installed base of syst:

» delays between our expenditures to develop arl@naew or enhanced systems and consumables awggtieration of sales from
those products



» development of new competitiproducts and servicidy others

» difficulty in predicting sales patterns and reardates that may result from multi-tier distrilmutistrategy associated with new product
categories such as entry level desktop 3D prin

» litigation or threats of litigation, including irtectual property claims by third partie

» changes in accounting rules and tax ls

» the geographic distribution of our sal

e ourresponses to price competitis

» general economic and industry conditions that &#ec-user demand and e-user levels of product design and manufactui
» changes in interest rates that affect returns orcash balances and st-term investments

» changes in dollar-shekel and dollar-Euro exchaatgs that affect the value of our net assetemess and expenditures from and/or
relating to our activities carried out in thosereucies;

» failure of a development partner to continue supipgrcertain product development efforts it is fungd and

the level of research and development activitiesirycompany

Due to all of the foregoing factors, and the oftigts discussed in this annual report, you shootd@ly on quarter-to-quarter comparisons
of our operating results as an indicator of ounrfetperformance.

If demand for our products and services does nohtioue to grow as expected, our revenues may stagrma decline.
The commercial marketplace for additive manufaomrivhich was once dominated by conventional mettibdt do not involve 3D
printing technology, has been undergoing a shifiatals 3D printing. This is true with respect totptgpe development, and to some extent,

with respect to direct digital manufacturing, or MDas an alternative
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to traditional manufacturing. If the commercial ketplace does not continue to transform toward$tbader acceptance of 3D printing and
DDM as alternatives for prototype development aaditional manufacturing, or if it adopts 3D primgibased on technologies other than the
technologies that we use, we may not be able te&se or sustain current or future levels of sall@sir products and related materials and
services, and our results of operations may beradleaffected as a result.

To the extent that other companies are successfulléveloping or marketing consumables for use inrddea, Design and Production
Series systems, our revenues and profits wouldljikee adversely affecte:

We sell a substantial portion of the consumables! irs our Idea, Design and Production Series systévie attempt to protect against
replication of our proprietary consumables thropgtents and trade secrets and provide that waggaoti those systems may be invalid if
customers use non-genuine consumables that cansgdao the printer. Other companies have develapddold, and may continue to
develop and sell, consumables that are used witBymtems, which may reduce our consumables satesrgpair our overall revenues and
profitability.

If our product mix shifts too far into lower margirproducts or our revenues mix shifts significantigwards our AM services business,
our profitability could be reduced.

Sales of certain of our existing products have &ighargins than others. For instance, our highssstems and related consumables yielc
a greater gross margin than our entry-level systé&msve continue to ship entry-level systems incigdlesktop 3D printers, our sales of those
systems have grown. Furthermore, some of those s#g displace sales of our other systems. If sdlear entry-level desktop 3D printers
have the effect of reducing sales of our highergimaproducts, or if for any other reason, our piduix shifts too far into lower margin
products, and we are not able to sufficiently redilie engineering, production and other costs &gsdcwith those products or substantially
increase the sales of those products, our prdiityabbuld be reduced. A similar negative impactaur gross margins could result if we
experience a substantial shift towards revenuesrgésd by our AM parts service business, which xpeet to significantly broaden as a result
of our recent acquisitions of Solid Concepts andvelst Technologies, and which are characterizeldlgr margins relative to our products.

We have experienced rapid and significant growthaor operations and intend to continue to grow, aifdve cannot adequately adapt
our infrastructure and properly integrate the inteal or external sources of our growth in order teegerate the intended benefits from it,
our results of operations will suffer.

We have experienced rapid and significant growtbunoperations and intend to continue to growhlorganically and from acquisitions,
such as the MakerBot transaction, the Solid Comscapquisition, the Harvest Technologies acquisiéind the GrabCAD acquisition. The
adaptation of our infrastructure to our growth wabjuire, among other things, continued developragaur financial and management cont
and management information systems, including agomg implementation of a unified enterprise reseplanning system, management of
our sales channel, increased capital expendittiresbility to attract and retain qualified managetpersonnel and the training of new
personnel. We cannot be sure that our infrastractystems, procedures, business processes anderiaheontrols will be adequate to
support the rapid and significant growth in ourpiens. Any delays in, or problems associated yvifitiplementing, or transitioning to, new or
enhanced systems, procedures, or controls to acodatmand support the requirements of our busemed®perations and to effectively and
efficiently integrate acquired operations may adebr affect our ability to meet customer requiretagemanage our product inventory, and
record and report financial and management infdonain a timely and accurate basis.

Additional unforeseen difficulties and expenditutieat may result from the integration of a new hass or technology include:

8



» difficulty transitioning customers and other busiseelationships to our compal
» problems unifying management following a transact
» the loss of key employees from our existing or @aeglbusinesse!

« diversion of management’s attention to the adation of the technology and personnel of acquiresinesses or new product or
service lines; an

» difficulties in coordinating geographically disp#e organizations and corporate cultures and riatiegy management personnel with
different business backgroun

These potential negative effects could preventams frealizing the benefits of an acquisition trantige or other growth opportunity. In
that event, our competitive position, revenuesenee growth, financial condition, results of opienmas and liquidity could be adversely
affected, which could, in turn, adversely affect share price and shareholder value.

Declines in the prices of our products and serviaeay adversely affect our financial results.

Our business is subject to price competition. Sarate competition may adversely affect our abitdymaintain profitability, especially
during periods of decreased demand. If our busiisasst able to offset price reductions resultiranf these pressures by improved operating
efficiencies, reduced expenditures and increased,shen those price reductions would adversdbcabur operating results.

The markets in which we participate are competitivgur failure to compete successfully could cause cevenues and the demand for
our products to decline.

We compete for end-users with a wide variety offpiers of systems that create models, prototyplesy 8D objects and end-use parts a:
well as producers of materials and services fagdlsystems, including both additive and subtractiaaufacturing methodologies, such as
metal extrusion, computer-controlled machining erahual modeling techniques. Our principal compmtiturrently consists of other
manufacturers of systems for prototype developraadtcustomized manufacturing processes, includih@wastems Corporation, EOS GmbH
and EnvisionTEC GmbH, and, with respect to ouryelavel desktop 3D printers, a multitude of comganéuch as 3D Systems Corporation,
Delta Micro Factory, Affinia, Ultimaker, Printrboteapfrog, Solidoodle and others. For our recehtlyadened AM parts and services busir
our chief competitors consist of 3D Systems Corfiana Materialise and many other smaller servigavjaters. In late 2014 HP announced its
intention to offer 3D printers targeting similardensers to ours. If these printers become commeyaathilable they may compete directly v
some of our product lines. We may face additiomahgetition in the future from other new entrants ithe marketplace, including companies
that may have significantly greater resources thamave that may become new market entrants oremiggy through acquisition or strategic
marketing partnerships with current competitors.

Some of our current and potential competitors Hamger operating histories and more extensive nawoegnition than we have and may
also have greater financial, marketing, manufactyrdistribution and other resources than we h@uerent and future competitors may be ¢
to respond more quickly to new or emerging techgiel® and changes in end-user demands and to dgneatier resources to the development
promotion and sale of their products than we cam.cDrrent and potential competitors may develap market new technologies that render
our existing or future products obsolete, unmatietar less competitive (whether from a price pectipe or otherwise). We cannot assure
that we will be able to maintain or enhance ourenircompetitive position or continue to competecegsfully against current and future
sources of competition.

As part of our growth strategy, we have sought, amifl continue to seek, to acquire or to make int@&nts in other businesses, patents,
technologies, products or services. Our failuredo so successfully (including, if applicable, tomfince such acquisitions or investments on
favorable terms and to avoid adverse financial ceqaences) may adversely affect our financial resu

As part of our growth strategy, we expect to camgito regularly evaluate acquisitions or investraéatexpand our suite of products and
services. Even if we are able to identify a sugadatquisition or investment, we may not be ableottsummate any such transaction if we
cannot reach an agreement on favorable termsa Iack sufficient resources to finance the tratisamn our own and cannot obtain
financing at a reasonable cost or if regulatonhatrities prevent such transaction from being comaated. If we proceed with a particular
acquisition, we may have to use cash, issue nevtyezpcurities with dilutive effects on existingaskholders, incur indebtedness, assume
contingent liabilities or amortize assets or expsria a manner that might have a material advdfset®n our financial condition, results of
operations or liquidity. Acquisitions will also reigie us to record certain acquisition-related casis other items as current period expenses,
which would have the effect of reducing our reporarnings in the period in which an acquisitiondasummated. We will also be required tc
record any post-closing goodwill or other long-tivesset impairment charges in the period in whiely bccur, which could result in a
significant charge to our earnings in that perl\ could also face unknown liabilities or write-sff

If we are not successful in completing the integi@t of our constituent companies from our recent@asitions, the benefits of these
later transactions may not be fully realized andetimarket price of our ordinary shares may be negaty affected.
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Since the consummation of the Objet-Stratasys méngeecember 2012, we have acquired MakerBot,d3otincepts, Harvest
Technologies, GrabCAD and other companies. Whildelive that integration activities have progrdssell to date, the ongoing difficulties
of coordinating our operations include:

« coordinating geographically separate organization

« coordinating sales, distribution and marketingctions, including integration and management afamnstituent companies’ sales
channels;

» consolidating the financial reporting systems BfRP systems of our constituent companies;
* management of a substantially larger organizatioth an increased number of employees over lgeggraphic distances; and

« addressing inconsistencies among the compangsaiaards, controls, procedures and policiespamich could adversely affect
our ability to maintain relationships with supp$edistributors, customers and employees.

As a result of these and other factors, we mayuaotessfully complete the integration of our aceplientities. Furthermore, we may not rea
all of the benefits and synergies of the acquirgties in the timeframe anticipated. It is als@gible that such continuing integration and
coordination arrangements could lead to the losaayhbers of our senior executive team, diversiahefattention of management, or the
disruption or interruption of, or the loss of morhen in, our ongoing business, which could adveraéfigct our business and financial results.
The occurrence of such negative results could adWeaffect the market price of our ordinary shares

Our operations, particularly in integrating the opations of our constituent companies, could suffémwe are unable to attract and
retain key management or other key employees.

Our success depends upon the continued servicpaafamance of our senior management and othep&esonnel. Our senior executive
team is critical to the management of our busiaessoperations, as well as to the development o§wwategy. The loss of the services of any
members of our senior executive team could delgy@vent the successful implementation of our ghosttategy, or our commercialization of
new applications for our systems or other produmtgould otherwise adversely affect our abilityntanage our company effectively and carry
out our business plan. Members of our senior manageteam may resign at any time. High demand®fastsenior management and other
key personnel (including scientific, technical aadles personnel) in the additive manufacturingdMr industry, and there can be no assuranc
that we will be able to retain such personnel. Weeeience intense competition for qualified persnwhile we intend to continue to provide
competitive compensation packages to attract a@aghrkey personnel, some of our competitors fos¢hemployees have greater resources an
more experience, making it difficult for us to coete successfully for key personnel. If we cannaet and retain sufficiently qualified
technical employees for our research and developarehmanufacturing operations, we may be unabéehieve the synergies expected from
mergers and acquisitions that we may effect franetio time, or to develop and commercialize nevdpets or new applications for existing
products. Furthermore, possible shortages of kesop@el, including engineers, in the regions surding our Minnesota, New York,
California, Texas, New Hampshire or Israeli fa@ht could require us to pay more to hire and retaijnpersonnel, thereby increasing our ct

Defects in new products or in enhancements to ouiséing products could give rise to product returs product liability, warranty or
other claims that could result in material expensetiversion of management time and attention, anahahge to our reputation.

Our systems may contain undetected defects orsawien first introduced or as enhancements aragetethat, despite testing, are not
discovered until after a product has been used ddild result in delayed market acceptance oktiposducts, claims from distributors, end-
users or others, increased end-user service ambignsts and warranty claims, damage to our atjout and business, or significant costs to
correct the defect or error. We may
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from time to time become subject to warranty ordoict liability claims that could lead to signifidaexpenses as we need to compensate
affected end-users for costs incurred related ddyset quality issues. This risk may be heightenbdmawve sell products into certain markets,
such as healthcare-related applications.

This risk of product liability claims may also beegter due to the use of certain hazardous chesnisald in the manufacture of certain of
our products. Those hazardous chemicals fall witiee different categories (with several of themfals falling within multiple categories):
irritants, harmful chemicals and chemicals dangefouthe environment. In addition, we may be scidje claims that our 3D printers have
been, or may be, used to create parts that ar@ rotmpliance with legal requirements or that iletetiual property posted by third parties on
Thingiverse and GrabCAD websites infringes thelietéual property rights of others.

Any claim brought against us, regardless of itsitneould result in material expense, diversiom@nagement time and attention, and
damage to our reputation, and could cause uslttofeetain existing end-users or to attract new-asers. Although we maintain product
liability insurance, such insurance is subjectigmificant deductibles and there is no guarantaé$hch insurance will be available or adequat
to protect against all such claims, or we may dleself-insure with respect to certain mattersst€or payments made in connection with
warranty and product liability claims and produstalls or other claims could materially affect énancial condition and results of operations.

Our AM services business, offering parts used aetptypes, benchmarks and end-use parts in geneaatl ~in the case of end-use
parts, our sales to customers in the aerospace, ioc@dnd automotive industries, in particular, makais more susceptible to product a
other liability claims, which characterize operatis in those industries. These activities and oucampanying exposure to claims will
increase significantly as a result of our recent@gsitions of Solid Concepts and Harvest Technolegii Any such claims that are not
adequately covered by insurance or for which insacz is not available may adversely affect our raswdf operations and financial
condition.

As a result of our recent acquisitions of Solid Ggpts and Harvest Technologies, and together vwattERRe, our preexisting digital
manufacturing service business, we expect to sagmifly broaden and increase our production angtrioij of AM parts, which are used by our
customers as prototypes, benchmarks and end-utse gapart of our newly branded Stratasys Direatifiacturing, or SDM, service. In
particular, we expect to provide these additive ufiacturing services to customers in the aerospaedijcal and automotive industries. The
of end use parts in general, and to customersifiategoing industries in particular, exposes ysassible claims for property damage and
personal injury or deathwhich may result from the use of these end-usespéfe may be potentially liable, in significant amts, if an
aircraft, automotive or medical part, componentaressory or any other aviation, automotive oricagroduct that we have sold, produced
or repaired fails, or if an aircraft or automolfite which our subsidiaries have provided servicem avhich their parts are installed crashes an
the cause can be linked to those parts or canndéteemined. Our SDM service carries liability irmuce in amounts that we believe are
adequate for its risk exposure and commensurateimdustry norms. While we intend to monitor oustinrance coverage as our additive
manufacturing services business continues to geaims may arise in the future, and that insuraomesrage may not be adequate or availabl
to protect our consolidated company in all circuanses. Additionally, we might not be able to mam&dequate insurance coverage for our
AM services business in the future at an accepiadse Any liability claim against our AM servicbasiness that is not covered by adequate
insurance could adversely affect our consolida¢sdlts of operations and financial condition.

If our relationships with suppliers for our produstand services, especially with single source sigrplof components of our products,
were to terminate or our manufacturing arrangemenigere to be disrupted, our business could be intipited.

We purchase components and sisisemblies for our systems, raw materials thatised in our consumables, and AM syatems, comp
parts and raw materials for our Stratasys Direchiiacturing services business, from third-partypigps , some of whom may compete with
us . While there are several potential supplienmos$t of these component parts, sub-assembliesaanthaterials that we use, we currently
choose to use only one or a limited number of sappfor several of these components and mateRalshermore, the suppliers of AM
systems and materials used in our SDM parts sem@erefuse to sell us additional AM systems or gponent parts and materials for AM
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systems that our SDM service uses. Our reliance single or limited number of vendors involves anber of risks, including:
» potential shortages of some key compone

« product performance shortfalls, if traceable astigular product components, since the suppligheffaulty component cannot readily
be replaced

» discontinuation of a product on which we re
» potential insolvency of these vendors;
» reduced control over delivery schedules, manufagjurapabilities, quality and cos

In addition, we require any new supplier to becdmqalified” pursuant to our internal procedureseTdualification process involves
evaluations of varying durations, which may causslpction delays if we were required to qualifyeansupplier unexpectedly. We generally
assemble our systems and parts based on our intereeasts and the availability of raw materialssemblies, components and finished good
that are supplied to us by third parties, whichsargject to various lead times. If certain supplieere to decide to discontinue production o
assembly, component or raw material that we ugeytianticipated change in the availability of sigglor unanticipated supply limitations,
could cause delays in, or loss of, sales, increpssdliction or related costs and consequently edlutargins, and damage to our reputation. |
we were unable to find a suitable supplier for gipalar component, material or compound, we cdddequired to modify our existing
products or the end-parts that we offer to accormatedubstitute components, material or compounds.

In particular, we rely on a sole supplier, Ricoinfng Systems America, Inc., or Ricoh, for thenper heads for our PolyJet 3D printers.
Under the terms of our agreement with Ricoh, welpase printer heads and associated electronic amnpg and receive a non-transferable,
non-exclusive right to assemble, use and sell thasghased products under Ricoh’s patent rightsti@ue® secrets. Due to the risk of a
discontinuation of the supply of Ricoh printer heathd other key components of our products, we taiaiexcess inventory of those printer
heads and other components. However, if our foteeaseed actual orders, we may hold large inveagaf slow-moving or unusable parts or
raw materials, which could result in inventory erdffs or write downs and have an adverse effectusrcash flow, profitability and results of
operations. See “Item 4. Information on the CompaBysiness Overview—Manufacturing and Suppliers—itteey and Suppliers—Ricoh
Agreement” for further discussion of this agreement

If goodwill or other intangible assets that we haxecorded become impaired, we could have to takmificant charges against
earnings.

As of December 31, 2014, the book value of allwf @oodwill and other intangible assets, which wamarily attributable to the Stratasys-
Objet merger, the MakerBot transaction and thedSdbncepts acquisition, was approximately $1.9dmllUnder accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of Amenc&AAP, we must assess, at least annually arehfiatly more frequently, whether the
value of goodwill and other indefinite-lived intahlp assets has been impaired. During the yeardeDdeember 31, 2014 we recorded an
impairment charge of $102.5 million related to bakerBot reporting unit. Please see Note 1 to oditad financial statements included in
Item 18 of this annual report for further infornmati Amortizing intangible assets will be assessednfipairment in the event of an impairment
indicator. Such impairment may result from one oluianber of possible causes, including invalidatbacquired patents, trademarks or other
intellectual property, or the impairment of othefaingible assets due to litigation, obsolescermmpetitive factors, lower than expected
revenue and operating results or other reasonsrédyction or impairment of the value of goodwillather intangible assets will result in a
charge against earnings, which could materiallyeaskly affect our results of operations and shddehg equity in future periods. We will
continue to monitor other intangible assets inféoreto determine whether events and circumstances
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warrant further impairment charges. Please see Rtdeur audited financial statements includettdm 18 of this annual report for further
information.

Discontinuation of operations at our manufacturingites could prevent us from timely filling customerders and could lead to
unforeseen costs for us.

We assemble and test the systems that we selpraddce consumables for our systems, at singlétfesiin various locations that are
specifically dedicated to separate categories stesys and consumables. Because of our relianck ofntlaese production facilities, a
disruption at any of those facilities could matiyidamage our ability to supply 3D printers, otlsgstems or consumable materials to the
marketplace in a timely manner. Depending on thiseaf the disruption, we could also incur sigmifitcosts to remedy the disruption and
resume product shipments. Such disruptions maybset! by, among other factors, earthquakes, fired fand other natural disasters.
Accordingly, any such disruption could result imaterial adverse effect on our revenue, resultpefations and earnings, and could also
potentially damage our reputation.

A loss of, or reduction in revenues from, a sigmifint number of our resellers and our independentesaagents would impair our abilit
to sell our products and services and could redwce revenues and adversely impact our operatingules

We rely heavily on our network of resellers andeipendent sales agents to sell and (in the casselfers) to service our products for end
users in their respective geographic regions. Thesgllers and sales agents may not be as efféntsadling our products or servicing our end-
users as we are. Further, if a significant numtbéhese resellers and sales agents were to terminait relationship with us or otherwise fai
refuse to sell our products, we may not be abfintbreplacements that are as qualified or as sisfakin a timely manner, if at all. If these
resellers and independent sales agents do notrpea® anticipated or if we are unable to find dieadiand successful replacements, our sales
will suffer, which would have an adverse effectoun revenues and operating results. Additionallgetault by one or more resellers that have
a significant receivables balance could have aemdvinancial impact on our financial results.

Our business model is predicated in part on buildian enduser base that will generate a recurring streamref’enues through the sa
of our consumables. If that recurring stream of remues does not develop as expected, or if our lessmmodel changes as the industry
evolves, our operating results may be adverselgetid.

Our business model is dependent in part on ouityabil maintain and increase sales of our proprnjetansumables as they generate
recurring revenues. Existing and future end-uskmipsystems may not purchase our consumablée &ame rate at which end-users
currently purchase those consumables. In additionentry-level systems generally use a lower v@whconsumables relative to our higher
end systems. If our current and future end-usemshaise a lower volume of our consumables, or ifemiry level systems represent an
increasing percentage of our future installed Imaiseuses less consumables than our current indtblse, our recurring revenue stream
relative to our total revenues would be reduced,@ir operating results would be adversely affected

Global economic, political and social conditions Y adversely impacted sales of our constituent canigs, and may once again affect
us in the future.

The uncertain direction and relative strength efglobal economy, difficulties in the financial gees sector and credit markets,
continuing geopolitical uncertainties and other rnaconomic factors all affect spending behaviopaéntial end-users of our products and
services. The prospects for economic growth in sofitke regions in which we sell our products remaicertain, and may cause end-users t
further delay or reduce technology purchases. itiqudar, a portion of our sales are made to cusisnn countries in Europe, which have bee
and may continue to be affected by significant eooic difficulties. These and other macroeconomatdes had an adverse impact on the sale
of the products and services of our constituentpanmes following the global financial downturn até 2008, leading to reduced revenues |
sales and longer sales cycles. While Objet andaSiys, Inc. saw an improvement in revenues fromssal their systems and consumables in
2010, 2011 and 2012, and our combined companydra@saed that positive trend beginning after thmptetion of the Stratasy®bjet merge
on December 1, 2012 through the present time, ttemdoe no assurance that such improvement isrsaiska, particularly if global economic
conditions suffer another setback or if Europeamemies experience further disruptions.
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We also face risks that may arise from financifidilties experienced by our end-users, suppkerd distributors, which may be
exacerbated by continued uncertainty in the glebahomy, including:

reduced er-user demand for products and reduced manufactadtigty levels;
distributors and er-users may be unable to obtain credit financingrtarfce purchases our products;

suppliers may be unable to obtain credit finan¢mfinance purchases of sub-assemblies used td bathponents of products or
purchases of raw materials to produce consuma

end-users or distributors may face financialidifties or may become insolvent, which could léadur inability to obtain payment
for our products; an

key suppliers of raw materials, finished products@mponents used in our products and consumaldggane financial difficulties ¢
may become insolvent, which could lead to disruptiothe supply of systems, consumables or spate fgaour en-users.

Our existing and planned international operationsirently expose us and will continue to expose nsadditional market and
operational risks, and failure to manage these risknay adversely affect our business and operatieguts.

We expect to derive a substantial percentage ofaless from international markets. We derived 46f%ur sales in 2014 from countries
outside of North America . Accordingly, we facersfigcant operational risks from doing businessiingionally, including:

fluctuations in foreign currency exchange ra

potentially longer sales and payment cyc

potentially greater difficulties in collecting aaouts receivable

potentially adverse tax consequenc

reduced protection of intellectual property rigimsertain countries, particularly in Asia and SoAimerica;
difficulties in staffing and managing foreign opéoas;

laws and business practices favoring local conipati

costs and difficulties of customizing products fimreign countries

compliance with a wide variety of complex foreigmv, treaties and regulatior

tariffs, trade barriers and other regulatory @ntcactual limitations on our ability to sell onadop our products in certain foreign
markets; ant

being subject to the laws, regulations and thetcgystems of many jurisdiction

Our failure to manage the market and operatioskrassociated with our international operatiofecéfely could limit the future growth
of our business and adversely affect our operagnglts.

Covenants in our credit agreement may restrict dursiness in many ways.
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The credit agreement and related agreements thahdeur wholly-owned subsidiary (the borrower)eead into in November 2013 with
Bank of America, N.A., as administrative agent #melother lenders party thereto, contain variowgoants that limit our ability to, among
other things:

* incur or assume liens or additional debt or progjdarantees in respect of obligations of otherqres;

* make any investments, except certain investmerdpedfied therein

* engage in any material line of business substiytlifferent from those lines of business conéddby us and our subsidiaries or any
business substantially related or incidental thee!

» create, incur, assume or suffer to exist any iretlixss except certain indebtedness as specifiesrtt
» issue redeemable stock and preferred eq

e pay dividends or distributions or redeem or repasehcapital stocl

* prepay, redeem or repurchase d

* make loans, investments and capital expenditi

e enter into agreements that restrict distributionsifour subsidiaries

» sell assets and capital stock of our subsidia

* enter into certain transactions with affiliat

» consolidate or merge with or into, or sell subtdly all of our assets to, another person, spdse of all or substantially all of our IP
rights or other assets to or in favor of any pe;;

* make any disposition except certain dispositionsniged under the credit agreems;

» declare or make, directly or indirectly, any rieséd payment, or incur any obligation (contingenbtherwise) to do so, except as
defined therein; an

e enter into certain contractual obligatio

A breach of any of these covenants could resudtdefault or event of default. Upon the occurresfcan event of default under the credit
agreement, the lenders could elect to declararaduats outstanding under the agreement to be imatedgidue and payable and terminate all
commitments to extend further credit. If we weralie to repay those amounts, the lenders couldeaate the repayment of borrowings . If
that were to occur , we may not have sufficienetsst repay the amounts owed under the credieagget or be able to obtain financing from
other sources on favorable terms, if at all. Forarinformation, please see Item 5.B “Operating Bimdncial Review and Prospectsiguidity
and Capital Resources—Capital resources and capip@nditures—Revolving credit facility” and notédBour consolidated financial
statements included in Item 18 of this annual repor

Significant disruptions of our information technolgy systems or breaches of our data security couddeasely affect our business.

A significant invasion, interruption, destructionltreakdown of our information technology systemd/ar infrastructure by persons w
authorized or unauthorized access could negativghact our business and operations. We could adger&nce business interruption,
information theft and/or reputational damage frorhear attacks, which may compromise our systemdeattito data leakage either internally
or at our third party providers. Our systems hasert and are expected to continue to be, the tafgealware and other cyber attacks.
Although we have invested in measures to reducsethisks, we cannot assure you that these measilres successful in preventing
compromise and/or disruption of our informationhteclogy systems and related data.
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Under applicable employment laws, we may not besgblenforce covenants not to compete and therefosy be unable to prevent our
competitors from benefiting from the expertise afrse of our former employees.

We generally enter into non-competition agreemeiitts our employees. These agreements prohibit oypl@yees from competing
directly with us or working for our competitors drents for a limited period after they cease wogkfor us. We may be unable to enforce tt
agreements under the laws of the jurisdictionshiictv our employees work and it may be difficult o to restrict our competitors from
benefiting from the expertise that our former empks or consultants developed while working forFgs.example, Israeli courts have requ
employers seeking to enforce non-compete undegalofa former employee to demonstrate that thepetitive activities of the former
employee will harm one of a limited number of mitkeinterests of the employer that have been reizegrby the courts, such as the secrecy ¢
a company’s confidential commercial informationttoe protection of its intellectual property. If wannot demonstrate that such interests will
be harmed, we may be unable to prevent our coropefitom benefiting from the expertise of our forrmenployees or consultants and our
ability to remain competitive may be diminishedaldition in California, where many employees aof 8DM parts service are located, non-
competition agreements with employees are genenabyforceable after termination of employment.

Failure to comply with the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Prdices Act or other applicable anti-corruption legjation could result in fines,
criminal penalties and an adverse effect on our mssss.

We operate in a number of countries throughoutwbigd, including countries known to have a reputatior corruption. We are committ
to doing business in accordance with applicable@mtuption laws. We are subject, however, torikk that our affiliated entities or our and
our affiliates’ respective officers, directors, doyees and agents (including distributors of owdpicts) may take action determined to be in
violation of such anti-corruption laws, includingetU.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act of 1977 dxedU.K. Bribery Act of 2010, as well as
trade sanctions administered by the Office of Fpréissets Control and the U.S. Department of Coroeékny violation by any of these
persons could result in substantial fines, sanstioivil and/or criminal penalties, or curtailmeritoperations in certain jurisdictions, and might
adversely affect our results of operations. In toldj actual or alleged violations could damagereputation and ability to do business.

We own a number of our manufacturing and office faities, which may limit our ability to move thosgperations. If we were to move
some or all of those operations, we could incur oréseen charge:

We own buildings in Eden Prairie, Minnesota, whigh use to conduct our FDM manufacturing and assgeojiérations, as well as our
manufacturing facility in Kiryat Gat, Israel. Owsip of these buildings and facilities may adversdfect our ability to move some or all of
those operations to other locations that may beerfamorable. If we were to move any of those opemnatto other locations, we may have
difficulty selling or leasing the property that wacate. This could result in an impairment chavg@ch could have a material adverse effec
our results of operations in one or more periods.

If we do not generate sufficient future taxable inome, we may be required to recognize deferred tssea valuation allowances.

The value of our deferred tax assets dependsringaour ability to use them to offset taxabledme in future years. If we are unable to
generate sufficient future taxable income in th8.land certain other jurisdictions, or if there sigmificant changes in tax laws or the tax rates
or the period within which the underlying tempordiiferences become taxable or deductible, we cbaldequired to record valuation
allowances against our deferred tax assets. Slamhaalces would result in an increase in our effectax rate and have a negative impact on
our operating results. If our estimated future bd&ancome is increased, the valuation allowanoesléferred tax assets may be reduced. The
changes may also contribute to the volatility of consolidated financial results.

Default in payment by one or more resellers or austers from which we have large account receivabddamces could adversely impact
our results of operations and financial condition.

From time to time, our accounts receivable balahee® been concentrated with certain resellersistomers. Default by one or more of
these resellers or customers could result in afgignt charge against our current reported easiikige have reviewed our policies that goverr
credit and collections, and will continue to monitieem in light
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of current payment status and economic conditiblesvever, there can be no assurance that our effoitientify potential credit risks will be
successful. Our inability to timely identify ress# and customers that are credit risks could resdefaults at a time when such resellers or
customers have high accounts receivable baland¢baui Any such default would result in a signifitaharge against our earnings and
adversely affect our results of operations andnione condition.

We are subject to extensive environmental, healtidaafety laws and regulations that could have ateréal adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and results of opeiats.

Our operations use chemicals and produce wasteialat&Ve are subject to extensive environmened/th and safety laws, regulations
and permitting requirements in multiple jurisdictiopgoverning, among other things, the generatisa, storage, registration, handling and
disposal of chemicals and waste materials, theepeesof specified substances in electrical prodtieesemission and discharge of hazardous
materials into the ground, air or water, the clgaoficontaminated sites, including any contamimattmat results from spills due to our failure
to properly dispose of chemicals and other wastenads and the health and safety of our employdader these laws, regulations and
requirements, we could also be subject to liabftityimproper disposal of chemicals and waste ntgrincluding those resulting from the use
of our systems and accompanying materials by erdsu$hese or future laws and regulations couldng@tlly require the expenditure of
significant amounts for compliance and/or remediatif our operations fail to comply with such laassregulations, we may be subject to fi
and other civil, administrative or criminal sanciso including the revocation of permits and licensecessary to continue our business
activities. In addition, we may be required to piaynages or civil judgments in respect of ttpatty claims, including those relating to perst
injury (including exposure to hazardous substatitaswe generate, use, store, handle, transporyiaeture or dispose of), property damage
or contribution claims. Some environmental lawswlfor strict, joint and several liabilities formediation costs, regardless of fault. We may
be identified as a potentially responsible partgamsuch laws. Such developments could have a isladeverse effect on our business,
financial condition and results of operations.

We are subject to environmental laws due to the artgand export of our products, which could subjass to compliance costs and/or
potential liability in the event of ho-compliance.

The export of our products internationally from guoduction facilities subjects us to environmetaals and regulations concerning the
import and export of chemicals and hazardous sobsgasuch as the United States Toxic SubstancesoCAnt, or TSCA, and the
Registration, Evaluation, Authorization and Resimit of Chemical Substances, or REACH. These lavasragulations require the testing and
registration of some chemicals that we ship aloitg,wr that form a part of, our systems and offreducts. If we fail to comply with these or
similar laws and regulations, we may be requireshédke significant expenditures to reformulate thergicals that we use in our products and
materials or incur costs to register such chemitatgin and/or regain compliance. Additionally, eaild be subject to significant fines or
other civil and criminal penalties should we ndtiage such compliance.

We are currently subject to a number of lawsuithdse and any future lawsuits to which we becomejsabmay have a material
adverse impact on our capitalization, business amdults of operations.

We are currently party to one significant actionabiprmer employee who seeks the issuance of ap@marcisable for our ordinary shares
The former employee has demanded, based on aedlieglertaking we had made prior to the Stratadjst@nerger, that we issue him an
option that would allow him to maintain an equityarest of 1.45% in our company and reimburse padatuctions he had suffered. This
plaintiff has further demanded compensation on aetof alleged wrongful termination. While the ialtcourt ruling on this matter dismissed
the case and awarded us legal expenses, the filaagiappealed the case, which appeal is currentying and is being litigated in the Israeli
national labor court.

We have furthermore been sued by four current wnéo minority shareholders and former directorswf company who demand that we
amend the capitalization table of our company shehcertain share issuances prior to the Strat@byst merger to certain of our shareholder:
named as defendants would be cancelled, with seqoesit issuance of additional shares to the pifsing account for the subsequent dilution
to which they have been subject. The lawsuits, Wwhiere brought in an Israeli district court in Mai2013, also name as defendants certain ©
our directors, officers and shareholders who preslipheld those positions prior to the StratasygOierger.
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We are also subject to three additional lawsuiided as class actions of our shareholders, whietewnitiated in the United States District
Courts for the District of Minnesota, the SouthBigtrict of New York, and the Eastern District 0N York on February 5, 9, and 20, 2015,
respectively, and which name the Company and ceofadur officers as defendants. The lawsuits alieiglations of the Exchange Act in
connection with allegedly false and misleadingestents concerning our business and prospects. |aimtiffis seek damages and an award of
reasonable costs and expenses, including attorfess’ These lawsuits are in their initial stages, no substantive proceedings have occurre
to date.

We can provide no assurance as to the outcomesé thr any future matters or actions, and any swtters or actions may result in
judgments against us for significant damages artti®issuance of options to acquire shares of apital stock, the exercise of which wor
result in dilution to our shareholders. Resolutiithese matters can be prolonged and costly, ladltimate results or judgments are unce
due to the inherent uncertainty in litigation anldes proceedings. Moreover, our potential liakgbtare subject to change over time due to nev
developments, changes in settlement strategy antpact of evidentiary requirements. Regardleshefoutcome, litigation has resulted in the
past, and may result in the future, in significkgial expenses and require significant attentiahrasources of management. As a result,
current and any future litigation could result@s$es, damages and expenses that have a mateeseadffect on our business.

We rely on our management information systems fovéntory management, distribution, and other keynfttions. If our information
systems fail to adequately perform these functioosif we experience an interruption in their opetian, our business and operating resu
could be adversely affected.

The efficient operation of our business is depehdarour management information systems. We relgwormanagement information
systems: to, among other things, effectively marmageaccounting and financial functions, includimgintaining our internal controls; to
manage our manufacturing and supply chain proceasdso maintain our research and development d@iagfailure of our management
information systems to perform properly could draur business and product development, which masyit in decreased sales, increased
overhead costs, excess or obsolete inventory, atlipt shortages, causing our business and opgraults to suffer. Although we take steps
to secure our management information systems,ditauour computer systems, intranet and Interries semail and other telecommunication:s
and data networks, the security measures we hgvermented may not be effective and our systemsheasulnerable to theft, loss, damage
and interruption from a number of potential souraed events, including unauthorized access or ggdweaches, natural or man-made
disasters, cyber-attacks, computer viruses, poves:;, br other disruptive events. Our reputatioanty and financial condition could be
adversely affected if, as a result of a significeytier event or otherwise, our operations are ptedior shut down; our confidential, propriet
information is stolen or disclosed; we incur castare required to pay fines in connection witHesi@wustomer, employee, or other confidentia
information; we must dedicate significant resournoesystem repairs or increase cyber security ptiot or we otherwise incur significant
litigation or other costs.

Compliance with disclosure rules regarding “conflieninerals” may require us to incur expenses or mifydour products or operations
and may also adversely affect the demand for sorheur products and our operating results.

As required under the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Refand Consumer Protection Act, in August 2012 th€ $Eomulgated final rules
regarding disclosure of the use of certain ming(tals tantalum, tungsten, and gold), and certditheir derivatives, known as “conflict
minerals,” which are mined from the Democratic Rajmuof the Congo and adjoining countries, as \&slprocedures regarding a
manufacturer’s efforts to prevent the sourcinguafrsminerals and metals produced from those misiefa required by these new rules, in
2013, we commenced due diligence efforts to detezrour use of conflict minerals, and we made ast fionflict mineral filing with the SEC
on June 2, 2014. The rules require us to make guksé disclosures no later than May 31 of eaclofailg year. We expect that we will incur
additional costs and expenses, which may be sigmifj in order to comply with these rules. Sincesupply chain is complex, ultimately we
may not be able to sufficiently verify the origiftg any conflict minerals and metals used in owdpicts through the due diligence procedures
that we implement, which may adversely affect @putation with our customers, shareholders, anerattakeholders. In such event, we may
also face difficulties in satisfying customers wiequire that all of our products are certified asflict mineral free. If we are not able to meet
such requirements, customers may choose not th@seoour products, which could adversely affectsales and the value of portions of our
inventory. Further, there may be only a limited fb@mof suppliers
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offering conflict free minerals and, as a resuk, @annot be sure that we will be able to obtairaieeif necessary, from such suppliers in
sufficient quantities or at competitive prices. Amye or a combination of these various factorsabarm our business, reduce market deman
for our products, and adversely affect our profirgins, net sales, and overall financial results.

Risks related to our intellectual property

As our patents expire, additional competitors usiagr technology could enter the market, which cowéfer competitive printers and
consumables, require us to reduce our prices for guoducts and result in lost sales. Competitomtrioduction of lower quality products
using our technology could also negatively affehetreputation and image of our products in the matklace.

Some of our patents have expired and others wplirexn coming years. Upon expiration of those pttgour competitors have introduc
and are likely to continue to introduce, produdig the technology previously protected by theirexppatents, which products may have
lower prices than those of our products. To compeéemay need to reduce our prices for those pitsdudiich would adversely affect our
revenues, margins and profitability. Additionalllge expiration of our patents could reduce bart@mntry into AM systems, which could
result in the reduction of our sales and earnirgemgial. If competitors using technology previgugtotected by our expired patents were to
introduce products of inferior quality, our potahitustomers may view our products negatively, Whiould have an adverse effect on our
image and reputation and on our ability to compétk systems using other AM technologies.

If we are unable to obtain patent protection for oproducts or otherwise protect our intellectual ggperty rights, our business could
suffer.

We rely on a combination of patent and trademaunlslan the United States and other countries, tsmieet protection, confidentiality
agreements and other contractual arrangementowitamployees, end-users and others to maintainampetitive position. In particular, our
success depends, in part, on our ability, and biilgyaof our licensors, to obtain patent protectimr our and their products, technologies and
inventions, maintain the confidentiality of our atheir trade secrets and know-how, operate with@dtinging upon the proprietary rights of
others and prevent others from infringing upon anul their proprietary rights.

Despite our efforts to protect our proprietary tiglit is possible that competitors or other unatiged third parties may obtain, copy, use
or disclose our technologies, inventions, process@sprovements. We cannot assure you that amyoéxisting or future patents or other
intellectual property rights will not be challengéalvalidated or circumvented, or will otherwis@pide us with meaningful protection. Our
pending patent applications may not be grantedwanthay not be able to obtain foreign patents adpe applications corresponding to our
U.S. patents. The laws of certain countries, sgcBlana, do not provide the same level of patesiegtion as in the United States, so even if
we assert our patents or obtain additional paier@hina or elsewhere outside of the United Stagfective enforcement of such patents may
not be available. If our patents do not adequaiatyect our technology, our competitors may be &bleffer additive manufacturing systems,
consumables or other products similar to ours. @@unpetitors may also be able to develop simildmtetogy independently or design around
our patents, and we may not be able to detectribatborized use of our proprietary technology ketappropriate steps to prevent such use.

If we attempt enforcement of our intellectual pnapeights, we may be (as we have been in the gastject or party to claims,
negotiations or complex, protracted litigation elfgctual property disputes and litigation, regasgl of merit, can be costly and disruptive to
business operations by diverting attention andgiesiof management and key technical personnelbgicreasing our costs of doing
business. Any of the foregoing could adverselydféair operating results.

We may be subject to claims that we are infringimgisappropriating or otherwise violating the intelttual property rights of others.

Our products and technology, including the techgglihat we license from others, may infringe, mggapriate or otherwise violate the
intellectual property rights of third parties. R#tapplications in the United States and most
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other countries are confidential for a period ofdiuntil they are published, and the publicatiodie€overies in scientific or patent literature
typically lags actual discoveries by several momthsiore. As a result, the nature of claims comtaiim unpublished patent filings around the
world is unknown to us, and we cannot be certadh We were the first to conceive inventions covérgaur patents or patent applications or
that we were the first to file patent applicatimesering such inventions. Furthermore, it is nagible to know in which countries patent
holders may choose to extend their filings underRatent Cooperation Treaty or other mechanisneddition, we may be subject to
intellectual property infringement claims from imtiuals, vendors and other companies, includingghtbat have acquired patents in the field:
of 3D printing or consumable production for theespuirpose of asserting claims against us. In addit patent infringement claims, we may
be subject to other intellectual property claimsglsas claims that we are infringing trademarkshisappropriating trade secrets. We may alsc
be subject to claims relating to the content onveeiosites, including third-party content postecban Thingiverse.com or GrabCAD.com
websites. Any intellectual property claims, regasdl of the merit or resolution of such claims caadse us to incur significant costs in
responding to, defending and resolving such claand, may prohibit or otherwise impair our abilitydommercialize new or existing products.
Resolution of such claims may, among other thingguire us to redesign infringing technology, emés costly settlement or license
agreements on terms that are unfavorable to uggoire us to indemnify our distributors and endrasAny infringement by us or our
licensors of the intellectual property rights ofdhparties may have a material adverse effectuwrbasiness, financial condition and results of
operations.

If we are unable to protect the confidentiality ofur trade secrets or know-how, such proprietaryanfnation may be used by others to
compete against us, in particular in developing symables that could be used with our printing systein place of our proprietary
consumables.

We have devoted substantial resources to the dawelot of our technology, trade secrets, know-hosaher unregistered proprietary
rights. While we enter into confidentiality and ention assignment agreements intended to protehtraghts, such agreements can be difficul
and costly to enforce or may not provide adequarteedies if violated, and we may not have enteredsnch agreements with all relevant
parties. Such agreements may be breached and entididinformation may be willfully or unintentiotya disclosed, or our competitors or ot
parties may learn of the information in some otliay. The disclosure to, or independent developrhgna competitor of any of our trade
secrets, know-how or other technology not protebied patent could materially reduce or eliminatg eompetitive advantage that we may
have over such competitor.

This concern could manifest itself in particulattiwiespect to our proprietary consumables thatisee with our systems. Portions of our
proprietary consumables may not be afforded paastiection. Chemical companies or other produckraw materials used in our
consumables may be able to develop consumablearthabmpatible to a large extent with our systemmgther independently or in
contravention of our trade secret rights and rdlagt®prietary and contractual rights. If such conahles are made available to owners of our
systems, and are purchased in place of our prapyiebnsumables, our revenues and profitability ld/¢ne reduced and we could be forced to
reduce prices for our proprietary consumables.

Risks related to operations in Israel

Our Israeli headquarters and manufacturing and othsignificant operations may be adversely affectadpolitical, economic and
military instability in Israel.

One of our dual corporate headquarters, as welllas our PolyJet-related system manufacturing mesgarch and development facilities,
one of our two PolyJet consumables manufacturinijtias, and some of our suppliers, are locatedeintral and southern Israel. In addition,
many of our key employees, officers and directoesrasidents of Israel. Accordingly, political, @omic and military conditions in Israel may
directly affect our business. Since the establigitroéthe State of Israel in 1948, a number of almenflicts have taken place between Israel
and its neighboring countries. Any hostilities ilwing Israel or the interruption or curtailmenttodide between Israel and its trading partners
could adversely affect our operations and restileperations. During the winter of 2008-2009, indmber 2012 and once again in the
summer of 2014, Israel has been engaged in armdlictovith Hamas, a militia group and political fyathat controls the Gaza Strip, and
during the summer of 2006, Israel was engaged eraned conflict with Hezbollah, a Lebanese Islar8isiite militia group and political party.
These conflicts involved missile strikes againstliein targets in various parts of Israel, inclugliareas where some of our manufacturing
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facilities are located, and negatively affectedifess conditions in Israel. Any armed conflictsrdést activities or political instability in the
region, including those related to the recent urireSyria, could adversely affect business condgiand could harm our results of operations
and could make it more difficult for us to raiseital. Parties with whom we do business have sonestideclined to travel to Israel during
periods of heightened unrest or tension, forcingpusake alternative arrangements when necessarglér to meet our business partners face
to face. In addition, parties with whom we haveeaggnents involving performance in Israel may claiat they are not obligated to perform
their commitments under those agreements pursadatde majeure provisions in such agreements altieet political or security situation in
Israel.

Furthermore, many of our male employees in Isiaeluding members of our senior management, argateld to perform one month, a
in some cases longer periods, of annual militasgmee duty until they reach the age of 45 (or glftercitizens who hold certain positions in
the Israeli armed forces reserves), and, in thatesfea military conflict (such as the last confflieith Hamas), may be called to active duty. In
response to increases in terrorist activity frometito time and as a result of the last conflichwidamas, there have been periods of significan
call-ups of military reservists, and some of ouaddi employees have been called up in connectitmavmed conflicts. It is possible that there
will be similar large-scale military reserve dulleups in the future. Our operations could beutised by the absence of a significant number
of Israeli employees or of one or more of our kenaeli employees. Such disruption could materiaflyersely affect our business and
operations.

Our commercial insurance does not cover lossesnhgtoccur as a result of an event associatedthatisecurity situation in the Middle
East. Although the Israeli government is currentynmitted to covering the reinstatement value rdalidamages that are caused by terrorist
attacks or acts of war, we cannot assure you liggbvernment coverage will be maintained, ordimtained, will be sufficient to compensate
us fully for damages incurred. Any losses or darsageurred by our Israeli operations could haveatenial adverse effect on our business.
Any armed conflicts or political instability in thregion would likely negatively affect business ditions generally and could harm our results
of operations.

Your rights and responsibilities as a shareholdeitilee governed by Israeli law, which may differ some respects from the rights and
responsibilities of shareholders of U.S. companies.

We are organized under Israeli law. The rights rasgonsibilities of the holders of our ordinaryr&saare governed by our amended and
restated articles of association and Israeli laesE rights and responsibilities differ in somgeess from the rights and responsibilities of
shareholders in typical U.S.-based corporationgalticular, a shareholder of an Israeli comparsyahduty to act in good faith toward the
company and other shareholders and to refrain &busing its power in the company, including, amotigr things, in voting at the general
meeting of shareholders on matters such as amertsltoes company’s articles of association, increas@ company’s authorized share
capital, mergers and acquisitions and interestely pansactions requiring shareholder approvahddition, a shareholder who knows that it
possesses the power to determine the outcomehairatmlder vote or to appoint or prevent the agpweént of a director or executive officer in
the company has a duty of fairness toward the cagpEhere is limited case law available to assisinuunderstanding the implications of
these provisions that govern shareholders’ actibhsse provisions may be interpreted to imposetiaddi obligations and liabilities on
holders of our ordinary shares that are not typidaiposed on shareholders of U.S. corporations.

Provisions of Israeli law may delay, prevent or etlwise impede a merger with, or an acquisition ofir company, which could prevent
a change of control, even when the terms of suctransaction are favorable to us and our shareholder

Israeli corporate law regulates mergers, requeader offers for acquisitions of shares above §ipddhresholds, requires special
approvals for transactions involving directorsja#fs or significant shareholders and regulatesratiatters that may be relevant to such type:s
of transactions. For example, a merger may nobbswunmated unless at least 50 days have passedhfecstate on which a merger propos:
filed by each merging company with the Israel Regisof Companies and at least 30 days have péssadhe date on which the shareholder:
of both merging companies have approved the mehgaddition, a majority of each class of secusitdé the target company must approve a
merger. Moreover, a tender offer for all of a comga issued and outstanding shares can only be ledadpif the acquirer receives positive
responses from the holders of at least 95% ofsthigeid share capital. Completion of the tender af® requires approval of a majority of the
offerees that do not have a
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personal interest in the tender offer, unlesspfathg consummation of the tender offer, the acquireuld hold at least 98% of the company’s
outstanding shares. Furthermore, the shareholdeisding those who indicated their acceptancéeftender offer, may, at any time within
months following the completion of the tender offeetition an Israeli court to alter the considerafor the acquisition, unless the acquirer
stipulated in its tender offer that a shareholtiat ticcepts the offer may not seek such appraggeabr

Furthermore, Israeli tax considerations may makerg@l transactions unappealing to us or to oaretiolders whose country of reside
does not have a tax treaty with Israel exemptirgl ®lnareholders from Israeli tax. For example glstax law does not recognize téoee shar
exchanges to the same extent as U.S. tax law. M&iect to mergers, Israeli tax law allows fordaferral in certain circumstances but makes
the deferral contingent on the fulfillment of a rwen of conditions, including a holding period ofotwears from the date of the transaction
during which sales and dispositions of shares @fidirticipating companies are subject to certatriotions.

Moreover, with respect to certain share swap tretimss, the tax deferral is limited in time, andembsuch time expires, the tax becomes
payable even if no disposition of the shares hasroed.

These and other similar provisions could delayy@né or impede an acquisition of our company orraarger with another company, e\
if such an acquisition or merger would be benefficaus or to our shareholders.

Exchange rate fluctuations between the U.S. doliard the New Israeli Shekel, the Euro, the Yen aritier non-U.S. currencies may
negatively affect the earnings of our operations.

We report our financial results and most of ouerawes are recorded in U.S. dollars. However, sobally all of the manufacturing,
research and development expenses of our Israalatpns, as well as a portion of the cost of reesnselling and marketing, and general anc
administrative expenses of our Israeli operatians,incurred in New Israeli Shekels. As a resudt,are exposed to exchange rate risks thai
adversely affect our financial results. If the Nisnaeli Shekel appreciates against the U.S. doli#rthe value of the New Israeli Shekel
declines against the U.S. dollar at a time wherrdke of inflation in the cost of Israeli goods amilvices exceeds the rate of decline in the
relative value of the New Israeli Shekel, thenth8. dollar cost of our operations in Israel woumdrease and our results of operations would
be adversely affected Our Israeli operations ataddcbe adversely affected if we are unable tootiffely hedge against currency fluctuations
in the future. We cannot predict any future treimdghe rate of inflation in Israel or the rate @wvaluation (if any) of the New Israeli Shekel
against the U.S. dollar. The Israeli rate of inflat(deflation) amounted to (0.2%), 1.8%, and 1f6%the years ended December 31, 2014,
2013 and 2012, respectively. The appreciation (deti@an) of the New Israeli Shekel in relation ke tU.S. dollar amounted to (12. 0%), 6.5%
and 2.1% for the years ended December 31, 20148 &0d 2012, respectively.

We also have substantial revenues and expensesréhdénominated in non-US currencies other thaiNgw Israeli Shekel), particularly
the Euro. Therefore, our operating results and fiasls are also subject to fluctuations due to gfeanin the relative values of the U.S. dollar
and those foreign currencies. These fluctuationddcoegatively affect our operating results andid@ause our revenues and net income or
loss to vary from quarter to quarter. Furthermtwehe extent that our revenues increase in regionl as Asia Pacific, where our sales are
denominated in U.S. dollars, a strengthening oftbléar against other currencies could make oudpets less competitive in those foreign
markets and collection of receivables more difficul

From time to time we engage in currency hedginiyitiels. These measures, however, may not adeguatetect us from material advel
effects due to the impact of inflation in Israelfimm fluctuations in the relative values of theSUdollar and other foreign currencies in which
we transact business, and may result in a finatasal For further information, please see “ltemQuantitative And Qualitative Disclosures
About Market Risk” in this annual report.

Calculating our income tax rate is complex and sebf to uncertainty. We currently receive Israeliygrnment tax benefits in respect of

our Israeli operations. If we do not meet severalnglitions for receipt of those benefits, or if theraeli government otherwise decides to
eliminate those benefits, they may be terminatedentuced, which would impact our income tax ratechimcrease our costs.
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The computation of income taxes is complex becéusdased on the laws of numerous taxing jurisoits and requires significant
judgment on the application of complicated rulesegaing accounting for tax provisions under GAARcdme taxes for interim quarters
based on a forecast of our global tax rate fory#hae, which includes forward-looking financial projions. Such financial projections are base
on numerous assumptions, including the expectatbpsofit and loss by jurisdiction. It is difficuto accurately forecast various items that
make up the projections, and such items may béttess discrete accounting. Examples of itemsdbiald cause variability in our income tax
rate include our mix of income by jurisdiction, tdeductions for share option expense, the appdicatf transfer pricing rules, and tax audits.
Future events, such as changes in our busineghanalx law in the jurisdictions where we do buss)eould also affect our rate.

One important assumption that goes into calculatfoour tax rate is the tax benefit that we recaiveespect of some of our operations in
Israel, referred to as “Approved Enterprise” an@fiBficiary Enterprises,” under the Law for the Emagement of Capital Investments, 5719-
1959, or the Investment Law. Based on an evaluatidhe relevant factors under the Investment Liaaluding the level of foreign (that is,
non-Israeli) investment in our company, we haverested that our effective tax rate to be paid withpect to all Israeli operations under these
benefit programs is 7% to 10%, based on the cubraliaince of activity between our Rehovot, Israel dityat Gat, Israel facilities and the
available level of benefits under the law. If werdd meet the requirements for maintaining theseefis, they may be reduced or cancelled
and the relevant operations would be subject &elscorporate tax at the standard rate, whicluisently set at 26.5%. In addition to being
subject to the standard corporate tax rate, weddoelrequired to refund any tax benefits that westedready received, plus interest and
penalties thereon. Even if we continue to meetéhevant requirements, the tax benefits that ouectt “Approved Enterprise” and
“Beneficiary Enterprise” receive may not be conéidun the future at their current levels or at filthese tax benefits were reduced or
eliminated, the amount of taxes that we pay woildely increase, as all of our operations would espugntly be subject to corporate tax at the
standard rate, which may cause our global taxteelbe materially different than our estimates andld adversely affect our results of
operations. Additionally, if we increase our adtes outside of Israel, for example, via acquisiipour increased activities may not be eligible
for inclusion in Israeli tax benefit programs, ghet could also adversely affect our global tar &td our results of operations.

The Israeli government may furthermore indepengeaitgtermine to reduce, phase out or eliminate @gtthe benefit programs under the
Investment Law, regardless of whether we then fufdr benefits under those programs at the timteictvwould also adversely affect our
global tax rate and our results of operations.

Certain Israeli government grants that we receivied certain of our research and development actigg in Israel may restrict our
ability to transfer manufacturing operations or tboology outside of Israel, and failure to satisflie conditions of those grants with respect
to such transfers may require us to obtain a prepapval from the relevant authorities and pay penak.

Our Israeli-based research and development effigrte and are financed in part, through grantsvieateceived from Israed’Office of the
Chief Scientist of the Ministry of Economy, or OCBwough 2006, Objet received approximately $1.Hani, which it repaid in its entirety
(including interest thereon) by the end of 2007.In 2014 we received funding of approximatelB@4ahousands under the Generic R&D
program to support certain research and developprejects in Israel.

We must comply with the requirements of the Isrhaliv for the Encouragement of Industrial Researdh@evelopment, 1984, and rele
regulations, or the Research Law, with respedidse current and past grants. When a company gesvkfmw-how, technology or products
using OCS grants, the terms of these grants anRdkearch Law restrict the transfer of such know;hend the transfer of manufacturing or
manufacturing rights of such products, technologielsnow-how outside of Israel, without the prigpaoval of the OCS. Therefore, if aspects
of our technologies are deemed to have been dexelejih OCS funding, the discretionary approvahofOCS committee would be required
for any transfer to third parties outside of Israeknow-how or manufacturing or manufacturing tighelated to those aspects of such
technologies. We may not receive those approvalsh&rmore, the OCS may impose certain conditionany arrangement under which it
permits us to transfer technology or developmenhbbisrael.

The transfer of OCS-supported technology or know-batside of Israel may involve the payment of gigant amounts, depending upon
the value of the transferred technology or know-hitnve amount of OCS support, the time
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of completion of the OCS-supported research pr@adtother factors. Furthermore, the considerati@ilable to our shareholders in a
transaction involving the transfer outside of I$@gechnology or know-how developed with OCS fimgd(such as a merger or similar
transaction) may be reduced by any amounts thareveequired to pay to the OCS.

It may be difficult to enforce a U.S. judgment agmst us and our officers and directors in Israel ¢tihe United States, or to serve process
on our officers and directors.

We are organized in Israel. Most of our officerd directors reside outside of the United Stated,aamajority of our assets are located
outside of the United States. Therefore, a judgrobtdined against us or any of our executive offi@nd directors in the United States,
including one based on the civil liability provis®of the U.S. federal securities laws, may natdikectible in the United States and may nc
enforced by an Israeli court. It also may be diffidor you to effect service of process on thesespns in the United States or to assert U.S.
securities law claims in original actions instiwie Israel.

Risks related to an investment in our ordinary shaes
If certain of our shareholders sell a substantiabmber of our ordinary shares, the market price afiroordinary shares could decline.

Former MakerBot stockholders and certain MakerBopleyees, former Solid Concepts stockholders ariboolders, and certain Sc
Concepts employees, and certain Harvest Technalegigployees and former stockholders, may resebitii@ary shares that we issued or
issue to them pursuant to the MakerBot transactmlid Concepts acquisition or Harvest Technologieguisition, as applicable, under
Form F3 registration statement that we filed, which ceviire resale of the foregoing groups of shareseUtite terms of the MakerBot ¢
Solid Concepts merger agreements, and the Hanagdtriblogies stock purchase agreement, we issutitk atlosing of the transactions
August 15, 2013, July 14, 2014 and August 1, 20&dpectively, 3,921,660 ordinary shares, 978,6@lInary shares and 175,456 ordir
shares (after withholding certain shares for tawd®re applicable), which may be sold or may hdseady been sold, in whole or part, to
public following the closings. Those shares togettenstitute approximately 10% of our issued antstamding shares, in the aggregate,
the closing date of the Harvest Technologies adipns(following the issuance of the shares in Harvest Technologies acquisition). We r
also issue up to an additional 650 thousands arglsteaares, approximately 1,000,000 ordinary shanesapproximately 111,000 (based on
share price as of the closing) ordinary sharefeostlling shareholders and/or employees in resggueriods through early 2015 , mad-17
and early 2018 pursuant to the terms of the MakerBerger agreement, Solid Concepts merger agreeamehtHarvest Technologies st
purchase agreement, respectively, which may beegulestly resold without restrictiqassuming that the related registration statenfexitwe
have filed remains in effect). Sales of a significaumber of the foregoing shares in a short pesiodime could have the effect of depres:
the market price of our ordinary shares.

The market price of our ordinary shares may be sedfjto fluctuation, regardless of our operating gt and financial condition. As a
result, our shareholders could incur substantialdses.

The market price of our ordinary shares since th@&ys-Objet merger has been subject to substéinttuation. During 2014 and the
early part of 2015 (through February 14, 2015),andinary shares have traded with closing pricas ltlave ranged from $57.36 to $136.46. It
is likely that the price of our ordinary shareslwintinue to be subject to substantial fluctuatiegardless of our operating results or financial
condition due to a number of factors, including:

* whether we achieve the perceived benefits oftbegers or acquisitions that we consummate aslyapido the extent anticipated by
financial or industry analyst

e whether the effects on our business and prospétihe mergers or acquisitions that we consumragteonsistent with the
expectations of financial or industry analy:

e variations in our and our competitors’ resultopérations and financial condition;
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« market acceptance of our produc

* the mix of products that we sell, and relatedises that we provide, during any period;
e changes in earnings estimates or recommenddiipsscurities analysts;

e development of new competitive systems and sesviy others;

« our announcements of technological innovationsew products;

» delays between our expenditures to develop anlenaew or enhanced systems and consumables ameiieration of sales from
those products;

« developments concerning intellectual propertitsg

» changes in the amount that we spend to devetmjiiree or license new products, technologies omasses;
* changes in our expenditures to promote our prisdared services;

< changes in the cost of satisfying our warrantygaltions and servicing our installed base of ayste

e success or failure of research and developmegts of the combined company or its competitors;

< the general tendency towards volatility in therkes prices of shares of technology companies; and

« general market conditions and other factors, iralydactors unrelated to our operating performa

These factors and any corresponding price fluanatmay materially and adversely affect the mapkiee of our ordinary shares and
result in substantial losses being incurred bystareholders.

Market prices for securities of technology compartisstorically have been very volatile. The marketthese securities has from time to
time experienced significant price and volume fliations for reasons unrelated to the operatingopeednce of any one company. In the past,
following periods of market volatility, public corapy shareholders have often instituted securit@essaction litigation. Such securities
litigation could result in substantial costs andedi the resources and attention of our managefrmmtour business.

Raising additional capital by issuing securities mmaause dilution to our shareholders.

We may need or desire to raise substantial capithle future. Our future capital requirements d#jpend on many factors, including,
among others:

* the extent to which we acquire or invest in busiessproducts or technologies and other stratetationships
« our degree of success in capturing a larger podf@dditive manufacturing demar
< the costs of establishing or acquiring sales, narggeand distribution capabilities for our produyc

« the costs of preparing, filing and prosecutinteptiapplications, maintaining and enforcing osuéed patents and defending
intellectual propert-related claims; an

« the costs of financing unanticipated working cdp#guirements and responding to competitive press

If we raise funds by issuing equity or convertiiebt securities, it will reduce the percentage owlnip of our then-existing shareholders,
and the holders of such new securities may havesiigreferences or privileges senior to thosegssesl by our then-existing shareholders.

25



We do not anticipate paying any cash dividendshe foreseeable future. Therefore, if our share peidoes not appreciate, our
shareholders may not recognize a return, and coplatentially suffer a loss, on their investment iuoordinary shares.

We intend to retain all available funds and anuifetearnings to fund the development and growttuotbusiness. As a result, capital
appreciation, if any, of our ordinary shares wélibvestors’ sole source of a return on their itmesit for the foreseeable future.

Even if we decide to pay dividends on our ordinatyares, we may be restricted from doing so or payhaf such dividends may have
adverse conseguences for our company.

Under the Companies Law, dividends may only be paidf our profits and other surplus funds (asreef in the Companies Law) as of
the end of the most recent year or as accruedaperiod of the most recent two years, whichevasarhis greater, provided that there is no
reasonable concern that payment of a dividendpréi’ent us from satisfying our existing and foredde obligations as they become due. In
the event that we do not meet the profit and sgrfilads criteria, we can seek the approval of eaelscourt in order to distribute a dividend.
The court may approve our request if it is convehteat there is no reasonable concern that the eatyaf a dividend will prevent us from
satisfying our existing and foreseeable obligatianshey become due. Due to the acquisition metfiadcounting utilized for the Stratasys-
Objet merger and the MakerBot transaction under 8Agursuant to which we were deemed to have aaGibget’s assets, we will incur
significant annual amounts of depreciation and dimation expense in respect of those assets (de€?ro our consolidated financial
statements appearing in this annual report for rimdogmation on the method of accounting for theastsys-Objet merger and the MakerBot
transaction). These significant annual expensesruBAAP might reduce or eliminate our profits andodus funds as determined under the
Companies Law, and, hence, may restrict our alidifyay dividends (absent court approval).

We are furthermore restricted from distributingidends under the terms of our credit agreementelated agreements that we entered
into in November 2013 with Bank of America and ttker lenders party thereto. See “Risks relatealitdusiness and financial condition—
Covenants in our credit agreement may restrichosiness in many ways” for more information.

In general, the payment of dividends may also lgestito Israeli withholding taxes. In addition cheise we receive certain benefits unde
the Israeli law relating to “Approved Enterprisaida'Beneficiary Enterprise”, our payment of dividisn(out of tax-exempt income) may
subject us to certain Israeli taxes to which we i@t otherwise be subject. See “Risks relateoltooperations in Israel—The government
tax benefits that we currently receive requireausieet several conditions and may be terminateddarced in the future, which would incre:
our costs.”

We are a foreign private issuer under the rules aratjulations of the SEC and are therefore exemgirft a number of rules under the
Exchange Act and are permitted to file less infortien with the SECthan a domestic U.S. reporting company, which walduce the level
and amount of disclosure that you receive.

As a foreign private issuer under the Exchange Wetare exempt from certain rules under the Exclaxd, including the proxy rules,
which impose certain disclosure and proceduralireqents for proxy solicitations. Moreover, we ad# required to file periodic reports and
financial statements with the SEC as frequentlgsopromptly as domestic U.S. companies with seesiegistered under the Exchange Act;
and are not required to comply with Regulation RRijch imposes certain restrictions on the seledafigelosure of material information. In
addition, our officers, directors and principal stelders are exempt from the reporting and “skaiitig” profit recovery provisions of Secti
16 of the Exchange Act and the rules under the &xgé Act with respect to their purchases and sdilear ordinary shares. Accordingly, you
receive less information about our company andrpih our shares by our affiliates than you worddeive about a domestic U.S. company,
and are afforded less protection under the U.&rédecurities laws than you would be affordetdiding securities of a domestic U.S.
company.

As a foreign private issuer, we are also permitéadi, have begun, to follow certain home countrpomate governance practices instea
those otherwise required under the Listing RulethefNASDAQ Stock Market for domestic U.S. issug¥® have informed NASDAQ that we
follow home country practice in Israel with regaod among other things, composition of our boardicdctors (whereby a majority of the
members of our board of
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directors need not be “independent directors,sagenerally required for domestic U.S. issuersgatior nomination procedure and approval of
compensation of officers. In addition, we have dptefollow home country law instead of the ListiRgles of the NASDAQ Stock Market tt
require that a listed company obtain shareholdprayal for certain dilutive events, such as thalglgthment or amendment of certain equity-
based compensation plans, an issuance that willtiesa change of control of the company, certeamsactions other than a public offering
involving issuances of a 20% or greater intereshéncompany, and certain acquisitions of the stwckssets of another company. Following
our home country governance practices as opposthe teequirements that would otherwise apply tangad States company listed on The
NASDAQ Global Select Market may provide our shatdbs with less protection than they would havetereholders of a domestic U
company.

Our status as a foreign private issuer is subfeantannual review and test, and will be testeihaamof June 30, 2015 (the last business
day of our second fiscal quarter of 2015). If wed@ur status as a foreign private issuer, wenwillonger be exempt from such rules. Among
other things, beginning on January 1, 2016, we @bel required to file periodic reports and finahstatements as if we were a company
incorporated in the U.S., which, among other thirgsild result in increased compliance and repgrtivsts to us.

If we are unable to satisfy the requirements of 8en 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, or tharbanes-Oxley Act, as they apply
to a foreign private issuer, or if our internal cdrols over financial reporting are not effectivehé¢ reliability of our financial statements may
be questioned and our share price may suffer.

We are subject to the requirements of Section 4@deoSarbanes-Oxley Act, or Section 404, whichunexg a company that is subject to
the reporting requirements of the U.S. securiti@gslto conduct a comprehensive evaluation of idsisnsubsidiaries’ internal controls over
financial reporting. To comply with this statutegare required to document and test our internarobprocedures, and our management is
required to assess and issue a report concerninigtetnal controls over financial reporting, inckacase on an annual basis. In addition, our
independent registered public accounting firm ¢auied to issue an opinion on the effectivenessuwrinternal control over financial reporting
pursuant to Section 404.

We have prepared for compliance with Section 404tlsngthening, assessing and testing our systemteshal controls to provide the
basis for our managemest'eport. The continuous process of strengthenimgnternal controls and complying with Section 484omplicate:
and time-consuming. As our business continuesdw gmternationally, our internal controls will baoe more complex and will require
significantly more resources and attention to emsat they remain effective overall. Over the seuwf testing our internal controls, our
management may identify material weaknesses, whahnot be remedied in a timely manner on an ongbasis. If our management cannot
favorably assess the effectiveness of our interoalrols over financial reporting, or if our indejient registered public accounting firm
identifies material weaknesses in our internal st investor confidence in our financial resuitay weaken, and our share price may suffer.

If we are classified as a passive foreign investrneampany, or PFIC, our U.S. shareholders may suféalverse tax consequences.

Generally, if for any taxable year, after applyoggtain look-through rules, 75% or more of our grim&ome is passive income, or at least
50% of the value of our assets are held for theyction of, or produce, passive income, we mayhagacterized as a PFIC for U.S. federal
income tax purposes. Passive income for this pergeserally includes, among other things, certaimdeinds, interest, royalties, rents and
gains from commodities and securities transactmsfrom the sale or exchange of property thatgyise to passive income. If we are a Pl
gain realized by a U.S. shareholder on the sateipbrdinary shares may be taxed as ordinary ind@atker than as capital gain income), and
an interest charge added to the tax. Rules sitnildrose applicable to the taxation of gains redlian the disposition of our stock would apply
to distributions exceeding certain thresholds.

Although we do not believe that we were a PFIC0&4 we cannot assure you that the IRS will agrdie tlvat conclusion or that we will
not become a PFIC in 2015 or in a subsequent Jbartests for determining PFIC status are appligdially, and it is difficult to make
accurate predictions of our future income and theré value of our assets. U.S. shareholders shoougult with their own U.S. tax advisors
with respect to the U.S. tax consequences of
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investing in our ordinary shares. For a discussiomow we might be characterized as a PFIC andeel@x consequences, please see ltem
10.E, “Additional Information—Taxation—U.S. Fedetatome Tax Considerations—Tax Consequences if VeaPassive Foreign
Investment Company”.

ITEM 4. INFORMATION ON THE COMPANY.
A. History and Development of the Company

Our legal and commercial name is Stratasys Ltdl vem are the product of the 2012 merger of twoitepddditive manufacturing
companies, Stratasys, Inc. and Objet Ltd. Strafdsgswas incorporated in Delaware in 1989, anjeOlid. was incorporated in Israel in
1998, under the name Objet Geometries Ltd., whiah ghanged in 2011 to Objet Ltd. On December 12 20 two companies completed the
Stratasys-Objet merger, pursuant to which Strafdsgsbecame an indirect, wholly-owned subsid@rpbjet Ltd., and Objet Ltd. changed its
name to Stratasys Ltd. Also, as part of that tretisa, the ordinary shares of Stratasys Ltd. wisted on the NASDAQ Global Select Market
under the trading symbol “SSYS”, in place of ttstitig of the common stock of Stratasys, Inc., whial also traded under that symbol. On
August 15, 2013 we acquired Cooperation Technofggporation, or MakerBot, which was the direct paimpany of MakerBot Industrie
LLC, a leader in desktop 3D printing, and which edrand operated Thingiverse.com, a website deditathe sharing of user-created digital
design files. The business of MakerBot (includirgrigiverse.com) is now operated by a subsidiagusfcompany. In July 2014 and August
2014, we completed the acquisitions of Solid Coteapd Harvest Technologies, respectively, twoifeagroviders of additive manufacturing
services.

We have dual headquarters. One of our two prin@fzades of business is located at 7665 Commerce Bign Prairie, Minnesota, and
our telephone number there is (952) 937-3000. @gistered office and our other principal place udibess is located at 2 Holtzman Street,
Science Park, P.O. Box 2496, Rehovot 76124, Iseael our telephone number at that office is (+972)f45-4314. Our agent in the United
States is S. Scott Crump, our Chairman of the BikezCommittee, whose address is c/o Stratasysalrthe address of our Eden Prairie,
Minnesota headquarters. Our World Wide Web addsessvw.stratasys.com. The information containedhat web site (or on our other web
sites, including www.objet.com) is not a part dstannual report. As an Israeli company, we opasatier the provisions of IsraglCompanie
Law, 5759-1999.

In 2014, 2013 and 2012, our capital expendituregianted to $62.3million, $39.7 million and $15.1 linih, respectively, of which $60.5
million, $33.3 million and $12.1 million, respectiy, related to the purchase of fixed assets fanufecturing or engineering development
equipment, tooling, leasehold improvements andtpiisition of computer systems and software agtios.

Our principal capital expenditures currently ingmess are for facility expansion, research andldpweent, manufacturing equipment and
information technology, for both our Rehovot, Idraed Eden Prairie, Minnesota headquarters asasedur new facility in Germany. These
expenditures are being financed internally from kirgy capital.

B. Business overview

We are a leading global provider of additive mantifeing, or AM, solutions for the creation of pansed in the processes of designing
manufacturing products and for the direct manufactd end parts. Our solutions include productgirag from entry-level desktop 3D printers
to systems for rapid prototyping, or RP, and lgygeduction systems for direct digital manufacturiogDDM. We also develop, manufacture
and sell materials for use with our systems andigeorelated services offerings. We believe thatringe of 3D printing consumable mater
that we offer, consisting of 38 Polyjet/Fused Deéfims Modeling, or FDM, cartridge-based materidige Smooth Curvature Printing, or SCP,
inkjet-based materials and 138 non-color digitaterials, and over 1,000 color variations, is thdesi in the industry. Our services offerings
include Stratasys Direct Manufacturing printed paervice as well as our professional services.

AM, which is also referred to as 3D printing, iartsforming prototype development manufacturing @sees and is displacing certain
segments of traditional, or subtractive, manufastumethodologies such as metal extrusion, comggstrolled machining and manual
modeling techniques. With respect to product deaigh prototype development, 3D printing signifi¢pimproves the design process, reduce
the time required for product development and itatés creativity, while keeping the entire degigacess in-house. 3D printing also enables
the direct manufacture of parts that are subsetigcbrporated into a usexr'end product. In addition, manufacturers are asirgly using 3L
printing systems to produce manufacturing tools fattdres that aid in their production and
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assembly processes. While 3D printing has histllyibeen focused on design and manufacturing agfidins, 3D printing is beginning to sh
signs of broader adoption with the growth of eréyel desktop 3D printers.

Our products and services are used in differenliGgifwns by customers in a broad array of indestrincluding aerospace, automotive,
consumer electronics, dental, jewelry and more.&stomers range from individuals and smaller lessps to large, global enterprises, and
we include a number of Fortune 100 companies amangustomers.

We offer a broad range of systems, consumableseamites for additive manufacturing. Our wide rangsolutions, based on our
proprietary AM technologies and production matetiahhance the ability of designers, engineerswaambfacturers to:

» visualize and communicate product ideas and des

» verify the form, fit and function of prototype

e manufacture tools, jigs, fixtures, casts and inggctmolds used in the process of manufacturin¢-products;
« manufacture customized and sl-run en«products more efficiently and with greater agiliayd

e produce objects that could not otherwise be manwufad through subtractive manufacturing methodas

Our product portfolio consists of five series of Ayistems and the consumables used in those systbase series are the MakerBot
desktop series, the Idea Series, the Design S#e&roduction Series and the Dental Series. €oldy, this portfolio offers a variety of
performance options for our customers, dependinthein desired application, as well as on the raturd size of the designs, prototypes or
end-products they seek to produce. Our wide rahggstems allows us to offer our customers systanasnumber of different price points,
depending on the features that our customers desire

As of December 31, 2014, we have sold approximdi2ly,661 systems globally, including approximaf3y906 sold by MakerBot. We
benefit from recurring revenues from the sale sfir@and plastic consumables and related servicesphide products and services to our
global customer base throughout our offices in Néanerica and internationally, including: Shangl@jna; Frankfurt, Germany; Genoa,
Italy; S&o Paulo, Brazil; Bangalore, India; Tokyapan, and Hong Kong, as well as through our wadewetwork of more than 280 agents
and resellers. Additionally, through the MakerBainsaction, we have added an online sales chameehave more than 2,900 employees anc
hold more than 800 granted or pending patentsriatemally.

Industry overview

Historically, prototype development and customimehufacturing have been performed by traditionahwes using metal extrusion,
computer-controlled machining and manual modeleahhiques, in which blocks of material are carvethitied into specific objects. These
subtractive manufacturing methodologies have nunlimitations. They often require specialist teckams and can be time- and labor-
intensive. The time intensity of traditional modejican leave little room for design error or sulbssr redesign without meaningfully
impacting a product’s time-to-market and developnoast. As a result, prototypes have traditionbign created only at selected milestones
late in the design process, which prevents desiginem truly visualizing and verifying the desigham object in the preliminary design stage.
The inability to iterate a design rapidly hindedadlaboration among design team members and otakelsblders and reduces the ability to
optimize a design, as time-to-market and optimizabecome necessary trade-offs in the design pgoces

AM addresses the inherent limitations of traditiomadeling technologies through its combinatioriwfctionality, quality, ease of use,
speed and cost. AM can be significantly more effitiand effective than traditional model-makinghtd@ques for use across the design proces
from concept modeling and design review and vabdato fit and function prototyping, pattern madgiand tooling, to direct manufacturing of
repeatable, cost-effective parts, short-run partsastomized end products. Introducing 3D modediadier in the design process to evaluate
fit, form and function can result in faster timertarket and lower product development costs.

For customized manufacturing, 3D printers elimirthteneed for complex manufacturing set-ups andaethe cost and lead-time
associated with conventional tooling. DDM involths use of 3D production systems for the directufeature of parts that are subsequently
incorporated into the user’s end product or marnufagy process. DDM is particularly attractive ippdications that require short-run or low-
volume parts or rapid turn-around, and for whiablitty would not be appropriate due to small volumi2i3M also enables the production of
objects that have been topologically designedgesighed on the basis of a computerized determmafiavhere to place the key component
the object and how to connect them, a processsluygnerally unavailable using conventional sultivaananufacturing methodologies.

29



The first commercial 3D printers were introducedha early 1990s, and since the early 2000s, 3fiipg technology has evolved
significantly in terms of price, variety and qugldf materials, accuracy, ability to create compdbjects, ease of use and suitability for office
environments. 3D printing is already replacing itiadal prototype development methodologies ack@sus industries such as architecture,
automotive, aerospace and defense, electronicscaheiotwear, toys, educational institutions, ggyment and entertainment, underscorin
potential suitability for an even broader rangéndiustries. Additionally, 3D printing has createzl\napplications for model-making in certain
new market categories, such as: education, whetigutions are increasingly incorporating 3D pmgtinto their engineering and design cours
programs; dental and orthodontic applications, wt8 printed models are being used as replacerfartaditional stone models, implants
and surgical guides and for crowns and bridgesdsting; and jewelry, where 3D printers are beisgduto produce custom-designed pieces o
jewelry. Furthermore, 3D printing is being usedriany industries for the direct digital manufactgrof enc-use parts.

Desktop 3D printer usage has shown rapid growtth thie introduction and adoption of affordable g#ével 3D printers and increased
availability of content. These entry-level deskfters are driving substantially increased masakption. We expect that the adoption of 3L
printing will continue to increase over the nexteal years, in terms of design applications, eanadhe hand, and DDM applications, on the
other hand. We believe that the expansion of thikebavill be spurred by increased proliferatior3@f content and 3D authoring tools (3D
computer-aided-design, or CAD, and other simplifs&lauthoring tools), as well as increased avditghif 3D scanners. We also believe that
increased adoption of 3D printing will be facilgdtby continued improvements in 3D printing tecbagland greater affordability of entry-
level systems.

Stratasys solutions
Range of solutions

We offer a broad range of systems, consumablesemvites for additive manufacturing. Our solutiadslress our customerseeds for 3|
printing, including printing systems, a compatibt&anner, consumables, software, paid parts andg®iohal services, and 3D content.

Our solutions allow our end-users to print 3D otgebat enhance their ability to visualize, veafyd communicate product designs,
thereby improving the design process and redud@ing-to-market. Our systems create visual aids dmicept modeling and functional
prototyping to test fit, form and function, perrimit rapid evaluation of product designs. Using en¢ation models developed with our syste
designers and engineers can typically conduct desigews and identify potential design flaws amgpiovements before incurring significant
costs due to re-tooling and re-work, allowing thienoptimize a design rapidly and cost-effectively.

Our systems also aid in the communication of id#herwise communicated in abstract or 2D media.eample, a model produced with
our systems may be used as a sales tool, as a progit display or simply for use in conductinfpaus group. It may also be used for
collaboration in the product design and manufantudycles at multiple locations more quickly, efadplvisualization, touch and feel, which
can be critical to the product evaluation or salesess.

Our solutions also empower our end-users to enigaD®M via the use of our systems for the quick affitient direct manufacture of
parts that are subsequently incorporated into sieesumanufacturing processes or end product. Forrinstaur solutions enable the produc
of manufacturing tools, jigs, fixtures, casts am@dtion molds that aid in the customer’s produttmd assembly process. DDM is also
particularly attractive in applications that requéhort-run or low-volume parts that require rapish-around, and for which tooling would not
be appropriate due to small volumes, such as danthjewelry applications. Our solutions also eadhé production of objects that generally
could not otherwise be manufactured through sutieamanufacturing methodologies.

Range of technologies and differentiating facto

Our solutions are driven by our proprietary teclgas, brought together through the combinatioauwfconstituent companies, each of
which was a leader in the AM industry. We hold mibvan 800 granted or pending patents internatipnafid our AM systems utilize our
patented FDM® and inkjet-based PolyJet™ technototpieenable the production of prototypes, toolsldee production and manufactured
goods directly from 3D CAD files or other 3D conteWe believe that our broad range of product amdise offerings is a function of our AM
technology leadership.

A key attribute of our FDMP technology is its ability to use a variety of pratian grade thermoplastic building materials thesttéire
surface resolution, chemical and heat resistarmder,and mechanical properties
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necessary for production of functional prototyped parts for a variety of industries with specdi®mands and requirements. Use of these
materials also enables the production of highlyadle end parts as well as objects with solublesfirethe manufacture of hollow parts, the
manufacture of which were previously dependentlower and more expensive subtractive manufactugognologies.

We believe that this technology is differentiatgdabnumber of factors that make it appropriate3f@rprinting and DDM. These factors
include:

* the ability to use FDN® systems in an office environment due to the absefibazardous emissior
the relative absence of p-production processing

minimal material waste

better processing and build repeatabil

ease of use, with minimal system set up requires

no need for costly replacement lasers and lasés;zard

a high degree of precision and reliabili

We believe that our 3D inkjet-based printing tedbgy is primarily differentiated from other compagitechnologies in its ability to scale
and deliver high-resolution and multi-material pirig, in color. Our easy-to-use, high-speed 3D Petii™ printers create high-resolution,
smooth surface finish models that have the loodd, dad functionality of the final designed produtte offer a wide variety of office-friendly
resin consumables, including rigid and flexiblebfpar-like) materials and bio-compatible materialsrhedical applications. Using our
PolyJet™ Matrix technology, our solutions also offee only 3D printing systems that deposit muétiplaterials simultaneously. This enables
users, in a single build process, to print parts @semblies made of multiple materials that eatirr their distinct mechanical and physical
properties. For example, users can print objedts lath rigid and flexible portions in a single loyior mix different base colors in order to
achieve desired color tone. The PolyJet™ Matrikibetogy also enables atemand mixing of a wide variety of resins to createide range ¢
pre-defined digital materials, which are compositerials with modified physical or mechanical @otbr properties that result from the
combination of multiple materials.

Our PolyJet inkjet-based technology is also culyatistinguished by its ability to offer transpatenaterial printing in an office
environment system. Transparency is a desiredreatithe design and engineering phases of pratkwalopment and is applicable in
automotive, consumer products and consumer eldéctrofihe main applications are lighting componeiuiising and piping, package
optimization, and fluid analysis.

We also offer Smooth Curvature Printing, or SCEBritoplastic ink-jetting technology through our 88licape brand to produce wax-like
patterns for lost-wax casting, investment castimgj mold making applications. The SCP printer cieat#id 3D parts through an additive,
layer-by-layer process, using our SCP thermoplaskigetting technology and high-precision milliog each layer. The parts produced are
extremely high resolution with very precise detaitgl fine surface finish, making our SCP systemsuited for DDM.

We offer 38 Polyjet/FDM cartridge-based materifil®e SCP inkjet-based materials and 138 non-caigital materials, and over 1,000
color variations for our 3D printers, which we le&k is the widest range of materials in the ingustr

Customers

We have a diverse set of customers worldwide, nitlsingle customer or group of affiliated customessany individual sales agent or
group of affiliated sales agents accounting forertban 10% of our sales in 2014, 2013 or 2012.90lutions are used across a wide array of
applications in a variety of different industries.

Our competitive strengths
We believe that the following are our key compeditstrengths:

» Differentiated product offerings with superior modd quality. Our portfolio of 3D printing systems is differertgd through a
combination of superior printing qualities, accyrgarint speed, the ability to print a range of em&ls with varying levels of strength,
chemical and heat resistance, color and mechgmiopkrties, the ability to print multiple materialisnultaneously and suitability for offic
environments. Our offering spans the spectrum feany-level desktop printers to high-end solutifarscomplex operations. Our FDM-
based systems enable highly precise printing dfiff8rent durable thermoplastic materials, enabtingide range of DDM applications
with little or no post-production processing. Ouwl\Jet inkjet-based systems jet ultra-thin laydrmaterial that enable significant
accuracy, high resolution and smooth finish to edrmodels. For us
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with these systems we offer a wide variety of @ffdendly resin consumables, including rigid, flde (rubber-like), transparent and color
materials. We believe that we offer the only prigtsystem that utilizes the simultaneous jettinthofe materials to enable end-users to
print models with rigid, flexible and color matdsgain virtually unlimited combinations, in a sirgbuild. Our SolidScape SCP
thermoplastic ink-jetting technology offers highrepision milling of each printed layer, enablingrertely high resolution with precise
details and fine surface finish.

Proprietary technology platforms with multidiscipli nary technological expertiseWe believe that our proprietary 3D FDM and 3D
inkjet-based PolyJet printing engines offer endsifige versatility and differentiated features 1ssegy for a wide variety of current and
potential applications. We combine our proprietaaydware platforms, featuring widely-deployed inlgenter heads or easy-to-use
extrusion heads with integrated software and 3@netary materials to develop and produce leadiDgfnting systems. This allows us
offer a spectrum of 3D printers and printing syserfivarying features, capacities and price poants, to migrate the advanced features c
our high-end products to our entry-level producith\greater efficiency. Our 3D printing solutiomgegrate innovations in a wide range of
scientific disciplines, such as physics, chemisind mechanical and electrical engineering, as agefloftware development. We have
made significant investments in developing andgragng technologies into our hardware platfornftvgare and proprietary consumables.
We believe that we have a strong base of techndtagw-how. Our patent portfolio consists of morartt800 granted or pending patents
internationally. We believe that we have a culirénnovation, and we expect to continue to enhangesolutions both to further drive
market adoption of 3D printing and to broaden oarket reach

Leading Direct Manufacturing Business.Our newly branded Stratasys Direct Manufacturingise business, which comprises our
legacy RedEye parts business combined with thentigcacquired Solid Concepts and Harvest Technekgs one of the largest and
leading AM parts service providers globally. Thistis knowledge of and experience in AM, includimgterials and systems know-how,
and AM end-use parts production is expected tomedaur DDM offering suite. This unit offers a wideay of underlying printing
technologies and materials. Furthermore, StratB#gst Manufacturing enables us to offer a broadution to our customers, catering to
more of their 3D printing needs, whether by supdlgD printers or of 3D printed parts. We beliekiestoffering creates better customer
intimacy and a competitive advantage for Strate

Large and growing installed baseOur differentiated offerings have led to a largd gnowing installed base. As of December 31, 2014,
we have sold approximately 121,661 systems globiaityuding approximately 79,906 sold by MakerBbie significant installed base t
resulted in greater distribution reach and enhaopgdrtunities for cross selling, given the sigrafitly broadened and complementary
product offerings. It furthermore presents us withopportunity to generate recurring revenues fafas of consumables to the installed
base.

Leading position in desktop 3D printing.With the acquisition of MakerBot, we have expandadsolutions for 3D printing,
encompassing accessible desktop 3D printers angrialatand leading content creation and sharingtisols. We believe that this categ:
is poised for significant growth driven by broa@deloption of 3D printing and an increase the in nends applications where 3D printing
is used. We believe our installed base, brand aveaseand portfolio of solutions in this categorgifions us well to capitalize on the
continued growth of this categol

Diverse, global customer baseWe have a broad customer base, ranging from ghobaket leading brands to small businesses and
professionals and individuals. Our end-users irelcmmpanies across a wide range of industries gplitations, including automotive,
aerospace, architecture, consumer products, edanahtnstitutions, defense, medical analysis, meddigstems, electronics, and heavy
equipment

Extensive global reachWith more than 280 channel partners around thedyaré are well positioned to leverage the extensive
geographic reach of our marketing and sales orgfaizto serve customers and grow awareness ofridiiing for RP and DDM. The
merger between Stratasys and Objet has alreadiye@ s greater distribution reach and enhancedudppities for cross selling into our
combined company’s installed base, given the diganitly broadened and complementary product offsriie merger produced. In
addition, through the MakerBot transaction we haglded an online sales chanr

Our growth strategy

The key elements of our strategy for growth incltleefollowing:
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Identifying new vertical applications for our proprietary 3D printing technologies.We believe that the proliferation of 3D content,
advancements in AM technology platforms and thevdhiction of improved materials will continue tawdr growth in 3D printing. We
intend to invest in the identification of new apgliions (especially DDM applications) for which guoprietary printing technologies and
materials are appropriate. In addition, we seedvegit niche applications where AM can provide satitsal value, and develop a
comprehensive solution to address these oppossnii/e also intend to encourage existing and patenistomers to identify new
applications in part by increasing awareness ofehtures of our technology and product offerir

Increasing adoption of AM manufacturing solutions. We believe that the adoption of 3D printing fommafacturing applications can be
accelerated through working intimately with ourtoumsers and the 3D printing ecosystem, to reduceahgplexity of using our solutions.
We are investing in developing professional ses/icapabilities to enhance our customers’ abilityge our solutions. In addition, we
collaborate with strategic partners in our ecosydie streamline the integration of 3D printing s@os into the business processes of our
customers

Driving further adoption through desktop systems.We expect to drive market adoption through incrdasdes of our desktop systems.
These systems are expected to penetrate a broddrgaty untapped addressable market, targetingdl si@sign teams within large
organizations, small and mediwized businesses and individuals. We expect tadgecour growing Thingiverse community to acceke
adoption. We expect to incorporate certain additideatures of our hi¢-end series of printers into our er-level series over time

Leveraging our global reach to expand the customdrase and further penetrate existing customeriWe have a network of more than
280 resellers and selling agents around the wardtvarious online channels. We will seek to incesh® penetration of our existing
customer base by enabling customers to streamlirghpsing processes and by increasing cross-seélliogur installed base. We intend
to reach new customers and increase sales torex@istomers by providing access to new solutibasdddress customesgecific need:
These solutions include those offered by our Stget®irect Manufacturing service. As part of thimtegy we intend to grow awarenes:
3D printing solutions for RP and DDM and to deveingustry specific sales channels as part of diartefo commercialize a broader rar
of new DDM applications. Additionally, we expectdignificantly expand our online presence and lagerour retail channe

Maintaining and extending our technology leadOur multidisciplinary technological leadership,eagdenced by our more than 800
granted or pending patents internationally, underpiur proprietary hardware, integrated softwarkrange of 3D printing materials,
which consist of range of 38 Polyjet/FDM cartridggsed materials, five SCP inkjet-based materiadsl®8 non-color digital materials,
and over 1,000 color variations. We will seek tteexl our technological capabilities by continuingrtvest in our R&D efforts, which
focus on enhancing our 3D PolyJet and FDM printaahnologies as well as developing new innovatdletens for 3D printing. In
addition, we will continue developing consumablest offer an even broader array of physical, meicaand aesthetic properties, ther
broadening user applications. We believe that haeroing our AM technological capabilities and byeleping and introducing new
materials for our 3D printing and production sysseme will be able to increase both the size of, @ share of, the 3D printing
marketplace

Continuing servicing our installed baseToday our company has the largest AM solutionsaifesd base in the industry. We consider the
relationship with our customers to be a valuabsegsas reflected in our customer satisfactionestgvWe plan to continue nurturing these
relationships to enhance the intimacy with our @omrs, which will allow us to address their neeeldr through innovative and holistic
prototyping and manufacturing solutions of printensl materials, AM printed parts service and adsdmrofessional service

Growing through complementary acquisitions.We intend to selectively pursue acquisitions toagpour product offerings, go to mar
and overall growth and market penetration. Accaglyirwe may consider acquisitions and investmentzrder to effect and accelerate our
other growth strategie

Products and services

Our product portfolio consists of five series of Adyistems and the consumables used by those sy€@emproduct series comprise the

MakerBot desktop series, the Idea Series, the De3dgies, the Production Series and the Dentaé&eTiollectively, this portfolio of products
offers a broad range of performance options forajgepending on their desired application, as agbn the nature and size of the designs,
prototypes or end-products they seek to produce p@ducts are available at a variety of differgrnte points and include entry-level desktop
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3D printers, a range of systems for RP, and largdyztion systems for DDM. We also offer a ranggririting materials consisting of 38
Polyjet/FDM cartridge-based materials, five SCHetkased materials and 138 non-color digital nialeand over 1,000 color variations. The
performance of our different systems varies in teahcapabilities, which are related to the followfeatures:

print speed

resolution;

materials;

resin cartridge capacity and filament spool s

maximum model (or tray) size; ai

duty cycle, or the number of objects that a prictar produce over a given period of time withoguigng maintenance

Our systems also integrate our software and angostgal by services that we provide to our custoptmth directly and through our
reseller channel.

Printing system:s
Our AM systems are described below:

Design SeriesOur Design Series includes the Dimension and Qivgatds. The Dimension brand features our FDM telcigycand the
Objet brand features our PolyJet technology. Thiertelogy available in this series makes it weltediifor all aspects of RP, from design
visualization and communication to form and fitifieation to model building for functional testinghis series also offers a variety of product:
that provide customers with a broad range of clodddeatures such as printing capacity, productipeed and price. The Dimension product
line allows users to create parts in ABSplus ptadthis material enables production of parts whid $trength required for true form, fit and
functional testing. The Connex Systems are our mdganced PolyJdtased printer line featuring the highest capacity affering the broade
set of features, including the ability to jet thraaterials simultaneously, with rigid, flexible aocolor characteristics, in virtually unlimited
combinations, in a single build.

Production Series:The Production Series includes our Fortus, Pobet SolidScape brands, all of which are typicafigdifor DDM
applications. 3D Production Systems driven by Retlj technology work by jetting state-of-the-ariopbpolymer materials in ultra-thin
layers onto a build tray, layer by layer, until fert is complete. The intuitive Objet Studio™ safte manages the process. And, with multi-
material 3D production systems, you can combinedifit material properties in the same part, imgls print — gaining ultimate versatility.
Our proven FDM® technology is the foundation foe frortus® 3D Production Systems. Durable, prodoegiade thermoplastic is heated in
an extrusion head and deposited in thin layers mo@eling base. The part is built, layer upon layéth exactness from the bottom up.
InsightTM software provides advanced control ouwgitdbparameters. When the part is complete, theldelor breakaway support material is
removed, leaving an accurate, durable partshertvironmentally stable. We also offer our Sol&®=line of 3D printers for DDM applicatiol
This line of products combines patent-protected? &t@rmoplastic ink-jetting technology and highgisen milling of each layer, with our
proprietary graphical frontnd ModelWorks software. Objects created with tregstems feature extremely high pattern resolwimhaccurac
and are used primarily for jewelry products andtdesapplications.

MakerBot Replicator series: Our MakerBot Replicator series represents our 3iki@ printers, compact, and professiogiee printers
Our desktop and compact printers are affordable designed for easy, desktop use and are typiaa#ig by individuals operating alone or
within an enterprise. Our larger, professional fgrifnas a large build volume ideal for industriadtptypes, models and products. We acquired
MakerBot in August 2013 to enhance our desktoprioifis. In addition to the Replicator printer seriesr MakerBot portfolio includes the
Digitzer, which is a 3D scanner that allows custmstie scan an object and convert it into a diditalthat can subsequently be printed.

Idea Series:The Idea Series includes our lower capacity, afible set of 3D printers for professional use. Bleises comprises the MoJo
and uPrint product families, both of which are Fislsed. These products are designed for easy agedfiice environment and produce
professional grade parts using our ABS line ofriagslastics.

Dental Series: Each Dental Series 3D printer runs on one of twemiad, industry-leading technologies to build medaental appliances
and casting wax-ups in-house, directly from digdiilels. OurPolyJet technology enables the production of
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surgical guides, fitting models, veneer try-ins andhodontic appliances fromaterials specially engineered for dental appliceti Our wax-
deposition-modeling, or WDM, technology drives 3ingers that enable the production of crowns, eglgnd partial dentures.

Consumable materials

We sell a broad range of 3D printing materials,ststing of 38 Polyjet/FDM cartridge-based materifilse SCP inkjetbased materials ar
138 non-color digital materials, and over 1,00cefriations for use in our 3D printers and prdauctsystems. The sale of these materials
provides us with a recurring revenue stream froersusf our 3D printers and production systems.

The materials we sell are described below:
FDM-based materials

The modeling and support filament used in the FDaddal 3D printers and production systems featuvadevariety of production grade
thermoplastic materials. We continue to develggmiiént modeling materials that meet our customensds for increased speed, strength,
accuracy, surface resolution, chemical and heéteee, color, and mechanical properties. Thegserabs are processed into our proprietary
filament form, which is then utilized by our FDMstgms. Our spool-based system has proven to lgmificint advantage for our products,
because it allows the user to quickly change naltbyi simply mounting the lightweight spool anddeey the desired filament into the FDM
devices that are office friendly. Currently, we davvariety of build materials in multiple coloenemercially available for use with our FDM
technology.

Each material has specific characteristics thatenieppropriate for various applications. Theigbtb use different materials allows the
user to match the material to the end use appicatvhether it is a pattern for tooling, a conampidel, a functional prototype, a DDM
manufacturing tool, or a DDM end use part.

PolyJe-based materials

Our resin consumables, which consist of our Polfaleily of proprietary acrylic-based photopolymeaterials, are designed for use with
our PolyJet printing systems and enable usersosktiproducts to create highly accurate, finelyibat88D models and parts for a wide rang
prototype development and customized manufactappiications. The wide variety of resins within fhelyJet family is characterized by
transparent, colored, or opaque visual propertiesflexible, rigid or other physical properties.efRullCure support materials that are used
together with the model materials enable the 3btimg of models with a wide array of complex geotnest Our PolyJet materials are prodt
in-house and are specially designed for our prinsystems.

We have invested significant research and develapeféorts in optimizing our PolyJet materials fare with inkjet technology. These
efforts are reflected in the properties of theséenias, which enable them to be packaged, st@@ubined and readily cured upon printing.
Our PolyJet materials are packaged in cartridgesdfe handling and are suitable for use in offiogironments. The polymerized materials
also be machined, drilled, chrome-plated or paiimetdost cases.

SCP inkjet-based materials

Our SolidScape 3D materials are non-toxic therngijganaterials featuring excellent lost wax castijoglities, including fast melt out, no
ash or residue, and no thermal expansion. Curremdyhave three modeling materials commerciallyilalke for use with our SolidScape
technology. These include materials formulated ifipafly for particular industries, such as a thetpolyester formula developed to help retail
jewelers and manufacturers meet the demand fahiial goods using less precious materials and méhgolyester material formulated
deliver high casting yields for dental applications

Integrated software
We offer suites of integrated software with ouriwas AM systems; each is designed to make the psoakcreating high-quality, highly
detailed and accurate models more efficient. Ofiwswe supports commonly used 3D file formats aoiverts three-dimensional CAD

databases into the appropriate code to operatAMwsystems. Our
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software also provides a wide range of featureduding automatic support generation, part scaliogitioning and nesting, as well as
geometric editing capabilities.

Our different software suites are specifically dasid for our different AM systems and their diffgrapplications. Accordingly, certain
software focuses on increasing build speed andawipg the design engineer’s control and efficienegr the entire build process. Other
software suites offer simple “click & build” preion and print tray editing, and provide easyusate job timing estimation and full job
control, including queue management. Similarly,offer software that allows users to make adjusts@8D printing properties. For
example, for our Connex line of 3D printers, outware enables users to change the color and rabteix in the printing process, allowing
users to quickly modify the properties of the mdukesihg printed.

The software designed for our PolyJet inkjet-b&@grinters enables users to work in parallel aartijobs from any network computer
to the server. Jobs enter the queue either acaptdithe parameters configured by the system agtrétor, or in chronological order. The
gueue is therefore easily managed, as each usacbess to his or her jobs and the administratosedand adjust parameters and access
permissions. In configurations of multiple printisgstems on the network, each user automaticaiives the parameters of the selected
system, such as tray size, loaded materials, aedegstatus, helping ensure easy, error-free ttap.se
Online Community
Thingiverse.com

Thingiverse is our online community for sharing dibeadable, digital 3D designs. The Thingiversefptat enables users to share and

customize their digital designs. We believe thanglverse is the largest repository of free 3D faiite content available to consumers.
Thingiverse includes more than 250,000 public desmyailable for downloading.

We furthermore operate the MakerBot Digital Stonéiree in which we sell high quality, printable apdintable digital 3D models, now
offered on a streaming platform. The content isenéed in one of three categories and supplemevitedicensed content from strategic
partners. All models are designed to be printetherMakerBot desktop 3D printers.

GrabCAD Community

We host the GrabCAD Community for mechanical englisend designers, where members can upload amiabmhvfree CAD models,
post and answer mechanical engineering questiodsparticipate in design challenges. This commulmitg more than 1.6 million members at
the end of 2014. The GrabCAD community providesmegys and designers a resource for CAD modelsrigethem communicate ideas and
share designs.

Our services
Support services and warran
Customer support

Our customer support department provides on-siegy installation, basic operation training, a falige of maintenance and repair
services and remote technical support to usersiopducts. We provide support to our customeresctly and through our resellers, ensuring
that support and parts may be readily obtaineddwade. We also offer training to our customerstipatarly on our high-performance
systems. Our support network consists of the faltigw
« More than 500 trained, Strata-certified engineers providing worldwide, -site installation, training and suppc

» Direct support engineers through our comp:

» Indirect support engineers through certified pers, including third-party service organizationselected resellers who provide support
for our systems

« Phone and direct «site company support in six languages, and resalelirect support in local languag

» Service logistics in key regional cente
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» Training facilities and resources in regional ces

» Computerized management system and knowledgébdison platform to ensure high-quality suppont éwur customers, including secure
remote access to a customer service databaseruagtaervice history and technical documentatioaidioin troubleshooting and repairing
systems

e Support, tools and I-to-date information to our direct customer and distidn channels from our product support engineetéagn.

Our goal is to ensure maximum uptime and produgtfar our AM systems. In order to do so, we regylapdate the technical
documentation related to our systems, offer extensaining courses for operators and promote preaknowledge sharing designed to help
users maximize the value of their equipment arekfzand the applications for which they employ ddr@inting and production systems.

We offer services on a time and materials basigellsas through a number of post-warranty mainterasontracts with varying levels of
support and pricing, as described below under “foe€e support programs.”

Customer support is represented on cross-functimmoaluct development teams within our company guemnthat products are designed
for serviceability and to provide our internal dgsand engineering departments with feedback dd iBsues. Failure analysis, corrective
action, and continuation engineering efforts areetr by data collected in the field. Ongoing custorsupport initiatives include development
of advanced diagnostic and troubleshooting tectesignd comprehensive preventative maintenancegmsgan expanded training and
certification program for Stratasys and Stratagrsners’ technical personnel, and improved comnation between the field and the factory.

Basic warranty

Our printing systems are sold with warranties taage from 90 days to one year from installati@pahding upon the product line and
geographic location. Warranties are generally agzoried by on-site maintenance support. Receiptadfitenance and repair services after the
warranty period is subject to the terms of our eatel support programs, to the extent purchasebdéwgrid-user, as described below.

Extended support progran

Recognizing that our end-users have varying suppmets, we offer a range of support programs tietle our end-users to continue to
receive maintenance services beyond the initiatamdy period. These support programs contain vgrgliegrees of the support services
described above and are priced accordingly.

Leasing
In the United States, we offer our customers thi@opo lease or rent 3D printers and 3D productigsiems.
Stratasys Direct Manufacturing pakrparts service

Stratasys Direct Manufacturing was formed on Jan@iaR015 from our three AM service companidledEye (formerly a business uni
Stratasys, Inc.) and newly acquired Harvest Teagies and Solid Concepts — and is a provider op8bting and custom AM services.
Stratasys Direct Manufacturing offers AM capal@ktiencompassing a wide range of technologies ailtpfair plastic and metal parts for rapid
prototyping and production processes. Our StratB#gst Manufacturing paid-parts service producergiypes and end-use parts for
customers from a customer-provided CAD file. THieves the customer to benefit from our processtezl&nowhow, capitalize on the variety
of materials and machine types available througtsewice center, and take advantage of additioaécity using the latest in proven RP and
DDM technologies and processes. Our Stratasys DMaaufacturing business operates a website semiegv.stratasysdirect.com, which
enables our customers to obtain quotes and order gr@und the clock, seven days a week.

Marketing, sales and distribution
Marketing

Our marketing strategies are focused on increasivayeness of our key solutions and services, gtienang our leadership brand
positions, accelerating and supporting sales groartt increasing customer loyalty. We initiate nedirkg programs and campaigns to drive

lead generation throughout the countries in whieh w
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and our resellers and agents operate. We areralssting in programs to support our strategic actand select vertical industry sales efforts.

We use a variety of inbound and outbound marketiethods to reach potential customers. Examplesbafund methods include search
marketing (Search Engine Optimization and Pay-Hek@dvertising), social media, blogs, syndicatismebinars and white papers. Outbound
channel examples include digital and print commaitidm programs, press relations, direct mail amaa@-campaigns, tradeshows, newsletters
industry associations and referrals. In additioa,have built and maintain on-site product and tetdgy demonstration capabilities in certain
regional offices across the world.

We measure and analyze the success of various timgrkaitiatives and strive to identify current ahdure customer needs. Based on our
analysis, we create and update our product roadarapidividual marketing plans to help optimizstdbution while helping ensure a smooth
process of release, ramp-up and sales of our praduc

Sales distribution method

Our sales organization sells, distributes and ples/ifollow-up support services with respect toAMrsystems and related consumables,
through a worldwide sales and marketing infrastectWe generally use three methods for distriloudind support: (i) sales to resellers who
purchase and resell our products and through wiediow-up support and maintenance services and cepiant parts are provided to end-
users; (ii) sales of systems that are arrangedrstaork of independent sales agents worldwidesyant to which we sell directly to enders
pay commissions to such agents, and directly hahélsale of consumables and provision of follgwvsupport services; and (iii) direct sale:
systems or services to end-users without the irroknt of any intermediaries, for which all aspeftsur sales and follow-up services are
handled exclusively by our company. In certainanses, the same individual or company can sereer@seller with respect to certain of our
products while acting as an independent sales dgeather products. Our resellers and indepensdalats agents are overseen by regional
managers and operate on a non-exclusive basisuglhwe believe that most do not sell competing g\igtems.

Almost all of the reseller and independent salenatpcations that distribute our products haveAMrsystems available for tradeshows,
product demonstrations, and other promotional #igts Additionally, many of them enjoy a long-tepresence and offer third-party 3D CAD
software packages in their respective territoeesbling them to cross-sell our systems to custervlp purchase those other products.

In addition to our direct and indirect seller netlyove also offer our MakerBot Replicator seried aglated consumables and services
through our online and retail channels.

Geographical structure of sales organization

The primary sales organization for our 3D printms production systems including related consunsabaterials and services is divided
into groups based on the following geographicaiareg; North America; Europe and Middle East; Aséific; and Latin America. This
structure allows us to align our sales and margeatsources with our diverse customer base. Oas saijanization in each region provides
sales support to the network of independent resalld sales agent locations throughout the paaticegion. We also operate sales and servic
centers in various locations throughout North Ameand internationally, including: Shanghai, Chirankfurt, Germany; Genoa, Italy; S&o
Paulo, Brazil; Bangalore, India; Tokyo, Japan; afmhg Kong.

Manufacturing and suppliers
Manufacturing

The manufacturing process for our 3D printing aratpction FDM and Polyjet systems consists of asdiegthose systems using both
off-the-shelf and customized components manufactured spabiffor us, and producing and packaging the ocamables products to be usec
those systems. Our core competencies include FOMPalyjet printing systems assembly, systems iatégr, software installation and resin
and filament manufacturing, all of which are donginally at our facilities. We currently operateabuild-to-forecast basis and obtain all
parts used in the FDM and Polyjet systems manufiacfyrocess from either distributors of standdetteical or mechanical parts or custom
fabricators of our proprietary designs. Our manufisers and suppliers are periodically assessedlased on their on-time performance and
quality.

We purchase major component parts for our FDM asigj€t systems from various suppliers, subcontracéamd other sources, and
assemble them in our U.S. and Israeli facilitiesr @roduction floors have been organized
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using demand-flow techniques, or DFT, in orderdbiave efficiency, quality and balance of our pratiten lines. As capacity constraints arise,
because of our use of DFT, we can avoid the reougings of reconfiguring our production floor.

Computer-based Material Requirements Planning, RPMs used for reordering to better ensure on-tielery of parts and raw
materials. Operators and assemblers are trainegdsambly and test procedures including AssemblyiRamgent Documents, which originate
in engineering. In the manufacturing processe®twri-DM and Polyjet systems, we employ a Qualitynitgement System, or QMS, that
meets international quality standards including B&X01:2008 and ISO 13485:2003, which relates toicaédevices. We also outsource the
manufacture of main subassemblies up to fully absesrsystems ready for integration.

The system assembly process for our FDM and Pdygems includes semi-automated functional tddteyosubassemblies. Key
functional characteristics are verified throughsthéests, and the results are stored in a statisiatabase.

Upon completion of the assembly of our 3D printanrgl production FDM and Polyjet systems, we perfaraomplete power up and final
quality tests to help ensure the quality of thasmlpcts before shipment to customers. The finaliguasts must be run error-free before the
FDM and Polyjet systems can be cleared for shipnWitmaintain a history log of all FDM and Polyggbducts that shows revision level
configuration and a complete history during the ofaoturing and test process. All identified issaaghe FDM and Polyjet systems during the
manufacturing process are logged, tracked and tosexdke continuous production process improvem@iis.commonality of designs among
our different FDM and Polyjet product families em$ige transition to manufacturing new designs.

Our filament production uses Factory Physics® taples to manage critical buffers of time, capaaitg inventory to ensure product
availability. We also use the “5S” method (Sortt-BBeorder, Shine, Standardize and Sustain) asgdatir lean manufacturing initiatives to
improve organization and efficiency.

Inventory and suppliers

We maintain an inventory of parts to facilitate tmeely assembly of products required by our prdiducplan. While most components i
available from multiple suppliers, certain compasarsed in our systems and consumables are onkalalesfrom single or limited sources. In
particular, the printer heads for our PolyJet 3Dtprg systems are supplied by a sole supplierpRi®We consider our single and limited-
source suppliers (including Ricoh) to be relialblgt, the loss of one of these suppliers could resulie delay of the manufacture and delivery
of the relevant components (and, ultimately, of paducts). This type of delay could require ufinid and re-qualify the component supplied
by one or more new vendors. Although we considerelationships with our suppliers to be good, wettue to develop risk management
plans for these critical suppliers. In order todmedgainst the risk of a discontinuation of thepbypf our inkjet printer heads in particular, we
maintain a reasonable supply of excess inventopriofer heads.

Ricoh Agreement

We purchase the printer heads for our inkjet 3Dtpg systems from Ricoh pursuant to an OEM Purelzsasl License Agreement with
Ricoh, effective as of May 5, 2011, or the Ricolrédgment. The current Ricoh Agreement replaced nginal agreement with Ricoh that had
been entered into in June 2000 and amended orugasiarasions subsequently, and which expired upmeffectiveness of the new Ricoh
Agreement.

Under the Ricoh Agreement, we place orders fortprmads and associated electronic componentsedrittoh Products. Together with
provision of these items, Ricoh provides us witipa-transferable, non-exclusive right to assemise,and sell the Ricoh Products under
Ricoh’s patent rights and trade secrets.

Pricing under the Ricoh Agreement depends on thetity of Ricoh Products that we purchase duringgiwen month, and to the extent
that we commit to a certain annual minimum prioatoupcoming year, we receive a set, discountee jpor all Ricoh Products ordered during
that upcoming year.

The Ricoh Agreement runs for an initial term ofefiyears and automatically renews for additionalyser periods thereafter unless either
party provides the other six months’ advance writietice of termination prior to the end of thertreurrent term. The Ricoh Agreement may
be cancelled by either party if (i) the other paypstantially breaches any material provisiorhefagreement and has not cured such breach
within 30 days of receipt of written notice thereof (ii) upon the occurrence of certain bankrumegnts, and may furthermore be cancelle
Ricoh if we fail to cure a breach of an undispytegiment obligation within thirty (30) days of theehch.
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At any time during the term of the Ricoh Agreem&itoh may discontinue the manufacture and suppdyprint head model, so long a:
provides us with at least eighteen (18) monthgrpnritten notice of such discontinuance and homdiref our purchase orders for the subject
print head model within the notice period. Durihg period of five years from the earlier of eithte termination of the Ricoh Agreement or
the date of discontinuance of the manufacture obRProducts (that is, following the 18-month netieriod described in the previous
sentence), we are entitled to purchase additiorraliRProducts for the sole purpose of providindaepments for the installed base of Ricoh
Products, including one final purchase order thammay place in the final year of such five-yeaiguband that must be filled by Ricoh within
twelve months of when it is placed.

The Ricoh Agreement may not be assigned by eithgty pvithout the other party’s prior written consemhich may not be unreasonably
withheld.

Research and development

We maintain an ongoing program of research andldprent, or R&D, to develop new systems and mdteaad to enhance our existing
product lines, as well as to improve and expand#pabilities of our systems and related softwackraaterials. This includes significant
technology platform developments for our FDM, Pelydnd SCP technologies, our AM systems, includimgintegrated software, and our
family of proprietary acrylic-based photopolymerteréals for PolyJet printing and family of prop&aey thermoplastic materials for FDM
printing. Our research aims to develop improved mode affordable products. Our engineering devekaprefforts also focus on customer
requested enhancements, and development of newlingpgeocesses, software and user applicationgatticular, we have devoted significi
time and resources to the development of a unilrgrsampatible and user-friendly software system.

Our R&D department is divided into groups baseaarntific disciplines and product lines. We arenaditted to designing products usi
the principles of Six Sigma. We continue to staddar our product platforms, leveraging each newvigteso that it will result in multiple
product offerings that are developed faster aréduced expense.

We invest a significant amount of our resourceR&D, because we believe that superior technologykey to maintaining a leading
market position. Our net R&D expenses were appraiehg $82.3 million, $52.3 million, and $19.7 nlfi in the years ended December 31,
2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively, and, on a proddasis for our combined company, were approxdn&36.9 million in 2012,
representing 10.3% of our revenues on a pro-forasisbn 2012.

Our consumable materials development and producti@nations for our FDM and PolyJet systems aratéatat our facilities in Eden
Prairie, MN, and Kiryat Gat, Israel. The developtn@md production facility for our SolidScape op&ras are located in Merrimack, New
Hampshire, whereas the facilities for our MakerBperations are located in various locations. Wanekthe consumable materials formulation
and manufacturing process as a trade secret adght#nt claims related to these products. We agecland formulate raw materials for our
consumables production from various polymer reshthermoplastic materials suppliers with differlaviels of processing and value-add
applied to the raw materials.

Intellectual property

We consider our proprietary technology to be imgairto the development, manufacture, and sale mpraducts and seek to protect such
technology through a combination of patents, tisetrets, and confidentiality agreements and otbwetractual arrangements with our
employees, consultants, customers and others.afdints and patent applications for rapid prototygirocesses and apparatuses associated
with our technology were assigned to us by thaieimors. The principal granted patents relate to=@M systems, our PolyJet and PolyJet
Matrix technologies, our 3D printing processes andconsumables, with expiration dates ranging fa@h5 to 2033.

We are also a party to various licenses and otfnengements that allow us to practice and imprawe@chnology under a broad range of
patents, patent applications and other intelleqiuapberty, including a cross-license agreement @@hSystems Corporation under which each
party licensed certain patents of the other pautg, an assignment of rights to us related to Uymel-based U.S. patents, which underlie
certain technologies that compete with ours.
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In addition, we own the registered trademarks t@#gs,” “Objet,” “FDM,” “Fortus,” “Dimension,” “uPint,” “Mojo,” “Catalyst,”
“WaveWash,” “Ecoworks,” “FullCure,” “Xpress3D,” “Sialscape,” “SCP” “MakerBot,” “Thingiverse” “Repli¢ar,” “Solid Concepts”,
“Harvest” and the nautilus design coporate logo iaatke use of a number of additional registereduamdgistered trademarks, including
“Connex,” “Eden,” “PolyJet,” “PolyJet Matrix,” “FDMTl'echnology,” “For a 3D World,” “Tango” and “VeroMowever, we do not believe that
any of our trademarks are material to our competipiosition..

We believe that, while our patents provide us wittompetitive advantage, our success depends ji§imaarour marketing, business
development, applications know-how and ongoingaedeand development efforts. Accordingly, we bai¢hat the expiration of any single
patent, or the failure of any of single patent aation to result in an issued patent, would noiriaerial to our business or financial position.
In any event, there can be no assurance that eemtgaor other intellectual property rights wilf@f us a meaningful competitive advantage.
Please see the risk factor related to the expiratfmur patents in “Risk factors.”

Competition

Our principal competitors consist of other develspaf additive manufacturing systems as well agrotiompanies that use FDM and
inkjet-based technologies to compete in additivauficturing. A variety of additive manufacturingt@ologies compete with our proprietary
technologies, including:

» Stereolithography

* Selective Laser Sinterin
e Powder Binding; an

« Digital Light Projection.

The companies that use these technologies to cemaptit us include 3D Systems Corporation, EOS Grah#i EnvisionTEC GmbH.

These technologies, which compete for additive rfesturing users, possess various competitive adgastand disadvantages relative to
one another within the key categories upon whighpetition centers, including resolution, accurayface quality, variety and properties of
the materials they use and produce, capacity, speéat, transparency, the ability to print muléphaterials and others. Due to these multiple
categories, end-users usually make purchasingidesias to which technology to choose based oohheacteristics that they value most. This
decision is often application specific. The comipetienvironment that has developed is therefaenise and dynamic, as players often pos
their technologies to capture demand in variouticads simultaneously.

We are positioned to compete in our industry madmthe following bases, which we view as compsatistrengths:

* material properties of printed objects, such as$ hesistance, toughness, brittleness, elong-to-break, color and flexibility
» quality of printed objects measured by, among othiewgs, resolution, accuracy and surface que

« multiple productio-grade modeling material

» reliability of printing systems

e speed of printing, including a c-step automated modeling proce

*  customer service

» ability to be used in an office environme

» ease of use; ar

e automatic, hanc-free support remova

We offer a wide range of systems with varying feasi capacities and price points. We believe thiateénables us to compete with the
other additive manufacturing technologies for aemidnge of customers with a variety of applicatiand goals for their additive
manufacturing.

We also compete with companies that use traditiprabtype development and customized manufactueolgnologies, and expect future
competition to arise from the development of neshimlogies or techniques.

Seasonality
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Historically, our results of operations have begbjact to seasonal factors. Stronger demand fopmducts has occurred in our fourth
quarter primarily due to our customers’ capital @xgliture budget cycles and our sales compensatgamiive programs. Our first and third
quarters have historically been our weakest guafteroverall unit demand. Although the first gearttas had higher volumes in recent years
from the successful introduction of new produdtss typically a slow quarter for capital expendits in general. The third quarter is typically
when we see our largest volume of educationaladlaales, which normally qualify for special disetsuas part of our long-term penetration
strategy.

We furthermore experience seasonality within irdlixl fiscal quarters, as a substantial percentagarsystem sales often occur within
the last month of each fiscal quarter. This treas the potential to expose our quarterly or anapafating results to the risk of unexpected,
decreased revenues in the case of our inabilibpiid systems, consummate sales and recognizetoenganying revenues prior to the end of
a given quarter.

Global operations

We have offices in the United States, Israel, Geymtaly, China, Hong Kong, Brazil, Italy, Japamdaindia, and organize our operations
by geographic region, focusing upon the followiray kegions: North America; Europe; Asia Pacificd dratin America. Our products are
distributed in each of these regions, as well astlier parts of the world. Our customers are dsgbgeographically, and we are not reliant on
any single country or region for most of our pradsales and services revenues, although 54% dl@il# sales were made in North America.
A breakdown of our consolidated revenues by geddcaparkets and by categories of operations (#)airoducts and services) for the years
ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 is prowidiéem 5.A “Operating and Financial Review and $prects—Operating Results.”

In maintaining global operations, our businesscosed to risks inherent in such operations, irolydurrency fluctuations, market
conditions, and inflation in the primary locatianswvhich our operating expenditures are incurratbrimation on currency exchange risk,
market risk, and inflationary risk appears elsewhpr‘Risk factors” and in Iltem 11 of this annuaport, “Quantitative and Qualitative
Disclosure About Market Risk—Foreign Currency Exuta Risk.”

Employees

The total number of our full-time equivalent emmeg, and the distribution of our employees (i) geplically and (ii) within the
divisions of our company, in each case as of Deeg8b, 2014, 2013 and 2012, are set forth in Itdbndd this annual report (“Directors,
Senior Management and Employees”— “Employees”).

Government regulation
We are subject to various local, state and fedaved, regulations and agencies that affect busésegsnerally. These include:

* regulations promulgated by federal and state enwiental and health agenci

» foreign environmental regulations, as describedeu” Environmental matte” immediately below
» the federal Occupational Safety and Health Admiatgin;

« the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices A

» laws pertaining to the hiring, treatment, safetgl discharge of employee

» export control regulations for U.S. made produats]

» CE regulations for the European marl

Environmental matters

We are subject to various environmental, healthsafety laws, regulations and permitting requiretseincluding those governing the
emission and discharge of hazardous materialgjiriond, air or water; noise emissions; the germrattorage, use, management and dispos
of hazardous waste; the import, export and registraf chemicals; the cleanup of contaminatedssiémd the health and safety of our
employees. Based on information currently availables, we do not expect environmental costs antirggencies to have a material adverse
effect on our operations. The operation of ourlifzes$, however, entails risks in these areas. iBaant expenditures could be required in the
future to comply with environmental or health aadesy laws, regulations or requirements.
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Under such laws and regulations, we are requirettain environmental permits from governmentahatities for certain operations. In
particular, in Israel, where we assemble our inkpeted PolyJet 3D printing systems and manufactureesin consumables, businesses stc
or using certain hazardous materials, includingemials necessary for our Israeli manufacturing esscare required, pursuant to the Israeli
Dangerous Substances Law 5753-1993, to obtainia p@xmit from the Ministry of Environmental Prot&m. Our two toxin permits will
remain in effect until November 2016 and Februdiy%, respectively.

In the European marketplace, electrical and elaarequipment is required to comply with the Direeton Waste Electrical and
Electronic Equipment, which aims to prevent wasteibcouraging reuse and recycling, and the Direativ Restriction of Use of Certain
Hazardous Substances, which restricts the usex dfagiardous substances in electrical and electpyoiducts. Our products and certain
components of such products “put on the marketh@European Union (EU) (whether or not manufactimehe EU) are subject to these
directives. Additionally, we are required to complith certain laws, regulations and directivesjuding TSCA in the United States and
REACH in the EU, governing chemicals. These andlairtaws and regulations require the testing ayglstration of certain chemicals that we
use and ship.

Israeli Tax Considerations and Government Progral

Tax regulations also have a material impact onbmsiness, particularly in Israel where we are omgghand have one of our headquarters
The following is a summary of certain aspects efcthrrent tax structure applicable to companidsriel, with special reference to its effect
us (and our operations, in particular). The follogvalso contains a discussion of the Israeli gawemt programs benefiting us. To the extent
that the discussion is based on new tax legislatiahhas not been subject to judicial or admiatste interpretation, we cannot assure you tha
the tax authorities or the courts will accept ti@ms expressed in this discussion. This discusso@s not address all of the Israeli tax
provisions that may be relevant to our Company.a&discussion of the Israeli tax consequencesettatownership of our capital stock, ple
see “Israeli Taxation Considerations” in ltem 18dfow.

General Corporate Tax Structure in Israel

The regular rate of corporate tax to which Israetnpanies were subject in 2014 was 26.5%. Howdvereffective tax rate payable by a
company that derives income from an “Approved Eprise”, a “Beneficiary Enterprise” or a “PreferrEdterprise” as further discussed belc
may be considerably lower. See “Law for the Encgamaent of Capital Investments” in this Item beldmvaddition, commencing in 2010,
Israeli companies have been subject to regularocate tax rate on their capital gains.

Besides being subject to the general corporateuias in Israel, we have also, from time to timgplaed for and received certain grants
tax benefits from, and participate in, programsnsjpoed by the Government of Israel, described below

Law for the Encouragement of Capital Investm

The Law for the Encouragement of Capital Investmebit19-1959, to which we refer as the Investment,Lprovides certain incentives
for capital investments in a production facility @her eligible assets). Generally, an investnpeagiram that is implemented in accordance
with the provisions of the Investment Law, whichyniiee either an “Approved Enterprise”, a “Benefigimterprise” or a “Preferred
Enterprise”, is entitled to benefits as discusseldw. These benefits may include cash grants fitmridraeli government and tax benefits,
based upon, among other things, the location ofabiéity in which the investment and manufactucgéaty are made.

The Investment Law has been amended several timgstoe recent years, with the two most signifiagranges effective as of April 1,
2005, to which we refer as the 2005 Amendment,sanof January 1, 2011, to which we refer as thd Z0thendment. Pursuant to the 2005
Amendment, tax benefits granted in accordance thigtprovisions of the Investment Law prior to ggision by the 2005 Amendment, remain
in force, but any benefits granted subsequenthsabgect to the provisions of the amended Investrhaw. Similarly, the 2011 Amendment
introduced new benefits instead of the benefitatgin accordance with the provisions of the Itwesnt Law prior to the 2011 Amendment,
yet companies entitled to benefits under the Inaest Law as in effect up to January 1, 2011, watiled to choose to continue to enjoy si
benefits, provided that certain conditions are meglect instead, irrevocably, to forgo such b#seind elect for the benefits of the 2011
Amendment.

The following discussion is a summary of the Inuestt Law prior to its amendments as well as thevegit changes contained in the new
legislations.
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Tax benefits for Approved Enterprises approvedreefgril 1, 2005.

Under the Investment Law prior to the 2005 Amendimaicompany that wished to receive benefits omitsstment program that is
implemented in accordance with the provisions efltivestment Law, to which we refer as an “Approtasderprise”, had to receive an
approval from the Investment Center of the Isrisifiistry of Economy (formerly known as the Ministo§ Industry, Trade and Labor), to
which we refer as the Investment Center. Eachfimaté of approval for an Approved Enterprise redaio a specific investment program in the
Approved Enterprise, delineated both by the finanetope of the investment and by the physicaladiaristics of the facility or the asset.

An Approved Enterprise may elect to forgo any éamient to the grants otherwise available undefrihestment Law and, instead,
participate in an alternative benefits program. Weee chosen to receive the benefits through tleerative benefits program. Under the
alternative benefits program, a company’s undistgd income derived from an Approved Enterprisé loélexempt from corporate tax for a
period of between two and ten years from the ¥iestr of taxable income, depending upon the geodgdptation in Israel of the Approved
Enterprise, and a reduced corporate tax rate ofdmt 10% to 25% for the remainder of the beneétiod, depending on the level of foreign
investment in the company in each year, as detbidéalv. The benefits commence on the date in wtiahtaxable income is first earned. The
benefits period under Approved Enterprise statlisised to 12 years from the year the program ca@naes its operations, or 14 years from
the year of the approval as an Approved Enterpwbéchever ends earlier. If a company has more tmnApproved Enterprise program or if
only a portion of its capital investments are appn its effective tax rate is the result of a viségl combination of the applicable rates. The
benefits from any certificate of approval relatéyao taxable income attributable to the specifigpfoved Enterprise. Income derived from
activity that is not integral to the activity ofatApproved Enterprise will not enjoy tax benef@gir entittement to the above benefits is subject
to fulfillment of certain conditions, accordingtfee law and related regulations.

A company that has an Approved Enterprise proggaatigible for further tax benefits if it qualifies a Foreign Investors’ Company, to
which we refer as an FIC. An FIC eligible for batefs essentially a company with a level of foreigvestment, as defined in the Investment
Law, of more than 25%. The level of foreign investrnis measured as the percentage of rights indhmpany (in terms of shares, rights to
profits, voting and appointment of directors), afidombined share and loan capital, that are owdiegctly or indirectly, by persons who are
not residents of Israel. The determination as tetivr or not a company qualifies as an FIC is nmadan annual basis. An FIC that has an
Approved Enterprise program will be eligible for extension of the period during which it is entitke tax benefits under its Approved
Enterprise status (so that the benefit periods beayp to ten years) and for further tax benefithéflevel of foreign investment exceeds 49¢
a company that has an Approved Enterprise progseanwholly owned subsidiary of another companyn tie percentage of foreign
investments is determined based on the percenfdges@n investment in the parent company.

The corporate tax rates and related levels of dor@ivestments with respect to an FIC that has gpréved Enterprise program are set
forth in the following table:

Corporate
Percentage of no-Israeli ownership Tax Rate
Over 25% but less than 49 25%
49% or more but less than 7¢ 20%
74% or more but less than 9( 15%
90% or more 1C%

A company that has elected to participate in theri@htive benefits program and that subsequentlyg palividend out of the income
derived from the portion of its facilities that lealveen granted Approved Enterprise status duriagath exemption period will be subject to tax
in respect of the amount of dividend distributebéged up to reflect such pigex income that it would have had to earn in otdetistribute th
dividend) at the corporate tax rate that would Haeen otherwise applicable if such income had renliax-exempted under the alternative
benefit program. This rate generally ranges frod 16 25%, depending on the extent to which nonelsshareholders hold such company’s
shares.

In addition, dividends paid out of income attritdite an Approved Enterprise (or out of dividendsereed from a company whose income
is attributed to an Approved Enterprise) are gdhesabject to withholding tax at the rate of 1566,at the lower rate provided under an
applicable tax treaty. The 15% tax rate is limitedlividends and
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distributions out of income derived during the H@eegeriod and actually paid at any time up toyg2rs thereafter. After this period, the
withholding tax is applied at a rate of up to 3@%bat the lower rate under an applicable tax trdatyhe case of an FIC, the 12-year limitation
on reduced withholding tax on dividends does ngtyap

The Investment Law also provides that an Approvettiprise is entitled to accelerated depreciatioitoproperty and equipment that are
included in an approved investment program. Thiekieis an incentive granted by the Israeli goveent regardless of whether the alternative
benefits program is elected.

The benefits available to an Approved Enterprigesaibject to the continued fulfillment of conditiostipulated in the Investment Law and
its regulations and the criteria in the specifidifieate of approval, as described above. If a pany does not meet these conditions, it wou
required to refund the amount of tax benefits, stéjd to the Israeli consumer price index and istere

We have received the requisite approval, includirimal approval, for all of our Approved Entergrigivestment programs, in accordance
with the Investment Law. The above-described bé&ntiat accompany these investment programs anBenaficiary Enterprise investment
programs (for which accompanying benefits are diesdrbelow) have had the effect, both historicaltgl in 2013 and 2014, of reducing our
(and before the Stratassy- Objet merger, Objeffseftve consolidated tax rates considerably lothan the statutory Israeli corporate tax rate
of 26.5% in 2014. We expect that our effective alidaited tax rate for 2015 and thereafter will eigoreduced due to these investment
programs.

Tax benefits under the 2005 Amendment that becHewiee on April 1, 2005.

The 2005 Amendment applies to new investment progrand investment programs commencing after 20@#idaes not apply to
investment programs approved prior to April 1, 20DBe 2005 Amendment provides that terms and bisnatiluded in any certificate of
approval that was granted before the 2005 Amendgant into effect will remain subject to the pramis of the Investment Law as in effect
on the date of such approval. Pursuant to the 20@&ndment, the Investment Center will continuer@ang Approved Enterprise status to
qualifying investments. However, the 2005 Amendniienits the scope of enterprises that may be apatdy the Investment Center by set
criteria for the Approved Enterprise, such as siovis generally requiring that at least 25% ofAperoved Enterprise’s income is derived
from export.

An enterprise that qualifies under the new provisi@s referred to as a “Beneficiary Enterprisethea than “Approved Enterprise”. The
2005 Amendment provides that the approval of tivedtment Center is required only for Approved Bprises that receive cash grants. As a
result, a company is no longer required to obtainadvance approval of the Investment Center iardaireceive the tax benefits previously
available under the alternative benefits prograathBr, a company may claim the tax benefits offénethe Investment Law directly in its tax
returns, provided that its facilities meet theesi for tax benefits set forth in the 2005 Amendim@& company that has a Beneficiary
Enterprise may, at its discretion, approach thaelsiTax Authority for a pre-ruling confirming thitis in compliance with the provisions of the
Investment Law.

Tax benefits are available under the 2005 Amendreptoduction facilities (or other eligible fatiés) that derive more than 25% of their
business income from export to specific marketé wipopulation of at least 14 million in 2012 (swsiport criteria will further be increased in
the future by 1.4% per annum). In order to recélivetax benefits, the 2005 Amendment states that@any must make an investment which
meets all the conditions set forth in the amendrf@max benefits and which exceeds a minimum arhepecified in the Investment Law.
Such investment entitles a company to a Benefidiamgrprise status with respect to the investaerd, may be made over a period of no mor
than three years ending in the year in which thepany requested to have the tax benefits applya®eneficiary Enterprise. Where a
company requests to have the tax benefits appn texpansion of existing facilities, only the exgian will be considered to be a Beneficiary
Enterprise and the company’s effective tax raté vélthe weighted average of the applicable réwesuch case, the minimum investment
required in order to qualify as a Beneficiary Eptese must exceed a certain percentage of the wdltiee company’s production assets before
the expansion.

The extent of the tax benefits available under2®@5 Amendment to qualifying income of a BenefigiBnterprise depends on, among
other things, the geographic location of the Bamiafy Enterprise. Such tax benefits include an gxt@n from corporate tax on undistributed
income for a period of between two to ten yearpedding on the geographic location of the Benafjcinterprise in Israel, and a reduced
corporate tax rate of between 10% to 25% for theairder of the benefits period, depending on thellef foreign investment in the company
in each year, as explained above.
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Dividends paid out of income attributed to a Betiafiy Enterprise will be treated similarly to paymef dividends by an Approved
Enterprise under the alternative benefits progrBinerefore, dividends paid out of income attribuie@ Beneficiary Enterprise (or out of
dividends received from a company whose incoméiigated to a Beneficiary Enterprise) are gengrsilbject to withholding tax at the rate
15% or such lower rate as may be provided in afiGgipe tax treaty. The reduced rate of 15% istimito dividends and distributions out of
income attributed to a Beneficiary Enterprise dgtine benefits period and actually paid at any tiqpéo 12 years thereafter except with
respect to an FIC, in which case the 12-year litoés not apply.

Furthermore, a company qualifying for tax bendiitsler the 2005 Amendment, which pays a dividendbdiricome attributed to its
Beneficiary Enterprise during the tax exemptioriguirwill be subject to tax in respect of the amioofithe dividend distributed (grossed-up to
reflect the pre-tax income that it would have haeéarn in order to distribute the dividend) at¢beporate tax rate which would have otherwise
been applicable.

As of December 31, 2014, we had accumulated taripkéncome of approximately $148 million that igri@utable to our various
Approved and Beneficiary Enterprise programs. thstax exempt income were to be distributed, it Midne taxed at the reduced corporate ta:
rate applicable to such income, which would havewamed to approximately $14.8 million of tax liatyilas of December 31, 2014.

The benefits available to a Beneficiary Enterpasesubject to the continued fulfillment of conalits stipulated in the Investment Law ¢
its regulations. If a company does not meet theselitions, it would be required to refund the antaefrtax benefits, as adjusted by the Israel
consumer price index and interest, or other moyetanalty.

Tax benefits under the 2011 Amendment that becHewiee on January 1, 2011.

The 2011 Amendment canceled the availability oftteeefits granted in accordance with the provismfithe Investment Law prior to
2011 and, instead, introduced new benefits fornmegenerated by a “Preferred Company” throughriégéePred Enterprise (as such terms are
defined in the Investment Law) as of January 112@1Preferred Company is defined as either (ip@pgany incorporated in Israel which is
wholly owned by a governmental entity, or (ii) eiied partnership that: (a) was registered undePtrtnerships Ordinance; (b) all of its
limited partners are companies incorporated irelstzut not all of them are governmental entitiglich has, among other things, Preferred
Enterprise status and is controlled and managed Feoael. Pursuant to the 2011 Amendment, a Pedféflompany was entitled to a reduced
corporate flat tax rate of 15% with respect tqitsferred income attributed to its Preferred Entsepin 2011 and 2012, unless the Preferred
Enterprise was located in a certain developmeng zonwhich case the rate was 10%. Such corpasateate was reduced to 12.5% and 7%,
respectively, in 2013 and was increased to 16Y®&ndrespectively, in 2014 and thereafter. Inconmévdd by a Preferred Company from a
'Special Preferred Enterprise’ (as such term isngeffin the Investment Law) would be entitled, dgra benefits period of 10 years, to further
reduced tax rates of 8%, or to 5% if the Speciafdtred Enterprise is located in a certain devekmrzone.

Dividends paid out of income attributed to a PnefdrEnterprise are generally subject to withholdargat source at the rate of 20% or
such lower rate as may be provided in an applicedreaty. However, if such dividends are paidrdsraeli company, no tax is required to
be withheld (although, if such dividends are subsadly distributed to individuals or a nésraeli company, withholding tax at a rate of 208
such lower rate as may be provided in an applicaxdreaty will apply).

The 2011 Amendment also provided transitional @iovis to address companies already enjoying cubemafits under the Investment
Law. These transitional provisions provide, amotigeothings, that unless an irrevocable requesiaide to apply the provisions of the
Investment Law as amended in 2011 with respectdome to be derived as of January 1, 2011: (ije¢hmas and benefits included in any
certificate of approval that was granted to an Appd Enterprise, which chose to receive grantgrbdhe 2011 Amendment became effec
will remain subject to the provisions of the Invastt Law as in effect on the date of such apprarmad, subject to certain conditions;. (ii) the
terms and benefits included in any certificategraval that was granted to an Approved Enterptiss, had participated in an alternative
benefits program, before the 2011 Amendment becedfaetive will remain subject to the provisionstbé Investment Law as in effect on the
date of such approval, provided that certain comustare met; ; and (iii) a Beneficiary Enterprisa elect to continue to benefit from the
benefits provided to it before the 2011 Amendmeambe into effect, provided that certain conditiores met.

We have examined the possible effect, if any, e§éhprovisions of the 2011 Amendment on our firdrstatements and have decided, at
this time, not to opt to apply the new benefitsemithe 2011 Amendment.
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C. Organizational Structure.

Our corporate structure includes Stratasys Ltd. Jsnaeli parent company, and the following maitivecwholly-owned subsidiary entitie
Stratasys, Inc., a Delaware corporation, which feamerly a publicly held company and which becameindirect, wholly-owned subsidiary
as a result of the Stratasys-Objet merger; Bacoip&@ation (formerly known as Cooperation Techngl@prporation), to which we refer as
MakerBot, a Delaware corporation which is the diggrent company of MakerBot Industries, LLC, whweh acquired in August 2013;
Stratasys Direct, Inc (our service beureau businey a California corporation; GrabCAD, Inc.Dalaware corporation; Stratasys AP
Limited, a Hong Kong limited company, which togetkéth several other subsidiaries (including StsggJapan Co. Ltd., our Japanese
subsidiary), carries out most of our operationthenAsia Pacific region; and Stratasys GMBH, a Geriimited liability company, which
together with other subsidiaries (including StrgsaSchweiz AG (Stratasys Switzerland Ltd.), ours8wgubsidiary) carries out our European
operations. We also formed Stratasys Latin AmdRepresentacao De Equipamentos Ltd., a Braziliasidialny, which has commenced our
Brazilian operations. Please see the list of sudnséd appended to this annual report as Exhifar & complete list of our subsidiaries as of the
date of this annual report.

D. Property, Plants and Equipment.

We have dual headquarters, in Eden Prairie, Mirtaemod Rehovot, Israel. Our Eden Prairie, Minnebe&dquarters (near Minneapolis),
comprises executive offices and production faetlippresently encompassing approximately 341,79rsdaet, of which we own 286,743
square feet, in four buildings. These four buildisgrve the following respective purposes: systeserably, inventory storage, operations and
sales support; manufacturing for one of our Styet@irect Manufacturing paid parts service locasiaesearch and development, filament
manufacturing, and administrative, marketing andssactivities; and expansion of our productionacity for systems and consumables. Our
Rehovot, Israel headquarters, which we lease patsaa lease agreement with a term of five ydaas éxpires on December 31, 2016,
comprise approximately 111,421 square feet of sgaaelease payments, inclusive of management feethese facilities are approximately
$2.3 million annually. These facilities house osnakli administrative headquarters, our researdrdemelopment facilities, and certain
manufacturing activities.

As of December 31, 2014, we leased office spaceefgxvith respect to our Eden Prairie headquaféeibties and our Kiryat Gat, Israel
facilities, where we own the property) for variqueposes, as set forth in the table below. Unléssraise stated, all of our facilities are fully
utilized. We have no material tangible fixed assgiart from the properties described below.
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Location: Primary Usage: Area (Sg. Feet)
North America:

Brooklyn, New York Local headquarters and warehou 375,49!
Eden Prairie, Minneso! U.S. headquartel 341,79¢
Valencia, Californie Local headquarters and warehou 71,43.
River Falls, Wisconsil Office space 40,99¢
Belton, Texas Local headquarters and warehou 40,00(
Austin, Texas Factory 33,17¢
Merrimack, New Hampshir Facilities, including manufacturir 28,59(
San Diego, C/ Facilities 28,19:
Billerica, Massachuset Office space 22,35
Other facilities in North Americe Office space, stores and warehou 130,46!

Europe and the Middle East:

Kiryat Gat, Israe Factory and laboratorie 281,75!
Rehovot, Israe Israeli headquarte! 111,42:
Switzerland Office space 20t
Other facilities in EMEA! EMEA headquarters and office spz 32,65:
Asia Pacific:

Hong Kong Office space 23,47¢
Other facilities in Asia Pacific Office space 52,87"
Other countries Office space 2,45¢

While, as described above in the “Risk Factordteém 3.D, we utilize hazardous chemicals in somthefproduction processes for
products sold by us, we believe that there arervo@nmental issues that encumber our use of ailitfes.

ITEM 4A. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS.
Not Applicable.
ITEM 5. OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW AND PROSPECT S.

The following discussion and analysis of our fiahcondition and results of operations should kad in conjunction with our
consolidated financial statements and the relate@s included in this annual report. The discus&ietow contains forward-looking
statements that are based upon our current exgeatand are subject to uncertainty and changesrcumstances. Actual results may differ
materially from these expectations due to inaceiegsumptions and known or unknown risks and uaiogigs, including those identified in
“Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statensdrand in Item 3.D “Key Information — Risk Factdrabove.

A. Operating Results.
Overview

We are a leading global provider of additive mantifeing, or AM, solutions for the creation of pansed in the processes of designing
manufacturing products and for the direct manufactd end parts. Our solutions include productgiraan from entry-level desktop 3D printers
to systems for rapid prototyping, or RP, and lgygeduction systems for direct digital manufacturiogDDM. We also develop, manufacture
and sell materials for use with our systems andigeorelated services offerings. We believe thatringe of 3D printing consumable mater
that we offer, consisting of 38 Polyjet/FDM cargg@tbased materials, five SCP inkjet-based mateaiads138 non-color digital materials, and
over 1,000 color variations, is the widest in théustry. Our service offerings include Stratasy®&iManufacturing printed parts services as
well as our professional services. We conduct asiress globally, and our main operational faefitare located in the United States, Israel,
Germany and Hong Kong. Our extensive global reaateil-positioned through a network of

48



more than 280 resellers and selling agents ardumevbrld and a growing online channel. We have nioae 2,900 employees and hold more
than 800 granted or pending additive manufactupaitgnts globally.

Our Company is the result of the 2012 merger of leealing additive manufacturing companies, Stratak\c. and Objet Ltd., which we
refer to as the Stratasys-Objet merger. Pursuahiganerger, which closed on December 1, 2012t&ys, Inc. became an indirect, wholly-
owned subsidiary of Objet Ltd., and Objet Ltd. ofpadh its name to Stratasys Ltd. Stratasys, Inc.tweased as the acquiring company in the
Stratasys-Objet merger for accounting purposestlan&tratasys-Objet merger was accounted foragesse acquisition under the acquisition
method of accounting for business combinationsa Aessult, the consolidated financial statementrdtasys, Inc. became our consolidated
financial statements. The consolidated financetieshents included in this report on Form 20-F idelthe operations of Stratasys Ltd.
(formerly Objet Ltd.) for the years ended Decentiier2014 and 2013, and only for the month of Decam@912, because the Stratasys-Objet
merger was consummated on December 1, 2012. Therefoless otherwise indicated or as the contdydratise requires, the historical
financial information included in this annual repon Form 20-F for periods preceding the Strata3ggt merger is that of Stratasys, Inc.

We believe that AM is poised to enter a new phdiseoneased adoption by manufacturers in a broageaf industries, including global
manufacturing enterprises, by disrupting traditiadesign and manufacturing processes. Accordinglifebruary 2015 we announced a new
investment plan with the goal of enabling our compto offer a broader range of products and sahstiwith increased global and industry-
specific coverage, especially within areas relébethanufacturing, and create stronger custometioakhips. The investment plan is designed
to implement broad product development and infuastire. For additional details regarding the inwesit plan please see below under “-
Investment Plan”.

We continue to observe strong demand for our desighmanufacturing enterprise solutions. Thereaar@creasing number of customer
implementations of our solutions in manufacturietgted applications where, after their qualificafithe adoption of our solutions is expected
to increase significantly. These implementationmdgily require a broad range of solutions, inchgdsystems, materials and manufacturing
services. An additional opportunity for expansidmor customer base for manufacturing-related apfibns is our newly initiated professional
services, where we identify applications and eduoat customers on best practices for AM workflows.

We also believe that the proliferation of 3D conterlvancements in AM technology platforms anditirduction of improved materials
will continue to drive market growth. Accordinghye will continue to focus on enhancing our 3D grigttechnologies and developing
consumables that offer an even broader array asiphly mechanical and aesthetic properties, thebebigdening user applications.

We believe that desktop 3D printers are becomingaastream tool across many market segments ahththadoption of 3D printing wi
continue to increase over the next several yeath,ib terms of RP and DDM applications. We beliévat market adoption will be spurred by
increased proliferation of 3D content and 3D adtigptools (3D CAD and other simplified 3D authoritugpls) and by continued improvements
in 3D printing technology and greater affordabilitfyentry-level systems.

We have recently made acquisitions that we belelihelp us pursue our product and solutions sgas. We may make other
investments in strategic acquisitions, stratediaraes, property, plant and equipment, new teagies, process improvements, information
technology, research and development projectshanthn resource activities that will be requiredftdure growth.

Recent acquisitions

On July 14, 2014, or the Solid Concepts transadate, we completed the acquisition of 100% ofdhtstanding shares of Solid Concepts
Inc., or Solid Concepts, an independent additivaufecturing service bureau, for a total consideratf approximately $185.4 million.

In exchange for 100% of the outstanding shareobfl €oncepts we issued 978,601 ordinary shared,qaesh upon closing in the amount
of $40.1 million and were obligated to make an fddal holdback cash payment in the amount of $3lBon that was deferred for six mont
and was paid in January 2015. In addition, we aligated to pay additional deferred payments iedtseparate annual installments after the
Solid Concepts transaction date, or the deferrgchpats. The deferred payments were evaluated @odded at a fair value of $43.6 million
of Solid Concepts transaction date.
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Under the terms of the definitive agreement, centdiSolid Concepts’ employees may also qualifyr&ientionrelated and other payme
of $77.0 million, based on our share price as ef3blid Concepts transaction date, of which, $t8lBon was paid in cash upon closing and
were expensed as incurred. The remaining retepigments will be paid in three separate annualins¢nts, which we refer to as the
deferred retention payments.

Based on our share price as of December 31, 2hé&4otal deferred retention payments will amourdgproximately $45.9 million.

Subject to certain requirements for cash paymerggetain the discretion to settle any of the ant®payable to Solid Concepts
shareholders and employees in our shares, casty @oabination of the two. These amounts are albgest to certain adjustments based on
our share price and other adjustments.

On August 1, 2014, we acquired 100% of the outstanshares of Harvest Technologies Inc., or Hanaspecialty additive
manufacturing service bureau. Under the termsefiéfinitive agreement with Harvest, certain of \amt's employees may also qualify for
certain retention-related payments.

We believe that the acquisition of Solid Concepid Harvest, combined with our RedEye Service, evitlate a leading strategic platform
to meet a broad range of customers’ additive manurfilag needs and provides opportunities to leverag direct manufacturing services
capabilities. The acquisition of the two companidsalso enable us to enhance our expertise itsgaoduction, as well as materials and
systems knowhow. We believe that the integratiath wur existing RedEye Service will enable us tovide our customers with full service
offerings that provide a variety of technologiesl @mstom manufacturing solutions, and will supant expansion into end-use-parts
production and vertical market applications.

On September 22, 2014, we acquired 100% of theamdmg shares of GrabCAD Inc., or GrabCAD, whigemates GrabCAD
Workbench, a cloud-based, 3D computer-aided-desig8AD, collaboration platform enabling enginegrirams to manage, share and view
CAD files as well as enhancing collaboration tamisl improving accessibility relating to 3D CAD cent.

This acquisition is expected to enable us to pmwdr customers with enhanced collaboration tootsiaproved accessibility relating to
3D CAD content. The addition of GrabCAD Workbenctakles us to offer customers a solution to drivaroainication and ease of use
throughout the design and 3D printing process. \@itAbCAD we expect to have the opportunity to faertpartner with CAD vendors and ot
ecosystem partners while offering innovative casiaion tools related to 3D CAD. GrabCAD also beng an industry leading team of
software professionals with a deep understandinbeoheeds of designers and engineers as weljlabal, leading and fast growing
community of mechanical engineers.

On August 1, 2014, we acquired certain assets diNER’S BURO, which is the reseller of our MakerBabsidiary in Germany. This
acquisition will enable us to expand our desktoppdidting operations throughout the European market

In April 2014, we acquired certain assets of Irgeidl Solutions LLC, or Interfacial Solutions, avattely held provider of thermoplastics
research and development and production servit¢es.tfnsaction is designed to strengthen our naddeesearch and development skills and
enable us to become vertically integrated in makeievelopment and manufacturing and also increasenaterials production space and
capacity.

On August 15, 2013, we completed the acquisitiopriviately-held Cooperation Technology Corporatiwhjch was the direct parent
company of MakerBot Industries, LLC, or MakerBoteader in desktop 3D printing, and which owned apdrated Thingiverse.com, a
website dedicated to the sharing of userated digital files. The aggregate purchase pvece $493.7 million and the consideration that wiel
consisted primarily of ordinary shares that we éssuFor additional details regarding the finant@ains of this transaction, see Item 18 of this
annual report. During 2014, we continued to globakpand our 3D desktop solutions’ sales channellse United States through new
collaborations with top resellers and, by levergginr strong presence of our local subsidiary pafiaWe also expect to expand our
penetration in the European market through theisitigun of HAFNER'’S BURO, as described above.

2014 Highlights
o Net sales increased by $265.7 million in 2014,48% as compared to 2013, which represents orgmaiwth of 31.7%
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« Completed the acquisitions of Solid Concepts and/ékt Technologies, and began the integration gottecreate a leading strategic
platform for our direct manufacturing service.

« Completed the acquisition GrabCAD which is expecttedrive improved communication and ease of ussutfhout the 3D printing
process, enhancing accessibility to the com’s 3D printing solution

« Netloss attributable to Stratasys amounted to $1d8llion in 2014 or $2.39 per diluted share ampared to net loss of $27.0 million
0.68 per diluted share in 201

« Cash flows provided from operating activities amedrto $13.8 million in 2014 as compared to $32ilion in 2013.

« We announced a new investment plan to help enabletly, maintain market leadership and meet futym@ootunities. See “Investment
Plar” below for further informatior

« Recorded a non-cash, non-tax deductible goodwpkiinment charge of $102.5 million due to updategjgutions of the MakerBot
reporting unit.

Our financial performance for the year ended Decadii, 2014 was impacted by slower growth of Makegoduct and services
revenue during the fourth quarter of 2014.

Throughout 2014, MakerBot invested significanththie introduction of its 5th Generation Replica@dr printers and 3D printing
ecosystem, and in the development of a multi-tigiribution strategy enabling broader distributi®hese continuing investments are intendec
to provide MakerBot with the ability to further $eand build superior product platforms positiofi@diong-term growth as well as maintain
and expand brand leadership as the adoption ofrBifiny expands. However, during the fourth quaméakerBot was affected by challenges
associated with the introduction and scaling oh&ss product platform and our rapidly evolving distition model.

As a result, we revised downward our internal ptgms for MakerBot performance in 2015 and dulegember 2014 we updated the
goodwill impairment analysis of our MakerBot repogt unit, as discussed below in “Operating Expers&®odwill Impairment”. We do not
expect this accounting write down to affect oura@ing business or future financial performance.

Investment Plan
The specific areas of focus and goals for our maxgstment plan include the following:
Industry focus

« Accelerated efforts around vertical applicationd aalutions focused on areas of business that we identified as having high potential
in the AM field, such as aerospace and automokigalthcare and educatic

Services

« Expansion of our newly branded Stratasys Direct Macturing, or SDM, services (following the intetioa of RedEye, Solid Concepts
and Harvest Technologies) to provide our customélsa broader range of AM technologies and sohgiooupled with our in-depth
proces-specific expertise

« Expansion of our SDM platform into additional gemgfnies.

» Expansion of our professional services offeringltow customers to benefit from our knowledge base expertise related to AM and its
implementation for design and manufacturing apgibces.

Products

« Increased focus on long-term innovation and dewekaqt projects based on proprietary technology @iaté, including acceleration of the
on-going development of platforms in collaborationhwittdustn-leading manufacturing enterpris:
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» Increased focus on software development to drilalmoration and accessibility, thereby enhanciregghse-of-use with respect to the 3D
printing process

« Accelerated product introductions, including theeaduction of new systems and additional proprietaaterials.
Sales and marketing infrastructure

« Enhanced channel programs designed to increaseityagaoductivity and coverage.

« Expansion of our account management efforts théurserve our customers.

« Enhanced brand recognition.

Additionally, we intend to continue building thepappriate infrastructure and scale in order to noeetong-term growth opportunities,
including in IT and executive management bandwattl depth.

As a result of our new investment plan, we expectamental annual operating expenditures of 2%mti€ipated revenues for coming two
to three years, with total operating expenses k520 be in the range of 46% to 47% of anticipataenues. Additionally, we expect to incur
capital expenditures in the range of $160 to $200om in 2015 and an effective tax rate of 5% @4

Our ability to implement our strategy for 2015 ibgect to numerous uncertainties, many of whichdegcribed under Item 3.D, “Risk
Factors,” above, in this Item 5, “Operating andaficial Review and Prospects” and in the sectiovaiommediately following the Table of
Contents) captioned “Cautionary Note Regarding laodal ooking Statements.” We cannot ensure thaeéforts will be successful.

Key measures of our performance
Revenue:

Our consolidated revenues result primarily fronesalf our products, which include both our AM systeand related consumable
materials, from the provision of related servicesvell as from our direct manufacturing service. &ffect sales and deliver services princip
through the following channels:

« sales to resellers, who purchase and resell oulupts and who provide support services for ourtpignsystems;

« sales of systems that are marketed by independk# agents, pursuant to which we sell directlgrtd-users, pay commissions to
such agents, and directly handle the sale of coables and provision of support services;

« sales of systems (and all related products andcesivas well as our direct manufacturing solutiservice that we effect and/or
provide to our customers direct

There is overlap among the channels as some indepegsales agents for our higher-end productssas@ as distributors of our other
products. Besides the above methods of producthdisibn, we also sell products directly throughaatine store, at our retail stores in the
United States, and through additional retail salemnels.

Product revenue!

Product revenues are influenced by a number obfacincluding, among other things, (i) the adaptiate of our products, (ii) end-user
product design and manufacturing activity, and {fie capital expenditure budgets of end-usergpatehtial end-users, all of which may be
significantly influenced by macroeconomic factd?sirchases of our 3D printing and production syste&sgecially our higher-end, higher-
priced systems, typically involve longer sales egcl

Product revenues also depend upon the volume slucoables that we sell. Sales of our consumablerialstare linked to the number of
AM systems that are installed and active worldwiBlales of consumables are also driven by systegeusaich is generally a function of the
size of the particular system and the level ofglesind/or manufacturing activity and budget ofgheticular end-user. Larger systems
generally use greater amounts of
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consumables due to their greater capacity andigiehlevels of design and production activity bgd larger operating budget of, a typical
end-user who uses a larger system.

Services revenue

Services revenues derive from (i) our direct mactufigng printed parts services that provide a wanié technologies and custom
manufacturing solutions; (ii) installation, traiginmaintenance and warranty; and (iii) other sergiontracts. System sales prices include the
value of the warranty. In addition, in connectiothadirect sales, we generally charge separatelin&iallation and training. Additional
services revenues are generated from servicesactstnost often entered into directly with end-sseibsequent to the expiration of the initial
warranty period.

Costs of revenues

Our costs of revenues consist of costs of prodarndiscosts of services. Costs of products condisigpily of components and
subassemblies purchased for the manufacture dAlusystems and raw materials, such as thermoplasticacrylic-based photopolymer
materials, for manufacture of our consumables, &lbag any royalties paid with respect to salesenfain of those consumables. Costs of
products also include manufacturing and manufauddrélated labor costs, indirect production costs @amortization expense related mainly tc
certain acquired MakerBot and Objet assets.

Our costs of services revenues consist primarilgosts of our service personnel, material and gihattuction costs of our direct
manufacturing service business and installatiomsomkich include engineers dedicated to on-siteitrg and support and travel costs of these
engineers. Both costs of products and costs ofceninclude related facilities costs.

Our most significant components of cost of reverarescosts of materials used for our printers, wagel related benefits costs, which
together accounted for approximately 70% our tdit@ct cost of sales in each of the years endee@mber 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012. Our 0
significant cost of revenues is the amortizatiopense that we incur in connection with developetinelogy acquired as part of our business
combinations. This amortization expense variesdasethe timing and type of acquisitions, and wa8 fiillion, $55 million and $6 million
for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 an?l, 284pectively.

At December 31, 2014, a hypothetical 10% rise immmdity prices for raw materials would cause arraxmate $10 million increase in
cost of revenues in our Consolidated Statememairhe and Comprehensive Income. As to wages aatbdebenefits, a 10% increase in
wages due to wage inflation would cause an apprataril million increase in cost of revenues in@onsolidated Statement of Income and
Comprehensive Income. During 2014, we did not mopiarticular trends that changed, or were expdotetiange in the near future, the
absolute or relative significance of the componeifitsur costs of revenues in a significant manwég.also believe that inflation has not had a
material effect on our operations or on our finahcondition during the three most recent fiscalrge Currently, we do not foresee a signific
change in either the raw materials used for pradoair wage inflation that would materially impagir business.

Gross profit

The gross profit and gross margin for our prodactsinfluenced by a number of factors. The mosbirigmt of these is the mix of our
products sold. Specifically, the gross margins entagh-end Production series and Design seridgvbBystems, as well as on our
consumables, are typically higher than the grosgims on our Idea series and MakerBot desktop gmsntAccordingly, an increase in the
percentage of sales of our entry-level productddcocause our profit margins to decrease. Furtheemee believe that as our worldwide
installed base of AM systems increases, subsecaégd of our proprietary consumables will alsoeéase. We will also seek to reduce our ¢
of revenues by improving our ability to use lesstlyocomponents and increasing engineering eff@ain the production of our lower-priced
systems. In addition, we will also seek to achieveer material costs and leverage our overall céiiab in our direct manufacturing service
business.

Products gross margins are also impacted by theofrrevenues generated from sales to resellerpassed to sales that are facilitated by
independent sales agents. We rely principally upogseller network that is divided based
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on geographical areas. In addition to our reselwork, we have a significant number of independetiing agents who focus exclusively on
selling our lower priced systems.

Service gross margins are influenced mainly byitilame of revenues generated from our direct marufang service business as well as
the ratio of service engineers to our installeceliasa given geographic area, as that ratio impgeatel costs and efficiency of our service
engineers.

Operating expenses

Our operating expenses consist of research andogewent expenses, and selling, general and admatiigt expenses, goodwill
impairment charges and changes in fair value dgabbns in connection with acquisitions.

Research and development expel

Our research and development activities consipt@gcts aimed at developing new printing systentsraaterials and enhancing our
existing product lines. We also seek to developugisve technologies and other process improversentions in the additive manufacturing
ecosystem. Our research and development expenssistqarimarily of employees and employee-relatespnnel expenses, materials,
laboratory supplies, costs for related software, @sts for facilities and equipment. Expenditdoegesearch, development and engineering ¢
products and manufacturing processes are expessaduared. Our investments in research and dewsdop are essential to our future growth
and our ability to remain competitive in the additmanufacturing market. We work closely with grigtand potential customers, distribution
channels and major resellers, who provide signitifeedback for products development and innovation

We have agreements with three manufacturing corepamder which we jointly advance certain of owppietary technology. The
agreements entitle us to receive reimbursement paigf costs actually incurred under joint develept projects, and such reimbursements
offset research and development expense.

Selling, general and administrative expenses

Our selling, general and administrative expenselsidie employees and employee-related expensesdideting, sales and other sales-
support employees, and for managerial and admaistr personnel, including executive officers, agting, legal, information technology a
human resources. This category of expenses alsyToemmissions, advertising and promotions expemskated facilities costs, integration
and other post-merger related costs, professi@maice fees, as well as the amortization experedated to certain acquired assets of Solid
Concepts, MakerBot, Objet and other business caatibims.

Commissions consist of salbased commissions to independent sales agentstandal sales personnel. Commission rates varygrabpg
on the geographic location of the agent and oratiéevement of certain performance targets. Oueriding and promotion expenses consist
primarily of media advertising costs, trade andstoner marketing expenses and public relations esgzeWe intend to invest in our sales anc
marketing infrastructure, and, therefore, expeltingeexpenses in general, and advertising and ptmm expenses in particular, to increase in
absolute terms.

Facilities costs that are included in our selliggneral and administrative expenses include aquodi the occupancy costs for our facili
in countries where administrative personnel aratlet. Professional service fees for accountinglega services and reserves for specific |
proceedings referred to elsewhere in this annymrtere also included in selling, general and aistriative expenses. As our operations
continue to grow, we expect our administrative exges to increase in absolute terms.

Goodwill impairment

Gooduwill reflects the excess of the consideratiangferred plus the fair value of any non-contngllinterest in the acquiree at the
acquisition date over the fair values of the idéttie net assets acquired. Goodwill is not amedibut rather is tested for impairment annuall
at the reporting unit level, or whenever eventsimumstances present an indication of impairm@obdwill is an asset representing the future
economic benefits arising from other assets acduir@a business combination that are not indivigudentified and separately recognized.
The primary items that generate goodwill include ¥alue of the synergies between the acquired coimpand us and the acquired assemble
workforce, neither of which qualifies for recogoitias an intangible asset.
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We apply the Financial Accounting Standards BoardsASB, guidance of testing goodwill for impairmieBuring December 2014, we
determined that certain indicators of potential @nment existed and that those indicators requareddditional goodwill impairment analysis
for our MakerBot reporting unit. These indicatarsluded a slower growth of MakerBot product andiiserrevenues, challenges associated
with the introduction and scaling of its new protplatform, changes in timing of implementationceftain initiatives and changes in
MakerBot’s distribution model. For additional infoation regarding those indicators, see above ut2f@dr Highlights”.

The updated MakerBot reporting unit’'s impairmendlggsis determined that the carrying amount of gabb@ssigned to the MakerBot
reporting unit exceeded its fair value. As a resuét recorded a non-tax deductible impairment ahafgs102.5 million, in order to reduce the
carrying amount of goodwill to its estimated fa@dwe. Please see Note 1 to our audited finan@sdistents included in Item 18 of this annual
report for further information.

We will continue to monitor our reporting units an effort to determine whether events and circuntgts warrant further inter
impairment testing.

Change in fair value of obligations in connectioithracquisitions

As part of the MakerBot and Solid Concepts traneastwe recognized an earn-out obligation and arded payments obligation,
respectively. These obligations were recognizepbasof the consideration transferred and are rasoned at fair-value in each reporting
period. The fair values of these two obligationsev@easured using specific valuation models, wiiete based on unobservable inputs.
Changes in fair value of these obligations areguesl in our operating expenses in a separat@dime

Income Taxes

A significant portion of our income after the Ded®em 1, 2012 merger date is taxed in Israel. We heakized and expect to continue to
realize significant tax savings based on the deteztion that some of our industrial projects thatérbeen granted “Approved Enterprise” and
“Beneficiary Enterprise” status, which providestaar benefits, including tax exemptions for undisited income and reduced tax rates.
Income not eligible for Approved Enterprise and 8fésiary Enterprise benefits is taxed at the regataporate rates, which were 26.5% in
2014 and 25% in 2013 and 2012. We are also a Roleigstors Company, or FIC, as defined by theslstavestment Law. FICs are entitled
to further reductions in the tax rate normally éggdble to Approved Enterprises and Beneficiary Ftees, depending on the level of foreign
ownership. In addition, we are an “Industrial Comyaas defined by the Israeli Law for the Encouraget of Industry (Taxation), 1969, and,
as such, are entitled to certain tax benefits.

Our entitlement to the above benefits is subjecuofulfilling the conditions stipulated by theviestment Law and regulations. Should we
fail to meet such requirements in the future, ineattributable to our Approved Enterprise and Bieigely Enterprise programs could be
subject to the statutory Israeli corporate tax eaié we could be required to refund a portion eftix benefits already received with respect tc
such programs.

In addition, our effective tax rate is also impacteom the geographical mix of income and non-tdediems.
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

We have prepared our consolidated financial statésrand related disclosures in conformity with actng principles generally accepted
in the United States of America. This has requiredo make estimates, judgments, and assumptiahsffiected the amounts we reported.
Note 1 to our consolidated financial statementtubhed in Item 18 of this annual report containsgigmificant accounting principles that
used to prepare our consolidated financial statésnen

We have identified critical accounting policiestthequired us to make assumptions about mattetsvifi@ uncertain at the time of our
estimates. Had we used different estimates andrgtgins, the amounts we recorded could have begifisantly different. Additionally, if
we had used different assumptions or different tamts existed, our financial condition or resulfsoperations could have been materially
different. The critical accounting
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policies that were affected by the estimates, aptions, and judgments used in the preparation oEonsolidated financial statements are
discussed below.

Valuation Allowances

Valuation allowances are provided unless it is nisdy than not that all or a portion of the defat tax asset will be realized. In the
determination of the appropriate valuation allonesave have considered future reversals of exiséingble temporary differences, the most
recent projections of future business results,r@énings history, carryback and carryforward pndient tax strategies that may enhance the
likelihood of realization of a deferred tax asgetsessments for the realization of deferred tagtagnade at a given balance sheet date are
subject to change in the future, particularly ifréags of a subsidiary are significantly highed@wer than expected, or if the company takes
operational or tax positions that could impactftitare taxable earnings of a subsidiary.

Therefore, we may record a valuation allowancesthuce our deferred tax assets to the amount akftdx benefit that is more likely than
not to be realized.

Deferred Payments in connection with Solid Conctrptssaction

The deferred payments for the Solid Concepts tdimsaare recognized as liabilities at fair valneur consolidated balance sheets and al
classified under short-term and long-term obligadian connection with acquisitions. The fair vaisieletermined based on the closing market
price of our ordinary shares at the applicable ,dadpisted to reflect a discount for lack of maakdity for the applicable periods. The discount
for lack of marketability was calculated based lom historical volatility of our share price and $hepresents a Level 3 measurement withir
fair value hierarchy.

The fair value of the deferred payment as of Deeamghi, 2014 was $35.7 million. The total amounthef deferred payments, which does
not reflect a discount for lack of marketabilityasvapproximately $40.6 million, based on our slpaiee as of December 31, 2014.

A change in our inputs could result in a matengbact on our results of operations. For exampieesthe deferred payments are primarily
linked to our share price, an increase of 10% ofshiare price as of December 31, 2014 will increbsdair value of the deferred payments
liability by $3.6 million.

For additional information regarding our accountpulicies and estimates please refer to Note Lit@onsolidated financial statements
included in Item 18 of this annual report.

Results of Operations

We are providing within this section a supplemedtstussion that compares historical statemenpefations data in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in thetdthState of America, or GAAP, for the years endedember 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 as
well as to the results for the year ended Decer@be2012 on a pro forma combined including Objedidyaas if the Stratasys-Objet merger hac
closed on January 1, 2012. Objet’s sales in thegeded December 31, 2012 were similar in amoutiidee of Stratasys, and therefore we
believe that the 2012 pro forma information combimecluding Objet provides useful supplemental infation. Refer to note 2 to our
consolidated financial statements included in l8vof this annual report for certain pro forma mi@ation for the Solid Concepts transaction
and MakerBot transaction.

The table and footnotes at the end of this sectitriorth the preparation of the unaudited pro Boonondensed combined for Objet
statements of operations information for the yewateel December 31, 2012 as if the Stratasys-Objegeanbad occurred on January 1, 2012.
The pro forma combined financial information hasterepared consistent with SEC Regulation S-XickrtL1. The pro forma combined
financial information is presented for illustratigarposes only and is not necessarily indicativihefcombined operating results or financial
position that would have occurred if the Strata®jget merger had been consummated on January 2,&filin accordance with the
assumptions described herein.
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The following table sets forth, certain financialtal derived from our U.S. GAAP financial statemeptesented as percentages of net ¢
for the periods indicated, as well as on a pro foonombined including Objet basis for the year erfdedember 31, 2012:

Year ended December 31,

Pro forma combined
including Objet

2014 2013 2012 2012
Net sales 100.(% 100.(% 100.(% 100.(%
Cost of sale: 51.7% 53.2% 48.% 54.2%
Gross profit 48.2% 46.7% 51.1% 45.7%
Research and developmt 11.(% 10.% 9.1% 10.2%
Selling, general and administrati 46.% 41.7% 34.(% 39.2%
Goodwill impairment 13.7% 0.C% 0.C% 0.C%
Change in fair value of obligations in connectioithv
acquisitions -3.5% 0.2% 0.C% 0.C%
Operating income (los! -19.8% -6.0% 8.C% -4.C%
Financial income (expense), -0.S% -0.1% 0.€% 0.6%
Income (loss) before income tax -20.7% -6.1% 8.€% -3.4%
Income taxe: -4.7% -0.5% 4.5% 2.€%
Net income (loss) attributable to Stratasys | -15.% -5.6% 3.€% -6.C%

Discussion of Results of Operations (Note: The belo“Pro Forma Combined” column includes Objet as ifthe December 1, 2012 merger
occurred on January 1, 2012)

Net Sales

Net sales of our products and services fotabethree years, as well as the percentage cHemgeyear to year, were as follows:

Year Ended December 31, Year Ended December 31,
Pro Forma % Change
% Change Combined % Change 2013- 2012
2014 2013 2014-2013 2012 2012 2013-2012 Pro Forma Combined
U.S. $ in thousand:s U.S. $ in thousands

Products $ 612,13t $ 414,85 47.6% $ 179,76. $ 306,04 130.8% 35.6%
Services 137,99: 69,55( 98.4% 35,48: 53,01 96.0% 31.2%
$ 750,12¢ $ 484,40: 54.9% $ 215,24. $ 359,05 125.0% 34.9%

Product Revenue

Revenues derived from products (including AM systeaonsumable materials and other products) inecelg $197.3 million in 2014, or
47.6%, as compared to 2013. The increase in predadts was driven by an organic growth in our petsisales of $130.8 million in 2014, or
31.5% as compared to 2013. The inclusion of aykedlr of MakerBot revenues contributed $66.5 miliorthe increase of our product
revenues. MakerBot has continued to experience throwsales of our desktop 3D printers, increasin6.1% as compared to pro forma
revenue that MakerBot generated during 2013.

The number of systems shipped increased to 45,848 as compared to 19,317 units shipped in 201&. dales for the year ended
December 31, 2014 increased at a higher rate thaamues due to the increased percentage of Makar#stshipped as those units generally
carry a lower average price per unit. As discusseale “2014 Highlights” section above, we expest@ver increase in MakerBot business in
2015 and as a result we do not expect the abond teecontinue.
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The increase in systems and other products revefieets strong sales growth across all produesliiThis growth has been driven by the
continued adoption of our Connex Production seaies Fortus high-end Design series systems for mempex DDM and prototyping
applications using a wide range of materials witleise mechanical and physical properties. Duridt2we launched new systems, which
contributed to the increase in our net sales iM201

Consumables revenues in 2014 increased by 32.5%nagared to 2013. The increase was driven by aatile in customer usage and
our growing installed base of systems. In partiGulge strong sales of our Production series agh-@nd Design series systems in prior peri
contributed to strong consumables sales growthndiveir relatively higher consumable utilizationess We believe that our growing installed
base, particularly that of the Production series lsigh-end Design series systems, are positiveatdis of consumables revenues growth in
future periods. The increase in consumables revewas also driven by the launches of new high pexdoce consumable materials for the
in various applications during 2014.

Revenues derived from products increased by $288libn in 2013, or 130.8%, as compared to 2012 fbmber of systems shipped
increased to 19,317 units as compared to 3,476 shipped in 2012. The increase in both revenueanber of units shipped primarily
reflects the results of a full year in 2013 of canelol operations of Stratasys, Inc. and Objet coetbty only one month of combined
operations in 2012 after the Stratasys-Objet meagdrthe inclusion of MakerBot revenue and unitpd after the closing of the MakerBot
transaction. Systems and other products revenu#0fb3 increased as compared to pro forma combimedding Objet revenue for 2012. The
number of systems shipped in 2013 increased talT9)8its as compared to pro forma combined 4,548 shipped in 2012. The shipment of
MakerBot units after the MakerBot transaction citmited to the significant increase in unit sales@spared to pro forma combined prior
periods, which only include the combined operatiohStratasys, Inc. and Objet Ltd.

Consumables revenue in 2013 increased by 156.0&inthease in consumables revenue primarily refldet results of a full year in 20
of combined operations of Stratasys, Inc. and Qigeipared to only one month of combined operatinr)12 after the Stratasys-Objet
merger as well as the inclusion of MakerBot reveafter the MakerBot transaction. Consumables rezém2013 increased by 27.8% as
compared to consumables revenues, on a pro formhined basis including Objet, for 2012. The inceeass driven by an acceleration in
customer usage and our growing installed basestéss.

Services Revenue

Services revenues (including direct manufacturgnyises, maintenance and other services) incrdas&68.4 million in 2014, or 98.4%,
as compared to 2013. The increase in services uegenas primarily attributable to the increaseundirect manufacturing services revenues,
which increased by $41.0 or 250.2% as compare®18.2Revenues from our direct manufacturing sesvigereased significantly due to the
inclusion of Solid Concepts and Harvest revenues #ieir respective transaction dates. Servicemees also increased organically from
maintenance contracts and service parts, reflectimgyrowing installed base of systems.

Services revenues increased by $34.1 million irB201 96.0%, as compared to 2012. The increaserince revenue primarily reflects the
results of a full year in 2013 of combined openagiof Stratasys, Inc. and Objet compared to oné/raonth of combined operations in 2012.
Services revenues for 2013 increased by $16.5amjlbr 31.2%, as compared to service revenues poo Borma combined basis including
Obijet, for 2012.

Service revenues are expected to continue to iseréaring 2015 due to inclusion of Solid Concepts ldarvest revenues for the full year.
Revenues by Regic

Revenues and the percentage of net sales by rigitime last three years, as well as the percerthgege, were as follows:
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Year Ended December 31

Year Ended December 31

Pro Forma
Pro Forma Combined Combined
2014 2013 2014-2013 2012 2012 20132012 201:-2012
US.$in % of net UsS.$in % of net Change in U.S. $in % of net US.$in % of net Change in Change in
thousand: sales thousand: sales % thousand: sales thousand: sales % %
North
America $ 405,88( 54.1% $ 262,61: 54.2% 54.6% $ 113,85¢ 52.9% $ 183,34 51.1% 130.7% 43.2%
EMEA 183,46 24.5% 126,21 26.1% 45.4% 62,78: 29.2% 103,69: 28.9% 101.0% 21.7%
Asia Pacific 150,47! 20.1% 90,02: 18.6% 67.2% 35,45( 16.5% 64,33: 17.9% 153.9% 39.9%
Other 10,312 1.4% 5,552 1.1% 85.7% 3,15¢ 1.5% 7,68¢ 2.1% 75.8% -27.7%
$ 750,12¢ 100.0% $ 484,40: 100.0% 54.9% $ 215,24« 100.0% 359,05 100.0% 125.0% 34.9%

Revenues in all regions increased in 2014 andatsfletrong sales growth across all product linesedsas the inclusion of a full year of
MakerBot revenues in 2014 and Solid Concepts angldsarevenues commencing on their respective ddion dates.

Revenues in the North America region increased1#8% million, or 54.6%, to $ 405.9 million in 2044 compared to 2013. This incre
was due primarily to strong demand for our prodacis services and due to the factors as descrimdealn 2014, 54% of our net sales were

generated in the North America region, flat comgace2013.

Revenues in the EMEA region increased by $57.4anillor 45.4%, to $183.5 million in 2014 as comjpiatiee 2013. This increase was due
primarily to organic growth in all of our produdhés. The growth in net sales in the EMEA regiors wightly offset by foreign currencies
fluctuations primarily due to the devaluation o tBuro against the U.S dollar.

Revenues in the Asia Pacific region increased lyShillion, or 67.2%, to $ 150.5 million in 2014 eompared to 2013. This strong
growth was primarily due to an organic growth ihadlour product lines as well expanding our pragduand solutions to additional territories

the Asia Pacific region.

Revenues in all regions increased in 2013, primasla result of a full year in 2013 of combine@mpions of Stratasys, Inc. and Objet
compared to only one month of combined operatior)il2 and the inclusion of MakerBot revenue dfierMakerBot transaction. The
increase in revenue for 2013 as compared to prod@ombined including Objet revenue for 2012, mflestrong sales growth across all
product lines as well as MakerBot revenue afterctirapletion of the MakerBot transaction. The Ndktherica region was our fastest growing

region during 2013.

Gross Profit

Gross profit for our products and services forltst three years, as well as the percentage cHemgeyear to year, was as follows:

Year Ended December 31

Year Ended December 31

Pro Forma Pro Forma

Combined Combined

2014 2013 20142013 2012 2012 2013-2012 2013-2012

U.S. $in thousand: Change in % U.S. $in thousand: Change in % Change in %
Gross profit attributable to:

Producte $ 309,30( $ 201,42t 53.t% $ 93,02( $ 147,21! 116.5% 36.8%
Services 53,09/ 24,74 114.5% 16,89: 16,70¢ 46.£% 48.1%
$ 362,39 $ 226,17¢ 60.2% $ 109,91: $ 163,92 105.8% 38.0%

Gross profit as a percentage of net sales for mdyzts and services for the last three years gllsag the percentage change from year to

year, was as follows
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Year Ended Decembel Year Ended Decembel

31, 31,
Pro Forma Pro Forma
Combined Combined
2014 2013 20142013 2012 2012 20122012 2013-2012
Change in
% Change in %
Gross profit as a percentage of revenues fron
Producte 50.5% 48.6% 4.1% 51.7% 48.1% -6.1% 0.€%
Services 38.£% 35.€% 8.1% 47.€% 31.5% -25.2% 12.%%
Total gross profi 48.%9p 46.79% 3.5% 51.19 45.79% -8.€0% 2.59%

Gross profit attributable to products sales inoeddsy $107.9 million, or 53.6%, to $309.3 million2014 as compared with $201.4 mill
in 2013. The increase was attributable to salewtrdiscussed above. Gross profit attributablertmpcts sales as a percentage of revenues
increased to 50.5% in 2014 as compared to 48.62013, mainly due to product mix sales that favaredhighermargin Production series a
high-end Design series systems. The favorable eengur product mix sales was led by newly laudgmeducts and strong growth in our
high-margin consumables sales as well as flat gikd@ asset amortization expenses.

Gross profit attributable to services revenuesdased by $28.3 million, or 114.5%, to $53.1 millior2014 as compared with $24.7
million in 2013. The increase was attributable @ity to sales growth discussed above. Our direantufacturing service contributed $23.1
million to our gross profit primarily due to thecinsion of Solid Concepts and Harvest Technologperations. Gross profit from services as @
percentage of services revenues in 2014 increasgsl.5% from 35.6% in 2013 mainly due to mix ofvegs and economies of scale.

Gross profit attributable to products sales incedasy $108.4 million, or 116.5%, to $201.4 millimn2013 as compared with $93.0 milli
in 2012. As a percentage of revenues attributabpedduct sales, gross profit decreased as compate@012. The changes in gross profit
from products and gross profit as a percentagelated sales primarily reflected the results of@iget and MakerBot transactions. Gross p
from product sales for 2013 increased by $54.2ionillor 36.8%, as compared to gross profit frondpot sales, on a pro forma combined k
for Objet, for 2012, due to the increase in salssussed above.

Gross profit from services increased by 46.5% ih328s compared to the prior year due primarilhtoibcrease in service revenues
discussed above. Gross profit from services foBdftreased as compared to gross profit from sesyion a pro forma combined basis for
Obijet, for 2012. The changes in gross profit fr@rviees and gross profit as a percentage of rekstkss also reflected strong growth in our
customer service maintenance contracts and spetregades.

Operating Expenses

The amount of each type of operating expense fildht three years, as well as the percentage eHagtgveen such annual periods,
total operating expenses as a percentage of alrstes in each such annual period, was as fallows

Year Ended December 3: Year Ended December 31
Pro Forma Pro Forma
Combined Combined
2014 2013 20142013 2012 2012 201:-2012 2013-2012
U.S. $in thousands Change in % U.S. $in thousand: Change in % Change in %
Research and development, $ 82,27( $ 52,31( 57.2% $ 1965¢ $ 36,92: 166.1% 41.1%
Selling, general & administrati\ 351,99: 202,04( 74.2% 73,13( 141,23. 176.9% 43.1%
Goodwill impairment 102,47 — N/A — — N/A N/A
Change in fair value of obligations
connection with acquisitions (26,15() 754 -3,568.% — — N/A N/A
$ 510,58 $ 255,10: 100.29% $ 92,78¢ $ 178,15! 174.% 43.2%

60



Research and development expenses, net increaskDymillion, or 57.3%, during 2014 as compaedQ13. The increase was
primarily due to the inclusion of a full year of kexBot operations, which resulted in an increas®1&.2 million in our research and
development expenses and due to an increase icdigado support new research and developmersiiviéis. The headcount increase is
partially attributable to our acquisitions and eefs our continued investments in research anda@awent projects, focusing on enhancing out
AM technologies and developing consumables thatr@fh even broader array of physical, mechanichlasthetic properties, aimed at
broadening user applications.

Research and development expense as a percentsgle®fncreased to 11.0% in 2014 as compared.884l@nd 9.1% in 2013 and 2012,
respectively. This increase reflects our intentimeontinue to invest in research and developmeantder to bring a broad range of hardware
and materials solutions as well as software saistio create a leading 3D printing ecosystem. Weladicated to effectively introduce our
innovative technologies to the market in a timelyrmer.

Research and development expenses, net increasi8P2y/million, or 166.1%, during 2013 as compared012. The increase was driven
primarily by the results of a full year in 2013afmbined operations of Stratasys, Inc. and Objetpared to only one month of combined
operations in 2012 and the inclusion of MakerBatragions in 2013. Research and development expemseisicreased by $15.4 million, or
41.7%, during 2013 as compared to research andagewent expenses, on a pro forma combined basiSlh@t, for 2012.

Research and development expense as a percentsgleoincreased to 10.8% in 2013 as compared.% & 2012.

We have agreements with three manufacturing corepamder which we jointly advance certain of owppietary technology with each
of those two companies. The agreements entitle tsceive reimbursement payments of costs actiralyred under joint development
projects. During the years ended December 31, 20013 and 2012, approximately $4.6 million, $3.8ion and $3.2 million, respectively, of
research and development expenses were offsetyioyguas that we received from these companies.

Selling, general and administrative expenses isetéy 74.2% in 2014 as compared to 2013. Thesiwiwf Solid Concepts operating
results together with related merger, retention @her integration expense added $38.9 millionuoselling, general and administrative
expenses. In addition, the inclusion of a full yeMakerBot operations resulted in an increas@38f.0 million to our selling, general and
administrative expenses. The additional increasmiotelling, general and administrative expensas attributed to higher expenses for
strategic and marketing initiatives, costs of exfiag our sales and marketing infrastructure, o#toguisitions related expenses, a headcount
increase to support our continuing growth and aneiase in amortization of acquired intangible asse$7.9 million.

Selling, general and administrative expenses iseeay 176.3% in 2013 as compared to the prior. yider increase was driven primarily
by the results of a full year in 2013 of combinge@ations of Stratasys, Inc. and Objet comparexshlp one month of combined operations in
2012, which added $83.8 million of selling, genenadl administrative expenses, and the inclusidviakerBot operations after the MakerBot
transaction which added $9.4 million of sellingngeal and administrative expenses. These two tcéinga added $14.2 million in stock
compensation expense and $16.4 million in amortinaxpense related to acquired intangible asee?613 as compared to 2012.

Selling, general and administrative expenses ®tar ended December 31, 2013 increased as catrtpaselling, general and
administrative expenses, on a pro forma combins@liar Objet, for the year ended December 31, 2Uh2 increase was primarily due to
significant integration expenses related to thegmiex, changes in our product distribution strategyincrease in administrative expenses and
headcount to support our growth, and the MakerBotsaction related expenses.

During the year ended December 31, 2014, we redaxdgpodwill impairment charge of $102.5 milliomated to our MakerBot reporting
unit. The main factors for this non-cash and nonekeductible expense were a slower growth of Makéepoduct and service revenues,
challenges associated with the introduction antiregaf its new product platform, changes in timiosigmplementation of certain initiatives
and changes in MakerBot's distribution model.
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We will continue to monitor our reporting unitsdetermine whether events and circumstances wdugher interim impairment testing. For
further information, see note 1 to our consoliddiedncial statements included in Item 18 of this@al report.

During the year ended December 31, 2014, we redaydin of $26.2 million due to the revaluation bfigations in connection with
acquisitions of MakerBot and Solid Concepts. SiklekerBot did not achieve the earn-out targets @4 the entire earn-out liability was
cancelled as of December 31, 2014 and resultiggin of $18.3 million. Additional gain of $7.9 nidh was recorded due to a decrease of ou
deferred payments obligations in connection with $lolid Concepts acquisition, which was mainlyiladtiable to changes in our share price.
For further information, see note 2 to our consifid financial statements included in Item 18 &f #mnual report.

As discussed above under “Investment Plan”, we ebqure additional increase in our operating expemes in the next two to three years a:
a result of our new investment plan.

Operating Income (Loss)

Operating income (loss) and operating income (lass) percentage of our total net sales for thdHese years, as well as the percentage
change in operating income between those yearg, agefollows:

Year Ended December 31 Year Ended December 31

Pro Forma Pro Forma

Combined Combined

2014 2013 20142013 2012 2012 201:-2012 201:-2012

U.S. $ in thousand:s Change in % U.S. $ in thousand:s Change in % Change in %
Operating income
(loss) $ (148,189 $ (28,93) 412% $ 17,12: $ (14,237 -269.(% 103.7%

Percentage of sali -19.&8% -6.C% 8.C% -4.C%

Operating loss for the year ended December 31, 2@54$148.2 million as compared to an operating ¢d$28.9 million for the year
ended December 31, 2013. The increase in opetatsgvas primarily attributable to goodwill and etfintangible assets impairment charges
of $117.1 million and higher merger, retention &mdgration expenses, mainly due to the Solid Cptecansaction. The increase in operating
loss was partially offset by gain due to revaluaid obligations in connection with acquisitionsdescribed above.

We recognized an operating loss for 2013 of $28lBomas compared to operating income of $17.liarlin 2012. The increase in
operating loss was primarily attributable to exgensf $73.9 million from amortization of intangitdesets attributable to the Stratasys-Objet
merger and the MakerBot transaction and expen$8.afmillion for the MakerBot performance bonusmplar the 2013 as compared to
amortization expense of $10.1 million from intarigibssets for 2012, which was partially offset iy increased gross margin as described
above.

Operating loss for 2013 increased as compareddoatipg loss, on a pro forma combined basis foeQbpr 2012. The increase in
operating loss was primarily attributable to exgeat$73.9 million from amortization of intangitdssets and expense of $9.1 million for the
MakerBot performance bonus plan as compared totaration expense of $48.3 million from intangibksats in the pro forma combined
operating loss for 2012. The effect of the incréasemortization expense and MakerBot performarw®ib plan operating income was
partially offset by the increased gross marginescdbed above.

Financial Income (expense), net
Financial expenses, net, which is comprised of pdareign currencies effects and interest expensg,amounted to $6.5 million for the
year ended December 31, 2014, compared to a fialegxqpense, net of $0.5 million for the year enBedember 31, 2013. The increas

mainly due to foreign currency translation losses tb
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changes in the rate of exchange between the Ul&r dad the local currencies in the markets inalihwe operate (primarily the Euro),
principally related to intercompany receivables paglables denominated in a foreign currency, grtidfset by revaluation of forward
contracts that hedged the corresponding currenggsexe.

Financial expenses, net in 2013 increased as cauparfinancial income, net in 2012. The expens®ib3 is primarily due to net foreign
currency transaction losses.

Income Taxes

Income taxes and income taxes as a percentaget afiazene before taxes for the last three yearsyels as the percentage chang
income taxes between those years, were as follows:

Year Ended December 3: Year Ended December 3:

Pro Forma Pro Forma
Combined Combined
2014 2013 2012 2012 2013-2012 2013-2012
U.S. $in thousands U.S. $ in thousands Change in % Change in %
Income taxe: $(35,24%) $(2,479) $ 9,687 $ 9,40 -125.5% -126.9%
As a percent of income (loss) before income
taxes 22.8% 8.4% 52.2% -77.1% -83.9% -110.8%%

Our effective tax rate for the year ended Decer3ie2014 was 22.8% as compared to 8.4% tax ratindoyear ended December 31,
2013. Our effective tax rate has varied signifibadtie to the changes in the mix of income (lostiMeen the U.S. and Israel.

Favorable factors that impacted our effective & for the year ended December 31, 2014 includgazhie of $18.3 million attributable
the change in fair value of the Company’s earnamat by an unfavorable goodwill impairment chargemsroximately $102.5 million, which
are both non-tax deductible, and therefore hadmifgiant impact on the effective tax rate for trear ended December 31, 2014.

In addition, during the third quarter of 2014, wiusted our estimate of long-term tax rates indkras a result, we recorded an
approximately $3.2 million in our income tax experéd an increase in our deferred tax liabilitesoaiated with the amortization of the
intangible assets.

In the future, the effective tax rate is expecteéiuctuate as a result of various factors, inahgdchanges in the products and geographica
distribution of our income, the effect of any mesgyand acquisitions, and the effects of statutdsnitations and provisions for uncertain tax
positions. We expect that the tax rate in futurargevill be higher than this year’s, as a resuthefproduct mix projected for these years and
the changes of the Israeli incentives regime weectly benefit from.

Net Income (Loss) and Net Income (Loss) Per Shardtfibutable to Stratasys Ltd.

Net income (loss) and net income (loss) as a p&agerof our total revenues for the last three yemrsvell as the percentage change ir
income between those years, were as follows:
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Year Ended Decembel Year Ended Decembel

31, 31,
Pro Forma Pro Forma
Combined Combined
2014 2013 20142013 2012 2012 20132012 20132012
U.S. $in thousand:s Changein %  U.S. $in thousands Change in % Change in %
Net income (loss) attributable
Stratasys Ltd $(119,42() $ (26,959 343.1% $ 8,491 $ (21,57) -417.5% 24.%
Percentage of Sali -15.% -5.6% 3.%% -6.C%
Diluted net income (loss) persh:  $  (2.39) $ (0.69 251.% $ 03¢ $ (0.5¢) -288.9% 17.2%

Net loss attributable to Stratasys Ltd. for theryeraded December 31, 2014 was $119.4 million agpeoed to $27.0 million for the year
ended December 31, 2013. Diluted loss per sharhéoyears ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 wa8 &ad $0.68, respectively.

This increase of the net loss attributable to 88y Ltd was due to the factors that were prewodiskcussed, primarily the increase in our
selling, general and administrative expenses, aodwill impairment, which were partially offset bygher gross profit and gain due to
revaluation of obligations in connection with acgtions.

The weighted average fully diluted share counttfier year ended December 31, 2014 was 50.0 mikiompared to 42.1 million for tl
year ended December 31, 2013. The increase is igjndae to the public offering of 5.2 million shem and the issuance of 3.9 million shari
connection with the MakerBot transaction during thied quarter of 2013 which had a full effect dre tweighted average number of sh
outstanding in the year ended December 31, 201ehlss shares issued during the three monthsdeBdptember 30, 2014 in connection \
the acquisitions of Solid Concepts and Harvestcthincreased the weighted average share countSynillion. In computing the loss p
share for the years ended December 31, 2014 ar®l A@ladjustments were made to take into accounpassible dilution of stock optior
RSUs and shares held back in connection with thkekiBot transaction to the basic loss per shareusectheir inclusion would have had
anti-dilutive effect on the diluted net loss pearh

Net loss attributable to Stratasys Ltd. for theryeraded December 31, 2013 was $27.0 million as epatpto net income of $8.5 million
and net loss of $21.6 million, on pro forma comblibasis for Objet, for the year ended Decembe312. The main reasons for the change
from 2012 net income to 2013 net loss and for trenges between the net loss of 2013 on pro formmbiced basis for Objet, for 2012 are
cited previously in this operating and financialiesv and prospects section. The weighted averdbgediluted share count for the year ended
December 31, 2013 was 42.1 million, compared t8 &8llion for December 31, 2012. The increase imprily due to a full effect in the year
ended December 31, 2013 on the weighted averagbeturhshares issued in connection with the Styat&@bjet merger during December
2012 and the public offering and issuance of shiaresnnection with the MakerBot transaction durihg third quarter of 2013.

Table of Operations on a Pro Forma Combined InaligdDbjet Basis

The following table sets forth unaudited pro foramdensed combined for Objet statements of opeatidormation for the year ended
December 31, 2012, which combine the historicabotidated statements of operations of Stratasgsaimd Objet, giving effect to the
Stratasys-Objet merger as if it had been consunthmatelanuary 1, 2012. This information has beeivelgfrom and should be read in
conjunction with the audited consolidated finansiatements of Stratasys Ltd. included in this FaF.

Year ended December 31, 2012

(in thousands

Historical Pro Forma

Combined Adjustments Combined
Net sales $ 357,98t $ 1,06¢ (a) $ 359,05:
Cost of sale: 160,02: 35,10¢ (a)(b)(c)(d)(e) 195,13:
Gross profit 197,96: (34,040 163,92:
Research and developmt 34,28t 2,637 (b) (c) 36,92:
Selling, general and administrati 147,03! (5,809 (a)(b)(c)(d)(e) 141,23:
Operating income (lost 16,64: (30,879 (14,23)
Other income 2,12¢ — 2,12¢
Income (loss) before tax 18,76¢ (30,879 (12,109
Income taxe: 11,69( (2,287 () 9,407
Net income (loss) attributable to Stratasys | 7,01t (28,597 (21,57°)
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The specific pro forma adjustments are as follows:

a)

b)

d)

Elimination of one-time expense as arising fthm Stratasys-Objet merger related to the amoidizatf purchase price adjustments for
acquired deferred revenues, inventory and ordeklbgcSuch amounts are not reflected above as #meseonsidered nonrecurring
charges that are to be included in the statememp@fations within twelve months following the tsastion.

Accordingly, pro forma adjustments for one-time expes have been included as follows:

Year ended
(in thousands) December 31, 2012
Revenue! $ 1,06¢
Cost of sale—Products (2,829
Selling, general and administrati (3,269

To reflect the amortization of intangible ass@ising from the Stratasys-Objet merger. Accorljingro forma adjustments for
amortization expense have been included as foll

Year ended
(in thousands) December 31, 2012
Cost of sale—Products $ 36,01¢
Selling, general and administrati 8,22(

To reflect stock-based compensation expenset@tick options vest over a four-year period arcevonly exercisable upon the
consummation of a liquidity event. Objet treateel $hock options as performance-based awards amtucendl that such performance
condition was not probable. As a result, no stoakdal compensation expense had been recognizedstanuiing Objet stock options.
The Stratasys-Objet merger was a liquidity evedt\asted options became exercisable at the dale @tratasys-Objet merger. Under
reverse acquisition accounting, Objet stock optiwase deemed (for accounting purposes only) tepkaced by Stratasys options. The
fair value of these replacement options is detesahioy using the current Stratasys stock price aspar to the Black-Scholes valuation
model. The total fair value of these options of BZ2million was allocated $183 million to servigesdered prior to the merger date
based upon vesting and included as part of thehpsecprice and $44.7 million to services to be eesd after the merger date, and is
being included in future stock-based compensatiperse. Accordingly, pro forma adjustments to iaseestock-based compensation
expense have been included as follo

Year ended
(in thousands) December 31, 201.
Cost of sale—Products $ 1,02¢
Cost of sale—Services 1,21¢
Research and developmt 3,20¢
Selling, general and administrati 17,19(

Elimination of one-time stock-based expense.dinike terms of the option awards, certain Stratdeg. stock options granted prior to
the date of the Stratasys-Objet merger agreemenet fully exercisable automatically upon the consiation of the Stratasys-Objet
merger. Stratasys, Inc. recognized a-time stocl-basec
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compensation expense of $3.8 million on the nreiglgch amount is not reflected above as it isidensd a nonrecurring charge that is
be included in the statement of operations withialte months following the transaction.

Accordingly, pro forma adjustments for stock-basethpensation expense have been included to rethudelsased compensation
expense as follow:

Year ended
(in thousands) December 31, 201.
Cost of sale—Products $ (295)
Cost of sale—Services (39
Research and developmt (56¢)
Selling, general and administrati (2,909

Elimination of transaction costs. Total trangactosts related to the merger of $25 million wereorded as an expense in combined
selling, general and administrative expenses fytar ended December 31, 2012. These costs hamgdraoved from selling, general
and administrative expenses with a pro forma antjast for the year ended December 31, 2012 as thusse do not have an ongoing
impact.

Income tax expense. To reflect the effect of Siti@tasys-Objet merger on the (provision) beriefitncome taxes (with the exception of
nor-tax-deductible stoc-based compensation expense and transaction costiefyear ended December 31, 2(

Non-GAAP Financial Measures

The following non-GAAP data, which excludes theegatries of expenses described below, are non-GAgsdial measures. Our

management believes that these non-GAAP finanaasures are useful information for investors amdediolders of our company in gauging
our results of operations (x) on an ongoing baftes axcluding merger and acquisition related eggerand (y) excluding non-cash charges
such as, share-based compensation, amortizatiotaofible assets, and impairment charges thagreith not reflect actual cash outlays that
impact our liquidity and our financial condition lbave a non-recurring impact on the income staténasmssessed by management. These n
GAAP financial measures are presented to perméstors to more fully understand how managemensasseur performance. The limitati

of using these noGAAP financial measures as performance measurdbaréhey provide a view of our results of opanasi without includin

all events during a period, such as the effectaefger-related, non-cash compensation and othegefizand may not provide a comparable
view of our performance to other companies in adustry. The presentation of these non-GAAP measaneot meant to be considered in
isolation or as an alternative to any measurenafritial performance calculated in accordance wWAAB.
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Reconciliation of GAAP and Non-GAAP Results of Opeations

1)

(@)

3)

(4)

Year ended December 31, 2014

2014
GAAP

Gross profit (1)
$ 362,39
Operating loss (1,2 (148,19)
Net loss attributable to Stratas
Ltd. (1,2,3)
Diluted net income (loss) per
share attributable to Stratasy

Ltd. (4)

(119,42()

(2.39)

Acquired intangible assets
amortization expens

Other intangible assets
impairment

Deferred revenue purchase pric
adjustment:

Non-cash stock-based
compensation expen

Merger and acquisition related
expense

Acquired intangible assets
amortization expens

Goodwill impairment

Other intangible assets
impairment

Non-cash stock-based
compensation expen

Change in fair value of
obligations in connection witt
acquisitions

Merger and acquisition related
expense

Tax expense related to
adjustment:

Depreciation and amortization
expense attributable to non-
controlling interes

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding-

Diluted 50,01¢
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Non-GAAP 2014 2013 Non-GAAP 2013
Adjustments Non-GAAP GAAP Adjustments  Non-GAAP
U.S. dollars and shares in thousands (except @ee stmounts
76,870 $ 439,27: $226,17.  $ 62,71° $ 288,89(
256,45! 108,26: (28,93) 126,61: 97,68:
223,04! 103,62¢ (26,959 108,91« 81,95¢
4.3¢ 2.0C (0.6¢) 2.52 1.84
56,23t 57,027
11,63¢ —
23t 2,31¢
4,49: 2,98(
_ A1 3%
76,87" 62,71°
24,95; 17,06¢
102,47( —
3,00( —
25,71« 21,28:
(26,15() 9,861
49,58¢ 15,68:
179,57! 63,89¢
256,45: 126,61:
)
(33,409 (17,57¢
— 12F
(33,409 (17,700
223,04 $ 108,91:
51,80¢ 42,09¢ 44,51



Forward-looking Statements and Factors That May afft Future Results of Operation
See “Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-looking Stegnts” at the beginning of this annual reportigfeing the table of contents).
Variability of Operating Results

Our sales and profitability may vary in any givesay, and from quarter to quarter, depending omtimeber and mix of products sold and
the average selling price of the products, andis® affected by the seasonality of our businesadtition, due to competition, uncertain
market acceptance and other factors, we may béreelio reduce prices for our products in the feitur

Our future results will be affected by a numbefaaftors, including our ability to: increase the rhenof units sold; develop, introduce and
deliver new products on a timely basis; accurageljcipate customer demand patterns; and manageefiiventory levels in line with
anticipated demand. Our results may also be affemyecompetitive factors, the extent to which oostaeduction program succeeds, the
availability of working capital, results of litigah, the enforcement of intellectual property rggtdurrency exchange rate fluctuations,
commodity prices and economic conditions in theggaphic areas in which we operate. There can tessorance that our historical
performance in sales, gross profit and net incdoss) will improve or even continue, or that satgsss profit and net income (loss) in any
particular quarter will improve over those of préicg quarters, including comparable quarters ofipres years. See Item 3.D - “Risk Factors”
above.

Effective Corporate Tax Rate

See “Israeli Tax Considerations and Governmentiarog — General Corporate Tax Structure in Israeltem 4.B above for a discussi
of the general tax structure in Israel and appleabrporate tax rates.

In 2014, we derived a significant portion of oucame from facilities granted Approved or Benefigi&nterprise status, and therefore our
effective tax rate was significantly reduced frdme historic rate of Stratasys, Inc. See “Israek Tansiderations and Government Programs -
The Law for the Encouragement of Capital Investisieint tem 4.B above. Income tax expense in outohisal financial statements prior to
2013 related primarily to the income taxes of neraéli subsidiaries, as income from Objet Ltd. watuded only for the month of December,
2012, subsequent to the Stratasys-Objet merger.

In the event we have taxable income in Israel véerfrom sources other than Approved or Beneficiamjerprises, such income would be
taxable at the regular Israeli corporate tax rdesribed above.

As part of the process of preparing our consolifiteancial statements, we must estimate our inctaxes in each of the jurisdictions in
which we operate. This process involves our estitgaiur actual current tax exposure together wstteasing temporary differences resulting
from differing treatment of items for tax and aconting purposes. Actual income taxes could vary fthese estimates due to future changes i
income tax law or results from final tax examinas@and reviews.

Effects of Government Regulations and Location onwr Business

For a discussion of the effects of Israeli governtakregulation and our location in Israel on ousibess, see “Israeli Tax Considerations
and Government Programs” in Item 4.B above andRligks related to operations in Israel” in Item 3above.

Inflation

We believe that inflation has not had a materidafon our operations or on our financial conditéuring the three most recent fiscal
years.

Foreign Currency Transactions
See “Foreign Currency Exchange Risk” in Item 1Jotelor a discussion of foreign currency transadion
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B. Liquidity and Capital Resources
A summary of our statement of cash flows for the¢hyears ended December 31, 2014 is as follows:

Year ended December 31
2014 2013 2012
U.S. $ in thousand:s

Net income (loss $ (119,47() $ (26,907 $ 8,82:
Goodwill and other intangible assets impairmentgés 117,10¢ — —
Depreciation and amortizatic 109,42¢ 92,43¢ 19,497
Deferred income taxe (53,887) (19,449 (3,450
Stoclk-based compensatic 30,20 24,26 8,87¢
Excess tax benefit from stock optic — (2,819 (15,199
Change in fair value of obligations in connectioithvacquisitions (26,15() 754 —
Translation loss (gain) and other -cash item: 10,60: (1,529 (4617)
Change in working capital and other items (54,02)) (34,72)) (16,599
Net cash provided by operating and other activ 13,81¢ 32,02¢ 1,49¢
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi (27,439 (226,75) 81,51¢
Net cash provided by financing activiti 44,94 474,91! 30,48¢
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casvatnts (3,265 69 23¢
Net change in cash and cash equival 28,05 280,26: 113,73
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 414,08t 133,82t 20,09:
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 442,14: $ 414,08t $ 133,82t

Our cash and cash equivalents balance increasetifh1 million at December 31, 2014 from $414.liorilat December 31, 2013. The
increase in cash and cash equivalents in 2014 rvirasuly due to cash flows provided from operatangivities in an amount of $13.8 million
and cash flows from financing activities in the ambof $44.9 million primarily due to the proceddsm borrowing under our credit facility.
The increase in cash and cash equivalents wad bffseet cash flows used in investing activitie$a¥.4 million to fund our acquisitions and
to purchase property, plant and equipment to sugporgrowing business.

Our cash and cash equivalents balance increasetlth1 million at December 31, 2013 from $133.8iorilat December 31, 2012. The
increase was primarily due to the net proceed£62® million from the sale of our ordinary shanghjch closed in September, 2013. These
increases were offset by the $226.8 million useidwesting activities, which primarily reflectedetincrease in short-term bank deposits and
purchases of property and equipment.

Cash flow from operating activities

We generated cash in operating activities of $1dIBon during 2014. The net loss of $119.5 millieras favorably adjusted by non-cash
charges for goodwill and other intangible assefsainment of $117.1 million, depreciation and anmation of $109.4 million and stock-based
compensation expense of $30.2 million offset mabyythe changes in the deferred income taxes anarhking capital items. The changes in
the deferred income taxes of $53.9 million anddh&nges in working capital and other items of $5dillon unfavorably affected cash from
operating activities. The increase in the workiagital consisted mainly of an increase in accotetsivable of $46.7 million and inventories
of $39.4 million, offset by an increase in accreggenses and other current liabilities and accoostpensation and related benefits of $31.0
million as well as $12.7 million increase in deétrevenue. The change in working capital was mairen by strong order flow reflecting
increasing demand for our products and servicéisemmarketplace.

We generated cash from operating activities of G82llion during 2013. The net loss of $27.0 mitliwas favorably adjusted due to
noncash charges for depreciation and amortizafi®®®.4 million and stock-based
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compensation expense of $24.3 million offset maljiythe changes in the deferred income taxes o#%hélion and in working capital items
of $34.7 million.

We generated $1.5 million in cash from operatingva®s during 2012. Net income of $8.8 million sveavorably adjusted for non-cash
charges of $19.5 million in depreciation and anzatton and stock-based compensation expense oh@iBi@n offset mainly by excess tax
benefit from stock option exercises of $15.2 millend in working capital items of $16.6 million.

Cash flow from investing activities

We used cash of $27.4 million in our investingtigs during 2014. Cash used to fund our acqoisgtiand to purchase property and
equipment amounted to $211.6 million, which wagiphy offset by cash provided due to the changshart-term bank deposits of $189.8
million.

We used cash of $151.1 million to fund our acquaisg. In addition, we also used non-cash consiterad fund our acquisitions. For
further details, see our supplemental disclosumaeh flow information of our consolidated statetarcash flow and note 2 to our
consolidated financial statements included in If8rof this annual report.

Property, plant and equipment purchases totaleds$60lion. Our principal property, plant and equient purchases were for the
enhancement of our manufacturing capabilities offadilities in Israel and the United States anddor new facility in Germany. We also paid
for machinery and other equipment to support oangrg direct manufacturing business, purchasednesging development equipment and
invested in our computer systems.

We used cash of $226.8 million in our investingwii¢s during 2013. The cash used for investingvéees in 2013 primarily related to tl
purchase of short-term bank deposits, which ussd 06$180.3 million, and the purchase of propgstsint and equipment of $33.3 million.

Our investing activities generated $81.5 milliomidg 2012. The cash generated from our investitigiies in 2012 primarily related to
proceeds from maturities and sales of marketaldergies of $53.4 million and cash acquired of $4illion through Stratasys-Objet merger.

Cash flow from financing activities

Net cash provided by financing activities in 201dsvw$44.9 million. Cash provided by financing atitdd was mainly attributed to our
borrowing of $50.0 million under our credit fagilitluring 2014.

In addition to the borrowing under the credit figjlitems that favorably affected financing adiies were the proceeds of $7.9 million fr
the exercise of stock options, partially offsetthg cash payment of the first earn-out period @il in connection with MakerBot transaction
in the amount of $10.8 million.

Net cash provided by financing activities in 2018s%$474.9 million. Cash provided by financing atigg was mainly attributed to net
proceeds of $462.9 million from public offering®fL 75,000 of our ordinary shares. Proceed fronextezcise of stock options provided cas
$12.5 million to our financing activities.

Net cash provided by financing activities in 2012s%30.5 million. Proceeds from the exercise dflstiptions and the excess tax benefit
from the exercise of stock options and warrant jpled $15.3 million and $15.2 million, respectively.

Capital resources and capital expenditures

Our total current assets amounted to $796.6 midi®of December 31, 2014, of which $442.7 millionsisted of cash and cash equival
and short-term bank deposits. Total current libiamounted to $250.6 million as of December2814, including $50.0 million relating to
short-term debt. Most of our cash and cash equitslend short-term bank deposits are held in bemlssael, Switzerland and the U.S., with
only minor amounts subject to any restrictions avement of balances within our company and ourididrées.

Our credit risk of our accounts receivable is ladidue to the relatively large number of custoraedstheir wide geographic distribution.
addition, we try to reduce the credit exposuresusfaccounts receivable by credit limits, cred#urance for most of our customers, ongoing
credit evaluation and account monitoring procedures

In February 2015, we announced our new investmanttp help enable growth, maintain market leadprahd meet future opportunities.
We may make investments in fixed assets, exparmdionr operations into additional geographies, rimfation technology, or IT, human
resources and sales and marketing infrastructatenti be
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required for future growth. We estimate that wd sflend between approximately $160 million to $2@ilion in 2015 for capital expenditure.
We believe that we will have adequate cash and gaskrated from operating activities to fund ougaing operations and that these sourci
liquidity will be sufficient to satisfy our capitaixpenditure requirements for the next twelve menth

Acquisitions

As discussed in note 2 to our consolidated findrst&ements included in Iltem 18 of this annuabrgpve acquired Solid Concepts on .
14, 2014. At the closing, we paid approximately $idllion as part of the purchase price and otbtated expenses, of which $60 million was
paid in cash and $98 million was paid in our shates $4 million balance of the initial purchase&pmwas deferred for six months and was |
in cash during January 2015. The remaining relpgsanents, including deferred payments considerati@hretention bonus, are subject to
certain adjustments based on our share price. Basedr share price as of December 31, 2014, takuadiscounted amount of the deferred
payments consideration and retention bonus is appetely $86.6 million. Subject to certain requiremts for cash payments, we retain the
discretion to settle any of the amounts payableeutite Solid Concepts transaction in our sharesh) oaany combination of the two. We
believe that our existing cash reserves and owlving credit facility will be adequate to permi to make the cash payments if we choose tc
pay the remaining amount in cash.

As part of our business strategy, we plan to carsadd, as appropriate, make acquisitions of dibsinesses, products, product rights or
technologies. Our cash reserves, revolving creditify and other liquid assets may be inadequatohsummate such acquisitions and it may
be necessary for us to issue shares or raise stibstadditional funds in the future to completéufie transactions. In addition, as a result of ou
acquisition efforts, we are likely to experiencgnsiicant charges to earnings and significant acagflows for mergers and related expenses
(whether or not our efforts are successful) thag melude transaction costs, closing costs or coktsstructuring activities.

Revolving credit facility

On November 8, 2013, our company and Stratasymiienal Ltd., our wholly-owned subsidiary, whisérved as borrower, entered into
a credit agreement with Bank of America, N.A., @f, as administrative agent and swing line lended the other lenders party thereto.
Under the credit agreement, Citibank, N.A. and HIB@k USA, National Association, serve assgmdication agents and Silicon Valley B
serves as documentation agent.

The credit agreement provides for a five year néngl credit facility in an aggregate principal ambof up to $250 million. The revolving
credit facility permits swing line loans of up teetlesser of: (1) $25 million and (2) the aggregatmmitments of all the lenders. The borrower
has the right to make up to three requests to aseréhe aggregate commitments under the revolvadjtdacility by an aggregate amount for
all such requests of up to $75 million, providedtttin each case, the lenders (including new lemdéo are eligible assignees under the credi
agreement) are willing to provide such new or iasetl commitments and certain other conditions @te m

All of the obligations under the credit agreemeametanconditionally guaranteed by our company andury(and the borrower’s) active
U.S. and Israeli subsidiaries (excluding, throughend of 2014, MakerBot and its subsidiaries).

At the borrower’s option, revolving loans under thiedit agreement (other than swing line loans) agtrue interest based on either (i) the
Eurodollar Rate (the London Interbank Offered Ratd,IBOR) plus a margin based on our Consolidatexderage Ratio (defined as
consolidated funded indebtedness over consolidaB#@iDA (as defined in the credit agreement) for ginevious rolling four quarters (to whi
we refer as the leverage ratio); or (ii) a base ohf(a) the federal funds rate plus a marginB@A's announced prime rate, or (c) the
Eurodollar Rate plus a margin, whichever is highglsis a margin that is dependent on the leverafie (we refer to the foregoing interest rate
under the credit agreement as the base rate). Siwentpans will accrue interest at the base réus fhe then-applicable margin for base rate
loans.

Payments of the principal amounts of (i) revolviogns are due on the fifth anniversary of the clgif the facility, which we refer to as
the maturity date, and (ii) swing line loans are du the earlier of (a) 10 business days after karhis made, or (b) the maturity date. Interes
on Eurodollar Rate Loans is payable on the lastodaach interest period (provided that if an iegtmperiod exceeds three months, such int
payments are also due on the
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dates falling every three months after the begigoihsuch interest period) and, for any base ks, lis payable on the last business day of
each calendar quarter.

Borrowings under the credit agreement are availéslgeneral corporate purposes (including, witHouitation, permitted acquisitions
and investments) and for other permitted purpostfogth in the credit agreement.

The borrower must also pay a commitment fee outhesed portion of the revolving credit facilityatate of 0.375% to 0.425% based on
the leverage ratio.

The borrower may prepay, reduce or terminate tiengiboments, in whole or in part, in minimum amouwithout premium or penalty,
other than customary breakage costs with respdeuttodollar Rate borrowings.

The credit agreement contains customary represe@msadnd warranties, and affirmative and negatoxenants. The negative covenants
include, without limitation, restrictions on indebiness, liens, investments, and certain dispositibine negative covenants are each subjec
number of specific exceptions, as well as broadeegtions which are a function of our consoliddtaencial status. These broader exceptions
include, among other things, the ability of our @amy, the borrower, or any of their subsidiariemtike investments, consummate acquisi
(as such terms are defined in the credit agreememd)incur additional unsecured indebtednessaridim of convertible unsecured bonds or
similar convertible securities, as long as certainditions are met.

The credit agreement also contains customary ewémasfault that entitle the lenders to cause amgllof the borrower’s indebtedness to
become immediately due and payable, including, apoaher things: (i) failure to pay any principal ehdue and payable; (ii) failure to pay
interest within five days after it is due; (iii)ifiare to comply with certain covenants and repréations; (iv) a change of control (as defined in
the credit agreement); (v) cross-defaults basediedaults under certain other agreements; (vi) taatanance by us of material monetary
judgments that remain unstayed; (vii) insolvencg bankruptcy defaults. There are also customargegpariods provided before certain eve
are deemed events of default under the credit aggpe

During the third quarter of 2014 we borrowed $5Million under the credit facility to support thenfding of our growing business. \
believe that we were in compliance with the alleaants under the credit agreement as of Decembh&034.

Contractual obligations

For information concerning our material commitmessof December 31, 2014, see Item 5.F below (“leatiRisclosure of Contractual
Obligations”).

C. Research and Development, Patents and Licensé&sc.

For a discussion of our research and developmditigs see “Research and Development” and “Reuiat Israeli Tax Considerations
and Government Programs — Law for the Encourageofédapital Investments” in Item 4.B above and‘tRisks related to operations in
Israel” in Item 3.D above.

D. Trend Information.

For trend information, see the Risk Factors deedrib Item 3.D above, the “Overview” and “OperatRgsults” sections of this Item 5 -
“Operating and Financial Review and Prospects”lgerd 4 - “Information on the Company” above.

E. Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements.

Except for standard operating leases, we havengaged in any off-balance sheet arrangements,asitte use of unconsolidated
subsidiaries, structured finance, special purposigies or variable interest entities.

We do not believe that our off-balance sheet aearents and commitments have or are reasonably liké¢iave a current or future effect
on our financial condition, changes in financiahdiion, revenues or expenses, results of opergtiauidity, capital expenditures or capital
resources that is material to investors.

F. Tabular Disclosure of Contractual Obligations.

The following table summarizes our material knowntcactual obligations and commitments as of Deagrh, 2014 that we expect to
require significant cash outlays in future periods:
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1 Year Years Years 5 Years

2020 and
Total 2015 2016-2017 2018-2019 Thereafter
U.S. $ in thousands
Operating lease obligations ( $ 68,08 $ 12,727 $ 18,09¢ $ 12,65: $ 24,60
Purchase obligations (including purchase orc 24,27" 24,27" — — —
Short-term debt (2) 50,23: 50,23

$ 142,58¢ $ 87,23 % 18,09¢ % 1265 $ 24,60%

(1) Includes lease obligations for facilitie
(2) Includes estimated intere

The total amount of unrecognized tax benefits focastain tax positions was $8.6 million as of Debem31, 2014. Payment of th:
obligations would result from settlements with taxiauthorities. Due to the difficulty in determigithe timing of resolution of audits, th
obligations are not included in the above table.

In addition, the Company has obligations in conioectwith acquisitions, mainly due to the Solid Cepts transaction. For furtt
information refer to Note 2 to our consolidatedafigial statements included in Item 18 of this ahnegort.

ITEM 6. DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND EMPLOYEES.
A. Directors and Senior Management.

The following table lists the names and ages ofcomrent directors, as well as the names, agegasitions of the current members of our
senior management, as of the filing date of thisuahreport:

Name Age Paosition

Elchanan Jaglor 73 Chairman of the Board of Directc

S. Scott Crum 61 Chairman of the Executive Committee and Chief Iraimn Officer
David Reis 54 Chief Executive Officer and Directi

Edward J. Fierk« 73 Director

llan Levin 49 Director

John J. McElene 52 Director

Clifford H. Schwiete! 67 Director

Ziva Patir 65 Director

Eyal Deshel 62 External Directol

Victor Leventhal 70 External Directo

Erez Simh¢ 52 Chief Financial Officer and Chief Operating Offic

Elchanan Jaglonhas served as Chairman of the Board of Directorsesiebruary 19, 2015 and since the Stratasys-@igeger, as the
Chairman of the Executive Committee of our compdmor to the Stratasys-Objet merger, he servedhasrman of Object’s board of
Directors from 2001 until the Stratasys-Objet meryfr. Jaglom also served as the Chairman of Diadr@apital Management Ltd., the
investment manager of the Diamond Group of investrinds, until January 2, 2014. In parallel toihisolvement with these entities, Mr.
Jaglom has been involved in investment managenfdahds, private equity and venture capital investirsince the early 1980s, focusing
primarily on early-stage technology companies. $leuirrently a member of the Board of Trustees efTtal Aviv Museum of Art and the Ben
Gurion University of the Negev. He holds a bacheldegree in economics and statistics from the E\@luniversity in Jerusalem and an
M.B.A. from New York University.

S. Scott Crumpas served as Chairman of the Executive CommiftéeedBoard of Directors since February 19, 2018 as our Chief
Innovation Officer since February 2013. Mr. Crumipypously served as Chairman of the Board of Doexcsince the Stratasys-Objet merger,
Chief Executive Officer, President, Treasurer amlif@ctor of Stratasys, Inc. from its inceptionl®88 until the Stratasys-Objet merger, and a:
Chief Financial Officer of Stratasys from FebruaBg0 to May 1997. Mr. Crump was, with Lisa H. Crurhs wife, a co-founder of Stratasys,
Inc., and he is the inventor of our FDM technolo@yring the period from 1982 to 1988, Mr. Crump vaaso-founder and Vice President of
Sales of IDEA, Inc., which later changed its nam&k Technologies, Inc., a leading manufacturdoafe, load and pressure transducers. Mr.
Crump continued to be a director and sharehold#draifcompany until its sale to Vishay Interteclogiés, Inc. (NYSE: VSH) in April 2005.
Mr. Crump holds a B.S. in mechanical engineeriognf\Washington State University.
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David Reishas served as our (and, prior to the Stratasyst@igeger, as Objet’s) Chief Executive Officer sildarch 2009 and as a
director since June 2013. He also served as atdiretObjet from 2003 until the closing of the &asysObjet merger. Previously, he serve:
Chief Executive Officer and President of NUR Maainfers Ltd. (NURMF.PK), a wide format printer mdacturer that was acquired by HP,
from February 2006 to March 2008. Prior to joinMgR, Mr. Reis served as the Chief Executive Offigad President of ImagelD, an
automatic identification and data capture solupoovider, and of Scitex Vision (NASDAQ & TASE: SCjXa developer and manufacturer of
wide-format printers. Mr. Reis holds a B.A. in Ecomics and Management from the Technion/Israeltirtstiof Technology and an M.B.A.
from the University of Denver.

Edward J. Fierkowho has served as a director of our company shme&tratasys-Objet merger, also served in thatoitgfar Stratasys,
Inc. from February 2002 until the merger. Since N2893, Mr. Fierko has been President of EJF Assegia consulting firm. From March
2003 to May 2003, Mr. Fierko was Vice PresidenG& Osmonics, Inc., a manufacturer of reverse osnwater filtration devices. From
November 1999 through February 2003, he servedessdent and Chief Operating Officer of Osmonica] rom November 1998 i
September 1999 he served as Executive Vice Pregifl@smonics. From September 1987 to August 1888Fierko was President and CEO
of Ecowater International, a holding company wigle@ating companies in the water, waste and spgakss treatment industry. Prior to that,
Mr. Fierko held several management positions o\#3-gear career at General Electric Company (NYSE). He holds a B.S. in Accounting
from La Salle University.

llan Levinhas served as a director of our company since 2000.evin was appointed as President and Vice @i of the Objet board
in February 2011, in which position he remained|thée Stratasys-Objet merger. He has been invoivegnture capital and private equity
investment activity since 1997, acting as a mernobéne board of directors and as an advisor foidewariety of technology-related
companies, as well as a director for Vision Sigrteh [TLV: VISN:IT). From 2003 through 2009, he sedvas Chief Executive Officer of
CellGuide Ltd. He holds a B.A.Sc. from the Univéysif Toronto and an LL.B. from Tel Aviv University

John J. McEleneywho has served as a director of our company she&tratasy®bjet merger, served as a director of Stratasys,fiam
2007 until the Stratasys-Objet merger. He is thefxecutive Officer of Onshape Inc. a venturekeatstartp company focused on apply
modern computing to the 3D product design markeor o Onshape he was the Chief Executive of ClSudtch, which was acquired by
Verizon. He served as a director of SolidWorks ©oagion, a wholly owned subsidiary of Dassault Systs S.A. (NASDAQ: DASTY), from
June 2000 to May 2008, and also served as its Elxietutive Officer from 2001 until June 2007. MrcEleney joined SolidWorks in 1996,
serving in several capacities, including Chief @pieg Officer and Vice President, Americas SalegrRo joining SolidWorks, Mr. McEleney
held several key management positions at CAD soéhwaneer Computervision and at defense contrd&agtheon. Mr. McEleney also sen
as a director of Newforma, a privately held sofvaompany. He holds a B.S. in Mechanical Engingdriom the University of Rochester, an
M.S. in Manufacturing Engineering from Boston Unsity and an M.B.A. from Northeastern University.

Clifford H. Schwietehas been a director of our company since the Syrst@bjet merger, after having served in that seapacity for
Stratasys, Inc. from 1994 until the merger. Sin@g@® Mr. Schwieter has been the President and ailiag Director of C.H. Schwieter and
Associates, LLC, a management and financial coimgulirm; he also served in that capacity from 18@2002. From 2002 to 2009, Mr.
Schwieter was the President and Chief Executive@fbf Concise Logic, Inc., a software developmmorthpany focused on semiconductor
design tools. From July 1992 to March 1994, heestas President, Chief Executive Officer and actlireof Centric Engineering Systems,
Inc., which was engaged in the development of maéchhdesign and analysis software for computirgfeys ranging from workstations to
mainframes and massively parallel networked comgunvironments. Mr. Schwieter was Vice Presidedt@eneral Manager of the
Electronic Imaging Systems Division of the DuPoontpany (NYSE: DD) from 1986 to 1991. From 1971 $8@, Mr. Schwieter was with the
General Electric Company (NYSE: GE), where he stagVice President of GECalma Company from 1985 to 1986 and was resperfsit
that subsidiary’s worldwide business in the mectandesign and factory automation arena. He wasid@et and
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Representative Director of GE Industrial Automatibtd., a joint venture between GE and C. Itoh &@any located in Tokyo, from 1982 to
1985. He holds a B.S. in Industrial Management fthenUniversity of Cincinnati.

Ziva Patirhas served as our director since June 2013, wheewah elected as an unclassified director purs¢oaart amendment to our
amended articles that was adopted in June 2018e Fiabruary 2014, Ms. Patir serves on the boaditeftors of ELTA Systems Ltd., an
Israeli provider of defense products and servibg also serves as a member of the board of Lahiel-Aviv University, the leading provid
of executive education in Israel, a position tha bas held since 2003, and as member of the lob&ardan Vehicle Ltd., the Israeli licensee
of Avis. Ms. Patir served as the Vice Presidersaindards, Policy and Sustainability for BetteicB)an infrastructure electrical vehicles
company providing technology design and services¥atchable battery cars, a position that she freltt 2008 until May 2013. From 2008 to
2010, she served as Chair of the Board of the FSadiety Authority (RSA) in Israel. From 1996 to 200&s. Patir held the position of Director
General of the Standard Institution of Israel (SHjom 1985 to 1996, Ms. Patir served as the Dorezt the Quality and Certification Division
of Sll and held various managerial positions inltdustry and Standardization Divisions from 19G@.985. From 2004 to 2008, Ms. Patir
served as Vice President of the International Gegdion for Standardization (ISO), as well as cludithe Technical Management Board,
leading overall management of ISO technical waBO lis the world’s largest developer and publisliénternational standards. From 1998 to
2000, Ms. Patir was a member of the InternatiomettEotechnical Commission Council Board. Ms. Piatia Certified Quality Engineer and
holds a B.Sc. in Chemistry from Tel-Aviv Universiyd a M.Sc. in Chemistry/Polymer Science from\WWezmann Institute of Science.

Eyal Deshelserves as an external director of our companyapiintment to that position was effective upondlesing of the Stratasys-
Objet merger, on December 1, 2012, and was ratifjedur shareholders in February 2013. Mr. Desheteatly serves as Chief Financial
Officer of Teva Pharmaceutical Industries Ltd. (NS EVA), a global pharmaceutical and drug compamg also served in that capacity
from July 2008 to October 2013 (with the additiotité of Group Executive Vice President since 20E2om October 2013 to February 2014,
Mr. Desheh served as Acting President and Chietikee Officer of Teva. From 2000 until 2008, hevesl as Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer of Check Point Software fhaologies Ltd. (NASDAQ:CHKP), a global leading piaer of network security solutions.
From 1996 until 2000 he served as CFO of Scitexp@mation Ltd. (NASDAQ & TASE: SCIX), and from 19&til 1996, he served as deputy
CFO of Teva Pharmaceuticals Ltd. Mr. Desheh holBsfa in Economics and an M.B.A. in Finance, batbnf the Hebrew University in
Jerusalem.

Victor Leventhakerves as an external director of our companyapiintment to that position was effective upondiosing of the
Stratasys-Objet merger, on December 1, 2012, asdatdied by our shareholders in February 2013. IM~venthal has served as a consultant
to SolidWorks Corporation, a 3D CAD software compgasince 2006. From 2001 to 2006, he was a Grogeliive for Dassault Systemes
S.A. (NASDAQ: DASTY), the parent company of SolidWs, where he served on the Global Management CteeniFrom 1995 to 2001,

Mr. Leventhal was the Chief Operating Officer ofi8@/orks, where he was responsible for growinghibsiness from its inception. From 1¢
to 1995, Mr. Leventhal was the Chief Executive €Hfiof CAD Solutions, LLC, a leading reseller of 2Bd 3D CAD products, which he
helped grow from a $5 million company to a $32 imillcompany. From 1985 to 1990, he held numeroeswgie positions, including serving
as the Executive Vice President of ComputerlanelJangest computer retailer at the time, where he m@sponsible for franchise development
major account sales, marketing, training, purclgpaimd vendor relations. Prior to that time, he waldous administrative, operations,
marketing and financial positions at IBM for 18 y@aHe has also served on the boards of directd@slao, a 3D printing company,
Graphisoft, an architectural software company, 3ddExpress, a startup company in the rapid prototymdustry. Mr. Leventhal received a
B.B.A. from the University of Texas.

Erez Simhawho joined Objet in November 2011 as its Chief @fiens Officer and Chief Financial Officer, hasves as our Chief
Financial Officer and as our Chief Operating Offiflsrael) (and, since January 2014, the Chief @jrgg Officer of our entire company) since
the Stratasys-Objet merger. Previously, he sergeadoaporate Vice President and Chief Financialdeffiof Orbotech Ltd. (NASDAQ GS:
ORBK), a developer of automated optical inspectigstems and imaging solutions, from July 2009 ted&2011, prior to which he had
served in several other capacities at Orbotechtaraffiliates, including as Corporate Vice Presittfor Finance from September 2008 to June
2009, Vice President of Finance and Operationsrbbt®®ch Pacific Ltd. from April 2007 to August 2088d Vice President of Finance,
Operations and Customer Support at Orbotech Sof flay 2004 to March 2007. Prior to joining Orbdtebr. Simha served as Chief
Financial Officer of Wiseband Communications Laldeveloper of digital multi carrier power ampliidor the wireless communications
industry, from 2000 to 2004; as the general manafjamprivate company engaged in the import antlidigion of professional and technical
equipment for the building and metal industriesnfr1994 to 2000; and as the controller of Mishkarapéhlim Mortgage Bank, from
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1990 to 1994. Mr. Simha is a certified public aau@int and holds a B.A. in economics and accourgitgan M.B.A. from Tel Aviv
University.

Arrangements for Election of Directors and Membersof Management; Family Relationships

Upon the expiration of the initial two year termidéaving the Stratasys-Objet merger on Decembe142and the election of our board of
directors at an extraordinary general meeting afefolders that was held on February 3, 2015, gaer@o longer any classifications or
arrangements related to the election of our bofdirectors. Under the amendments to our articfesseociation that were adopted at that
February 2015 shareholders meeting, our board mesnalbe elected at each annual general meetingaoélisblders for a one year term (other
than our external directors, who are elected etrege years for a three year term, in accordanttetive Companies Law). For additional
information, please see “Election of Directorslem 10.B (“Memorandum and Articles of Associatipbelow. There are also no family
relationships among any directors or members oSenior management.

B. Compensation.
The following table presents all compensation tatpaid, or accrued, during the year ended DeceBihe2014 to all persons who served

as a director or as a member of senior managenent company at any time during the year. Thedaldes not include any amounts that we
paid to reimburse any of these persons for costgiiad in providing us with services during thatipe.

Salaries, Fees, Bonuse Pension,
Commissions, and Retirement
Related Benefits Paid and Other Similar
or Accrued (1) Benefits Accrued
All directors and members of senior management@sap,
consisting of 11 persor® $ 3,177,994  $ 110,10:

(1) Does not include the value attributable to stockiompgrants. For a discussion of stock option ggdntour directors and member:
senior management, see bel

(2) Comprised of the 11 directors and senior managementbers listed in the table under “Directors aadi® Managementh Item 6.2
above.

(3) This compensation amount for the year ended Dece3the2014 excludes an aggregate of $0.8 milliomaiuses that were paid
2014 in respect of services that had been perfodnedg the previous yee

Pursuant to the Companies Law, the fees payaldartdirectors and our chief executive officer regupproval by (i) the compensation
committee of our board, (ii) the board of directarsl (iii) our shareholders (in that order). Plesese “Compensation Policy and Committee” in
Item 6.C (“Board Practices”) below for further imfieation regarding the requirements under the Compdraw in connection with the
compensation of directors.

The following table sets forth the directors’ fegalary or other compensation (excluding valuétaitable to stock option grants and
excluding reimbursement for reasonable expensesridtin connection with services) that is paig@ach of our directors on an annual basis:
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Per Meeting Fee

(In
Person/

Name of Director Annual Fee/Salary Telephonic)
Elchanan Jaglor $ 420,00
S. Scott Crum) $ 441,594D
David Reis $ 992,03
Edward J. Fierk« $ 71,00( $1,500/ $25(
llan Levin $ 357,63 —
John J. McElene $ 71,50( $1,500/ $25(
Clifford H. Schweitel $ 60,75( $1,500/ $25(
Ziva Patir $ 43,90¢5) NIS3,750/ NIS2,25!
Victor Leventhal $ 49,73 NIS3,750/ NIS2,25!
Eyal Deshel $ 57,36: NIS3,750/ NIS2,25!

(1)

)

(3)

(4)

(5)

Constitutes the aggregate salary payable to Mmn@rfor all of the services that he provides to ampany, including in respect of his
roles as Chairman of the Executive Committee (apdlipusly as the Chairman of the Board) and Chiablation Officer of our
company. Our shareholders have also approved asharget of $178,740 for Mr. Crum

Constitutes salary payable in respect of the cdnguhnd director services provided by an entifjliafed with Mr. Jaglom. Does not
include Israeli value added tax, or VAT, that i®dwn the salary payable to Mr. Jaglc

Constitutes the aggregate salary (excluding VAWapée to Mr. Reis for all of the services that mevides to our company, including
respect of his role as Chief Executive Officernadl as an estimated bonus that may be paid tdRdis in respect of 2014. This total
compensation amount includes an estimated bontusdnabe paid to Mr. Reis in respect of 2014. Tdredoing bonus is subject to
further approval by our shareholders, in accordavitethe requirements of the Companies L

These amounts exclude other benefits that are gedvior by Israeli law or that are customary fariseexecutives in Israel, including
the right to use (and all related fixed and vagatists in respect of) a leased car that we prdoidér. Levin.

Does not include VAT that is due on the fees payabMs. Patir

During the year ended December 31, 2014, we grasttedt options to purchase an aggregate of 66,00Qrardinary shares to certain of

our directors and members of our senior managerirdotmation concerning those options that werentgd to our directors during 2014 is set
forth in the table below:

Number of Shares Exercise Price Expiration Date

Underlying Options per Ordinary of
Name of Director Granted Share Options
Edward J. Fierke 22,00( $ 103.3( August 8, 202(
John J. McElene 22,00( $ 103.3( August 8, 202(
Clifford H. Schweitel 22,00( $ 103.3( August 8, 202(

Members of our senior management are eligible émulses each year. The bonuses are payable upoimgnelgiectives and targets that

set annually by our Chief Executive Officer and mwpd by our compensation committee and our bodirectors, in that order. These same
corporate bodies also set the bonus targets fo€biaf Executive Officer. In accordance with a Daber 2012 amendment to the Companies
Law, we have adopted a compensation policy thatgmithe compensation of our directors and sen&ragement and which has been
approved by (i) the compensation committee of aard, (ii) the board of directors and (iii) our effaolders (in that order). Please see
“Compensation Policy and Committee” in Item 6.C ¢dd Practices”) below for further information.
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For a description of the terms of our stock opto share incentive plans, see “Share Ownershipck®ption and Share Incentive
Plans” in Item 6.E below.

Office Holder Compensation

The table below outlines the compensation actyadig to our five most highly compensated senioicefholders during or with respect to
the year ended December 31, 2014, in the discldeumeat of Regulation 21 of the Israeli Securitisgulations (Periodic and Immediate
Reports), 1970. We refer to the five individualsfidhom disclosure is provided herein as our “CosleEgecutives.”

For purposes of the table and the summary belowjraaccordance with the above mentioned securiigslations, “compensation”
includes base salary, bonuses, equity-based cormimsretirement or termination payments, beneiitd perquisites such as car, phone and
social benefits and any undertaking to provide starhpensation.

Summary Compensation Tab

Information Regarding the Covered Executivell)

Variable
Name and Principal compensation Benefit and Equity-Based
Position (?) Base Salary ®) Perquisites(4) Compensation(S) Other Total
Joe Allison, CEO of SDA $ 97,000 $ 84,000 % — 3 — $ 23530870 ¢ 2371187
Erez Simha, CFO & COt $ 328,03( $ 144,67" $ 129,75¢ $ 1,432,05! $ — $ 2,034,52
Dan Yalon, EVP Strategy,

Marketing & BD $ 246,20° $ 114,79: $ 62,017 $ 1,167,73 $ — $ 1,590,75!
David Reis, CEC $ 42654 $ 480,641 ¢ 44558  $ — % 8549: $ 1,037,23
Tal Dilian, EVP Global Produ

& Technology $ 248,45 $ 120,56 $ 37,65¢ $ 541,40 $ — $ 948,07¢

(1) All amounts reported in the table are in termsaxtd¢o the Company, as recorded in our financakstents

(2) All current executive officers listed in theébta are full-time employees or consultants of ampany. Cash compensation amounts
denominated in currencies other than the U.S. duoléae converted into U.S. dollars at the averagesersion rate for 201

(3) Amounts reported in this column refer to commissianentive and bonus payments which were paid weidipect to 201¢

(4) Amounts reported in this column include benefitd parquisites, including those mandated by appléckw. Such benefits and perquis
may include, to the extent applicable to the Coddfrecutive, payments, contributions and/or alliocet for savings funds, pension,
severance, vacation, car or car allowance, metlisatances and benefits, risk insurances (e.g,,diability, accident), convalescence
pay, , payments for social security, tax g-up payments and other benefits and perquisitesstenswith our guideline:

(5) Amounts reported in this column represent tipease recorded in our financial statements foyda ended December 31, 2014 with
respect to equity-based compensation. Assumptiotikey variables used in the calculation of suclowams are described in Note 10 to
our audited consolidated financial statements, Wwhi® included in Item 18 of this annual rep

(6) Consists of (i) $15 million, constituting a sigg bonus for Mr. Allison, and (ii) $8,530,871 nstituting a pro-rated portion of a retention
payment to Mr. Allison that we recognized in ourdincial statements during the year ended Decembe&034, each of which is payable
to Mr. Allison pursuant to the Solid Concepts asifion.

(7) This amount represents a bonus in respect b #tat is subject to approval by our shareholdeescordance with the requirements of the
Companies Law
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C. Board Practices.
Board of Directors

Under the Companies Law, the management of ounbssiis vested in our board of directors. Our bo&directors may exercise all
powers and may take all actions that are not spatiif granted to our shareholders or to managentumnt executive officers are responsible
our day-to-day management and have individual resipdities established by our board of direct@sr Chief Executive Officer is appointed
by, and serves at the discretion of, our boardrefttbrs, subject to the employment agreementieatave entered into with him. All other
executive officers are also appointed by our badidirectors, subject to the terms of any applieashployment agreements that we may ente
into with them.

Under our amended articles, our board of direatmust consist of at least seven and not more thatiréétors, including at least two
external directors required to be elected undeCthmpanies Law. Upon the expiration of the initvab year term following the Stratas@bjet
merger on December 1, 2014 and the adoption bglaneholders of amendments to our articles atxtraardinary general meeting of
shareholders that was held in February 2015, ebobrdlirectors is elected annually, at our anmygaleral meeting of shareholders (other thar
our external directors, who are elected for thregryerms every three years in accordance withettp@irements of the Companies Law). The
vote required for the election of each directohéotthan external directors) is a majority of tltig power represented at the meeting and
voting on the election proposal The current membémur board consist of the Chairman— Elchanaodadas of Febraury 19, 2015), the
Chairman of the Executive Committee—S. Scott Criagpof Febraury 19, 2015), Edward J. Fierko, llemih, John J. McEleney, Ziva Patir,
David Reis, Clifford H. Schwieter and our exterdakbctors—Eyal Desheh and Victor Leventhal. For enaformation, please see “Election of
Directors” in Item 10.B (“Memorandum and ArticleBAssociation”) below.

Our board of directors may appoint directors toviilcancies on the board, for a term of office ¢gmashe remaining period of the term of
office of the director(s) whose office(s) have bganated. Following their initial thregear term, our external directors may be electedificto
two additional three-year terms under the circumsta described below and potentially for additionatemental thregear terms if additione
requirements are met. External directors may beweuah from office only under the limited circumstaacset forth in the Companies Law. See
“—External Directors” in this Item 6.C below.

In accordance with the exemption available to fymgirivate issuers under the NASDAQ Listing Rules,do not follow the requirements
of the NASDAQ rules with regard to the process @iimating directors. Instead, we follow Israeli lawd practice, in accordance with which
our board of directors (based on the recommendafitime executive committee thereof) is authorietecommend to our shareholders
director nominees for election. Under the Compah#&s and our amended articles, nominations foratiines may also be made by any
shareholder holding at least one percent (1%) obatstanding voting power. However, any such dialdeer may make such a nomination
only if a written notice of such shareholdemtent to make such nomination (together withaterdocumentation required under the Comps
Law) has been delivered to our registered Isrd@tieowithin seven days after we publish noticeoaf upcoming annual general meeting (or
within 14 days after we publish a preliminary nicétion of an upcoming annual general meeting).

In addition to its role in making director nomirats, under the Companies Law, our board of dirsatasst determine the minimum
number of directors who are required to have acogmand financial expertise. Under applicable tatjons, a director with accounting and
financial expertise is a director who, by reasohisfor her education, professional experiencesiit] has a high level of proficiency in and
understanding of business accounting matters aaddial statements. See “—External Directors” ia ttem 6.C below. He or she must be
able to thoroughly comprehend the financial statgsef the company and initiate debate regardiegitnner in which financial information
is presented. In determining the number of directeguired to have such expertise, our board ettiirs must consider, among other things,
the type and size of our company and the scopeamgplexity of its operations. Our board of direstbas determined that our company
requires one director with such expertise.

External Directors

79



Under the Companies Law, the boards of directoofpanies whose shares are publicly traded, imgucbmpanies with shares listed
the NASDAQ Global Select Market, are required tdude at least two members who qualify as extediractors. Eyal Desheh and Victor
Leventhal serve as our external directors.

The Companies Law provides that external direataust be elected by a majority vote of the sharesgmt and voting at a shareholders
meeting, provided that either:

» the majority voted in favor of election includasmajority of the shares held by noontrolling shareholders who do not ha\
personal interest in the election of the exterir@ador (other than a personal interest not degifilom a relationship with a controlli
shareholder) that are voted at the meeting, exatpdbstentions, which we refer to as a disintedestajority; or

» the total number of shares held by non-contrgllidisinterested shareholders (as described ipréndous bullefpoint) voted again
the election of the director does not exceed twagrd (2%) of the aggregate voting rights in thenpany.

The term “controlling shareholder” is defined irtBompanies Law as a shareholder with the abdigirect the activities of the company,
other than by virtue of being an office holder.aseholder is presumed to be a controlling shademaf the shareholder holds 50% or more o
the voting rights in a company or has the rightppoint the majority of the directors of the companits general manager.

After an initial term of three years, external di@s may be reelected to serve in that capacitypao two additional three-year terms,
provided that either (i) his or her service forleaach additional term is recommended by one oersbareholders holding at least one percer
(1%) of the compang' voting rights and is approved at a shareholdeetinmg by a disinterested majority, where the totahber of shares he
by non€ontrolling, disinterested shareholders votingsiach reelection exceeds two percent (2%) of theeggdge voting rights in the compa
or (ii) his or her service for each such additioieain is recommended by the board of directorsismagproved at a shareholders meeting b
same disinterested majority required for the ihiiaction of an external director (as describeoval. The term of office for external directors
for Israeli companies traded on certain foreigrlstexchanges, including the NASDAQ Global Selectids may be extended indefinitely in
increments of additional thrgeear terms, in each case provided that the audinuttee and the board of directors of the compamfiom that,
in light of the external director’s expertise apesial contribution to the work of the board ofetitors and its committees, the reelection for
such additional period(s) is beneficial to the camyp and provided that the external director iseted subject to the same shareholder vote
requirements as if elected for the first time (asalibed above). Prior to the approval of the e of the external director at a general
shareholders’ meeting, the company’s shareholdest be informed of the term previously served by br her and of the reasons why the
board of directors and audit committee recommenideaxtension of his or her term.

If an external directorship becomes vacant ancethez fewer than two external directors on the do&directors at the time, then the
board of directors is required under the Compahég to call a shareholders’ meeting immediatelgppoint a replacement external director.

Each committee of the board of directors that égescthe powers of the board of directors mustuhelat least one external director,
except that the audit committee and compensatiomutiee must include all external directors thetvieg on the board of directors. Under
Companies Law, external directors of a companypawvhibited from receiving, directly or indirectlsgny compensation from the company o
than for their services as external directors pamsto applicable regulations. Compensation ofdeareal director is determined prior to his or
her appointment and may not be changed duringrtigioterm subject to certain exceptions.

The Companies Law provides that a person is ndifmgebto serve as an external director if (i) fherson is a relative of the controlling
shareholder of the company, or (ii) if that persomis or her relative, partner, employer, anoffemson to whom he or she was directly or
indirectly subject, or any entity under the persacontrol, has or had, during the two years prexetlie date of appointment as an external
director: (a) any affiliation or other prohibiteelationship with the company or, with any persormtity controlling the company of a relative
of such person, with any entity controlled by odencommon control with the company; or (b) in ¢tlase of a company with no controlling
shareholder, any affiliation or other prohibitetht®nship with a person serving as chairman ofab&rd, chief executive officer, a substantial
shareholder or the most senior office holder indtvapany’s finance department.

80



The term “relative” is defined as a spouse, sihlpgrent, grandparent or descendant; spouse’sgijlgarent or descendant; and the spours
of each of the foregoing persons. The term affdiagind the similar types of prohibited relatiopshinclude (subject to certain exemptions):

« an employment relationship;
« abusiness or professional relationship even ifhnmantained on a regular basis (excluding insigaifit relationships);
« control; and

« service as an office holder, excluding service dsexctor in a private company prior to the firffieoing of its shares to the public if
such director was appointed as a director of theafgr company in order to serve as an externatirdollowing the public offering

The term “office holder” is defined under the Comijas Law as a director, general manager, chieflessimanager, deputy general
manager, vice general manager, other manager Igiieediordinate to the general manager or any qgteeson assuming the responsibilities of
any of these positions, regardless of that perditfes

In addition, no person may serve as an externattr if that person’s position or professionabter activities create, or may create, a
conflict of interest with that person’s responsttak as a director or otherwise interfere withttherson’s ability to serve as an external directo
or if the person is an employee of the Israel SgesrAuthority or of an Israeli stock exchangepérson may furthermore not continue to serv
as an external director if he or she received tiveindirect compensation from the company fordriier role as a director. This prohibition
does not apply to compensation paid or given iatance with Companies Law regulations or amouai pursuant to indemnification
and/or exculpation contracts or commitments andranrsce coverage. Following the termination of atemsal director’s service on a board of
directors, such former external director and hiserspouse and children may not be provided atdireindirect benefit by the company, its
controlling shareholder or any entity under itstcolfing shareholder’s control. This includes engagnt as an executive officer or director of
the company or a company controlled by its conitrglshareholder or employment by, or provisionef/&es to, any such company for
consideration, either directly or indirectly, inding through a corporation controlled by the forragternal director. This restriction extends
a period of two years with regard to the formeeaxal director and his or her spouse or child amehe year with respect to other relatives of
the former external director.

If at the time at which an external director is aijpped all members of the board of directors nbeowise affiliated with the company are
of the same gender, the external director musf lteecother gender. A director of one company matybe appointed as an external director of
another company if a director of the other compiargcting as an external director of the first campat such time.

According to regulations promulgated under the Camnigs Law, a person may be appointed as an exwireator only if he or she has
professional qualifications or if he or she hasoaating and financial expertise (each, as defireddvg). In addition, at least one of the externa
directors must be determined by our board of dimscto have accounting and financial expertise. élaw, if at least one of our other directors
(i) meets the independence requirements underxbledige Act, (i) meets the standards of the NASDA€ing Rules for membership on the
audit committee and (iii) has accounting and finahexpertise as defined under Israeli law, theithee of our external directors is required to
possess accounting and financial expertise asdermpth possess other requisite professional gqaidns.

A director with accounting and financial expertis@ director who, due to his or her educationgeignce and skills, possesses an
expertise in, and an understanding of, financial arcounting matters and financial statementsjdéh & manner which allows him or her to
understand the financial statements of the compandyinitiate a discussion about the presentatidmahcial data. A director is deemed to
have professional qualifications if he or she hasaf (i) an academic degree in economics, businessgagement, accounting, law or public
service, (ii) an academic or other degree or hagpteted other higher education, all in the fieldakiness of the company or relevant for
his/her position, or (iii) at least five years ofperience as either a senior managing officer éncitimpany’s line of business with a significant
volume of business, a public office or a senioiitpmsin the company’s main line of business.

Our board of directors has determined that EyahBk$as accounting and financial expertise ando¥ictventhal possesses professional
qualifications as required under the Companies Law.

Board Committee:
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Audit Committet

Under the Companies Law, the board of directors pfiblic company must appoint an audit committée dudit committee must consist
of at least three directors, including all of theéegnal directors, one of whom must serve as ctairof the committee. The audit committee

may not include the chairman of the board, or angctor employed by or otherwise providing serviteghe company or to a controlling
shareholder or any entity controlled by a contnglishareholder.

Under the Companies Law, the audit committee afldiply traded company must consist of a majorityeaffiliated directors. An
“unaffiliated director” is defined as either an exxtal director or as a director who meets the ¥dlhg criteria:

« he or she meets the qualifications for being apgpdias an external director, except for (i) theunegment that the director be an Isr
resident (which does not apply to companies sucdueswhose securities have been offered outsitiraél or are listed outside of
Israel) and (ii) the requirement for accounting éindncial expertise or professional qualificatipasd

« he or she has not served as a director of the amyrfpa a period exceeding nine consecutive yearstlis purpose, a break of less
than two years in the service shall not be deeméatérrupt the continuation of the servi

The members of our audit committee consist of EdwlaiFierko, along with our two external directdviessrs. Desheh (who serves as
chairman of the audit committee) and Leventhal. Ghard of directors has determined that each ofkde&ierko, Desheh and Leventhal m
the independence requirements set forth in théngifRules of the NASDAQ Stock Market and in RuleA1® under the Exchange Act, as well
as the independence criteria under the Companies La

Our board of directors has determined that Mr. Basfualifies as an audit committee financial ex@tdefined under Item 16A of the
SEC’s Form 20-F, and has the requisite financiphsstication set forth in the NASDAQ rules and riagions.

Our board of directors has adopted an audit coramitharter that sets forth the responsibilitiehefaudit committee consistent with the

rules of the SEC and the Listing Rules of the NASD&tock Market, as well as the requirements fohsimnmittee under the Companies
Law, including the following:

« oversight of our independent registered public anting firm and recommending the engagement, cosgi@m or termination of
engagement of our independent registered publisuating firm to the board of directors in accordamgth Israeli law:

« recommending the engagement or termination of énsgm filling the office of our internal auditomé

« recommending the terms of audit and non-audit sesvprovided by the independent registered pubtioanting firm for preapprova
by our board of director:

Our audit committee provides assistance to ourcbofdirectors in fulfilling its legal and fiducigrobligations in matters involving our
accounting, auditing, financial reporting, intersahtrol and legal compliance functions by pre-apprg the services performed by our
independent accountants and reviewing their repegarding our accounting practices and systenmg@fal control over financial reporting.
Our audit committee also oversees the audit effirtair independent accountants and takes thosmadhat it deems necessary to satisfy
itself that the accountants are independent of gemant.

Under the Companies Law, our audit committee ipaasible for (i) determining whether there are ceficies in the business
management practices of our company, includingirsaltation with our internal auditor or the indegdent auditor, and making
recommendations to the board of directors to impmswch practices, (ii) determining whether to apercertain related party transactions
(including transactions in which an office holdassta personal interest and whether such transastextraordinary) (see “—Approval of
related party transactions under Israeli Law” belowhis Item 6.C), (iii) determining standards gralicies for determining whether a
transaction with a controlling shareholder or asection in which a controlling shareholder hagmspnal interest is deemed insignificant or
not and the approval requirements (including, piaéy, the approval of the audit committee) faarisactions that are not insignificant
including the types of transactions that are nsiginificant, (iv) where the board of directors apps the working plan of the internal auditor,
to examine such working plan before its submission
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the board and propose amendments thereto, (v) ekagrour internal controls and internal auditor&formance, including whether the
internal auditor has sufficient resources and ttmldispose of its responsibilities, (vi) examinithg scope of our auditor’'s work and
compensation and submitting a recommendation \egpect thereto to our board of directors or shadens, depending on which of them is
considering the appointment of our auditor and @sitablishing procedures for the handling of elygés’ complaints as to the management o
our business and the protection to be providedi¢h €mployees. Our audit committee may not appaovaction or a related party transaction,
or take any other action required under the Congsalnaw, unless at the time of approval a majoriitthe committee’s members are present,
which majority consists of unaffiliated directoreiuding at least one external director.

Executive Committe

Upon the closing of the merger, our board of doechppointed an executive committee. The rolékisfcommittee are (i) to oversee the
implementation of the business strategy of our comypsubject to board approval for matters outsidée ordinary course of business (as is
required under the Companies Law), and (ii) to eisersuch other duties as the board may resolwe firne to time. The members of the
executive committee consist of Messrs. S. Scottpruwho serves as chairman of the executive core@jiElchanan Jaglom, John McEleney,
Eyal Desheh and llan Levin. Mr. David Reis, by wirtof his role as our Chief Executive Officer, rin an observer capacity on the
committee.
Compensation Policy and Committee

Under a December 2012 amendment to the Companiesvia have appointed a compensation committee stathleshed a policy
regarding the terms of engagement of office holdara compensation policy. Such compensation pelias set by our board, after
considering the recommendations of our newly-agpdicompensation committee, and was approved bglareholders in September 2013.

The compensation policy serves as the basis fasides concerning the financial terms of employnmmgngagement of our office
holders, including exculpation, insurance, indeiation or any monetary payment or obligation ofrpant in respect of employment or
engagement. The compensation policy also relatesrtain factors, including advancement of our cibjes, our business and our long-term
strategy, and creation of appropriate incentivegkecutives. It also considers, among other thingsrisk management, size and the nature «
our operations. The compensation policy furthernommesiders the following additional factors:

« the knowledge, skills, expertise and accomplishsiehthe relevant director or executive;

« the director’s or executive’s roles and responisiéd and prior compensation agreements with hirnesr

- the relationship between the terms offered andtteeage compensation of the other employees of@mupany, including those (if
any) employed through manpower compar

« the impact of disparities in salary upon work rielaships in our company;

« the possibility of reducing variable compensatiotha discretion of the board of directors; andphbesibility of setting a limit on the
exercise value of ncash variable compensation; ¢

« asto severance compensation, the period of sesVitte director or executive, the terms of hikier compensation during such
service period, our company’s performance durirag greriod of service, the person’s contributiondods our compang’achievemer
of its goals and the maximization of its profitadahe circumstances under which the person isrigaaur company

The compensation policy also includes the followimipciples:

« the link between variable compensation and longreerformance and measurable criteria;

« the relationship between variable and fixed comagms, and the ceiling for the value of variablengensation;

- the conditions under which a director or executivaild be required to repay compensation paid todnitmer if it was later shown th
the data upon which such compensation was basetha@zurate and was required to be restated ifimamcial statements; ar

« the minimum holding or vesting period for varialgeuity-based compensation.
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The compensation policy must also consider appatgpincentives from a long-term perspective andimar limits for severance
compensation.

Under the December 2012 amendment to the Comphawesour compensation committee is responsibledoommending the
compensation policy to our board of directors ferapproval (and subsequent approval by our shatets) and is charged with duties related
to the compensation policy and to the compensatiaur office holders as well as functions relateépproval of the terms of engagement of
office holders, including:

« recommending whether our compensation policy shooidinue in effect, if the thecudrrent policy has a term of greater than thres
years (approval of either a new compensation paiche continuation of an existing compensatiolicganust in any case occ
every three years

« recommending to our board periodic updates to dmepensation policy;
« assessing implementation of the compensation padiogt

« determining whether the compensation terms of ktief @xecutive officer of our company need not baulght to approval of the
shareholders (under special circumstanc

The compensation committee must consist of at lbasé (3) members, including all of our externiagctors. Each remaining
compensation committee member must be a directosbompensation does not exceed an amount thabenggid to an external director.
The compensation committee is subject to the sapmep@nies Law restrictions as the audit committe® é8) committee membership and (b)
who may not be present during committee delibenat{@s described under “—Approval of Related Pargnsactions Under Israeli Law—
Fiduciary Duties of Directors and Executive OffigerDisclosure of Personal Interests of an Officeddd! below).

The NASDAQ Listing Rules also require that the cemgation of the chief executive officer and allestbxecutive officers of our
company be determined, or be recommended to threl fmadetermination, either by a majority of timelépendent directors, or by a
compensation committee consisting solely of indepandirectors. We have opted to follow home couptactice (in keeping with the
Companies Law requirements described above) focompensation committee in lieu of these NASDAQuiegments, given that the two sets
of requirements are not identical. See Item 16.@igfannual report (“Corporate Governance”) below.

We appointed our compensation committee in mid-20h& committee consists of Victor Leventhal, agsichan, Eyal Desheh and Ziva
Patir. After the compensation committee recommeraggmtoval of our compensation policy, our boardioéctors approved it in August 2013
and our shareholders approved it on SeptemberQL3. 2
Nominating committe

Our board of directors does not currently haveminating committee, as director nominations are ériacaccordance with the terms of
our articles, as described in “—Board of Directoabove. We rely upon the exemption available teifpr private issuers under the Listing
Rules of the NASDAQ Stock Market from the NASDAGtIhg requirements related to independent diremtersight of nominations to our
board of directors and the adoption of a formattemi charter or board resolution addressing theimations process. Also see Item 16.G
“Corporate Governance” below.

Internal Auditor

Under the Companies Law, the board of directomnolisraeli public company must appoint an inteenalitor recommended by the audit
committee and nominated by the board of directnsinternal auditor may not be:

« aperson (or a relative of a person) who holds rtttae 5% of the company’s outstanding shares dongaights;

» aperson (or a relative of a person) who has theepto appoint a director or the general managén®tompany;
- an office holder (including a director) of the ccany (or a relative thereof); or

« a member of the company’s independent accounting fir anyone on his or her behalf.

The role of the internal auditor is to examine, amother things, our compliance with applicable &vd orderly business procedures.
Moshe Cohen of Chaikin Cohen Rubin & Co. has seasdur internal auditor since his appointmentatffe upon the Stratasy@bjet mergetr
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Approval of Related Party Transactions Under Israeil Law
Fiduciary Duties of Directors and Executive Officer

The Companies Law codifies the fiduciary dutieg tiffice holders owe to a company. Each persoadig the table under Item 6.A
“Directors and Senior Management” is an office leoldnder the Companies Law.

An office holder’s fiduciary duties consist of atdwf care and a duty of loyalty. The duty of cegquires an office holder to act with the
level of care with which a reasonable office holiaethe same position would have acted under theesarcumstances. The duty of loyalty
requires that an office holder act in good faitld anthe best interests of the company. The dutyaoé includes a duty to use reasonable meat
to obtain:

« information on the advisability of a given actiombght for his or her approval or performed byuwerbf his or her position; and
« all other important information pertaining to thesdions.

The duty of loyalty requires an office holder ta acgood faith and for the benefit of the compaauyd includes a duty to:

- refrain from any conflict of interest between tregfprmance of his or her duties to the companyrasar her other duties or personal
affairs;

« refrain from any activity that is competitive withhe company;
« refrain from exploiting any business opportunitytteé company to receive a personal gain for hintelferself or others; and

« disclose to the company any information or documegiaaiting to the company’s affairs which the adflwolder received as a result of
his orher position as an office holdt

Disclosure of Personal Interests of an Office Hol

The Companies Law requires that an office holdenptly disclose to the board of directors any peasinterest that he or she may have
and all related material information known to himher and any documents concerning any existimraposed transaction with the company.
An interested office holdes’disclosure must be made promptly and in any evemdter than the first meeting of the board oécliors at whicl
the transaction is considered. A “personal intériestudes an interest of any person in an actamgaction of a company, including a persona
interest of one’s relative or of a corporate bauyhich such person or a relative of such pers@n5% or greater shareholder, director or
general manager or in which he or she has the toglppoint at least one director or the generaiagar, but excluding a personal interest
stemming from one’s ownership of shares in the camgpA personal interest furthermore includes thiespnal interest of a person for whom
the office holder holds a voting proxy or the irgrof the office holder with respect to his or ete on behalf of the shareholder for whom he
or she holds a proxy even if such shareholderf itsed no personal interest in the approval of tiagten. An office holder is not, however,
obliged to disclose a personal interest if it desigolely from the personal interest of his orrbative in a transaction that is not considered ai
extraordinary transaction. Under the Companies laaw'extraordinary transaction” is defined as ahthe following:

« atransaction other than in the ordinary courdausiness;
« atransaction that is not on market terms; or
« atransaction that may have a material impact congpany’s profitability, assets or liabilities.

If it is determined that an office holder has asp@@al interest in a transaction, approval by trerdbof directors is required for the
transaction, unless the company’s articles of aason provide for a different method of approvialirther, so long as an office holder has
disclosed his or her personal interest in a traiwache board of directors may approve an advipthe office holder that would otherwise be
deemed a breach of duty of loyalty. However, a camypmay not approve a transaction or action thatherse to the comparsyinterest or th:
is not performed by the office holder in good faitpproval first by the company’s audit committeelasubsequently by the board of directors
is required for an extraordinary transaction withodfice holder. Compensation of, or an undertakinmdemnify or insure, an office holder,
requires approval by the compensation committeebdard of directors and, in certain cases (faradars, the chief executive officer, and any
executive officer whose compensation terms do anfarm to the then-existing compensation policy shareholders, in that order.
Compensation of an individual office holder, indluglthe chief executive officer (but excluding aeditor), that does not conform to the
company’s compensation policy may be adopted uspecial circumstances despite failure to obtaimedt@der approval if,
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following the relevant shareholder vote, the congadion committee followed by the board once agppr@ves the compensation, based on
renewed and specific analysis of relevant factors.

Generally, a person who has a personal interestiatter which is considered at a meeting of tterdof directors, the audit committee
compensation committee may not be present at snodesing or vote on that matter unless a majofithe board, audit committee or
compensation committee (as appropriate) has apargtderest in the matter, or unless the chairofahe board, audit committee or
compensation committee (as appropriate) deterntivegshe or she should be present in order to ptélsertiransaction that is subject to
approval. If a majority of the members of the boanadit committee or compensation committee haarsomal interest in the approval of a
transaction, then all directors may participateigtussions of the board of directors, audit corrgmibr compensation committee on such
transaction and the voting on approval thereof shareholder approval is also required for suatstaation.

Disclosure of Personal Interests of Controlling 8telders

Pursuant to Israeli law, the disclosure requiremesgarding personal interests that apply to direcind executive officers also apply to a
controlling shareholder of a public company. In thatext of a transaction involving a shareholdgehe company, a controlling shareholder
also includes any shareholder who holds 25% or robtiee voting rights if no other shareholder hatasre than 50% of the voting rights. Two
or more shareholders with a personal interesterafiproval of the same transaction are deemed ashwyle shareholder and may be deenr
controlling shareholder for the purpose of apprg\woch transaction. Extraordinary transactions wittontrolling shareholder or in which a
controlling shareholder has a personal interest, toansaction with a controlling shareholder ardni her relative, directly or indirectly, require
the approval of the audit committee, the boardiaors and the shareholders of the company andrder. In addition, the shareholder
approval must fulfill one of the following requiremts:

« adisinterested majority; or
- the votes of shareholders who have no personakstten the transaction and who are present aridgdh person, by proxy or by
voting deed at the meeting, and who vote agaimstrdnsaction may not represent more than two pe(2&6) of the voting rights of
the company
To the extent that any such transaction with aredittg shareholder is for a period extending beytiree years, approval is required o
every three years, unless the audit committee miétes that the duration of the transaction is reable given the circumstances related
thereto.

The engagement of a controlling shareholder adfare dolder or employee requires the same appsoaglare described immediately
above, except that the approval of the compensatiommittee, rather than the audit committee, isiireql.

Shareholder Duties

Pursuant to the Companies Law, a shareholder datyao act in good faith and in a customary manoaard the company and other
shareholders and to refrain from abusing his omplogrer in the company, including, among other thjrg voting at the general meeting of
shareholders and at class shareholder meetingsesipiect to the following matters:

« an amendment to the company’s articles of assoaiati

« anincrease of the company’s authorized shareatapit

« amerger; or

« the approval of interested party transactions atsl @f office holders that require shareholder apatk.

In addition, a shareholder also has a generaltdutgfrain from discriminating against other shaildirs.

In addition, certain shareholders have a duty iohéss toward the company. These shareholdersd@auny controlling shareholder, any
shareholder who knows that it has the power tordete the outcome of a shareholder vote or a sbédehclass vote and any shareholder
has the power to appoint or to prevent the appa@ntrof an office holder of the company or other potwards the company. The Companie:
Law does not define the substance of this dutyiohéss, except to state that the remedies geyeradilable upon a breach of contract will

also apply in the event of a breach of the dutgdiowith fairness.
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Exculpation, Insurance and Indemnification of Diredors and Officers

Under the Companies Law, a company may not exaipatffice holder from liability for a breach dtduty of loyalty. An Israeli
company may exculpate an office holder in advanma fliability to the company, in whole or in paidr damages caused to the company as &
result of a breach of duty of care but only if aysion authorizing such exculpation is insertedtsrarticles of association. Our amended
articles include such a provision. The company matyexculpate in advance a director from liabiéitysing out of a prohibited dividend or
distribution to shareholders.

Under the Companies Law, a company may indemnifgfice holder in respect of the following liabis and expenses incurred for acts
performed by him or her as an office holder, eiiheadvance of an event or following an event, pied its articles of association include a
provision authorizing such indemnification:

financial liability incurred by or imposed on him loer in favor of another person pursuant to afoelgt, including a settlement or
arbitrator’'s award approved by a court. Howeveanifundertaking to indemnify an office holder wigispect to such liability is
provided in advance, then such an undertaking tmufitnited to events which, in the opinion of thealbd of directors, can be foreseen
based on the company’s activities when the undegaio indemnify is given, and to an amount or adow to criteria determined by
the board of directors as reasonable under tharostances, and such undertaking shall detail tbeeabentioned foreseen events anc
amount or criteria

reasonable litigation expenses, including attornees, incurred by the office holder as a restitroinvestigation or proceeding
instituted against him or her by an authority auttes to conduct such investigation or proceedprgyided that (i) no indictment was
filed against such office holder as a result ofhsimwestigation or proceeding; and (ii) no finamdiability was imposed upon him or
her as a substitute for the criminal proceeding essult of such investigation or proceeding osui¢h financial liability was imposed,
it was imposed with respect to an offense that do¢sequire proof of criminal intent; ai

reasonable litigation expenses, including attornfaes, incurred by the office holder or imposedabgourt in proceedings instituted
against him or her by the company, on its behalfyoa third party, or in connection with criminaioceedings in which the office
holder was acquitted, or as a result of a convictio an offense that does not require proof aharal intent.

Under the Companies Law, a company may insure figedfolder against the following liabilities inged for acts performed by him or
her as an office holder if and to the extent predith the company’s articles of association:

a breach of the duty of loyalty to the companyvpted that the office holder acted in good faitldl ésad a reasonable basis to believe
that the act would not harm the compa

a breach of duty of care to the company or to @ tharty, to the extent such a breach arises othteofegligent conduct of the office
holder; anc

a financial liability imposed on the office holdarfavor of a third party.

Under the Companies Law, a company may not indemexfculpate or insure an office holder against @fiye following:

a breach of fiduciary duty, except for indemnifioatand insurance for a breach of the duty of lgyal the company to the extent that
the office holder acted in good faith and had soeable basis to believe that the act would nqugdiee the company

a breach of duty of care committed intentionallyexklessly, excluding a breach arising out ofrtagligent conduct of the office
holder;

an act or omission committed with intent to deiliegal personal benefit; or

a fine or forfeit levied against the office holder.

Under the Companies Law, exculpation, indemnifaratnd insurance of office holders must be appriéyedur compensation committee
and our board of directors and, with respect tedars or controlling shareholders, their relatiged third parties in which such controlling
shareholders have a personal interest, also bstttaeholders. See “—Approval of Related Party Taeatisns Under Israeli Law—Fiduciary
Duties of Directors and Executive Officers” abowethis Item 6.C.
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Our amended articles permit us to exculpate, indigmamd insure our office holders to the fullestest permitted or to be permitted by
Companies Law.

We have obtained directors and officers liabilitgurance for the benefit of our office holders ardnd to continue to maintain such
coverage and pay all premiums thereunder to thestuéxtent permitted by the Companies Law. Intiatti we have entered into agreements
with each of our office holders undertaking to imohéfy them to the fullest extent permitted by Isréswv. Furthermore, until the sixth
anniversary of the effective time of the Strata€jget merger, we are covering the directors ande® of Stratasys, Inc. and its subsidiaries
with respect to acts or omissions occurring priothie effective time of the merger. The limitsnpterand conditions of this coverage are at leas
as favorable as the limits, terms and conditionthiénpolicy that Stratasys, Inc. maintained ughdffective time of the Stratas@bjet merge

Directors’ Service Contracts

For a description of service contracts that we hentered into with our directors that provide fenbfits upon termination of employment
or other service, please see Item 7.B, “RelatetiyHaansactions— Employment and Consulting Agreeseiith Directors and Executive
Officers” below.

D. Employees

The number of our full-time equivalent employeey] #éhe distribution of employees (i) geographicalhd (ii) within the divisions of our
company, in each case as of December 31, 2014,&01 2012 are set forth in the two tables below.

Number of full-time equivalent employees
by region as of December :

Region 2014 2013 2012

North America 2,06¢ 1,15t 64t
Israel 50¢ 41% 34z
Europe 12¢ 94 70
Asia Pacific 19¢ 14kt 83
Latin America 12 12 15
Total 2,90¢ 1,81¢ 1,15¢

Number of full-time equivalent employees
by function as of December 2

Division 2014 2013 2012

Operations and suppc 1,17¢ 541 36¢
Research and developme 517 267 22¢
Customer servic 19¢ 21¢ 161
Sales and marketir 60C 51t 24¢
General and administrative 412 28C 14¢
Total 2,90¢ 1,81¢ 1,15¢

During the years covered by the above tables, di@adi employ a significant number of temporary emgpks.

The large increase in the size of our workforc20t3 was primarily due to our consummation of thekbtBot transaction in August 20
as a result of which we gained a significant nundfemmployees of MakerBot. The large increase éndize of our workforce in 2014 was
primarily due to our acquisition of Solid Concegt®rvest Technologies, GrabCAD, and other companies

While none of our employees is party to a collextiargaining agreement, certain provisions of tilective bargaining agreements
between the Histadrut (General Federation of Labdsrael) and the Coordination Bureau of Econofiiganizations (including the
Industrialists’ Associations) are applicable to emiployees in Israel by order of the Israel Minigif Labor. These provisions primarily
concern the length of the workday, minimum dailyges for professional workers, pension fund ben#ditall employees, insurance for work-
related accidents, procedures for dismissing enggleydetermination of severance pay and other tionsliof employment. We generally
provide our employees with benefits and workingditions beyond the required minimums.
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We have never experienced any employment-relateld stoppages. We believe that our relationship withemployees is good.
The employees of our subsidiaries are subjectdal labor laws and regulations that vary from cogi country.
E. Share Ownership.

The following table lists, as of February 1, 20ttls number of our ordinary shares owned, and stptikns held, by each of our directors
and members of our senior management:

Shares of Stratasy<% Stratasys stock options(®)

Percent of Number held 4
outstanding

Number of shares
shares beneficially Not Exercise
beneficially Exercisable exercisable price Expiration
Name owned @ owned @ within 60 days within 60 days per share date
Elchanan Jaglor See table it
Chairman of the Board ltem7. A
“major
Shareholders”
below.
S. Scott Crum
Chairman of the Executive Commit 315,57 * 14,00 — % 9.9( June 3, 201
16,00( — $ 18.2¢ February 12, 201
18,00( — $ 25.5( August 29, 201
7,20( 10,80( $ 46.81 June 18, 201
43,74¢ 56,25 $ 82.1¢ June 21, 20z
David Reis
Chief Executive Officer and Direct 347,49¢ * 172,43¢ — $ 6.52 December 31, 20:
Edward J. Fierk 90,5746) * 15,00¢ —  $ 182 February 12, 201
Director 18,00( — $ 25.5( August 29, 201
7,20C 10,80( $ 46.87 June 18, 201
9,62t 12,37¢ $ 82.1¢ June 21, 20z
— 22,00( $ 103.3( August 8, 202
llan Levin 124,84« * 100,06: — $ 7.82 December 31, 20:
Director 24,78: — $ 2.21 December 31, 20:
John J. McElene 4,12¢ * — 10,80( $ 46.8 June 18, 201
Director 4,12¢ 12,37t $ 82.1¢ June 21, 20z
— 22,00( $ 103.3( August 8, 202
Clifford H. Schwietel 14,087 * 3,60( 10,80( $ 46.8 June 18, 201
Director 9,62°¢ 12,37t $ 82.1¢ June 21, 20z
— 22,00( $ 103.3( August 8, 202
Ziva Patir 13,190 * 12,94: 16,64( $ 82.1¢ June 21, 20z
Director
Eyal Deshel
Director 11,86¢ * 11,86¢ 5,39« $ 7.82 December 1, 20:
Victor Leventhal
Director 4,662 * 4,662 14,51° $ 74.9¢ December 1, 20:
Erez Simhe
Chief Financial Officei® * * * * * *

* Constitutes less than 1% of our outstanding sh

(1) All of our shares (including shares held by direstand members of senior management) have identitialg rights.
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(2 In accordance with Rule 13d-3 under the Exchangethe number of shares and the percentages shwvimdividual persons or groups
include any ordinary shares underlying stock ogtibeld by such person or group that were exerasaithin 60 days of February 1,
2015 and that are also reflected in the columeditStratasys stock options — Number held — Exaldis within 60 days.” Further in
keeping with such Rule 13d-3, the computation a€@etage ownership is based upon 50,923g8dhary shares outstanding at Febrt
1, 2015, plus such number of ordinary shares ds geison or group (but not any other person orgyrbad the right to receive upon the
exercise of stock options within 60 days ther

(3  For a description of Stratasys’ stock option plaslsase see “Stock Option and Share Incentive Piankis Item below. All options
granted under such plans have been granted wigtayument of any cash consideration therefor by thatges thereo

(4)  Each stock option is exercisable for one ordinhwrs.

(5)  Includes 196,294 ordinary shares owned of recorillbyCrumy’s wife.
(6) Includes 40,750 ordinary shares held jointly by Fierko and his wife
(1) Includes 255 ordinary shares held by Ms. I's husband

(8) Because Mr. Simha beneficially owns less than 1%unfoutstanding ordinary shares and his benefiziasiership has not previously
been disclosed to our shareholders or otherwiseemahlic, it is being omitted from this annual regaursuant to an allowance provided
by the SE(s Form 2\-F.

Stock Option and Share Incentive Plans

The following sets forth certain information witkspect to our current stock option and share in@ptans. The following description is
only a summary of the plans and is qualified ireitsirety by reference to the full text of the @awhich are exhibits to this annual report.

Upon the expiration of our stock option and shasentive plans, no further grants may be made tineler, although any existing awards
will continue in full force in accordance with tterms under which they were granted.

Amended and Restated 2004 Omnibus Stock OptioReastticted Stock Incentive Pl

Our Amended and Restated 2004 Omnibus Stock OptidrRestricted Stock Incentive Plan, or the 20@h Rihich was adopted by our
board of directors on August 15, 2004 and amendddestated by the board of directors on July 9,728nd again on May 30, 2011, provides
for the grant of options, restricted shares or osiare-based awards to our and our subsidiagepective directors, employees, officers, of
holders, subcontractors and consultants. Awardsruihé 2004 Plan may be granted until August 18426en years from the date on which
2004 Plan was originally adopted by the board éators.

Our 2004 Plan is administered by our board of dinesg which shall determine, subject to Israeli,lttve grantees of awards and various
terms of the grant. The 2004 Plan provides for tingroptions in compliance with Section 102 of theome Tax Ordinance, 1961, to which
refer as the Tax Ordinance.

Options granted under the 2004 Plan to Israeli eygas have been granted under the capital gatlsdfeSection 102 of the Tax
Ordinance. In order to comply with the terms of tlapital gains track, all options that have beemtgd under the 2004 Plan (grants were not
made until the 2006 fiscal year) pursuant and stittjethe provisions of Section 102 of the Tax @adgiice, as well as the shares issued upon
exercise of these options and other shares receivegkquently following any realization of rightgsharespect to such options, such as a resul
of a share dividend or share split, are grantetlttastee for the benefit of the relevant emplogéector or officer and are held by the trustee
for at least two years after the date of grant.

Unless otherwise provided by our board of diregtoptions granted under the 2004 Plan vest oveuayear period that commences on
the date of grant such that 25% vest after one gdran additional 6.25% vest at the end of eabbkesjuent three-month period over the
following 36 months. Unless a shorter term is sedbr board with respect to a specific award, opgtjmther than certain incentive share
options, expire 10 years from the grant date. Iticershare options granted to a person holding rtiae 10% of our voting power expire
within five years from the date of the grant. Afitmns that have been granted to date under thé PG expire on December 31, 2017.
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If we terminate a grantee’s employment or servicechuse, all of the grantee’s vested and unvegigdns expire on the date of
termination. If a grantee’s employment or servemrninates due to death, disability, or retirem#rg,grantees vested options may be exerci
by him or her, or by his or her estate (as the ozgbe), for one year, following the death or by, or three months following retirement.

a grantee’s service or other relationship to oungany terminates for any other reason, the grantgeexercise his or her vested options until
the 90th day after the date of such terminatiors(mh different period as our board shall presgrilmeaddition to the shares reserved under th
2004 Plan, any options granted under the 2004 tRktrare terminated or forfeited for any reasomauit having been exercised, return to the
pool under the plan and enlarge the reserved shades the plan. Shares subject to options grantddr the 2004 Plan that terminate or are
forfeited for any reason without having been exaadiwill be added to the pool of shares availatdl@ivards under our 2012 Omnibus Equity
Incentive Plan, or the 2012 Plan, and enlargedberved shares thereunder.

In the event of a merger or consolidation of ounpany, or sale of all or substantially all of ohaees or assets, then without the consent
of the option holder, the board may but is not nexglito (i) use its best efforts to cause that amgtanding award shall be assumed or an
equivalent award shall be substituted by such ssorecorporation or (i) in case the successoraratipn refuses to assume or substitute the
award (a) provide the grantee with the option tereise the award as to all or part of the sharéb)arancel the option against payment to the
grantee in an amount equal to the fair market vafusich shares as reflected under the terms of miecger or sale minus the exercise price
per share for each such share. Notwithstandinfptiegoing, the board may upon such event amenermitate the terms of any award,
including conferring the right to purchase any otbecurity or asset that the board shall deemoaddaith, as appropriate.

We will not be making any further awards under2684 Plan. A total of 775,000 ordinary shares ssaable upon exercise of options 1
are vested and currently exercisable under this. pla

2012 Omnibus Equity Incentive Plan

Our 2012 Omnibus Equity Incentive Plan, which beeafiective at the effective time of the Strata®set merger, provides for the grant
of options, restricted shares, restricted shares amd other share-based awards to our and ouidgariess’ respective directors, employees,
officers, consultants, and advisors and to anyrgtkeson whose services are considered valualglertoompany or any of our affiliates.
Following the approval of the 2012 Plan by thedtirtax authorities, we will only grant options ather equity incentive awards under the 2
Plan, although previouslgranted options and awards will continue to be goae by the 2004 Plan. Under the 2012 Plan, there &,500,00!
ordinary shares originally reserved for issuano@enof which was granted prior to the effectiverafsthe merger. Upon the adoption of an
amendment to the 2012 Plan at our extraordinargig@@meeting of shareholders in February 2013rékerved pool under the plan consisted
of 4,000,000 shares, which was to be automati@adiseased annually on January 1 (beginning on Jariy2014) by a number of ordinary
shares equal to the lower of (i) 500,000 shardgestito adjustment due to certain changes as gedviinder the 2012 Plan, and (ii) a number
of shares determined by our board of directorsg ifletermined prior to the January 1 on which iieesiase will occur. Pursuant to that
provision, on each of January 1, 2014 and Janua2@15, the pool of shares under the 2012 Planewamsnatically increased by 500,000
shares, to 4,500,000 shares and 5,000,000 shtaksdspectively.

The 2012 Plan is administered by our board of tlirscor by a committee designated by the boardghvbietermines, subject to Israeli [
the grantees of awards and the terms of the grantiding, exercise prices, vesting schedules,lacaiion of vesting and the other matters
necessary in the administration of the 2012 Pl&e. 2012 Plan enables our company to issue awad#s warious tax regimes including,
without limitation, pursuant to Sections 102 anél)3{f the Tax Ordinance and Section 422 of U.Srhml Revenue Code of 1986, to which
refer as the Code.

Section 102 of the Tax Ordinance allows employdisctors and officers who are not controlling feiders and are considered Israeli
residents to receive favorable tax treatment fonpensation in the form of shares or options. Oraells non-employee service providers and
controlling shareholders may only be granted otionder Section 3(9) of the Tax Ordinance, whicksdwot provide for similar tax benefits.
Section 102 of the Tax Ordinance includes two a#téves for tax treatment involving the issuancemtfons or shares to a trustee for the
benefit of the grantees and also includes an additialternative for the issuance of options orahdirectly to the grantee. Section 102(b)(2)
of the Tax Ordinance, the most favorable tax treatnfior grantees, permits the issuance to a trustder the “capital gains track.” However,
under this track we will not be allowed to deduttexpense with respect to the issuance of the mptio shares. Options granted under the
2012 Plan to U.S. residents may qualify as “incenti
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stock options” within the meaning of Section 422he Code. The exercise price for “incentive stopkons” must not be less than the fair
market value on the date on which an option istgidror 110% of the fair market value if the opttaider holds more than 10% of our share
capital.

Under the 2012 Plan, we are expected to grantmmptm our employees, directors and officers whaatecontrolling shareholders and are
considered Israeli residents, under the capitalgg@ack. In order to comply with the terms of tagital gains track, all options granted under
the 2012 Plan pursuant and subject to the provdsidrsection 102 of the Tax Ordinance, as welhasordinary shares to be issued upon
exercise of these options and other shares receiveskquently following any realization of rightgdhwrespect to such options, such as share
dividends and share splits, must be granted toséete for the benefit of the relevant employeesadar or officer and should be held by the
trustee for at least two years after the date efgttant.

Awards under the 2012 Plan may be granted untite®eiper 16, 2022, ten years from the date on wihiet2012 Plan was approved by oul
shareholders.

Options granted under the 2012 Plan generallyonsst four years commencing on the date of grart sat 25% vest after one year and
an additional 6.25% vest at the end of each sulese¢dlree-month period thereafter for 36 monthgiddp, other than certain incentive share
options, that are not exercised within ten yeasmfthe grant date expire, unless otherwise deteniy the board or its designated committee
as applicable. Incentive share options grantedperson holding more than 10% of the combined cayigasoting power expire within five
years from the date of the grant. In case of teation for reasons of death, disability, or retirey¢he grantee or his legal successor
exercise options that have vested prior to terridnatithin a period of one year from the date cfattiility or death, or within three months
following retirement. If we terminate a granteersgoyment or service for cause, all of the grarge’sted and unvested options will expire
the date of termination. If a grantee’s employnmrdervice is terminated for any other reasongtia@tee may exercise his or her vested
options within 90 days of the date of terminati@ny expired or unvested options return to the gopteissuance.

In the event of a merger or consolidation of ounpany, or a sale of all, or substantially all, af shares or assets or other transaction
having a similar effect, then without the consefrthe option holder, the board or its designatemimittee, as applicable, may but is not
required to (i) cause any outstanding award tosseraed or an equivalent award to be substitutesiibly successor corporation or (ii) in case
the successor corporation refuses to assume ditstdshe award (a) provide the grantee with thgam to exercise the award as to all or part
of the shares or (b) cancel the options againgnpayin cash in an amount determined by the boatideocommittee as fair in the
circumstances. Notwithstanding the foregoing, tbart or its designated committee may upon suchtereand or terminate the terms of any
award, including conferring the right to purchasg ather security or asset that the board shalindé® good faith, appropriate.

Stratasys, Inc. Plans

Pursuant to the Stratasys-Objet merger agreemgan, tlhe consummation of the Stratasys-Objet meegeh option exercisable for one
share of Stratasys, Inc. common stock convertedantoption to purchase one ordinary share of&yatLtd. Furthermore, we assumed the
obligations of Stratasys, Inc. related to the isseaof shares underlying those options under @s-#ixisting option plans, consisting of the
Stratasys, Inc. 1998 Incentive Stock Option Pldrgt8sys, Inc. 2000 Incentive Stock Option Plamgtasys, Inc. 2002 Longerm Performanc
and Incentive Plan, and Stratasys, Inc. 2008 LoagriTPerformance and Incentive Plan, which we tefeollectively as the Stratasys, Inc.
plans. Each option so assumed pursuant to theaSgsaObjet merger agreement remains governed kteiims and conditions of the relevant
grant instrument as well as the Stratasys Inc. pfater which it was granted (with appropriate ctesng reflect Stratasys Ltd. as the company
whose shares are issuable upon exercise of thenpphi total of 239,000 ordinary shares are isseialplon exercise of options that are vested
and currently exercisable under the Stratasys plans.
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The following table presents certain option datarimation for the aboveescribed stock option and share incentive plamas Bebruary 1
2015:

Weighted

Total Average

Ordinary Aggregate Aggregate Exercise

Shares Number of Number of Price of

Reserved for Awards Shares Available Awards Outstanding

Plan Grants Granted for Future Grants Outstanding Options
2004 Plar — — None 703,86¢ $ 11.4¢
2012 Plar 5,000,001 1,376,17. 3,623,82 1,315,62. $ 81.0:
Stratasys, Inc. Plans — — None 34495( $ 36.4:
Totals 5,000,001 1,376,17. 3,623,82 2,364,44. % 43.4t

On December 3, 2012, we filed a registration statgron Form S-8 to register the issuance of orglinhares in respect of then-
outstanding options to directors, officers, empks/and eligible consultants under the 2004 Plartla&tratasys, Inc. plans. On September 3
2013, we filed a registration statement on Formt8-&gister the issuance of ordinary shares uyiggrbptions granted or to be granted under
the 2012 Plan.

ITEM 7. MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS AND RELATED PARTY TRANSA CTIONS.
A. Major Shareholders
Ownership by Major Shareholders

The following table presents the beneficial owngrsti our ordinary shares by each person who issknby us to be the beneficial owner
of 5% or more of our outstanding ordinary sharesnftom we refer as our major shareholders), basgdeomost recent beneficial ownership
reports filed with the SEC by such persons on doree-ebruary 17, 2015. The data presented is basé@tformation provided to us, or
disclosed in public filings with the SEC, by thejorashareholders.

Beneficial ownership of shares is determined umdiers of the SEC and generally includes any sHareshich a person exercises sole or
shared voting or investment power, or for whicheaspn has or shares the right to receive the ecicrimenefit of ownership of the shares. The
table below includes the number of shares undeglgjtions that are exercisable within 60 days afehruary 17, 2015. Shares issuable upon
the exercise of such options are deemed to beamwlisiy for the purpose of computing the ownerskig@ntage of the person or group holding
such options, but are not deemed to be outstaridirtye purpose of computing the ownership peragnts any other person or group. The
percentage of outstanding ordinary shares is baisé&f,950,231 ordinary shares outstanding as afuaep 17, 2015.

Except where otherwise indicated, and except patstoacommunity property laws, we believe, baseddormation furnished by such
owners, that the beneficial owners of the shastedibelow have sole investment and voting pow#r mispect to, and the sole right to receive
the economic benefit of ownership of, such sharhe.shareholders listed below do not have anyréiffievoting rights from any of our other
shareholders. We know of no arrangements that wetilal subsequent date, result in a change ofata@ftour company.

Options Total

Exercisable Beneficial Percentage
Beneficial Owner Ordinary Shares within 60 Days Ownership Ownership
Roy J. Zuckerber 3,002,02(1) — 3,002,02 5.€%
Elchanan Jaglor 2,963,62(2) — 2,963,62! 5.8&%
Morgan Stanle! 2,700,15(3) — 2,700,151 5.2%
Baillie Gifford & Co 4,942,32(4) — 4,942,32 9.7%
T. Rowe Price Associates, Ir 3,980,04(5) — 3,980,04 7.8%
Edgewood Management LL 3,897,30i(6) — 3,897,301 7.€%

(1) Represents shares beneficially owned as of DeceBihe&014, as indicated in the amended statemedrdradficial ownership on Sched
13G/A filed jointly by Samson Capital, LLC and RayZuckerberg on February 13, 2015. Consists ¢f@Bordinary shares held by
Zuckerberg Investment Partners, LP, 2,437,787 arglishares held by Samson Capital, LLC, with resfewhich Roy J. Zuckerberg
may be deemed to share beneficial ownership an@38®rdinary shares held by Hancock LLC, a limitetility company organized
under the laws of the State of California, withpest to which Roy J. Zuckerberg may be deeme
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(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

share beneficial ownership as a result of the R&uckerberg Family Trust's 39.4% ownership & thembership interests of Hancock
LLC (as disclosed in note (4) below). Mr. Zuckepés party to an agreement with respect to 1,78d@4he ordinary shares held by
Samson Capital, LLC that provides him with the tighindependently make decisions as to votingdisdosition of those ordinary
shares, without having to consult with any othaspe. The Roy J. Zuckerberg Family Trust is pastan agreement pursuant to which it
has the right to independently make decisions #iset@oting and disposition of 207,286 of the oadlyjnshares held by Hancock LLC,
without having to consult with any other person. Muckerberg disclaims beneficial ownership ofodithe ordinary shares that may be
deemed to be beneficially owned by him except éoetktent of his pecuniary interest ther

Represents shares beneficially owned as of DeceBih&014, as indicated in the amended statemdrgra#ficial ownership on Sched
13G/A filed by Elchanan Jaglom on February 13, 2@dnsists of (i) 2,437,787 ordinary shares hel&agson Capital, LLC, with
respect to which Mr. Jaglom may be deemed to dhemeficial ownership and (ii) the 525,838 ordingimares held by Hancock LLC, a
California limited liability company of which 60.6%f the membership interests are held by a compahich we refer to as the Hanca
Member) of which Mr. Jaglom is a director. Mr. Jaglis party to an agreement with respect to 649¢f3Be ordinary shares held by
Samson Capital, LLC that provides him with the tigthindependently make decisions as to votingdisgosition of those ordinary
shares, without having to consult with any othespe. The Hancock Member is party to an agreemansijant to which it has the right
to independently make decisions as to voting asgadition of 318,552 of the ordinary shares heltHbpcock LLC, without having to
consult with any other person. Mr. Jaglom disclairaseficial ownership of the ordinary shares hgl@&ach of Samson Capital, LLC and
Hancock LLC except to the extent of his pecuniatgriest therein.

Represents shares beneficially owned as of Mbee 31, 2014, as indicated in the statement oéfiieal ownership on Schedule 13G
filed by Morgan Stanley on January 12, 2015. Rédlecdinary shares beneficially owned, or that inayleemed to be beneficially
owned, by certain operating units (which we refecallectively as the MS Reporting Units) of Morgatanley and its subsidiaries and
affiliates (which we refer to collectively as M&nd does not reflect ordinary shares, if any, beiadlfy owned by any operating units of
MS whose ownership of securities is disaggregatau that of the MS Reporting Units.

Represents shares beneficially owned as of Mbee 31, 2014, as indicated in the statement oéfiical ownership on Schedule 13G
filed by Baillie Gifford & Co. on February 5, 2016rdinary shares reported as beneficially owne8#ijlie Gifford & Co. are held by
Baillie Gifford & Co. and/or one or more of its iestment adviser subsidiaries, which may includdiiB&ifford Overseas Limited, on
behalf of investment advisory clients, which maglurde investment companies registered under thestment Company Act of 1940,
employee benefit plans, pension funds or otheitingtnal clients.

Represents shares beneficially owned as of DeceBih&@014, as indicated in the amended statemedrgradficial ownership on Sched
13G filed by T. Rowe Price Associates, Inc., oc@ssociates, on February 11, 2015. Price Asgxciatan investment adviser
registered under Section 203 of the Investment $atgi Act of 1940. Price Associates does not serweistodian of the assets of any of
its clients; accordingly, in each instance only ¢hient or the client’s custodian or trustee baak the right to receive dividends paid with
respect to, and proceeds from the sale of, theargishares held by Price Associates. Not more 8&iof the class of ordinary shares is
owned by any one client subject to the investmdnica of Price Associates

Represents shares beneficially owned as of @bee 31, 2014, as indicated in the statement offi@al ownership on Schedule 13G
filed by Edgewood Management LLC on February 13,32

Changes in Percentage Ownership by Major Sharehafle

During 2014 and 2013, there were decreases indtoeptage ownership of each of our pre-existingpmetjareholders, consisting of

Samson Capital, LLC, Roy J. Zuckerberg and Elchalaghom, due to market sales by the major sharelottiemselves and due to our
issuance of a substantial number of additionalnaigi shares in various transactions, includinglbkd Concepts acquisition and Harvest
Technologies acquisition in July 2014 and AugudgtZ0espectively, the MakerBot transaction in Audi@l 3, and our follow-on public
offering in September 2013.
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The percentage ownership of those shareholdersassul as follows during 2013 and 2014, respectii@l$amson Capital, LLC—from
11.1% to 6.4% to 4.8 %; (ii) Roy J. Zuckerberg—frath6% to 7.6% to 5.9 %; and (iii) Elchanan Jaglofrem 12.5% to 7.5% to 5.8 %. In
addition, three additional shareholders who heldentiban 5% of our ordinary shares as of the er0&2-- AGM Holding BV, Philippe J.
Setton and FMR LLC— ceased to be major sharehokeds the end of 2013, due to a combination oketasales and issuances of additiona
ordinary shares by us.

During 2014, four new shareholders— Morgan Stariyjllie Gifford & Co, T. Rowe Price Associates¢lrand Edgewood Management
LLC—became major shareholders due to their acquistf over 5% of our outstanding ordinary shares.

In December 2012, as a result of the consummafitimecStratasys-Objet merger, the percentage oWwipeo$ each of our major
shareholders at the time was reduced in a propattimanner, due to the issuance of 55% of our stegstal (on a post-merger, fully diluted
basis, calculated in accordance with the treasogkanethod) to stockholders of Stratasys, In¢chenmerger.

Record Holders

Based upon a review of the information providedgddy our transfer agent, as of February 23, 20iE5e were 110 holders of record of
shares, of which 82 record holders holding 50,984, 8r approximately 99.99%, of our outstandingrtady shares, had registered address
the United States. These numbers are not reprdisentd the number of beneficial holders of ourrgsanor is it representative of where such
beneficial holders reside, since many of theseeshaere held of record by brokers or other nominge®f the said date, CEDE & Co, the
nominee company of the Depository Trust Companyh(wiregistered address in the United States),dfalelcord 48,931,547 ordinary shares
on behalf of hundreds firms of brokers and bank&éUnited States, who in turn held such shardsetralf of several thousand clients and
customers.

B. Related Party Transactions.

Except as described below or elsewhere in thisa@meport, since January 1, 2014, we have hadams&ction or loan, nor do we have :
presently proposed transaction or loan, involving eelated party described in Item 7.B of Form 2prémulgated by the SEC.

Indemnification Agreement:

Our amended articles permit us to exculpate, indgmamd insure each of our directors and officedeos to the fullest extent permitted by
the Companies Law. Effective upon the effectiveetiof the merger, we entered into indemnificatioreagents with each of our current
directors and other office holders, under whichumdertook to indemnify them to the fullest exteatmitted by Israeli law, including with
respect to liabilities resulting from the mergethe extent that these liabilities are not covdrgéhsurance. We also put into place Directors
and Officers liability insurance for each of ouretitors and other office holders upon the effectdgs of the Stratasys-Objet merger.

Employment and Consulting Agreements with Direct@sd Executive Officer:
Employment agreement with David R

Under an employment agreement, dated Septemb@008, that we entered into with our Chief Executdféicer, David Reis, Mr. Reis is
entitled to a gross monthly salary of NIS 126,680pfoximately $36,484). Mr. Reis is also entitlecdh annual performance bonus subject to
the discretion of our board of directors, base@dwnachievement of specific goals set by the bdadedides base salary and bonus, Mr. Reis
receives under the agreement other benefits thagirarvided for by Israeli law or that are customi@rysenior executives in Israel, including
reimbursement for reasonable expenses incurrednnextion with his services, and the right to ws®l(all related fixed and variable costs in
respect of) a leased car and cellular telephoneRMdis is furthermore entitled to company contiidig equivalent to 5%, 8.33%, 2.5%, and
7.5% of his gross monthly salary towards certaimspn, severance, disability and tax-advantageohgayunds (known as a manager’s
insurance policy, severance compensation fundbilityainsurance, and a study fund, respectivel}.(Reis also contributes 5% and 2.5% of
his gross monthly salary towards the manager'sarse policy and study fund, respectively). The lyimpent engagement is terminable by
either party upon six months’ prior written notiegd contains customary provisions regarding nompetition, confidentiality of information
and assignment of inventions. As required undexelstaw,
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the terms of Mr. Reis’ engagement with our comparye approved by our board of directors and shéddeh® (while we were still a private
company).

Mr. Reis has furthermore been granted an aggred&i®1,936 options to purchase ordinary shareshith 172,436 are currently
outstanding, all of which are fully vested and whiave an exercise price of $6.52 per share, apideean December 31, 2017. All of the
shares underlying the 172,436 options describedeahe subject to an agreement with our compangmntich they may only be disposed of
(subject to minor exceptions involving the paymefitiaxes) in an orderly fashion, on a pro-rata aser the course of a five-year period
commencing in 2012. These restrictions governimgdikposition of such shares supplement, and deeptace, any additional applicable
restrictions under our share option and incentlaas

Employment agreement with llan Le

Pursuant to an employment agreement, dated Jurgd2Z, llan Levin provides services to us as atfiie employee who leads special
corporate executive functions. Under the agreenMntl_evin receives a gross monthly salary of NISMO0 (approximately $7,781) and other
benefits that are provided for by Israeli law aatthre customary for senior executives in Israeluding reimbursement for reasonable
expenses incurred in connection with his serviaad,the right to use (and all related fixed andadde costs in respect of) a leased car. The
foregoing salary is in addition to and independsrthe $19,400 per month plus Israeli value addeddr VAT, that Mr. Levin is entitled to fc
continued service as a member of the board.

Under the employment agreement, Mr. Levin is fumi@re entitled to company contributions equivaten5%, 8.33%, 2.5%, and 7.5% of
his gross monthly salary towards certain pensiemeance, disability and tax-advantaged savingdsfijknown as a manager’s insurance
policy, severance compensation fund, disabilityrasce, and a study fund, respectively) (Mr. Lealso contributes 5% and 2.5% of his gross
monthly salary towards the manager’s insurancepalnd study fund, respectively). The employmegiagement is terminable by either party
upon three months’ prior written notice, and caméatustomary provisions regarding noncompetitionfidentiality of information and
assignment of inventions. As required under Isiaglj the terms of Mr. Levin's engagement with campany were approved by our board of
directors and shareholders.

Mr. Levin has furthermore been granted an aggregfadd 9,344 options to purchase ordinary shareshi¢h 124,844 are currently
outstanding, all of which are fully vested. 100,@82uch options have an exercise price of $6.52pare and 24,782 of such options have ar
exercise price of $2.208 per share. All of suchaost expire on December 31, 2017. All of the 124,8/dinary shares underlying the foregc
options are subject to an agreement between Miinlaand our company under which they may only beasd of (subject to minor exceptic
involving the payment of taxes) in an orderly fashion a pro rata basis over the course of a g period commencing in 2012. These
restrictions governing the disposition of theserst@upplement, and do not replace, any additmplicable restrictions under our share
option and incentive plans.

Consulting arrangement with an entity affiliatedtwi&lchanan Jaglom

An entity affiliated with Elchanan Jaglom, the Ginaan of the board of directors, has provided cdimgybnd director services to us
pursuant to an oral arrangement that was approyedibboard of directors and shareholders. The hpaimount payable to that entity under
this arrangement is $35,000, plus VAT, currentlge Tonsulting arrangement, which is not recordelwritten agreement, has no set term
may be terminated by either party at will upon teritnotice.
C. Interests of Experts and Counsel.

Not required.
ITEM 8. FINANCIAL INFORMATION.

A. Consolidated Statements and Other Financial Infomation.

The consolidated financial statements and othanfifal information for our company required by S&€ included in this annual report
beginning on page F-1.
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Export Sales

The following table presents total export saleShytasys, Ltd for each of the fiscal years in@idgin thousands):

2014 2013 2012
Total Export Sales* $ 341,39! $ 219,83 $ 104,88:
as a percentage of Total Sales 45.5% 45.4% 48.73%

* Export sales, as presented, are defined as gatestomers located outside of North America amddl (where our dual headquarters are
located).

Legal Proceedings

We are a party to various legal proceedings inditeour business. Based upon the status of suggscas determined with the advice of
counsel, we have recorded provisions in our fingrsteatements for amounts (if any) judged to bé Ipptantifiable and probable to be paid.
Except as noted below, there are no legal procgegianding or threatened against us that we bedievékely to have, or that have had in the
recent past, significant effects on our financ@bdition or profitability.

Claims Related to Company Equity

In December 2008, a former employee of ours, wieosployment had been terminated, filed a claim agaior company demanding that,
based on an alleged undertaking we had made, we isshim an option that would allow him to maintan equity interest of 1.45% in Objet,
as well as reimburse salary reductions he hadredaffi@ an aggregate sum of NIS 552 thousand (#idzsand). In July 2009, we filed our
statement of defense, rejecting the claims raigeithés former employee. Together with the former Exyge, we initiated mediation of the
dispute, but did not reach any settlement. The éoremployee later amended his initial pleadingeteksan additional NIS 441 thousand ($113
thousand) on account of alleged wrongful termirmmatig our company. The court ruled in our favor iovidmber 2013, also awarding us legal
expenses of NIS 55,000. The plaintiff has appetiledlecision to the national Israeli labor coutteve the appeal is currently ongoing.

On March 4, 2013, four current or former minoribhaseholders and former directors of our comparmgdftivo lawsuits against our
company in an Israeli central district court. Ta$uits demand that we amend the capitalizatide @ftour company such that certain shares
previously issued to Objet shareholders named f@ndants would be recognized as being owned bpltietiffs with a consequent reduction
of the share ownership of the named defendantslaisuits also name as defendants Elchanan Jagtenghairman of the board of directors,
David Reis, our Chief Executive Officer, variousstholders of ours who were also shareholders @tQdnd, in one of the lawsuits, llan
Levin, one of our directors. The lawsuits alleg@anticular that a series of investments in Objetrdy 2002 and 2003 was effected at a price
per share that was below fair market value, theidgyally diluting those shareholders that did patticipate in the investments. The plaintiffs
also allege that a portion of the amount investetthdse transactions was actually invested by eestior who was already a shareholder of
Objet and allegedly acting in concert with Mr. &ag| and that the interest of these two shareholddrese transactions was not properly
disclosed to the minority shareholders at the tifie lawsuits furthermore claim that we effectivetygaged in backdating the issuance of
certain shares, in that shares that Objet repaddthving been issued in 2006 and 2007 were aciaslled at a subsequent date—as late as
2009. We filed our statement of defense in resptmsieese claims in May 2013, denying the claims. 8#0 filed a motion to dismiss the
claims on grounds of statute of limitations, lached lack of cause. On April 8, 2014, the courtlteehearing on the motion and the parties
submitted summation briefs. The court’s decisioperading.

On February 5, 9, and 20, 2015, lawsuits styledass actions were commenced in the United Statsd Courts for the District of
Minnesota, the Southern District of New York, ahd Eastern District of New York, respectively, nagithe Company and certain of our
officers and directors as defendants. The lawsiliggie violations of the Exchange Act in connectidth allegedly false and misleading
statements concerning our business and prospdwl@intiffs seek damages and awards of reasopabte and expenses, including
attorneys’ fees. These lawsuits are in their ihgitages and no substantive proceedings have ecttordate. We intend to mount vigorous
defenses to these lawsuits.
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Dividend Policy

We have never paid cash dividends on our ordinaayes and do not anticipate that we will pay arshadividends on our ordinary shares
in the foreseeable future.

We intend to retain our earnings to finance thesttgyment of our business. Any future dividend poligll be determined by our board of
directors based upon conditions then existinguidiclg our earnings, financial condition, tax pasitand capital requirements, as well as such
economic and other conditions as our board of threanay deem relevant. Pursuant to our articlessbciation, dividends may be declare
our board of directors. Dividends must be paidafwgur profits and other surplus funds, as defimetthe Companies Law, as of the end of the
most recent year or as accrued over a period ahtyst recent two years, whichever amount is greptevided that there is no reasonable
concern that payment of a dividend will prevenfrosn satisfying our existing and foreseeable ohigres as they become due. In addition,
because we have received certain benefits undeglisaw relating to Approved Enterprises and Bariafy Enterprises, our payment of
dividends (out of tax-exempt income) may subjediousertain Israeli taxes to which we would notesthise be subject. We are also restricted
under our credit agreement with Bank of Americarfheaying dividends. Please see the risk factorsaregrd “We do not anticipate paying any
cash dividends in the foreseeable future. Therefboair share price does not appreciate, our $tedalers may not recognize a return, and ¢
potentially suffer a loss, on their investment ur ordinary shares,” and “Even if we decide to dagdends on our ordinary shares, we may be
restricted from doing so or payment of such divitkemay have adverse consequences for our compatighn 3.D “Risk Factors—Risks
related to an investment in our ordinary sharesivab

For a discussion of the applicable rates of withhmg tax on dividends paid out of income derivezhfran Approved Enterprise or a
Beneficiary Enterprise, see “Israeli Tax Considerst and Government Programs — The Law for the BEragement of Capital Investments”
in ltem 4.B above.

B. Significant Changes.

Other than as otherwise described in this annymrteno significant change has occurred in ourafens since the date of our
consolidated financial statements included in #nisual report.

ITEM 9. THE OFFER AND LISTING.
A. Listing Details.

Since December 3, 2012 (the first trading day dftereffective time of the merger), our ordinarargs have traded (and, prior to that ti
Stratasys, Inc. common stock was traded) on theDBS Global Select Market under the trading symt®$YS.” The following table sets

forth the high and low closing sale prices of otdimary shares (and for periods preceding the me&featasys, Inc. common stock) for the
fiscal periods indicated below, as reported onNASDAQ Global Select Market.

Price Range
High Low

Fiscal Period: (U.S. $) (US. $)
Six most recent months:

February 201! 80.0¢ 57.3¢

January 2015 81.0¢ 70.0z

December 2014 97.32 78.6¢

November 2014 122.57 101.1:

October 201« 120.3¢ 105.67

September 201 129.2¢ 119.1«
Two most recent full financial years and subsequereriods, by quarter:
Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 201

October 1, 2014 - December 31, 2014 122.5] 78.6¢

July 1, 2014 September 30, 201 129.2¢ 97.1:

April 1, 2014- June 30, 201 113.6: 88.0¢

January 1, 201- March 31, 201« 136.4¢ 103.6¢
Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2013

October 1, 201- December 31, 201 134.7( 92.7¢

July 1, 2015 September 30, 201 110.2¢ 84.3(

April 1, 2013- June 30, 201 91.3( 68.3:

January 1, 201- March 31, 201: 89.6¢ 62.5(
Five most recent full financial years

2014 136.4¢ 78.6¢

2013 134.7( 62.5(

2012 80.7¢ 30.31

2011 55.4% 18.0(

2010 34.4¢ 18.0¢
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Our ordinary shares, nominal value NIS 0.01 perestere registered on the books of our transfenta@ontinental Stock Transfer & Trt
Company. There are no transfer restrictions apant the requirement that any transfers comply &jiplicable securities laws and the rules of
the NASDAQ Stock Market or any other securitieshege on which our ordinary shares may be listedarfuture.

B. Plan of Distribution.

Not Applicable.

C. Markets.

Our ordinary shares have been listed on, and beegdimg on, the NASDAQ Global Select Market on Dmber 3, 2012 under the ticker
symbol “SSYS”, replacing the Stratasys, Inc. comrstmtk under that same listing and ticker symblib¥ang the effective time of the
Stratasys-Objet merger on December 1, 2012.

D. Selling Shareholders.
Not Applicable.

E. Dilution.
Not Applicable.

F. Expenses of the Issue.

Not Applicable.

ITEM 10. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.
A. Share Capital.

Not applicable

B. Memorandum and Articles of Association.

Purposes and Objects of the Company

We are a public company registered under Israg®anies Law as Stratasys Ltd., registration nurbhe260769-8. Under our
memorandum of association, our purpose includesyda@/ful purpose.

Powers of Directors

Under the provisions of the Companies Law and ougraded articles, the management of the busines® @@ompany is vested in our
board of directors, which may exercise all such @®mand do all such acts and things as the Conipauthorized to exercise and do. For
certain approval requirements, disclosure obligetiand limitation on participation of members of board in board meetings, see “Fiduciary
Duties of Officer Holders — Approval of SpecifieeéRted Party Transactions with Office Holders Unideseli Law” in Item 6.C — “Board
Practices” above, and the remainder of this IterB H@low.

The authority of our directors to enter into boriegvarrangements on our behalf is not limited, pkte the same degree as any other
transaction into which we may enter.

Our amended articles do not impose any mandatdirgmeent or age-limit requirements on our directarsd our directors are not required
to own shares in our company in order to qualifgéove as directors.
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Rights Attached to Shares

Our authorized share capital consists of 180,0@d@inary shares of a nominal value of NIS 0.0dhedll outstanding ordinary shares
are validly issued, fully paid and non-assessaliie. current authorized share capital reflects arease in our authorized share capital (from
60,000,000 ordinary shares) that was approved bglwareholders at our 2013 annual general meetiagaseholders on June 21, 2013.

The rights attached to the ordinary shares arelkss:

Dividend RightsOur board of directors may, in its discretion, deelthat a dividend be paid pro rata to the holdeosdinary shares.
Dividends must be paid out of our profits and oth@plus funds, as defined in the Companies Lawf #se end of the most recent year or as
accrued over a period of two years, whichever éatar, provided that there is no reasonable contbatrpayment of a dividend will prevent us
from satisfying our existing and foreseeable ollayes as they become due. Under the Companies thavwgeclaration of a dividend does not
require the approval of the shareholders of a coppaless the company’s articles of associatiorigeootherwise. Our amended articles
provide that our board of directors may declare disttibute dividends without the approval of tieueholders.

Rights to Share in the Company’s Prof@air shareholders have the right to share in ouitprdistributed as a dividend or via any other
permitted distribution. See “Rights Attached to ®sa— Dividend Rights”, in this Item above.

Rights to Share in Surplus in the Event of Liquaatin the event of our liquidation, after satisfactmiiabilities to creditors, our assets
will be distributed to the holders of ordinary sk&in proportion to the nominal value of their hiog. This right may be affected by the grant
of preferential dividend or distribution rightsttee holders of a class of shares with preferentiats that may be authorized in the future.

Limited Liability. Our company is a limited liability company, andréfere, each shareholder’s liability for our obligas is limited to the
payment of the nominal value of the shares heldumh shareholder, subject to the provisions ofXbmpanies Law.

Limitations on Any Existing or Prospective Majora&holder.See “Board Practices - Approval of Specified Rel&arty Transactions
with Office Holders Under Israeli Law” in Item 6&bove.

Voting RightsHolders of our ordinary shares have one vote foh@adinary share held on all matters submittea ¥ote of shareholders.
Shareholders may vote at a shareholders’ meetihgrén person or by proxy. Such voting rights nhayaffected by the grant of any special
voting rights to the holders of a class of sharh preferential rights that may be authorizedhia tuture. There are currently no preferred
shares outstanding.

The Companies Law imposes certain duties on ouebbdders. A shareholder, in exercising his orrfgdits and performing his or her
obligations to our other shareholders and us, ctsin good faith and in an acceptable manneraaoéi abusing his or her powers. This duty
is required when voting at general meetings onermatuch as changes to our articles of associatioreases to our registered capital, merger
and related party transactions. A shareholderfasoa general duty to refrain from depriving arhyeotshareholder of his or her rights as a
shareholder. In addition, any controlling sharebkoldny shareholder who knows that his or her gatedetermine the outcome of a
shareholder vote and any shareholder who, undesirnended articles, can appoint or prevent the appent of an office holder, is required to
act fairly towards our company. The Companies Laesdnot specifically define the duty of fairness, frovides that the remedies generally
available upon a breach of contract will apply afsthe event of a breach of the duty to act wtinrfess. There is no binding case law that
addresses this subject directly. Any voting agregrmaeong shareholders is also subject to thesesduti

Election of Directors

Directors of our company, other than external does; are elected each year at our annual genemtimg of shareholders by a vote of the
holders of a majority of the voting power represelt the meeting. See Item 6.C— “Board PracticéBbard of Directors” above. Our
ordinary shares do not have cumulative voting gdbt this purpose. As a result, holders of ouirany shares that represent more than 50
the voting power represented at a shareholderstingeat which a quorum is present will have the pote elect any or all of our directors
whose
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positions are being filled at that meeting, subjedhe special approval requirements for extediraictors described under “Board Practices—
External Directors” in Iltem 6.C above.

In addition, pursuant to the Companies Law andamaended articles, any shareholder holding at @spercent (1%) of our outstanding
voting power may make nominations for directorsyahl written notice of such shareholder’s intemtmake such nomination (together with
certain documentation required under the Compdraeg has been delivered to our registered Isrdfitieowithin seven days after we publish
notice of our upcoming annual general meeting (ithiw 14 days after we publish a preliminary natifiion of an upcoming annual general
meeting) .

Annual and Extraordinary Meetings

Our board of directors must convene an annual génazeting of shareholders at least once everyndateyear, within fifteen months of
the last annual general meeting.

All meetings other than the annual general meadfrghareholders are referred to as extraordinangigé meetings. Our board of directors
may call extraordinary general meetings whenevsees fit, at such time and place, within or o@tsiflisrael, as it may determine. In addition,
the Companies Law and our amended articles prdi@sour board of directors will be required to wene an extraordinary general meeting
upon the written request of (i) any two of our dimgs or one-quarter of our board of directorsiipiofie or more shareholders holding, in the
aggregate, either (a) 5% of our outstanding issirades and 1% of our outstanding voting power pb% of our outstanding voting power.
The chairman of the board of directors presidesaah of our general meetings. The chairman of dlaedbof directors will not be entitled to
vote at a general meeting in his capacity as clairm

Subject to the provisions of the Companies Lawthardegulations promulgated thereunder, shareteottiat will be entitled to participate
and vote at general meetings are the shareholfleesard on a date decided by our board of direct@hich may be between four and 40 days
prior to the date of the meeting. Furthermore,Gbenpanies Law and our amended articles requiradsatutions regarding the following
matters must be passed at a general meeting shaweholders:

« amendments to the amended articles;

« appointment or termination of our auditors;

« appointment of directors and appointment and disahisf external directors;

« approval of acts and transactions involving relgtadies, as defined by the Companies Law or putsioaour amended articles;
- director compensation;

« increases or reductions of our authorized shargatap

« amerger; and

« the exercise of our board of directors’ powers lgeaeral meeting, if the board of directors is Uaab exercise its powers and the
exercise of any of its powers is required for otoper managemer

Notices

The Companies Law and the amended articles retjdtea notice of any annual general meeting oaextlinary general meeting be
published and provided to shareholders at leas®% prior to the meeting, and if the agenda oftlketing includes the appointment or
removal of directors, the approval of transactiaith office holders or interested or related patier an approval of a merger, notice must be
published at least 35 days prior to the meeting.

Quorum

The quorum required for a general meeting of oaredolders consists of at least two shareholdexsept in person, by proxy or written
ballot who hold or represent between them at lizeestity-five percent (25%9f the total outstanding voting rights. A meetirdjoaurned for lacl
of a quorum generally is adjourned to the sameid#ye following week at the same time and placeoa later time/date if so specified in the
summons or notice of the meeting. At the reconvenedting, if the original meeting was convened uggguisition under the Companies L:
the required quorum consists of one or more shédels present in person or by proxy, and holdiregrtumber
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of shares required for making such requisition,, amény other reconvened meeting, the quorumishaquired is any two shareholders pre
in person or by proxy (regardless of how many shdrey hold).

Adoption of Resolution:

Our amended articles provide that all resolutidhsus shareholders require the approval of a mgjaf the voting power present and
voting at a general meeting, unless otherwise reduy the Companies Law or by the amended artitleder the Companies Law and the
amended articles, shareholders are not permitteakéoaction via written consent in lieu of a megtiUnder the Companies Law, each of (i)
the approval of an extraordinary transaction wittoatrolling shareholder and (ii) the terms of eoyphent or other engagement of the
controlling shareholder of the company or such dlitig shareholder’s relative (even if not extrdioiary) require, in addition to approval by
the compensation committee (in the case of ternesrgfloyment) or audit committee (in the case of samther engagement) and the board of
directors, approval by a special majority of tharsiolders that fulfills one of the following regements:

« adisinterested majority; or

« the votes of shareholders who have no personakstte the transaction and who are present aridgioh person, by proxy or by
voting deed at the meeting, and who vote agaimstrdnsaction may not represent more than two pe(2&6) of the voting rights of
the company

Under our amended articles, if the share capitdivigled into classes, the alteration of the rigptsvileges, preferences or obligations of
any class of share capital requires approval bgnple majority of the class so affected (or sudteotpercentage of the relevant class that may
be set forth in the governing documents relevastuith class), in addition to the ordinary majovitge of all classes of shares voting togeth
a single class at a general meeting, as requirédrithe Companies Law.

Further exceptions to the simple majority vote iegqaent are a resolution for the voluntary windimg or an approval of a scheme of
arrangement or reorganization, of the company @untsto Section 350 of the Companies Law, which iregithe approval of holders of 75%
the voting rights represented at the meeting, isq® by proxy or by voting deed and voting onrssolution.

Israeli law provides that a shareholder of a pubdlimpany may vote in a meeting and in a class mgély means of a voting deed in
which the shareholder indicates how he or she \vatagsolutions relating to the following matters:

« appointment or removal of directors;
- approval of transactions with office holders oeneisted or related parties;

« approval of a merger or any other matter in respbwathich there is a provision in the articles e$aciation providing that decisions
the general meeting may also be passed by votied;

« approval of an arrangement or reorganization ottirapany pursuant to Section 350 of the Israeli games Law; and

« other matters which may be prescribed by Israelisister of Justice.

The provision allowing the vote by voting deed doesapply if, to the best knowledge of the companthe time of calling the general
shareholders’ meeting, a controlling shareholddirhwid on the record date for such shareholdersetimg, voting power sufficient to
determine the outcome of the vote.

Changing Rights Attached to Shares

The rights attached to any class of shares, sughtamsy, liquidation and dividend rights, may beerded by adoption of a resolution by
the holders of a majority of the shares of thasslaresent at a separate class meeting, or otleeimé@scordance with the rights attached to
class of shares, as set forth in our amendedesticl

Limitations on the Rights to Own Securities in OurCompany

Neither our memorandum of association nor our ameérdticles, nor the laws of the State of Isragdtrict in any way the ownership or
voting of shares by non-residents, except witheesto citizens of countries that are in a statevanf with Israel.

102



Provisions Restricting Change in Control of Our Conpany
Full Tender Offer

A person wishing to acquire shares of a publicdsi@mpany and who could as a result hold over @%e target company’s issued and
outstanding share capital or voting rights is regpiby the Companies Law to make a tender offailtof the company’s shareholders for the
purchase of all of the issued and outstanding starthe company. A person wishing to acquire shafe public Israeli company and who
could as a result hold over 90% of the issued anstanding share capital or voting rights of aaiertlass of shares is required to make a
tender offer to all of the shareholders who holdrek of the relevant class for the purchase affdlie issued and outstanding shares of that
class. If the shareholders who do not accept tfez bbld less than 5% of the issued and outstarstiage capital and voting rights of the
company or of the applicable class, all of the ehdinat the acquirer offered to purchase will bagdferred to the acquirer by operation of law
(provided that a majority of the offerees that d¢ Imave a personal interest in such tender offalt Blave approved it, which condition shall not
apply if, following consummation of the tender affthe acquirer would hold at least 98% of allleé tompanys outstanding shares and vot
rights (or shares and voting rights of the relewdass)). However, shareholders may, at any tintkimvsix months following the completion of
the tender offer, petition the court to alter teasideration for the acquisition. Even shareholeérs indicated their acceptance of the tender
offer may so petition the court, unless the acqustpulated that a shareholder that accepts ttee wfay not seek appraisal rights). If the
shareholders who did not accept the tender offlel Bi%h or more of the issued and outstanding shegpéad or voting rights of the company or
of the applicable class, the acquirer may not aecgghares of the company that will increase itglingls to more than 90% of the company’s
issued and outstanding share capital or votingsigh90% of the shares or voting rights of theliapple class, from shareholders who
accepted the tender offer.

Special Tender Offe

The Companies Law provides that an acquisitiorhafes of a public Israeli company must be made &gns of a special tender offer if
a result of the acquisition the purchaser couldbexa holder of 25% or more of the voting rightshi@ company, unless one of the exempt
in the Companies Law (as described below) is nmias fule does not apply if there is already anotiwder of at least 25% of the voting rights
in the company. Similarly, the Companies Law presithat an acquisition of shares in a public companst be made by means of a tender
offer if as a result of the acquisition the purarasould become a holder of more than 45% of thimgaights in the company, if there is no
other shareholder of the company who holds mone #%&6 of the voting rights in the company, unless of the exemptions in the Companies
Law is met.

A special tender offer must be extended to allahalders of a company but the offeror is not rexfitio purchase shares representing
than 5% of the voting power attached to the comjsamytstanding shares, regardless of how many slaestendered by shareholders. A
special tender offer may be consummated only Ht(lpast 5% of the voting power attached to thragany’s outstanding shares will be
acquired by the offeror and (ii) the number of sisaendered in the offer exceeds the number oéshvelnose holders objected to the offer.

If a special tender offer is accepted, then thelpager or any person or entity controlling it odencommon control with the purchaser or
such controlling person or entity may not makelasssguent tender offer for the purchase of shardsedfarget company and may not enter
a merger with the target company for a period & pear from the date of the offer, unless the pagehor such person or entity undertook to
effect such an offer or merger in the initial sp¢ténder offer.

Merger

The Companies Law permits merger transactionsgf@ped by each party’s board of directors and, asrtain requirements described
under the Companies Law are met, by a majority wbtsach partys shares, and, in the case of the target compangjaity vote of each cla
of its shares, voted on the proposed merger aa@iblders meeting called with at least 35 dayisrprotice.

For purposes of the shareholder vote, unless d ndes otherwise, the merger will not be deemeautayed if a majority of the votes of
shares represented at the shareholders’ meetihgrthaeld by parties other than the other partheamerger, or by any person (or group of
persons acting in concert) who holds (or holdhascase may be) 25% or more of the voting rightserright to appoint 25% or more of the
directors of the other party, vote against the rerlf, however, the merger involves a merger aittompany’s own controlling shareholder or
if the controlling shareholder has a personal ggein the merger, then the merger is instead sutgighe same special majority
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approval that governs all extraordinary transastioith controlling shareholders (as described atwtkis annual report under Item 6.C
“Board Practices—Approval of Related Party Transast Under Israeli Law—Disclosure of Personal lests of Controlling Shareholders”).

If the transaction would have been approved bystiaeholders of a merging company but for the seépapproval of each class or the
exclusion of the votes of certain shareholdersragigled above, a court may still approve the meugen the request of holders of at least :
of the voting rights of a company, if the courtdmthat the merger is fair and reasonable, takitgaccount the value of the parties to the
merger and the consideration offered to the shidlet®of the company that have petitioned the cmuaipprove the merger.

Upon the request of a creditor of either partyhte proposed merger, the court may delay or prehenmnerger if it concludes that there
exists a reasonable concern that, as a resuleah#rger, the surviving company will be unableatisfy the obligations of any of the parties to
the merger, and may further give instructions tuse the rights of creditors.

In addition, a merger may not be consummated ulelesast 50 days have passed from the date ormahicoposal for approval of the
merger was filed by each party with the Israeli iRegr of Companies and at least 30 days have gdisma the date on which the merger was
approved by the shareholders of each party.

Anti-Takeover Measures Under Israeli Law

The Companies Law allows us to create and issueslhaving rights different from those attacheduoordinary shares, including shares
providing certain preferred rights, distributionsother matters and shares having preemptive righterently, no preferred shares are
authorized under our amended articles. In the étifirve do authorize, create and issue a speddis of preferred shares, such class of sh
depending on the specific rights that may be a#tddb it, may have the ability to frustrate or pmetva takeover or otherwise prevent our
shareholders from realizing a potential premiumrakie market value of their ordinary shares. Thiba@nzation and designation of a class of
preferred shares will require an amendment to meraled articles, which requires the prior approvahe holders of a majority of the voting
power present and voting at a general meeting.cohgening of the meeting, the shareholders entilgghrticipate in such meeting, and the
majority vote required to be obtained at such atingevill be subject to the requirements set fantithe Companies Law as described above i
this Item 10.B under “Memorandum and Articles ofésiation—Rights Attached to Shares—Voting Rights.”

The foregoing description includes only a summdrgentain provisions of the Companies Law and oemuarandum of association and
articles and is qualified in its entirety by refece to the full text of such documents, which adeilats to this annual report.

C. Material Contracts.

We have not entered into any material contractiwithe two years prior to the date of this annealort, other than contracts entered into
in the ordinary course of business, or as otherdéseribed herein in Item 4. A—“History and Develagrhof the Company”, Item 4.B—
“Business Overview”, Item 5.B—"Operating and Fineh&keview and Prospects—Liquidity and Capital Reses”, ltem 6.C — “Board
Practices—Director Service Contracts” and Item -7"Belated Party Transactions”.

D. Exchange Controls.

There are currently no Israeli currency controtrieons on payments of dividends or other disttibns with respect to our ordinary
shares or the proceeds from the sale of ordinaaseshexcept for the obligation of Israeli residdntfile reports with the Bank of Israel
regarding certain transactions. However, legistat&mains in effect pursuant to which currency maatcan be imposed by administrative
action at any time.

The ownership or voting of our ordinary shares bg-nesidents of Israel, except with respect taeits of countries that are in a state of
war with Israel, is not restricted in any way by aiemorandum of association or amended articlésy dine laws of the State of Israel.

E. Taxation.

The following is a short summary of certain prowis of the tax environment to which shareholderg beasubject. This summary is base
on the current provisions of tax law. To the extéat the discussion is based on new tax legisiatiat has not been subject to judicial or
administrative interpretation, we cannot assure ttoat the views expressed in the discussion willdzepted by the appropriate tamthorities
or the courts.
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The summary does not address all of the tax coms®gs that may be relevant to all purchasers ofosdinary shares in light of each
purchase’s particular circumstances and specific tax treatrh For example, the summary below does not addhestax treatment of
residents of Israel and traders in securities whe subject to specific tax regimes. As individiedumstances may differ, holders of our
ordinary shares should consult their own tax advaeto the United States, Israeli or other tax equences of the purchase, ownership and
disposition of ordinary shares. The following ig mdended, and should not be construed, as legprafessional tax advice and is not
exhaustive of all possible tax considerations. Eadividual should consult his or her own tax ogd¢ adviser.

Israeli Taxation Considerations

Israeli law generally imposes a capital gains tathe sale of any capital assets by residentsaéllsas defined for Israeli tax purposes,
and on the sale of assets located in Israel, imdushares of Israeli companies, by both residantsnon-residents of Israel unless a specific
exemption is available or unless a tax treaty betwisrael and the seller’s country of residenceiges otherwise. The Tax Ordinance
distinguishes between “Real Capital Gain” and ‘dtifinary Surplus”. The Inflationary Surplus is atfm of the total capital gain which is
equivalent to the increase of the relevant aspeirshase price which is attributable to the incegaghe Israeli consumer price index or, in
certain circumstances, a foreign currency exchaaige between the date of purchase and the datafThe Real Capital Gain is the exce:
the total capital gain over the Inflationary Susplu

Israeli resident individuals
Capital Gain

As of January 1, 2006, the tax rate applicablegalRapital Gain derived by Israeli individualsrfréhe sale of shares which had been
purchased on or after January 1, 2003, whetheotdisted on a stock exchange, is 20%, unless shaheholder claims a deduction for interes
and linkage differences expenses in connection tiiighpurchase and holding of such shares, in wdask the gain will generally be taxed at a
rate of 25%. Additionally, if such shareholder @nsidered a “Significant Shareholdeli’d.,a person who holds, directly or indirectly, alome o
together with another, 10% or more of any of thepany’s “means of control'irfcluding, among other things, the right to receivefits of the
company, voting rights, the right to receive thenpany’s liquidation proceeds and the right to appaidirector)) at the time of sale or at any
time during the preceding 12-month period, sucin gall be taxed at the rate of 25%. Individual saolders dealing in securities in Israel are
taxed at their marginal tax rates applicable tar®ss income (up to 48% in 2014 ).

Notwithstanding the foregoing, pursuant to the lfamChange in the Tax Burden (Legislative Amendrag(itaxes), 2011, the capital g
tax rate applicable to individuals was raised 2086 to 25% from 2012 and onwards (or from 25% t#%30the selling individual sharehold
is a Significant Shareholder at any time duringBemonth period preceding the sale and\or claimsduction for interest and linkage
differences expenses in connection with the purelhasl holding of such shares). With respect totsegset shares that are listed on a stock
exchange) purchased on or after January 1, 2083dftion of the gain generated from the date qtimition until December 31, 2011 will be
subject to the previous capital gains tax rate8420 25%) and the portion of the gain generatethfdanuary 1, 2012 until the date of sale will
be subject to the new tax rates (25% or 30%).

Dividend Income

Israeli residents who are individuals are genemllgject to Israeli income tax for dividends paidowr ordinary shares (other than bonus
shares or share dividends) at 25%, or 30% if thigient of such dividend is a Significant Shareleo)ct the time of distribution or at any time
during the preceding 12-month period. However,déwids distributed from taxable income accrued dutie benefits period of an Approved
Enterprise or Beneficiary Enterprise are subjeetitbholding tax at the rate of 15% (and 20% wibkpect to Preferred Enterprise), if the
dividend is distributed during the tax benefitsiperunder the Investment Law or within 12 yeargm$uch period.
Israeli resident corporation:
Capital Gain

Under Israeli current tax legislation, the tax rapglicable to Real Capital Gain derived by Israedident corporations from the sale of
shares of an Israeli company is the general cotpdax rate. As described in “Israeli Tax Consitierss and Government Programs — Generz
Corporate Tax Structure” in Iltem 4.B above, as@f4, the corporate tax rate is 26.5% .
Dividend Income
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Generally, Israeli resident corporations are exefngoh Israeli corporate tax on the receipt of dands paid on shares of Israeli resident
corporations. However, dividends distributed fraxable income accrued during the benefits pericahoApproved Enterprise or Beneficiary
Enterprise are taxable at the rate of 15%, if flvldnd is distributed during the tax benefits pdrunder the Investment Law or within 12 ye
after that period.

Non-Israeli Residents
Capital Gain

Israeli capital gains tax is imposed on the dispoEaapital assets by a non-Israeli resident dhsassets are either (i) located in Israel; (ii)
shares or rights to shares in an Israeli residemipany, or (iii) represent, directly or indirecthjghts to assets located in Israel, unless a tax
treaty between Israel and the seller’s countryesidence provides otherwise. As mentioned aboval, Bapital Gain is generally subject to tax
at the corporate tax rate (26.5% as of 2014),riegated by a company, or at the rate of 25% (fgramset other than shares that are listed on
stock exchange20% with respect to the portion of the gain getestaip to December 31, 2011) or 30% (for any astbetr than shares that «
listed on a stock exchange - 25% with respectegtirtion of the gain generated up to DecembeR@11]), if generated by an individual from
the sale of assets purchased on or after Janu2603, Individual and corporate shareholders dgafirsecurities in Israel are taxed at the tax
rates applicable to business income (a corporateata for a corporation and a marginal tax ratamfo 48% for an individual in 2014 ).

Notwithstanding the foregoing, shareholders whorane-Israeli residents (individuals and corporagjosre generally exempt from Israeli
capital gains tax on any gains derived from the,sstchange or disposition of shares publicly tiaale the Tel Aviv Stock Exchange or on a
recognized stock exchange outside of Israel, pesjidmong other things, that (i) such gains aregyanerated through a permanent
establishment that the non-Israeli resident maistai Israel, (ii) the shares were purchased afterg listed on a recognized stock exchange
and (i) with respect to shares listed on a re¢ogphstock exchange outside of Israel, such shideftware not subject to the Israeli Income
Law (Inflationary Adjustments) 5745-1985. Howewvaon-Israeli corporations will not be entitled t@ tforegoing exemptions if Israel
residents (a) have a controlling interest of 25%mnore in such non-Israeli corporation, or (b) dre beneficiaries of or are entitled to 25% or
more of the revenues or profits of such non-Isre@lporation, whether directly or indirectly. Suskemption is not applicable to a person
whose gains from selling or otherwise disposinthefshares are deemed to be business income.

In addition, a sale of shares may be exempt froaelscapital gains tax under the provisions ofgplicable tax treaty. For example, ur
the U.S.-Israel Tax Treaty, to which we refer astthS.-Israel Treaty, the sale, exchange or difpasif shares of an Israeli company by a
shareholder who is a U.S. resident (for purposdbenf).S.-Israel Treaty) holding the shares agpéalasset is exempt from Israeli capital
gains tax unless (i) the shareholder holds, diyemtindirectly, shares representing 10% or morthefvoting rights during any part of the 12-
month period preceding such sale, exchange or sitspo, (i) the shareholder, if an individual, Hasen present in Israel for a period or per
of 183 days or more in the aggregate during théicgipe taxable year; or (iii) the capital gaingsarg from such sale are attributable to a
permanent establishment of the shareholder whioheigtained in Israel. In any such case, the salehange or disposition of such shares
would be subject to Israeli tax, to the extent agplle; however, under the U.S.-Israel Treaty, &. Wesident would be permitted to claim a
credit for the Israeli tax against the U.S. fedamabme tax imposed with respect to the sale, exghar disposition, subject to the limitation:
U.S. laws applicable to foreign tax credits. Th&israel Treaty does not provide such credit againy U.S. state or local taxes.

In some instances where our shareholders may lile fiar Israeli tax on the sale of their Ordinatyages, the payment of the
consideration may be subject to the withholdindsodieli tax at source. Shareholders may be reqtiré@monstrate that they are exempt from
tax on their capital gains in order to avoid witltiiog at source at the time of sale. Specificatytransactions involving a sale of all of the
shares of an Israeli resident company, in the fofia merger or otherwise, the Israel Tax Authonmiigy require from shareholders who are not
liable for Israeli tax to sign declarations in farspecified by this authority or obtain a speafi@mption from the Israel Tax Authority to
confirm their status as non Israeli resident, amthe absence of such declarations or exemptioag,require the purchaser of the shares to
withhold taxes at source.

Dividend Income
Non-Israeli residents (whether individuals or cogimns) are generally subject to Israeli incomeda the receipt of dividends paid on
ordinary shares at the rate of 25% or 30% (if tiveddnd recipient is a Significant Shareholderteg time of distribution or at any time during

the preceding 12-month period) or 15% if the dividés
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distributed from income attributed to our Approveaterprise or Beneficiary Enterprise, which taxoide withheld at source. Such dividends
are generally subject to Israeli withholding taxaatte of 25% so long as the shares are registgtieé nominee company (whether the
recipient is a Significant Shareholder or not),assla reduced rate is provided under an applitableeaty. For example, under the U.S.-Israe
Treaty, the maximum rate of tax withheld in Israeldividends paid to a holder of our ordinary shavko is a U.S. resident (for purposes of
the U.S.-Israel Treaty) is 25%. However, generdhg, maximum rate of withholding tax on dividendst generated by our Approved
Enterprise or Beneficiary Enterprise, that are paid U.S. corporation holding at least 10% or nadreur outstanding voting capital from the
start of the tax year preceding the distributiorthef dividend through (and including) the distribatof the dividend, is 12.5%, provided that
more than 25% of our gross income for such precegéar consists of certain types of dividends aerest. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
dividends generated by our Approved EnterpriseandBiciary Enterprise are subject to a withholdizgrate of 15% for such U.S. corporat
shareholder, provided that the condition relateduogross income for the previous year (as sét farthe previous sentence) is met. If the
dividend is attributable partly to income derivedn an Approved Enterprise, a Beneficiary EntempdsPreferred Enterprise, and partly to
other sources of income, the withholding rate bdla blended rate reflecting the relative portiofihe two types of income. U.S residents \
are subject to Israeli withholding tax on a dividenay be entitled to a credit or deduction for ©diStates federal income tax purposes in the
amount of the taxes withheld, subject to detaildds contained in the Code.

A non-Israeli resident who receives dividends frohich tax was withheld is generally exempt from tidigation to file tax returns in
Israel with respect to such income, provided thatuch income was not generated from businessumed in Israel by the taxpayer, and (ii)
the taxpayer has no other taxable sources of inéortseael with respect to which a tax return iguieed to be filed.

Excess Tar

Individuals who are subject to tax in Israel asoaubject to an additional tax at a rate of 2%mmual income exceeding NIS 811,560 for
2014, which amount is linked to the annual chamgiaé Israeli consumer price index, including, hot limited to, dividends, interest and
capital gain, subject to the provisions of an agglile tax treaty.

U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations

Subject to the limitations described in the follagiparagraphs, the discussion below describes #terial U.S. federal income tax
consequences to a beneficial owner of our ordishayes, referred to in this discussion as a U.l8ehahat is:

« anindividual who is a citizen or resident of theitdd States for U.S. federal income tax purposes;

» acorporation (or other entity treated as a compmndor U.S. federal income tax purposes) createdrganized in the United States or
under the law of the United States or of any statie District of Columbis

« an estate, the income of which is includible insgrmmcome for U.S. federal income tax purposesrddgss of its source; or

« atrust, if a court within the United States iseatal exercise primary supervision over the adnaiigin of the trust and one or more
United States persons have the authority to coatfsubstantial decisions of the trust, or thetthas a valid election in effect under
applicable Treasury regulations to be treated@sited States perso

This summary is not a comprehensive descripticalaif the tax considerations that may be relevamach person’s decision to purchase
hold or dispose of ordinary shares. This summangsiciers only U.S. holders that hold ordinary shasesapital assets.

This discussion is based on current provisionsefu.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986, to whichiefer as the Code, current and
proposed Treasury regulations, and administratiekjadicial decisions as of the date of this anmapbrt, all of which are subject to change,
possibly on a retroactive basis. This discussiasdmwt address all aspects of U.S. federal incamaion that may be relevant to any partic
shareholder based on the shareholder’s individuadmstances. In particular, this discussion da#saddress the potential application of the
alternative minimum tax or the U.S. federal incaame consequences to U.S. holders that are sulbjegiecial treatment, including U.S. hold
that:
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- are broker-dealers or insurance companies;

« have elected mark-to-market accounting;

« are tax-exempt organizations;

« are financial institutions or financial servicegiges;

« are partnerships or other entities treated as @atips for U.S. federal income tax purposes anpes thereof or members therein;
« hold ordinary shares as part of a straddle, hettgejersion or other integrated transaction witteothvestments;

- own directly, indirectly or by attribution at leas®% of our voting power; or

« have a functional currency that is not the U.Sladol

In addition, this discussion does not address apg@ of state, local or non-U.S. tax laws, orgbssible application of the U.S. federal
estate or gift tax or any state inheritance, estaggft tax.

Material aspects of U.S. federal income tax lawveht to a holder other than a U.S. holder, refietwen this discussion as a non-U.S.
holder, are also discussed below.

Each prospective investor is advised to consult hi@ her own tax adviser for the specific tax consagnces to that investor of
purchasing, holding or disposing of our ordinary slares.

Taxation of Dividends Paid on Ordinary Shares

Subject to the discussion below under “Tax Consece®if We Are a Passive Foreign Investment Company.S. holder will be
required to include in gross income as ordinargine the amount of any distribution paid on ordingtrgres, including any Israeli taxes
withheld from the amount paid, on the date therithistion is received, to the extent the distribatie paid out of our current or accumulated
earnings and profits as determined for U.S. fedaime tax purposes..” Effective January 1, 2@i8 American Taxpayer Relief Act raised
the maximum long-term capital gains rate of 15%2Q8o for individuals with annual taxable income 0$e#00,000 depending on individual
filing status. In addition, under the Patient Pctitth and Affordable Care Act, higher income tax@aymust pay an additional 3.8 percent tax
on net investment income to the extent certairstiwlel amounts of income are exceeded. See “Newmdrvestment Income” in this Item
below.

Dividends that fail to meet these requirements, dindiends taxable to corporate U.S. holders, axed at ordinary income rates. No
dividend received by a U.S. holder will be a quatifdividend (1) if the U.S. holder held the ordinahare with respect to which the dividend
was paid for less than 61 days during the 121-@aip@ beginning on the date that is 60 days befwex-dividend date with respect to the
dividend, excluding for this purpose, under thesubf Code Section 246(c), any period during wiiehU.S. holder has an option to sell, is
under a contractual obligation to sell, has madkraot closed a short sale of, is the grantor odepein-the-money or otherwise nonqualified
option to buy, or has otherwise diminished its Békoss by holding other positions with respectti® ordinary share (or substantially identica
securities); or (2) to the extent that the U.Sdbolis under an obligation (pursuant to a shod ealbtherwise) to make related payments with
respect to positions in property substantially Emar related to the ordinary share with respeattiich the dividend is paid. If we were to be ¢
“passive foreign investment company” (as that tesabefined in the Code) for any year, dividendglipgai our ordinary shares in that year or in
the year following that year would not be qualifdigidends. In addition, a non-corporate U.S. hold#l be able to take a qualified dividend
into account in determining its deductible investiiaterest (which is generally limited to its metestment income) only if it elects to do so,
in which case the dividend will be taxed at ordjnimcome rates. Corporate holders will not be adldva deduction for dividends received in
respect of our ordinary shares.

Dividends on our ordinary shares will be foreignime passive income (or in some cases, genergagtancome) for U.S. foreign tax
credit purposes. Distributions in excess of eamiaugd profits will be applied against and will reduon a share-by-share basis, the U.S.
holder’s basis in the ordinary shares and, to the extestdess of that basis, will be treated as gaim fitee sale or exchange of ordinary she

The amount of a distribution paid to a U.S. holidea foreign currency will be the U.S. dollar valfethe foreign currency calculated by
reference to the spot exchange rate on the day.®eholder receives the distribution. A U.S. holttat receives a foreign currency
distribution and converts the foreign currency ibt&. dollars after receipt
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will have foreign exchange gain or loss based gnagapreciation or depreciation in the value offitreign currency against the U.S. dollar,
which will generally be U.S. source ordinary incoordoss.

U.S. holders will have the option of claiming the@unt of any Israeli income taxes withheld at sewgither as a deduction from gross
income or as a dollar-for-dollar credit againstitheS. federal income tax liability. Individualsh@ do not claim itemized deductions, but
instead utilize the standard deduction, may natckdeduction for the amount of the Israeli incaarees withheld, but the amount may be
claimed as a credit against the individual's Ueglefral income tax liability. The amount of foreigoome taxes that may be claimed as a cred
in any year is generally subject to complex liniitas and restrictions, which must be determinedmimdividual basis by each shareholder.
Those limitations include the provisions describethe following paragraphs, as well as rules timait foreign tax credits allowable for a class
of income to the U.S. federal income taxes othexpisyable on the net income in that class.

A U.S. holder will be denied a foreign tax credit fsraeli income tax withheld from dividends ra@a on our ordinary shares:

. ifthe U.S. holder has not held the ordinary shéwest least 16 days of the 30-day period begigmin the date that is 15 days before
the e-dividend date; o

» to the extent that the U.S. holder is under angaltibn to make related payments on substantiaityiai or related property.

Any days during which a U.S. holder has substdptdiminished its risk of loss on the ordinary skmare not counted toward meeting the
16-day holding period required by the statute. A fgnetax credit for the Israeli tax can be deferfatié U.S. holder enters into certain type:
arrangements to defer inclusion of the relateddéind in income for tax purposes.

Taxation of the Disposition of Ordinary Shares

Subject to the discussion below under “Tax Consece®if We Are a Passive Foreign Investment Compamppn the sale, exchange or
other taxable disposition of our ordinary shareld,&. holder will recognize capital gain or lossaimamount equal to the difference betwee
U.S. holder’s basis in the ordinary shares, whichsually the cost to the U.S. holder of the shaned the amount realized on the disposition.
Capital gain from the sale, exchange or other digiom of ordinary shares held more than one yg&origterm capital gain and is eligible fol
reduced rate of taxation in the case of non-cotpdexpayers. Gain or loss recognized by a U.Sleran the sale, exchange or other
disposition of ordinary shares generally will beatied as U.S. source income or loss for U.S. forig credit purposes. The deductibility of
capital losses is subject to limitations.

A U.S. holder that uses the cash method of accogitiiculates the U.S. dollar value of foreign eooy proceeds received on a sale as o
the date on which the U.S. holder receives thddgareurrency. However, a U.S. holder that usescanual method of accounting is required to
calculate the value of the proceeds of the satd #ee date of sale and may therefore realize goreurrency gain or loss on a subsequent
disposition of the foreign currency based on aryssquent appreciation or depreciation in the vafuibe foreign currency against the U.S.
dollar. That gain or loss will generally be U.Susm ordinary income or loss.

Tax Consequences if We Are a Passive Foreign Inmesit Company

We will be a passive foreign investment companyylich we refer as a PFIC, if 75% or more of owrsgrincome in a taxable year,
including our pro rata share of the gross incomamyf corporation in which we are considered to @&% or more of the shares by value
(subject to certain exceptions in the case of a thforation), is passive income. Alternatively will be considered to be a PFIC if at least
50% of our assets in a taxable year, ordinarilgaeined based on the quarter-end average fair maakee of our assets over the taxable yeal
and including the pro rata share of the assetsytarporation in which we are considered to ow#2% more of the shares by value (subject
to certain exceptions in the case of a U.S. cotporg produce or are held for the production asgiae income.

If we were a PFIC, and a U.S. holder did not makejescribed below, a timely election either tatttes as a qualified electing fund or, if
the election is available, to mark our shares tdketaany excess distributions we pay to a U.Sdérolvould be taxed in a special way. Excess
distributions are amounts paid on shares in a RirEDy taxable year that exceed 125% of the avedegebutions paid on those shares in the
shorter of:

« the three previous years; and
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- the U.S. holder’s holding period for ordinary stsbefore the present taxable year.

Excess distributions must be allocated ratablyatheday that a U.S. holder has held our ordinaayesh A U.S. holder would then be
required to include amounts allocated to the curi@rable year and each prior year in which we wetea PFIC (but not before our first
taxable year beginning after December 31, 198@%¥igross income as ordinary income for the curyeatr. Further, a U.S. holder would be
required to pay tax on amounts allocated to eaidh faxable year in which we were a PFIC at thénbgj rate in effect for that year on ordin
income, and the tax for each such year would bsuto an interest charge at the rate applicabtieficiencies for income tax.

The entire amount of gain that is realized or #dats realized by a U.S. holder upon the saleharaisposition of ordinary shares
(generally whether or not the disposition is a bd@dransaction) will also be treated as an exdestsbution and will be subject to tax as
described in the preceding paragraph.

In some circumstances a U.S. holder’s tax basisirordinary shares that were inherited from a deed person who was a U.S. holder
would not equal the fair market value of those mady shares as of the date of the deceased pedsmtls but would instead be equal to the
deceased’s basis, if lower.

The special PFIC rules described above will nofyafipa U.S. holder if that U.S. holder makes aetgbn to treat us as a qualified elec
fund, to which we refer as a QEF, in the first taleayear in which the U.S. holder owns ordinaryrebaprovided we comply with specified
reporting requirements. Instead, a U.S. holder hidmmade such a QEF election is required for eacbte year in which we are a PFIC to
include in income a pro rata share of our ordireasnings as ordinary income and a pro rata shavarafiet capital gain as long-term capital
gain, subject to a separate election to defer paywfahe related tax. If deferred, the taxes WlIsubject to an interest charge. We would
supply U.S. holders with the information neededefmort income and gain under a QEF election if veeenclassified as a PFIC.

The QEF election is made on a shareholder-by-shittehbasis and can be revoked only with the cansfetihe Internal Revenue Service,
to which we refer as the IRS. A shareholder mak@&R election by attaching a completed IRS Forml8&&luding the PFIC annual
information statement, to a timely filed U.S. femldncome tax return and by filing a copy of thenflowith the IRS Service Center in
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania. Even if a QEF elecisomot made, a United States person who is a sblgiehin a PFIC must file every year a
completed IRS Form 8621 or other form as may begpiteed by the IRS pursuant to recently enacted|Bgn requiring annual reports with
respect to PFICs.

A U.S. holder of PFIC shares that are publicly éhdhay elect to mark the stock to market annuedlypgnizing as ordinary income or i
each year an amount equal to the difference aseatlbse of the taxable year between the fair niaskieie of the PFIC shares and the U.S.
holder’s adjusted tax basis in the PFIC sharessé®gould be allowed only to the extent of net rtarknarket gain previously included in
income by the U.S. holder under the election farraxable years. If the mark-to-market electioerevmade, then the rules described above
(other than the rules for excess distributions,clwhirould apply to the first year the election isdma# we were a PFIC in a prior year and a
QEF election were not made for the first year weensePFIC) would not apply for periods coveredhsy ¢lection.

Although we do not believe that we were a PFIC0&4 we cannot assure you that the IRS will agrdie tlvat conclusion or that we will
not become a PFIC in 2015 or in a subsequent Jéartests for determining PFIC status are appligdially, and it is difficult to make
accurate predictions of future income and assdighaare relevant to this determination. U.S. hiddeho hold ordinary shares during a perioc
when we are a PFIC will be subject to these ridesn if we cease to be a PFIC in later years, sutespecified exceptions for U.S. holders
who made a QEF election in the first year they loeidordinary shares and we were a PFIC or iflater year they made any of certain
elections to purge the PFIC taint of our ordindrgres, which elections generally require the payroktax. U.S. holders are urged to consult
their tax advisers about the PFIC rules, includiigF and mark-to-market elections.

New Tax on Investment Incom

For taxable years beginning after December 31, 2812S. holder that is an individual or estatea trust that does not fall into a special
class of trusts that is exempt from the tax, waldubject to a 3.8% tax on the lesser of (1) tf& bolder’s “net investment income” for the
relevant taxable year and (2) the excess of the hbifler's modified adjusted gross income for treable year over a certain threshold (which
in the case of individuals will be between $125,@8d $250,000, depending on the individual’s cirstances). A U.S. holder’s net investment
income generally will include its dividends on audinary shares and net gains from dispositiorsuofordinary shares, unless those dividend
or gains are derived in the ordinary course ofcihreduct of trade or business (other than tradeisinkss that consists of certain passive or
trading activities). Net investment income, howeveay be
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reduced by deductions properly allocable to thebmne. A U.S. holder that is an individual, estatérest is urged to consult its tax adviser
regarding the applicability of the Medicare tavtwincome and gains in respect of its investmemuir ordinary shares.

Tax Consequences for Non-U.S. Holders of Ordinarya®es

Except as described in “Information Reporting amtiBip Withholding” below, a non-U.S. holder of ardiy shares will not be subject to
U.S. federal income or withholding tax on the papbtf dividends on, and the proceeds from the digiom of, ordinary shares, unless:

« theincome is effectively connected with the conidiycthe non-U.S. holder of a trade or busineghénUnited States and, in the case
of a resident of a country that has an incomeyred@h the United States, the income is attributabla U.S. permanent establishment
or, in the case of an individual, a fixed placdo§iness in the United Stat:

« the non-U.S. holder is an individual who holds ¢heinary shares as a capital asset and is prasém United States for 183 days or
more in the taxable year of the disposition andsduat qualify for an exemption;

« the non-U.S. holder is subject to tax under thevigions of U.S. tax law applicable to U.S. expadésa

A non-U.S. holder is a beneficial owner of our oaty shares that is (1) a nonresident alien asetdJnited States for U.S. federal income
tax purposes; (2) a corporation created or orgdnizer under the law of a country, or any of itdifical subdivisions, other than the United
States; or (3) an estate or trust that is not a hbiler.

Information Reporting and Backup Withholding

U.S. holders generally are subject to informatigparting requirements for dividends paid in thetdhiStates on ordinary shares.
Dividends paid in the United States to a U.S. ho@ieordinary shares are subject to backup withihgldt a rate of 28% (for taxable years
through 2013) unless the U.S. holder provides IB®RWV-9 or establishes an exemption. U.S. holderemally are subject to information
reporting and backup withholding at a rate of 28¥pooceeds paid from the disposition of ordinargrels unless the U.S. holder provides IRS
Form W-9 or establishes an exemption.

A non-U.S. holder who effects the sale of his cadynshares by or through a U.S. office of a brageubject to both information reporting
and backup withholding tax on the payment of ttecpeds unless he certifies, under penalties ofipethat he is not a U.S. person or
otherwise establishes an exemption. If a non-Uo&ldr sells his ordinary shares through a non-bff&e of a non-U.S. broker and the sales
proceeds are paid to the holder outside the UiStates, then information reporting and backup vattlimg generally will not apply to that
payment. However, information reporting requirensebut not backup withholding, will apply to a pagmh of sales proceeds, even if that
payment is made to a non-U.S. holder outside thtedi®tates, if the holder sells his ordinary shdheough a non-U.S. office of a broker that
is a U.S. person or has some other contacts wattuttited States. Those information reporting rezraints will not apply, however, if the
broker has documentary evidence in its recordsthigaholder is a non-U.S. person and certain atbeditions are met, or the holder otherwise
establishes an exemption.

Backup withholding is not an additional tax. Ratlte amount of any backup withholding will be alled as a credit against a U.S. or nor
U.S. holder’'s U.S. federal income tax liability dea taxpayer generally may obtain a refund of angunts withheld under the backup
withholding rules that exceed the taxpayer’'s UeBlefal income tax liability by filing a refund alaiwith the IRS, provided in each case that
required information is furnished to the IRS.

Information Reporting by Certain U.S. Holders

U.S. citizens and individuals taxable as residéansa of the United States that own “specified fonefinancial assets” with an aggregate
value in a taxable year in excess of $50,000 (&smdned under rules in new temporary Treasuryleguns) and that are required to file a
U.S. federal income tax return generally will bguiged to file an information report with respeetthose assets with their tax returns. IRS
Form 8938 has been issued for that purpose. “Spddidreign financial assets” include any finan@atounts maintained by foreign financial
institutions, foreign stocks held directly, andeirgsts in foreign estates, foreign pension plarisreign deferred compensation plans. Under
those rules, our ordinary shares, whether owneztdlyr or through a financial institution, estatepension or deferred compensation plan,
would be “specified foreign financial assets”. Ungeoposed Treasury regulations, the reportinggelilbn applies to certain U.S. entities that
hold, directly or indirectly, specified foreign fincial assets. Penalties can apply if there idaéao satisfy this reporting obligation. A U.S.
Holder is urged to consult his tax adviser regaydiis reporting obligation.
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F. Dividends and Paying Agents.
Not applicable.

G. Statement by Experts.
Not applicable.

H. Documents on Display.

We are subject to the informational requirementhefExchange Act. In accordance with these remerdgs, we are required to file repc
and other information with the SEC. You may read aopy these materials, including this annual regond the accompanying exhibits and
reports and other information that we have preiofied, at the public reference facilities maimad by the SEC at 100 F Street, N.E.,
Washington, D.C. 20549. You may obtain informationthe operation of the public reference room bingal(800)-SEC-0330. The SEC
maintains an Internet Site at http://www.sec.g@t ttontains reports and other information that Meeeflectronically. The reports and other
information filed by us with the SEC are also aahkié at our websites, www.stratasys.com and wwwtatgm. The web addresses of the SEC
and our company have been included as inactivadertferences only. Information on those webs#gewt part of this annual report. In
addition, documents referred to in this annual repay be inspected at the offices of the NASDAQI§al Select Market, 1735 K Street, N.
Washington, D.C. You can also obtain copies of respand other information that we file electronigalvithout charge, by requesting them in
writing or by telephone from our company at thédaing address:

Stratasys Ltd.
c/o Stratasys, Inc.
7665 Commerce Way
Eden Prairie, Minnesota 55344
Attention: Shane Glenn, Vice President of Invefelations
Tel: (952) 937-3000

As a foreign private issuer, we are exempt fromrthes under the Exchange Act prescribing the &ininig and content of proxy
statements, and our officers, directors and pral@hareholders are exempt from the reporting ahdrt-swing” profit recovery provisions
contained in Section 16 of the Exchange Act. Initaaid we are not required under the Exchange Adilé periodic reports and financial
statements with the SEC as frequently or as prgnastlUnited States companies whose securitieegrgtered under the Exchange Act.

I. Subsidiary Information.
Not Applicable.
ITEM 11. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET RISK.

Market risk is the risk of loss related to changesmarket prices, including interest rates andifpreexchange rates, of financial
instruments that may adversely impact our constdtidalance sheets, statements of operations loffloass.

Foreign Currency Exchange Risk
Due to our international operations, currency ergearates impact our financial performance.

The majority of our balance sheet exposure relat&siro-denominated assets and liabilities. OuiEugb balance sheet exposure as of
December 31, 2014 was approximately €88.2 million.

Our total revenues amounted to $750.1 million ia£0f which approximately 15.0% were denominateBuros. During 2014, our Euro-
denominated revenues exceeded our Elemmeminated expenses. Conversely, our expensemieted in shekels are higher than our expe
shekel-denominated revenues. For those currentiehwo not have a sufficient natural hedge withim operations (such as offsetting
revenues and expenses recorded in a given currenspme other hedge), we may choose to hedgeler tw reduce the impact of currency
fluctuations on our operating results. In 2014 ,emtered into hedging transactions to reduce thenpiat exposure resulting from the
strengthening of the U.S. dollar against the Eua strengthening of the shekel against the U.Saddur foreign exchange forward contracts
in effect as of December 31, 2014 were for the eosion of $45.0 million into €33.9 million, and thenversion of $56.9 million into NIS
204.7 million.
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The net effect of these risks stemming from curyemahange rate fluctuations on our operating tesaln be quantified as follows:

(i) An increase of 10% in the value of the Euratiek to the U.S. dollar in 2014 would have regiiitean increase in the U.S. dollar
reporting value of our consolidated operating inearh$7.9 million for that year, mainly due to therease in dollar value of products and
services revenues earned in Euros, while a decc#ds¥#s in the value of the Euro relative to th&ldollar in 2014 would have resulted in a
decrease in the U.S. dollar reporting value ofaamsolidated operating income of $7.9 million f612, reflecting the decreased dollar valu
products and services revenues earned in Euros.

(i) An increase of 10% in the value of the shaledtive to the dollar in the year ended Decemlie2814 would have resulted in a net
decrease in the dollar-reported value of our codatdd operating income of $13.9 million, due te #uverse impact to our operating margins
that we would have experienced as a result of andhcrease in dollar-reported value of shekel@®d expenses. On the other hand, a 10%
decrease in value of the shekel relative to thiadoi the year ended December 31, 2014 would baused a net increase in the doiigportec
value of our consolidated operating income of $18ilion for 2014, due to the favorable effect amr @perating margins that would result
from such devaluation of the shekel.

We will continue to monitor exposure to currenaycflations. Instruments that may be used to proteegainst future risks may include
foreign currency forward and swap contracts. Thesguments may be used to selectively manage, imkshere can be no assurance that we
will be fully protected against material foreigrrieency fluctuations. We do not use derivative ficiahinstruments for speculative or trading
purposes.

Interest Rate Risk

Our cash and cash equivalents are held primaribaitk deposits with maturities of less than 90 dagd our short-term bank deposits
have maturities of more than 90 days. Both areesmiildp limited interest rate risk, with an averagerest rate of 0.31%. During 2014 we
borrowed $50 million under the credit facility. Ammediate 10% change in interest rates would ne¢ leamaterial effect on our financial
condition or results of operations.

ITEM 12. DESCRIPTION OF SECURITIES OTHER THAN EQUIT Y SECURITIES.

Not Applicable.

PART Il

ITEM 13. DEFAULTS, DIVIDEND ARREARAGES AND DELINQUE NCIES.

None
ITEM 14. MATERIAL MODIFICATIONS TO THE RIGHTS OF SE CURITY HOLDERS AND USE OF PROCEEDS.

None
ITEM 15. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES .

(a) Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We carried out an evaluation under the superviaimhwith the participation of our management, idiig our chief executive officer and
chief financial officer, of the effectiveness ofralisclosure controls and procedures (as defin€tuies 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the
Exchange Act), as of December 31, 2014, the enkleoperiod covered by this annual report. We mairdaclosure controls and procedures
designed to ensure that the information requirdaetdisclosed by us in filings and submissions utiie Exchange Act, is recorded, proces
summarized, and reported within the time periogxgied by the SEC’s rules and forms, and thatrimftion required to be disclosed by us in
reports that we file or submit under the Exchangeigaccumulated and communicated to managenmatiiding our chief executive officer
and chief financial officer, as appropriate to allimely decisions regarding required disclosunedésigning and evaluating our disclosure
controls and procedures, our management recogthiaeany controls and procedures, no matter howdesigned and operated, can provide
only reasonable assurance of achieving their abgstand our management necessarily appliesdtgient in evaluating the cost-benefit
relationship of possible controls and procedureseBl on such evaluation, our chief executive affice
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and chief financial officer have concluded that disiclosure controls and procedures were effeetdref December 31, 2014.
(b) Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting;

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finah@aorting. Our internal control
system was designed to provide reasonable assu@oce management and board of directors regaitti@geliability of financial reporting
and the preparation and fair presentation of itsiphied consolidated financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdenaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

Our management assessed the effectiveness oftetmahcontrol over financial reporting as of Detemn31, 2014. The internal control
over financial reporting of Solid Concepts was imotuded in that assessment due to the fact thaaoguisition of that company was
completed in the middle of 2014. In making our ase®ent, our management used the criteria estatllisHaternal Control—Integrated
Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Spangddrganizations of the Treadway Commission (CQ®ased on such assessment,
management has concluded that, as of Decembef24, @ur internal control over financial reportisgeffective based on those criteria.

Kesselman & Kesselman, an independent registerelicpaccounting firm in Israel and a member of PriaterhouseCoopers Internatic
Limited, to which we refer as PwC, which audited fmancial statements included in this annual repentaining the disclosure required by
this Item 15 has issued an attestation report déggthe effectiveness of our internal control ofreancial reporting.

(c) Attestation Report of Registered Public Accounng Firm .

PwC'’s attestation report regarding the effectivasfssur internal control over financial reportirgincluded in “Item 18—Financial
Statements” on page F-3 of this annual report, whitestation report is incorporated by referendhis Item 15(c).

(d) Changes in Internal Control over Financial Repating.

Based on the evaluation conducted by our managemihtthe participation of our chief executiveioffr and chief financial officer,
pursuant to Rules 13a-15(d) and 15d-15(d) prometyanhder the Exchange Act, our management (inajuslich officers) have concluded that
there were the following changes to our internaitad over financial reporting (as defined in Rula-15(f) or 15d-15(f) under the Exchange
Act) that occurred during the period covered by timnual report that have materially affected reraasonably likely to materially affect, our
internal control over financial reporting:

During the year ended December 31, 2012, we coeplbe Stratasys-Objet merger. As part of our argactivities after the merger in
the year ended December 31, 2014, we continuattdgrate our financial reporting functions and caomtrols and procedures between our
legacy Stratasys, Inc. and Objet businesses. Vdeaalgmented our company-wide controls to refleetrtbks inherent in a business

combination of the magnitude and complexity of therger.

Other than as described in the foregoing paragtigne were no other changes in our internal ctstreer financial reporting that
occurred during the year ended December 31, 2Gitshtve materially affected, or are reasonabhyhlike materially affect, our internal
control over financial reporting.

ITEM 16A. AUDIT COMMITTEE FINANCIAL EXPERT.

Our board of directors has determined that Mr. B@dheh, who serves as chairman of the audit caeerof our board of directors, me
the requirements of an “audit committee financiglezt”, as defined in Item 407(d)(5) of SEC RegdolatS-K and Item 16A of SEC Form Z0-
and is an independent director, as defined in BGGO(a)(2) of the NASDAQ Listing Rules.

ITEM 16B. CODE OF ETHICS.

114



We have adopted a Code of Business Conduct andsitbhiwhich we refer as the code of ethics, tpaties to all directors, officers, and
employees of our company and its subsidiariesudinl our chief executive officer, principal finaalcofficer, principal accounting officer or
controller and other persons performing similarctions for us. A copy of the code of ethics hasibjgasted on our Internet website,
http://investors.stratasys.com/governance.cfm amacorporated herein by reference. The foregoiagsite has been provided as an inactive
textual reference only, and the content of thatsitebs not a part of this annual report.

ITEM 16C. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES.

The following table sets forth, for the years enBetember 31, 2014 and 2013, the fees billed Bndsour subsidiaries by our principal
accountant(®)

Year ended December 31

2014 2013
Audit fees®@ $ 954,58( $ 625,23t
Audit-related fee® 304,60( 328,56
Tax fee<® 465,32: 381,78!
All other fees® 178,14 274,57
Total $ 190264 $ 1,610,16

(1) Comprised by fees hilled by Kesselman & Kess@lma member firm of PricewaterhouseCoopers Intieme Limited, an independent
registered public accounting firm, or Kesselman &skelman (which served as our principal accoumtéhtrespect to the years ended
December 31, 2014 and 201

(2)  Audit fees consist of fees for professional/gms rendered by our principal accountant in cotioe with the audit of our consolidated
annual financial statements and services that woaoltthally be provided by our principal accountantonnection with statutory and
regulatory filings or engagemen

(3) Audit-related fees are fees for assurance aladed services rendered by our principal accotilat are reasonably related to the
performance of its audit of our financial statensesmid that are not reported un“Audit-fee<” above.

(4) Taxfees are fees for services rendered by oucipahaccountant in connection with tax compliarteg,planning and tax advic
(5) All other fees are fees for other consulting segsi¢f any) rendered by our principal accountanid
Pre-approval Policies and Procedures
Our audit committee approves, in advance, all aadiit-related services, tax services and othetces provided by our principal
accountants. Any services provided by our princgzalountant that are not specifically included aitthe scope of the audit must be pre-
approved by our audit committee prior to any engagy@. None of the services provided by our princgaountants in 2014 or 2013 was
approved under thée minimusexception provision described in paragraph (c)(({Gji of Rule 2-01 of SEC Regulation S-X.
ITEM 16D. EXEMPTIONS FROM THE LISTING STANDARDS FOR AUDIT COMMITTEES.
None.
ITEM 16E. PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES BY THE ISSUER AND AFFILIATED PURCHASERS.
None.
ITEM 16F. CHANGE IN REGISTRANT'S CERTIFYING ACCOUNT ANT.
Not applicable.
ITEM 16G. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE.
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The NASDAQ Global Select Market requires compamigh securities listed thereon to comply with itggorate governance standards.
As a foreign private issuer, we are not requiredaimply with all of the rules that apply to listddmestic U.S. companies. Pursuant to
NASDAQ Listing Rule 5615(a)(3), we have notifiNASDAQ that with respect to the corporate goveregm@ctices described below, we will
instead follow Israeli law and practice and acaogtl will not follow the NASDAQ Listing Rules. Exge for the differences described below,
we do not believe there are any significant diffiees between our corporate governance practicethasd that apply to a U.S. domestic is¢
under the NASDAQ Global Select Market corporateegoance rules.

Quorum for Shareholder Meetingas permitted under the Companies Law, under ameamendment adopted to our amended and
restated articles of association, the quorum requior an ordinary meeting of shareholders consistd least two shareholders pre:
in person, by proxy or by other voting instrumemiio hold at least 25% of the voting power of owarsis (and in an adjourned
meeting, with some exceptions, two shareholdeggrdiess of the voting power associated with thleirres), instead of 333% of the
issued share capital required under the NASDAQrgsRules.

Executive Sessions of Independent Directddsider the Companies Law, our independent dirsc@s defined under the NASDAQ
Listing Rules) do not need to meet regularly irsg@ss at which only they are present, as is redufd).S. domestic issuers under
NASDAQ Listing Rule 5605(b)(2]

Independent Director Oversight of Executive OffiG@mpensation As described under Item 6.C (“Board Practices"'Beéard of
Directors"— “Board Committees"— “Compensation Pglend Committee”), under the Companies Law, themamsation of our
executives and other office holders is subjecttorapensation policy and to the recommendatiorssafmpensation committee of «
board of directors that we have adopted and apgaiméspectively. The required composition of tteahmittee and the procedure for
approval of compensation under that Companies Lraena@ment differ slightly from those under NASDAGting Rule 5605(d),
which requires that the compensation of executffieass be recommended or determined solely bypedeent directors or by a
compensation committee of the board consistingysofeindependent directors (as defined under tASNAQ Listing Rules). While
there is significant practical overlap as to whaldies to serve on the compensation committee utitdeCompanies Law and the
NASDAQ Listing Rules, the requirements are not ta=h, and we comply with the Companies Law requiet.

Independent Director Oversight of Nominationidnder Israeli law, there is no requirement toéham independent nominating
committee or the independent directors of a compatgct (or recommend for selection) director n@a#) as is required under
NASDAQ Listing Rule 5605(e) for a U.S. domestiauiss Our board of directors (based on the recomat@rdof the executiv
committee thereof) handles this process, as isigtediby our amended articles and the Companies Vésvalso need not adopt a
formal board resolution or charter addressing ihectbr nominations process and such related nsatemay be required under the
U.S. federal securities laws, as NASDAQ requiresaft).S. issuel

Shareholder ApprovalPursuant to Israeli law, we seek shareholderaygbifor all corporate actions requiring such apptainder thi
requirements of the Companies Law, which are difiefrom, or in addition to, the requirements feelsing shareholder approval
under NASDAQ Listing Rule 5635. See “ltem 6. Dimst Senior Management and Employees—C. BoardiPeact— Fiduciary
Duties of Office HoldersTn this annual report for a description of the sarhéhe transactions requiring shareholder apprawder th
Companies Law

Distribution of Annual and Interim Report#&\s opposed to NASDAQ Listing Rule 5250(d), whielguires listed issuers to make
annual and quarterly reports available to sharetsloh one of a number of specific manners, Istaglidoes not require us to
distribute such reports directly to shareholdens, e generally accepted business practice iellsgaot to distribute such reports to
shareholders but to make such reports availabdeigfir a public website. In addition, we will make aanual report containing
audited financial statements available to our di@ders at our offices (in addition to a public \wié). We reserve the right to limit
our mailing of such report to shareholders to aon-request basit

ITEM 16H. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURE.

Not applicable.
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PART Il
ITEM 17. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.
We have elected to provide financial statementsraladed information pursuant to Item 18.
ITEM 18. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements and theaglabtes required by this Item are included in @imisual report beginning on page F-1.

Index to Consolidated Financial Statement: Page
Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfding F-3to F-4
Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2012068 F-5
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Compseleemcome (Loss) for the Years Ended Decembe314, 2013

and 201z F-6
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity fervtbars Ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and F-7
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Yeaded December 31, 2014, 2013 and Z F-8 to F-9
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statem F-10 to F-49
Index to Financial Statement Scheduli
Schedule FValuation and Qualifying Accounts and Reser S-1
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STRATASYS LTD.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm
To the shareholders of Stratasys Ltd.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated badasheets and the related consolidated statemeafemtions and comprehensive inct
(loss), changes in equity and cash flows presarly fan all material respects, the financial pamit of Stratasys Ltd. and its subsidiarie
December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, and sultgef their operations and their cash flowsdach of the three years in the pe
ended December 31, 2014 in conformity with accaunfrinciples generally accepted in the United é3taif America. In addition, in @
opinion, the financial statement schedule listedhiea accompanying index, presents fairly, in alterial respects, the information set ft
therein when read in conjunction with the relatedsolidated financial statements. Also in our apinithe Company maintained, in all mate
respects, effective internal control over finanadiaporting as of December 31, 2014, based on ieitestablished irinternal Control -
Integrated Framework (201lssued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatafnhe Treadway Commission (COSQ). The Compgny
management and Board of Directors are respongiblthése financial statements and the financiaéstant schedule, for maintaining effec
internal control over financial reporting and ftg assessment of the effectiveness of internakabaver financial reporting, included in 1
accompanying Report of Stratasys Management on Internal Corneédr Financial Reporting appearing under Item 15. Our responsibili
to express opinions on these financial statememtghe financial statements schedule and on thep@oys internal control over financ
reporting based on our audits (which were integratedits in 2014 and 2013). We conducted our audiggcordance with the standards of
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (Unitedt&s). Those standards require that we plan arfidrpethe audits to obtain reasonz
assurance about whether the financial statemeatea of material misstatement and whether effedtiternal control over financial report
was maintained in all material respects. Our audfitthe financial statements included examining,aotest basis, evidence supporting
amounts and disclosures in the financial statemestessing the accounting principles used andisaymt estimates made by management
Board of Directors and evaluating the overall ficiah statement presentation. Our audit of intew@itrol over financial reporting includ
obtaining an understanding of internal control ofieancial reporting, assessing the risk that aemat weakness exists, and testing
evaluating the design and operating effectivenéssternal control based on the assessed risk.aDdits also included performing such o
procedures as we considered necessary in the gtanoes. We believe that our audits provide a redse basis for our opinions.

A companys internal control over financial reporting is @@ess designed to provide reasonable assuranaeliregthe reliability of financie
reporting and the preparation of financial statetmdor external purposes in accordance with gelyemicepted accounting principles
companys internal control over financial reporting inclsdiose policies and procedures that (i) pertaithéomaintenance of records tha
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleet ttansactions and dispositions of the assetseottimpany; (ii) provide reasonable assur
that transactions are recorded as necessary toitpgraparation of financial statements in accor@amdgth generally accepted accoun
principles, and that receipts and expenditureshef dompany are being made only in accordance withosizations of management :
directors of the company; and (iii) provide readdaaassurance regarding prevention or timely dieteaif unauthorized acquisition, use
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzaneterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohwver financial reporting may not prevent or @ttmisstatements. Also, projections of
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods agexct to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, ol
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.
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/sl Kesselman & Kesselman
Certified Public Accountants (lIsr.)
A member firm of PricewaterhouseCoopers Internaticmmited

Tel-Aviv , Israel
March 3, 2015



STRATASYS LTD.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31 2014 2013
U.S. dollars in thousands, except share ¢
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalel $ 442,14: $ 414,08t
Shor-term bank deposit 59t 200,37
Accounts receivable, n 150,80¢ 99,20(
Inventories 123,38! 88,40¢
Net investment in sal-type lease 8,17( 6,69¢
Prepaid expenst 7,931 5,47(
Deferred income taxe 25,69° 16,50:
Other current assets 37,90: 21,39¢
Total current assets 796,62¢ 852,12¢
Non-current assets
Goodwill 1,323,50; 1,195,89
Other intangible assets, r 597,90: 622,33l
Property, plant and equipment, | 157,03¢ 91,00¢
Net investment in sal-type lease- lonc-term 14,82 11,21¢
Other non-current assets 9,21¢ 9,64
Total non-current assets 2,102,47 1,930,09.
Total assets $ 2,899,10 $ 2,782,22
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities
Accounts payabl $ 37,35¢ $ 35,37¢
Shor-term deb! 50,00( —
Accrued expenses and other current liabili 47,76( 29,86¢
Accrued compensation and related bent 42,33: 21,44
Obligations in connection with acquisitio 28,09: 12,027
Deferred revenues 45,02 36,03
Total current liabilities 250,56t 134,74«
Non-current liabilities
Obligations in connection with acquisitio- long-term 26,46 16,99¢
Deferred tax liabilitie: 55,83t 105,90:
Deferred revenue- long-term 5,94¢ 3,31
Other non-current liabilities 25,09! 21,47¢
Total non-current liabilities 113,33: 147,69(
Total liabilities $ 363,89¢ $ 282,43:
Commitments and contingencies, see not
Redeemable no-controlling interests 3,96¢ —
Equity
Ordinary shares, NIS 0.01 nominal value, authoriZ@@,000 thousands shares; 50,923 thous:
shares and 49,211 thousands shares issued anahdirigtat December 31, 2014 and 2013,
respectively 13¢ 13z
Additional paic-in capital 2,568,14! 2,412,19
Retained earnings (accumulated defi (33,87) 85,54¢
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (3,647 1,90¢




Equity attributable to Stratasys L1 2,530,77! 2,499,78
Non-controlling interests 46¢ —
Total equity 2,531,23' 2,499,78
Total liabilities and equity $ 2,899,10 $ 2,782,22

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofel@msolidated financial statements.
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STRATASYS LTD.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehsive Income (Loss)

Years Ended December 31 2014 2013 2012
U.S. dollars in thousands, except share and perestiata
Net sales
Products $ 612,13t 414,85! $ 179,76.
Services 137,99: 69,55( 35,48:
750,12¢ 484,40: 215,24.
Cost of sales
Products 302,83t 213,42 86,74
Services 84,89 44,80: 18,59
387,73! 258,23( 105,33:
Gross profit 362,39: 226,17: 109,91:
Operating expense!
Research and development, 82,27( 52,31( 19,65¢
Selling, general and administrati 351,99: 202,04( 73,13(
Goodwill impairment 102,47( — —
Change in fair value of obligations in connectioithvacquisitions (26,15() 754 —
510,58 255,10 92,78¢
Operating income (loss; (148,189 (28,93) 17,12
Financial income (expense), net (6,529 (450 1,38¢
Income (loss) before income taxes (154,719 (29,38) 18,51(
Income taxes (35,24¢) (2,479 9,68
Net income (loss (119,470 (26,907 8,82:
Net income (loss) attributable to r-controlling interests (50) 47 332
Net income (loss) attributable to Stratasys | $ (119,420 (26,95/) $ 8,491
Net income (loss) per ordinary share attributable ¢ Stratasys Ltd.
Basic $ (2.39 (0.64) $ 0.37
Diluted $ (2.39) (0.6¢) $ 0.3¢
Weighted average ordinary shares outstanding (in thusands)
Basic 50,01¢ 42,07¢ 22,81
Diluted 50,01¢ 42,09¢ 23,77¢
Comprehensive Income
Net income (loss $ (119,470) (26,907 $ 8,82:
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of
Unrealized loss on securiti — — (167)
Losses on securities reclassified into earn 167 — —
Foreign currency translation adjustm (4,326 2,03¢ (72)
Unrealized gains (losses) on derivatives designasechsh flow hedc (1,396 15z —
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax (5,559 2,18¢ (23¢9
Comprehensive income (los (125,029 (24,719 8,58t
Less: comprehensive income (loss) attributableo-controlling interest (50 9C 23¢
Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to Stratas Ltd. $ (124,97 (24,809 $ 8,35-

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofermmsolidated financial statements.
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STRATASYS LTD.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity

Years Ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012

U.S. dollars in thousands, except number of shda¢s

Balances, January 1, 201

Exercise of stock options and warran
Tax benefit from stock plan and warrant
Stock-based compensatiol

Issuance of shares for acquisition
Comprehensive income (loss

Balances, December 31, 20!

Exercise of stock options

Tax benefit from stock plan and warrant
Stock-based compensatiol

Issuance of shares, ne

Issuance of shares and options fc
acquisitions

Acquisition of non-controlling interest
Comprehensive income (loss
Balances, December 31, 20!
Exercise of stock options
Stock-based compensatiol

Issuance of shares and options fc
acquisitions

Non-controlling interests arising from
acquisitions

Comprehensive los:

Balances, December 31, 20!

Ordinary Shares

Number of share!

Retained Accumulated
Additional Earnings Other

Paid-In  (accumulatec Comprehensive¢ attributable to

Equity

Non-controlling Total

(in thousands) Par Value Capital deficit) Income (Loss) Stratasys Ltd. Interests Equity
21,24¢ % 55 $ 79,34! $ 104,01: $ 99 $ 183,31: $ — $ 183,31:
1,681 4 15,29: 15,29 15,29
15,19: 15,19: 15,19:
8,874 8,87 8,87
15,44: 42 1,340,59 1,340,63. 262 1,340,89
8,491 (139 8,352 238 8,58¢
3837 $ 101 $1,459,29 $ 112,50: $ (239)$ 157166 $ 49€ $1,572,15
1,742 4 12,44° 12,45: 12,45:
642 642 642
24,26: 24,26: 24,26:
5,17¢ 15 463,89: 463,90t 463,90t
3,92% 13 453,20: 453,21 453,21°
(1,54¢) (1,54¢) (58¢€) (2,139
(26,959 2,14¢ (24,809 90 (24,719
49.21:  $ 13z $2,412,19 $ 85,54¢ $ 1,90¢ $ 2,499,78 $ — $2,499,78
55¢ 2 7,904 7,90¢ 7,90¢
30,207 30,20° 30,207
1,15¢ 4 117,84: 117,84! 117,84t
— 51¢ 51¢
(119,420 (5,55%) (124,97Y) (50) (125,02
50,92 $ 13¢ $2,568,14' $ (3387) % (3640% 253077 $ 46¢ $2,531,23

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofel@msolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years ended December 3! 2014 2013 2012
U.S. dollars in thousanc
Cash flows from operating activities

Net income (loss $ (119,470) $ (26,907 $ 8,82:
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to @esthcprovided by operatir
activities:
Depreciation and amortizatic 109,42¢ 92,43¢ 19,497
Goodwill impairmen 102,47( — —
Stocl-based compensatic 30,20" 24,26 8,87¢
Other impairment charge 14,63¢ — —
Currency translation loss (gai 10,321 (1,470 —
Deferred income taxe (53,887) (19,449 (3,450
Change in fair value of obligations in connectidittvacquisitions (26,15() 754 —
Excess tax benefit from stock options and war — (2,819 (15,199
Other nor-cash item: 27¢ (53 (4617)

Change in cash attributable to changes in operatisgts and liabilities, ne
of the impact of acquisition:

Accounts receivable, n (46,71°) (32,767 (19,639

Inventories (39,37() (27,107 (7,729

Net investment in sal-type lease (5,079 (4,909 (4,216

Other current assets and prepaid expe (10,537 1,22 (7,339

Other nor-current asset 1,55¢ (1,625 112

Accounts payabl (4,305 (8,519 28,14.

Other current liabilitie: 31,04° 14,00( (6,807

Deferred revenue 12,66: 11,60: 222

Other non-current liabilities 6,71¢ 13,36¢ 637

Net cash provided by operating activities 13,81¢ 32,02¢ 1,49¢
Cash flows from investing activities

Change in shc-term bank deposits, n 189,79: (180,30) 9,99¢

Cash paid for acquisitions, net of cash acqu (151,05) (8,759 —

Purchase of property and equipm (60,497 (33,27¢) (12,05%)

Purchase of investmer (3,767) — (8,407

Acquisition of intangible asse (3,087 (4,669 (3,019

Proceeds from maturities and sales of marketalslerities 1,63¢ — 53,36’

Other investing activitie (45¢) 258 11C

Cash acquired through merger with Objet Ltd. — — 41,52«

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activitie (27,439 (226,75) 81,51¢

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from sh-term debr 50,00( — —
Payment of obligations in connection with acquisit (20,799 — —
Proceeds from follo-on offering, net of issuance co: — 462,87 —
Proceeds from exercise of stock options and wa 7,90¢ 12,45 15,297
Excess tax benefit from stock options and war — 2,817 15,19:
Acquisition of nol-controlling interes (2,170 — —
Other financing activities — (3,22 —
Net cash provided by financing activities 44,94 474,91! 30,48¢
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cashueglents (3,265 69 238
Net change in cash and cash equivalen 28,05 280,26: 113,73
Cash and cash equivalentsbeginning of year 414,08t 133,82t 20,09:
Cash and cash equivalentgnd of year $ 442,14: $ 414,08t $ 133,82t

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofét@msolidated financial statemer






STRATASYS LTD.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years ended December 3! 2014 2013 2012
U.S. dollars in thousanc
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid for income tax $ 6,241 $ 3,30( 8,16¢
Transfer of inventory to fixed asse 10,93t 6,27¢ 2,781
Transfer of fixed assets to inventc 3,81¢ 31¢€ 96
Fair value of assets acquired, including $6,5024 @3 and $41,524 of casl
acquired for the years ended December 31, 2014 206d 2012,
respectively $ 360,59! $ 573,60: 1,456,92.
Less liabilities assumed (22,416) (79,959 (116,02)
Net acquired asse 338,17¢ 493,65( 1,340,89
Cash paid for merger and acquisitic $ 157,55¢ $ 12,16: —
Shares and other consideration 180,62( 481,48 1,340,89
Total consideration paid for merger and acquisg 338,17¢ 493,65( 1,340,89

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofefr@msolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Nature of Operations and Summary of Signifiant Accounting Policies

a. Nature of Operations

Stratasys Ltd. and subsidiaries (collectively t@®rmpany”) is a leading global provider of additivanufacturing (“AM”)solutions for th
creation of parts used in the processes of degigaimd manufacturing products and for the direct ufesture of end parts. The Company’
systems include desktop 3D printers for idea amsigtledevelopment, various systems for rapid prgioty (“RP”) and large productic
systems for direct digital manufacturing (“DDM"The Company develops, manufactures and sells rabteor use with its systems ¢
provides related service offerings to its custom&he Company also provides a variety of customufanturing solutions through its dir
manufacturing printed parts services.

The Company is the result of the 2012 merger of Ab companies, Stratasys, Inc. and Objet Ltd. (‘€Bj On December 1, 2012 (i
“merger date”), the two companies completed arstaltk merger (the “Stratasys-Objet merger” or ‘therger”), pursuant to which Stratas
Inc. became an indirect, wholly-owned subsidiarpbifet, and Objet changed its name to Stratasys Ltd

Upon closing of the merger, the former Stratasgs, stockholders owned approximately 55 percenttapdObjet shareholders retail
approximately 45 percent of the combined companya &ully diluted basis. Accordingly, while Objetawthe legal acquirer, Stratasys, Inc.
treated as the acquiring company in the mergeaéopunting purposes, and the merger was accouoteakfa reverse acquisition under
acquisition method of accounting for business comtidons. As a result, the financial statementhief@ompany prior to the merger date art
historical financial statements of Stratasys, Imtereas the financial statements of the Compatey #fe merger date reflect the results o
operations of Stratasys, Inc. and Objet on a coetbibasis. See additional disclosure provided ire rigtincluding pro forma financ
information for the Company on a combined basis.

The Company has one operating segment, which gesemenues via the sale of its 3D printing systamd related consumables ant
providing additive manufacturing solutions. The Qumy operates mainly through offices in Israel, thdted States, Germany, Hong K
and Japan. Entity-wide disclosures on net salepeopkrty, plant and equipment are presented ia hdt

b. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements are preparextcordance with accounting principles generaltgepted in the United States
America (“US GAAP”).

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statemigrtiside the accounts of Stratasys Ltd., its majesityned subsidiaries and Varia
Interest Entity (“VIE") in which the Company is considered the primary Beragy. All intercompany accounts and transactioimgluding
profits from intercompany sales not yet realizetsime the Company, have been eliminated in corestidid.

Functional Currency and Foreign Currency Transango

A major part of the Compang’operations are carried out by the Company arsllisidiaries in the United States and Israel.flihetiona
currency of these entities is the U.S. dollar (fadlor “$"). The functional currency of other subsidiaries iaagally their local currency. T
financial statements of those subsidiaries areitedl in consolidation, based on translation int8.dollars. Assets and liabilities are transl
at yearend exchange rates, while revenues and expensdsastated at actual exchange rates during the ys#Herences resulting fro
translation are presented in equity under accumdlather comprehensive income (loss). Gains ars$osn foreign currency transactions
exchange gains and losses denominated infumactional currencies are reflected in financiatdme (expense), net in the consolid
statements of operations and comprehensive inclos®) (vhen they arise.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith accounting principles generally acceptedhe United States of Americal{'S.
GAAP”) requires management to make estimates using assmsighat affect the reported amounts of assets liabdities and relate
disclosures at the date of the financial statemantsthe reported amounts of expenses during frertieg period. Actual results could dif
from those estimates, and such differences may laaweaterial impact on the Compasyfinancial statements. As applicable to tl
consolidated financial statements, the most sicgmifi estimates relate to revenue recognition, ioréss, fair value of stockase:
compensation, obligations in connection with acgjoiss, intangible assets and goodwill, uncertar positions, valuation allowances .
contingent liabilities.

Fair Value Measurements

Fair value is defined as the price that would leeireed to sell an asset or paid to transfer alifglin an orderly transaction between ma
participants at the measurement date. A hierarasy een established for inputs used in measuringvddue that maximizes the use
observable inputs and minimizes the use of unobdéevinputs by requiring that the most observatypeliis be used when available.

Observable inputs are inputs that are developedyusarket data, such as publicly available infofamaabout actual events or transactions
and that reflect the assumptions that market ppatits would use when pricing the asset or lighilitnobservable inputs are inputs for which
market data are not available and that are developing the best information available about treamptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability. The faitue hierarchy categorizes into three levels. L&vieputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilitileat the reporting entity can access at the meammedate. Level 2 inputs include inputs other
than quoted prices included within Level 1 that@servable for the asset or liability, either dilgor indirectly. Level 3 inputs are
unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. Tdie value hierarchy gives the highest prioritygieoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 inpugad the lowest priority to unobservable inputew&! 3 inputs). Categorization within the
valuation hierarchy is based upon the lowest le¥@iput that is significant to the fair value mes=ment.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

All highly liquid investments, which include shdagrm bank deposits that are not restricted as tbhdrawal or use, with maturities
ninety days or less when acquired, are considerbe tash equivalents.

Short-term Bank Deposits

Short-term bank deposits are deposits with maggribf more than ninety days and up to one yeant$wn bank deposits are presente
their cost, including accrued interest.

Accounts Receivable and Net investment in Sales-Igases

Accounts receivable and net investment in sales-kypses are presented in the Compmaoghsolidated balance sheets net of allowan:
doubtful accounts. The Company estimates the dalbdity of its accounts receivable balances andsid its allowance for doubtful accou
accordingly. The Company carries its investmensalestype leases based on discounting the minimum Ipagments by the interest r
implicit in the lease and less an allowance forldful accounts (see also note 5).
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On a periodic basis, the Company evaluates itsustsaeceivable and its investment in sdlgm leases and establishes an allowanc
doubtful accounts based on past wofés and collections, current credit conditions ahd age of the balances. The Company evalu:
number of factors to assess collectability, inahgdan evaluation of the creditworthiness of thecBmecustomer, past due amounts, payr
history, and current economic conditions.

Allowance for doubtful accounts due to the Compargtcounts receivable amounted to $1,025 thousamdis$1,804 thousands as
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Allowdnceloubtful accounts due to the Company’s investhin saletype leases amountec
$452 thousands and $183 thousands as of Decemb&034 and 2013, respectively. Accounts are writtfragainst the allowance wh
management deems the accounts are no longer ddke&@hanges in the allowance for doubtful accewe recognized in selling, general
administrative expenses.

Derivative Instruments and Hedge Accounting

The Company is exposed to global market risks anelxposed to the risk that its earnings, cash flang equity could be advers
impacted by fluctuations in foreign exchange rates.part of the Companyg’risk management strategy, it uses foreign cuyre&xchang
forward contracts to hedge against certain foreigmency exposures. The Company recognizes thesatiee instruments as either asset
liabilities in the consolidated balance sheetdairtfair value on a trade date basis. Derivatinea gain position are reported in other cut
assets in the consolidated balance sheets andchatieels in a loss position are recorded in accrugubmses and other current liabilities in
consolidated balance sheets, on a gross basis.

On the date that the Company enters into a devivatontract, it designates the derivative for aotiog purposes, as either a heds
instrument or a nohedging instrument. In order to qualify for hedgea@unting, the Company formally documents at theejtion of eac
hedging relationship the hedging instrument, thdgled item, the risk management objective and glyafer undertaking each hedg
relationship, and the method used to assess héiggt\eness.

For each derivative instrument that hedges the sxeoto variability in expected future cash flowsl dhat is designated and effective
cash flow hedge, the unrealized gain or loss o#hvative instrument is reported as a componéatoumulated other comprehensive inc
(“AOCI") in shareholders’equity and reclassified into earnings in the sam@opd during which the hedged transaction affeetmiags. Th
ineffective portion of the gain or loss on the dative instrument, if any, is recognized in finaldncome (expense), net. The cash fl
associated with these derivatives are reportelddrconsolidated statements of cash flows consigtesith the classification of cash flows fr
the underlying hedged items that these deriva@gvedhedging.

If a derivative financial instrument does not gfyafior hedge accounting, the Company records trengés in fair value of derivati
instruments in financial income (expense), nethia ¢onsolidated statements of operations and cdrapsé/e income (loss). The cash fl
associated with these derivatives are reflectezhak flows from operating activities in the condated statements of cash flows. The Com
does not enter into derivative transactions faditrg purposes. Refer to Note 11 for further infotioraregarding the Comparg/derivative an
hedging activities.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or mtavialue which is based on net realizable valuet @odetermined mainly using stanc
cost, which approximates actual cost, on a firstiist-out basisinventory costs consist of materials, direct labod overhead. The Comps
periodically assesses inventory for obsolescenckexcess balances and reduces the carrying valuenbgmount equal to the differel
between its cost and the estimated market valuedbas assumptions of future demand and historelasspatterns. The Company provi
inventory writedowns for obsolescence and excess inventorieseimitiounts of $5,370 thousands and $3,515 thousends December 3
2014 and 2013, respectively.
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Inventories acquired in a business combinationegerded at their estimated fair value less cdstiisposal and profit for sales efforts ¢
recognized to cost of sales as that inventoryli. so

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cestdecumulated depreciation. Depreciation is coetpusing the straighine method ove
the estimated useful lives of the assets, or ircts® of leasehold improvements, the shorter ofiethee term (including any renewal period
appropriate) or the estimated useful life of theebsMaintenance and repairs are expensed aseédcuvhile betterments and improvements
capitalized.

Estimated useful lives are principally as follows:

Useful Life in Years

Machinery and equipme 5
Buildings and improvemen 25
Computer equipment and softw: 3
Office equipment, furniture and fixtur 5

The Company reviews the carrying amounts of prgpgrtant and equipment for potential impairment whevents or changes
circumstances indicate that the carrying amoumnofisset may not be recoverable. In evaluating/ezability, the Company groups assets
liabilities at the lowest level such that the idiable cash flows relating to the group are laygieidependent of the cash flows of other a:
and liabilities. The Company then compares theyagagramounts of the assets or asset groups witheladed estimated undiscounted fu
cash flows. In the event impairment exists, an immpant charge is recorded at the amount by whiehctrrying amount of the asset or a
group exceeds the fair value. In addition, the iieing depreciation period for the impaired assetidde reassessed and, if necessary, re\

Goodwill

Gooduwill reflects the excess of the consideratiandferred plus the fair value of any noomtrolling interest in the acquiree at
acquisition date over the fair values of the idéatiie net assets acquired. Goodwill is not amedibut rather is tested for impairment annt
at the reporting unit level, or whenever eventsimumstances present an indication of impairm@abdwill is an asset representing the fu
economic benefits arising from other assets acduirea business combination that are not indiviguaentified and separately recogniz
The primary items that generate goodwill include ¥alue of the synergies between the acquired coimpand the Company and the acqt
assembled workforce, neither of which qualifiesrirognition as an intangible asset.

The Company applies the Financial Accounting StedglBoard (“FASB”)guidance when testing goodwill for impairment, whjmermit:
the Company to make a qualitative assessment, pgooating unit, of whether goodwill is impaired, apt to bypass the qualitative assess!
and proceed directly to performing the first stdptlee twostep impairment test. If the Company performs alii@e assessment a
concludes that it is more likely than not that thie value of a reporting unit exceeds its carryuadue, goodwill is not considered impaired
the twostep impairment test is unnecessary. However eif@Gbmpany concludes otherwise, it is then requioeperform the first step of t
two-step impairment test.

The first step involves comparing the fair valueaatporting unit to its carrying amount. If thé fealue of the reporting unit is determir
to be greater than its carrying amount, there isgmmmairment. If the reporting un&’carrying amount is determined to be greater tharfail
value, the second step must be completed to medseiramount of impairment. Step two calculatesithglied fair value of goodwill b
deducting the fair value of all tangible and intinhgy assets, excluding goodwill, of the reportimgtdrom the fair value of the reporting unit
determined in step one. The implied fair valuehef goodwill in this step is compared to the cagymlue of goodwill. If the implied fair vali
of the goodwill is less than the carrying valughaf goodwill, an impairment loss equivalent to diféerence is recorded.
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The evaluation of goodwill impairment requires fBempany to make assumptions about future cash flifwke reporting unit beir
evaluated that include, among others, growth iemeres, margins realized, level of operating expeasé cost of capital. These assump
require significant judgment and actual results midfgr from assumed and estimated amounts.

On October 1, 2014, the Company performed its drbegafor goodwill impairment, based on the repayrtunits to which the goodwill
allocated. Except for the MakerBot reporting uttie Company performed a qualitative test for gotidand concluded that it is more liki
than not that the fair value of each reporting @niteeds its carrying amount. For the MakerBot r&pp unit, the Company performet
guantitative test by comparing the fair value @ tleporting unit to its carrying amount. Based ks &nalysis, the fair value of the Maker
reporting unit exceeded its carrying amount by $¥#e carrying amount of goodwill that was assigreethts reporting unit was approximat
$376 million.

During December 2014, the Company determined thghio indicators of potential impairment existedréquire an additional inter
goodwill impairment analysis for its MakerBot reppg unit. These indicators included a slower gtowt MakerBot product and serv
revenues in the fourth quarter, challenges assatiafith the introduction and scaling of its new guot platform, changes in timing
implementation of certain initiatives and changeMakerBot’s distribution model.

The Company updated its cash flow projections @taked assumptions based on the indicators meutiaheve and performed the two.
step goodwill impairment test. The updated MakerBagorting units impairment analysis performed as part of step dfvéhe goodwil
impairment test determined that the carrying amadfigoodwill assigned to the MakerBot reportingtumiceeds its fair value. As a result,
Company recorded nalax deductible impairment charge of $102.5 millianprder to reduce the carrying amount of goodtailits estimate
fair value.

When evaluating the fair value of MakerBot repagtimnit the Company used a discounted cash flow mddsy assumptions used
determine the estimated fair value include: (a)eexgd cash flow for the fivgear period following the testing date (includingniet shart
sales volumes and prices, costs to produce antagsti capital needs); (b) an estimated terminalevaking a terminal year growth rate
3.5% determined based on the growth prospectseofegorting unit; and (c) a discount rate of 13/586ed on managemenbest estimate
the after-tax weighted average cost of capital.

The majority of the inputs used in the discountashcflow model are unobservable and thus are ceresido be Level 3 inputs.

A decrease in the growth rate of 1% or an increds&% to the discount rate will reduce the fairuelof MakerBot reporting unit |
approximately an additional $28.9 million and $4fiflion, respectively.

The Company will continue to monitor its reportiagits to determine whether events and circumstaweesant further interim impairme
testing.

No goodwill was determined to be impaired during2@nd 2012.
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Other Intangible Assets
Intangible assets and their useful lives are devisi:

Weighted Average

Useful Life
Developed technolog 9
Patent: 8
Trademarks and trade nan 10
Customer relationshiy. 9
Non-compete agreemer 4
Capitalized software development cc 5
In-process research and developn Indefinite

Other intangible assets primarily represent acquinéangible assets including developed technoltgge names, customer relations
and in-process research and development (“IPR&D#finite life intangible assets are amortized udgihg straightine method over the
estimated period of useful life, which is deterniri®y identifying the period over which most of tbesh flows are expected to be gener.
Amortization of acquired developed technology isoreled in cost of sales. Amortization of trade nacwestomer relationships and non
compete agreement is recorded in selling, genadlaaministrative expenses. The Company capital2B&D projects acquired as part ¢
business combination. On successful completionacheproject, IPR&D assets are reclassified to dgea technology and amortized c
their estimated useful lives.

For definite life intangibles, the Company reviethie carrying amounts for potential impairment wiesents or changes in circumstar
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset ntdyba recoverable. Examples of such a change énroistances include a significant decr
in selling price, a significant adverse changehim éxtent or manner in which an asset is being, wseal significant adverse change in the |
or business climate. In evaluating recoverabilihe Company groups assets and liabilities at theedb level such that the identifiable c
flows relating to the group are largely independginthe cash flows of other assets and liabilitiHlse Company then compares the carr
amounts of the assets or asset groups with thiedeéstimated undiscounted future cash flows. énabent impairment exists, an impairn
charge is recorded as the amount by which the icargmount of the asset or asset group exceedwithealue. Fair value is determined
reference to estimated selling values of assetsimilar condition or by using a discounted castwflmodel. In addition, the remaini
amortization period for the impaired asset woulddmssessed and, if necessary, revised. Durinifpitidequarter of 2014 the Company recor
impairment charges of $11.6 million related todéveloped technology intangible assets which wiargsified as costs of sales. Refer to Nc
for further information.

Indefinitedife intangibles are not amortized but rather tésier impairment annually, or whenever events ocwinstances present
indication of impairment. The Company applies t#SB guidance, which permits the Company to makealitive assessment of whet
the indefinite-lived intangible asset is impairedopt to bypass the qualitative assessment armbedodirectly to determine the indefiniteed
intangible asset’s fair value. If the Company deiees, based on the qualitative tests, that ibtsnmore likely than not that the indefiniteed
intangible asset is impaired, no further actiomeiguired. Otherwise, the Company is required tdoper the quantitative impairment test
comparing the fair value of the indefinite-life amgible asset to the indefiniliged intangible asset carrying amount. In the éwempairmen
exists, an impairment charge is recorded as theuatrzy which the carrying amount of the asset eegroup exceeds the fair value.
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During the third quarter of 2014 the Company perfed the qualitative test for its indefiniiged intangible assets and concluded th
was required to perform a quantitative impairmest to one of its IPR&D projects. The decreasainvalue of the IPR&D project resultec
impairment charges of $3.0 milliomhich were classified as research and developmqrenses. For the other IPR&D projects, the Com
concluded that it was not required to perform qitainte impairment tests. Important qualitativetéas included, among others, the cur
status of the IPR&D projects, the budget and fuexgected costs of the IPR&D projects the markas &r similar developed products, and
technological risk of completion for the IPR&D peojs ,which represent those intangible assets, as webtlasr industry and marlk
considerations. These assumptions require significalgment and actual results may differ from asstl and estimated amounts.

Contingent Liabilities

Certain conditions, such as legal proceedings, exast as of the date the financial statements sgeed that may result in a loss to
Company, but that will only be resolved when onenare future events occur or fail to occur. In assgg loss contingencies related to |
proceedings that are pending against the Comparynasserted claims that may result in such proongedithe Compang’ manageme
evaluates the perceived merits of any legal prdogedor unasserted claims as well as the perceiverits of the amount of relief sought
expected to be sought. Such assessment inherewtlivés an exercise of judgment. Legal fees arems@d as incurred.

Management applies the FASB guidance when asselsiags resulting from contingencies. If the assess of a contingency indica
that it is probable that loss has been incurred tardamount of the liability can be estimated, ttiem Company would record an accr
expense in the Compamsyfinancial statements. If the assessment indidatesa potential loss contingency is not probdhleis reasonab
possible, or is probable but cannot be estimakeh the nature of the contingent liability, togetivith an estimate of the range of possible
if determinable, is disclosed.

Loss contingencies considered to be remote by neamet are generally not disclosed unless materiglay involve guarantees, in wh
case the guarantee would be disclosed.

Revenue Recognition

The Company derives revenue from sales of AM systamnsumables, and services. The ComaA systems includes software
hardware that function together to provide the misslefunctionality of the tangible system. The GQuamy recognizes revenue when
persuasive evidence of a final agreement exisjsdélivery has occurred or services have been reddg3) the selling price is fixed
determinable, and (4) collectability is reasonadsgured.

Revenues from sales to resellers are generallygréoed upon shipment and when title and risk of lbave been transferred to
resellers. When products and services are soldrégeller, the reseller is responsible for theaittestion of the system with the end user cli
The Company accounts for such sales on a net siass it is not the primary obligor in the arranggwith the end user client. Products
services sold directly by the Company to end custsmre recognized based on the gross amount &othpany is the primary obligor in
arrangement, retains inventory risk for physicaldarcts, establishes the price for its products,asstimes the credit risk for amounts bille
its customers.

Revenue from saleype leases may include systems, other productsvemidtenance contracts. The Company recognizesiuevion
sales-type leases based on the net present vafuaoé lease payments. Product revenue from sgesieases is generally recognized a
time of shipment. The portion of lease agreemegitstad to maintenance contracts is deferred araynéred ratably over the coverage pel
Revenue from operating leases is recognized rataldy the lease period.

For multipleelement arrangements the Company allocates revenaié deliverables based on their relative sellpniges and recogniz
revenue when each element'evenue recognition criteria are met. In sucleueirstances, the Company uses the following hieyato
determine the selling price to be used for allogatievenue to deliverables: (i) vendor-specificegliye evidence of fair value (“VSOE")ij)(
third-party evidence of
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selling price (“TPE"), and (iii) best estimate @lling price (“BESP”).VSOE exists only when the Company sells the dedibler separately a
is established based on the price charged in gackl-slone transactions. BESP reflects the Compdngst estimates of the price at whick
Company would have sold the product regularly etaad-alone basis.

Most service revenue is derived from the Compamijitect manufacturing printed parts services aldssof maintenance contracts.
Companys direct manufacturing service revenue is recoghigpon shipment or delivery of the parts, basedtten terms of the sal
arrangement.

The Company provides customers with maintenanceruadvarranty agreement and defers a portion ofetenue from the related prin
at the time of the sale based on the relativergglfirice of those services. After the initial waitsaperiod, the Company offers custon
optional maintenance contracts ranging generatisnfone to three years. Deferred maintenance revismeeognized ratably, on a straidimie
basis, over the period of the service. Unearnedmaess are derived mainly from these prepaid maames agreements. The Company clas:
the portion of unearned revenue not expected tabeed in the subsequent 12 months as long-term.

The Company assesses collectability as part ofd@tenue recognition process. This assessment eglachumber of factors such as
evaluation of the creditworthiness of the custorpast due amounts, past payment history, and duggemomic conditions. If it is determir
that collectability cannot be reasonably assutesl Gompany will defer recognition of revenue uotillectability is assured.

Shipping Revenue

The Company classifies shipping and handling casésged to customers in connection with the salgrofiucts and services as reve
The related shipping and handling costs incurrethbyCompany are classified as costs of sales.

Sales and Value Added Taxes

Taxes collected from customers and remitted to gowental authorities are recorded on a net basisluged from revenues) in t
Company’s consolidated statements of operationcamprehensive income (loss).

Advertising

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred and aggeximately $23.5 million, $13.5 million and 84million, for the years ended 2014,
2013 and 2012, respectively.

Research and Development Costs

Expenditures for research, development and engintgef products and manufacturing processes areresqa as incurred, in accords
with ASC 730,Research and Developmerfor collaborative agreements that entitle the Gamy to receive reimbursement payments of
actually incurred under joint development projepeyments received are recorded as offsets tordsand development expenditures.

The Company has agreements with three manufacteongpanies to jointly advance certain of its prefaiy technology with each
those two companies. The agreements entitle thep@oynto receive reimbursement payments of costgakigtincurred under joil
development projects. During the years ended Deee®b, 2014, 2013 and 2012, approximately $4.6ianill$3.6 million and $3.2 millio
respectively, of research and development expemses offset by payments that were received fronsetmmpanies.
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Income Taxes

Deferred taxes are determined utilizing the “asset liability” method based on the estimated future tax effecterporary differenct
between the carrying amount and tax bases of aasdtsiabilities under the applicable tax laws, amdeffective tax rates in effect when
deferred taxes are expected to be settled or eghlizaluation allowance is provided if, based ugmweight of available evidence, it isbre
likely than not” that a portion of the deferred &ssets will not be realized.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are classifisdcurrent or nowurrent based on the classification of the relasset or liability fc
financial reporting, or according to the expectexersal dates of the specific temporary differendesre appropriate.

Deferred tax has not been provided on the followiems:

1) Taxes that would apply in the event of dispadahvestments in foreign subsidiaries, as it ingally the Companyg’intention to holc
these investments, not to realize thi

2) Dividends distributable from the income of fanreicompanies as the Company does not expect tbagganies to distribute dividends
in the foreseeable future. If these dividends wefree paid, the Company would have to pay addititmees at a rate of up to 25% on
the distribution, and the amount would be recor@edn income tax expense in the period the divideddclared

3) Amounts of tax-exempt income generated fromQbmpany’s current Approved Enterprises (see nof@slthe Company intends to
permanently reinvest these profits and does nehihto distribute dividends from such income. &g dividends were to be paid, the
Company would have to pay additional taxes at@uptto 10% on the distribution, and the amountld/be recorded as an income
tax expense in the period the dividend is decle

As a result of the Stratasys-Objet merger, foreigerations for 2014 and 2013 consist of non-Igta&ddictions. For 2012, foreign
operations consist of non-U.S. jurisdictions.

Uncertain Tax Positions

In accordance with ASC 74@ccounting for Income Taxesthe Company takes a tvabep approach to recognizing and measi
uncertain tax positions. The first step is to ea#duthe tax position for recognition by determinimgether the weight of available evide
indicates that it is more likely than not that,amevaluation of the technical merits, the positioh be sustained on audit, including resolu
of related appeals or litigation processes, if arhe second step is performed only if the tax pmsineets the more-likely-thamt recognitio
threshold and is to measure the tax benefit atatigest amount which is more than 50% likely ofnigeiealized upon ultimate settlement.
Company reevaluates these tax positions quarterdyraakes adjustments as required. The liabilitedating to uncertain tax positions
classified as current in the consolidated balahe®ts to the extent the company anticipates matd@rygnents within one year. The Comp
classifies interest and penalties recognized infittencial statements relating to uncertain taxitgmss under the provision for income ta
The Company presents unrecognized tax benefits@duation to deferred tax asset where a net dpgrhuss, a similar tax loss, or a tax cr
carryforward exists, when settlement in this mansewvailable under the applicable tax law.
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Stock-Based Compensation

The Company measures and recognizes compensati@msex for its equity classified stock-based awardduding stockbased optio
awards and restricted stock units (“RSUs”) under Sitratasys Ltd. 2012 Omnibus Equity Incentive Ftha “2012 Plan™based on estimat
fair values on the grant date. The Company calesltiie fair value of stock-based option awardshendate of grant using the Bla8chole
option pricing model. The optiopricing model requires a number of assumptionsyluth the most significant are the expected shaice
volatility and the expected option term. The coragion of expected volatility is based on historigalatility of the Companys shares. Tt
expected option term is calculated using the sifieplimethod in accordance with ASC 7T&)mpensation — Stock Compensatias adequa
historical experience is not available to provideeasonable estimateThe interest rate for periods within the expectsunt of the award
based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effethatime of grant. The Compasyexpected dividend rate is zero since the Comgdarg nc
currently pay cash dividends on its shares and doésnticipate doing so in the foreseeable futii@ch of the above factors requires
Company to use judgment and make estimates inndigtiaig the percentages and time periods used éocdlculation. If the Company were
use different percentages or time periods, thevigine of stock-based option awards could be nalkgrilifferent. Stockbased compensati
cost for RSUs is measured based on the closingnfaiket value of the Comparsycommon stock on the date of grant. The Com
recognizes stock-based compensation cost for opticards and RSUs on a straight-line basis oveetigloyees requisite service period,
of estimated forfeitures.

Liability classified stocksased awards which are deemed to have a substaatbesettiement feature are accounted for in dacge witl
ASC 718,Compensation — Stock Compensatidimese awards are measured at each reportingbdetq on their fair value until the awards
settled. Compensation costs for these awards @enerd over the requisite service period and ajudst changes in fair value prorated for
portion of the requisite service period rendered.

Business Combinations

The Company allocates the fair value of considenatiansferred in a business combination to thetasgquired, liabilities assumed,
non-controlling interests in the acquired busingsserally based on their fair values at the actioisidate. Acquisitiorrelated expenses &
restructuring costs are recognized separately ttmrbusiness combination and are expensed as @dcurhe excess of the fair value of
consideration transferred plus the fair value of aan-controlling interest in the acquiree over the fatue of the assets acquired, liabili
assumed in the acquired business is recorded abmMjborhe fair value of the consideration transéet may include a combination of ce
equity securities, earn out payments and deferagtngnts. The allocation of the consideration tramefl in certain cases may be subje
revision based on the final determination of faifues during the measurement period, which maypbi wne year from the acquisition d
The Company includes the results of operationt®@tiusinesses that it has acquired in its congelid@sults prospectively from the respec
dates of acquisition.

The Company records obligations in connection vighousiness combinations at fair value on the &itipn date. Each reporting per
thereafter, the Company revalues eamipayments and deferred payments which are fiabsis liabilities and records the changes inrtfaéi
value in the consolidated statements of operaémscomprehensive income. Changes in the fair vaitiee obligations in connection with
business combinations can result from adjustmentka discount rates, the Companghares price, sales and profitability targetesehfai
value measurements represent Level 3 measurenaarifsey are based on significant inputs not obsésia the market. Significant judgmi
is required in determining the assumptions utiliasf the acquisition date and for each subsequeasurement period. Accordingly, char
in the assumptions described above could have eri@aimpact on the Company’s consolidated resfltgperations.
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Redeemable Non-controlling Interests

Non-controlling interests with embedded redempfmatures, such as put options, whose settlemarttiat the Compang’discretion, al
considered redeemable non-controlling interestsleBmable nowontrolling interests are considered to be tempgoeguity and are therefc
presented as a mezzanine section between liabibitiel equity on the Company’s consolidated balahests. Redeemable noontrolling
interests are measured at the greater of thelindi@ying amount adjusted for the non-controllinterests share of comprehensive incom
loss or its redemption value. Changes in the rediempalue are recorded through retained earnings.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject @@mpany to concentrations of credit risk consistgpally of short term bank depos
cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables,tmees in salesype leases, foreign currency exchange forwardraot# and investme
securities. Most of the Compaisytash and cash equivalents are invested in UlRBr dastruments with major banks in the U.S., &ranc
Europe. Management believes that the credit rigk waspect to the financial institutions that htié Companys cash, cash equivalents
deposits is low. Concentration of credit risk wispect to accounts receivable is limited due ¢oréhatively large number of customers
their wide geographic distribution. In additiongt@ompany tries to reduce its credit exposuretstadcounts receivable by credit limits, cr
insurance, ongoing credit evaluation and accoumtitoong procedures.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to ther paars’ financial statements to conform to theent year presentation. These
reclassifications had no net effect on previousjyorted results of operations.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In November 2014, the Financial Accounting Standddard (“FASB”) issued an Accounting Standard Upd8ASU”), which clarifies
how current guidance should be interpreted in etalg the economic characteristics and risks ofoat ltontract in a hybrid financ
instrument that is issued in the form of a shate ASU clarifies that an entity should considerralevant terms and features on the bas
relevant facts and circumstances, including theezfdbed derivative feature being evaluated for bition, in evaluating the nature of a t
contract. This ASU is effective for annual repagtiperiods, including interim periods within thosporting periods, beginning after Decen
15, 2015. Earlier adoption is permitted. This ASkhde adopted either retrospectively to each peporting period presented or a
cumulativeeffect adjustment as of the date of adoption. THeption of this guidance is not expected to haveaderial impact on tt
Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In May 2014, the FASB issued an ASU, issued asnatopic, Accounting Standards Codification (“ASG8pic 606. The ASU supersel
the current revenue recognition requirements in 86, Revenue RecognitianThe core principle of this amendment is that atitye shoulc
recognize revenue to depict the transfer of prothgeods or services to customers in an amountrdfl@cts the consideration to which
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for thgeeds or services. This ASU is effective for arnegporting periods beginning af
December 15, 2016, including interim periods witthat reporting period. Earlier adoption is notmpited. This ASU can be adopted eil
retrospectively to each prior reporting period préed or as a cumulativeffect adjustment as of the date of adoption. Tleen@any i
currently evaluating the impact of the adoptionlod ASU on its consolidated financial statements.
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Note 2. Acquisitions

2014 Transactions

On July 14, 2014 (the “Solid Concepts transactiate’ the Company completed the acquisition of 100% efdahtstanding shares of St
Concepts Inc. (“Solid Concepts"an independent additive manufacturing service hufea a total consideration of approximately $1t
million. This transaction, together with the Harvé&sinsaction, which is described below, is expédte enable the Company to expanc
existing digital manufacturing printed parts seegccreating a leading strategic platform to medir@ad range of customersidditive
manufacturing needs and provide opportunitiesverkege manufacturing services capabilities.

In exchange for 100% of the outstanding sharesobfl £oncepts the Company issued 978,601 ordinaayes, paid cash upon closing
was obligated to pay an additional holdback cagtmaat deferred for six months which was paid inudap 2015. In addition, the Compan'
obligated to pay additional deferred payments ireéhseparate annual installments after the Solidc@uts transaction datedgferre:
payments”).Subject to certain requirements for cash paymémsCompany retains the discretion to settle thferded payments in its shar
cash or any combination of the two. The deferredrgnts are also subject to certain adjustmentsbas¢he Company’s share price.

The Solid Concepts transaction is reflected in edaoce with ASC Topic 805, “Business Combinationsing the acquisition method
accounting with the Company as the acquirer. Thleviing table summarizes the fair value of the édesation transferred to Solid Conce
stockholders for the Solid Concepts transaction:

Us. $ir

thousands

Issuance of ordinary shar $ 97,86¢
Cash paid upon closir 40,13(
Holdback amoun 3,83¢
Deferred payments 43,57t
Total fair value of consideration transferred $ 185,41-

The fair value of the ordinary shares issued wasrdened based on the closing market price of the@anys ordinary shares on the Sc
Concepts transaction date.

The fair value of the deferred payments was detethbased on the closing market price of the Cogigasrdinary shares on the S«
Concepts transaction date, adjusted to reflectsaodint for lack of marketability for the applicabperiods. The discount for lack
marketability was calculated based on the histbriottility of the Companys share price and thus represents a Level 3 measatevithir
the fair value hierarchy. The deferred paymentsrecegnized as liabilities at fair value in the Quamy’s consolidated balance sheets ani
classified under short-term and lotegm obligations in connection with acquisitionfeTfair value of the deferred payment as of Decerh
2014 was $35.7 million. The total amount of theedefd payments, which does not reflect a discoontldck of marketability, we
approximately $40.6 million, based on the Compasiiare price as of December 31, 2014.

The fair value of the deferred payments is primydiiiked to the Company’s share price. An increas&0% of the Companyg’share pric
as of December 31, 2014 will increase the fair @alfithe deferred payments by $3.6 million.

In addition, changes in level 3 inputs that weredum the fair value calculation might change thie ¥alue of the deferred payments.
example, a decrease of 10% in the Compastrare price volatility used in the calculationdiscount for lack of marketability would incre.
the fair value of the Company’s deferred paymeiatslity by approximately $1.0 million.
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During 2014, the Company recorded a gain of $7.amidue to the revaluation of the deferred paytaamder Change in fair value
obligations in connection with acquisitions in tiempany’s consolidated statements of operationcangprehensive income (loss).

Under the terms of the definitive agreement, certdiSolid Concepts’ employees may also qualifyrigientionrelated and other payme
of $77.0 million, based on the Compasighare price as of the Solid Concepts transadte, of which, $19.6 million was paid in cash L
closing and was expensed as incurred. The remaietegtion payments will be paid in three sepasaeual installments @eferred retentic
payments”).

Expense due to the deferred retention paymentd2fi$million was recorded during 2014 from the 8&oncepts transaction date thro
December 31, 2014. Based on the Comparsfiare price as of December 31, 2014, the totarrée retention payments will amount
approximately $45.9 million.

Subject to certain requirements for cash paymehts,Company retains the discretion to settle anyhef amounts payable under
definitive agreement in its shares, cash or anybioation of the two. These amounts are also sultfectertain adjustments based on
Company’s share price.

In addition to the payments described above, Thegamy incurred approximately $2.9 million of costtated to the Solid Conce
transaction that were expensed during 2014. Thests are included in selling, general and admatiise costs in the Comparsytonsolidate
statements of operations and comprehensive income.

The following table summarizes the estimated failugs of the assets acquired and liabilities asduaehe Solid Concepts transac
date. The estimated fair values are preliminarylzasbd on the information that was available d&3emfember 31, 2014. Thus the measuren
of fair value reflected are subject to changes arah changes could be significant. The allocatiiothe purchase price to assets acquirec
liabilities assumed is as follows:

Allocation of Purchase

Price
(U.S. $ in thousands)
Cash and cash equivalel $ 3,22¢
Accounts receivabl 7,99t
Inventories 2,391
Other asset 2,962
Property, plant and equipme 15,20:
Other intangible asse 37,60t
Goodwill 124,23¢
Total assets acquired 193,62:
Accounts payabl 3,05¢
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 4,63:
Total liabilities assumed 7,68¢
Non controlling interes 51¢
Net assets acquire $ 185,41
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The allocation of the purchase price to the nettasscquired and liabilities assumed resultedearréizognition of intangible assets relate
customer relationships of $36.5 million and intdohgiasset related to tradename of $1.1 million.s€hatangible assets have weighted ave
useful life of approximately 6.6 years.

The fair values of the customer relationships westimated using a discounted cash flow method thighapplication of the mulfperioc
excess earnings method. Under this method, angittignasset’s fair value is equal to the presehievaf the incremental afteax cash flow
attributable only to the subject intangible ass$eraleducting contributory asset charges.

The useful life of the intangible assets for anmation purposes was determined considering thegearf expected cash flows usec
measure the fair value of the intangible assetastel as appropriate for the entifyecific factors, including legal, regulatory, aattual
competitive, economic or other factors that mayitlitme useful life of intangible assets.

The goodwill recognized as a result of the Solich€apts transaction is attributable primarily to sir@tegic and synergistic opportunitie
the entry-level portion of the additive manufaatgrispectrum, crosselling synergies, expanded solutions portfoligeasbled workforce ai
economies of scale. The related goodwill and intdagssets are deductible for tax purposes.

The unaudited pro forma condensed financial redidiee been prepared using the acquisition methatodunting and are based on
historical financial information of the Company afdlid Concepts. The unaudited pro forma condefisadcial results have been preparec
illustrative purposes only and do not purport tarmcative of the results of operations that allyuaould have resulted had the acquisitio
Solid Concepts occurred on January 1, 2013, orutfré results of the combined entities. The unaddipro forma condensed finan
information does not reflect any operating effidies and expected realization of cost savings oergyes associated with the acquisition.

Unaudited supplemental pro forma combined restltperations:

Year ended December 31
2014 2013
(U.S. $in thousands

except per share data)

Net sales $ 785388 $ 546,35!
Net loss attributable to Stratasys L (106,929 (36,259
Net loss per ordinary share attributable to Styatésd - basic and dilute $ (212 % (0.89)
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Adjustments for the unaudited supplemental pro fooombined results of operations are as follows:

Year ended December 31
2014 2013
(U.S. $ in thousand:

Adjustments due to amortization of intangib $ 2,261 $ 6,44¢
Adjustments due to retention bonu (26€) 27,98:
Adjustments due to expenses related to businesbination (26,015 (20,697
Adjustments due to financial expenses related tm €oncepts debt (40€) (440
Taxes related adjustments to the supplementalgonoat 10,51: (755)

$ (13,910 $ 12,53¢

Solid Concepts’ results of operations were incluihethe Company’s consolidated statements of ojgareeind comprehensive income
(loss) commencing July 14, 2014. Due to the fukgnation of Solid Concepts’ operations to the Canys direct manufacturing service
operations it is impractible to present the amoohtevenues and earnings of Solid Concepts sime@ctquisition date in the consolidated
statements of operations and comprehensive inclos®) for the period commencing July 14, 2014 tgfroDecember 31, 2014.

GrabCAD transaction
On September 22, 2014 the Company acquired 1008teodutstanding shares of GrabCAD Inc. (“GrabCADVhich operates GrabC#
Workbench, a cloud based 3D computer aided-des${@A") collaboration platform enabling engineering teamsnanage, share and vi

CAD files as well as enhancing collaboration tamisl improving accessibility relating to 3D CAD cent.

GrabCAD is expected to contribute accelerated iatiom and increased value to a growing universeustomers seeking to utilize
printing solutions in the 3D ecosystem.

Under the terms of the definitive agreement witlli&AD, certain of GrabCAD’s employees may also ifyédr certain retentiorrelatec
payments.

Harvest transactiol

On August 1, 2014, the Company acquired 100% ofotitstanding shares of Harvest Technologies Ifdaiest”),a specialty additiy
manufacturing service bureau. The consideration pvasarily paid in the Compang’shares and the remaining balance will be paithgh
This transaction, together with the Solid Concepiasaction is expected to enable the Company parekits existing digital manufacturi
printed parts services and to enhance its expeirigmrts production, as well as materials andesgstknowhow. Under the terms of
definitive agreement with Harvest, certain of Hate@employees may also qualify for certain retamiielated payments.

Financial information giving effect to this busisesombination has not been provided as the aciuisg not material.

MakerBot Europe transactic

On August 1, 2014 the Company acquired certaintaissel liabilities of HAFNER’'S BURO, which is Malot's reseller in Germar
This acquisition will enable the Company to expésadiesktop 3D printing operations throughout thedpean market.
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The Company accounted for this transaction as aé&ss combination. The acquisition consideratiors waributed to net assets on
basis of the fair value of assets acquired andliiab assumed based on an appraisal performethdiyagement, which included a numbe
factors, including the assistance of independeptaagers.

Financial information giving effect to this busisesombination has not been provided as the acmuisé not material.

Interfacial Solutions transactio

In April 2014, the Company acquired certain asseis liabilities of Interfacial Solutions LLC (“Intacial Solutions”),a privately hel
provider of thermoplastics research and developnagik production services. This transaction is desigto strengthen the Compasny’
materials research and development skills and enialdb become vertically integrated in materialelepment and manufacturing and
increase materials production space and capacity.

The Company accounted for this transaction as aéss combination. The acquisition consideratios wtributed to net assets on
basis of the fair value of assets acquired andliias assumed based on an appraisal performeaidyagement, which included a numbe
factors, including the assistance of independeptaapers.

Financial information giving effect to this busisesombination has not been provided as the acmuisé not material.

Collaborative Development Initiative

On December 11, 2014, the Company formed a joimtwe with a third party to develop new disruptiadditive manufacturir
technologies, materials and applications. The thady has the right to sell its interest in thimjwenture to the Company, at fair value duril
period of 5 years from the joint venture formatatate.

Financial information giving effect to this busisesombination has not been provided as the transastnot material.

Fiscal 2013 Transactions

MakerBot transactiol

On August 15, 2013 (the “MakerBot transaction datiiie Company acquired privately held Cooperationhfietogy Corporatio
(“MakerBot”) for an aggregate purchase price of &Z9million (the “MakerBot transaction”) which waslculated based on the Company
share price as of the MakerBot transaction date.

In exchange for 100% of MakerBstoutstanding capital stock, the Company issued Blion ordinary shares, made tax withholc
payments on behalf of certain shareholders in ditissuing 115 thousand shares, held back fromngsé5s5 thousand shares to secure
indemnification rights of Stratasys and issuedt8§ys options in exchange for certain MakerBotasiwith a fully diluted equivalent of
thousand shares.

The 655 thousand shares were held back for apped&lyn eighteen months after the MakerBot transactimte to secure t
indemnification rights of the Company against aogsks resulting from certain specified causes.hAtdnd of the holtback period th
Company is expected to issue approximately 651stods shares to MakerB®shareholders, subject to settlements of centai@nmnificatiol
rights.

F- 25



STRATASYS LTD.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The MakerBot transaction is reflected in accordawith ASC Topic 805, "Business Combinations," usthg acquisition method
accounting with the Company as the acquirer. Ttad tmnsideration transferred to effect the MakerBansaction is as follows:

U.S. $ in thousand:

Issuance of ordinary shares to MakerBot stockhsl| $ 446,01
Tax withholding and other payments on behalf of Bf&ot stockholder 12,16:
Exchange of MakerBot stock options for the Compaptyons 7,19¢
Earn-out at estimated fair value 28,27(
Total consideration $ 493,65(

The $7.2 million fair value of the MakerBot stocktmns exchanged for Stratasys stock options wabuathble to service prior to t
MakerBot transaction date and was determined uba@tratasys share price on the MakerBot trarsadite as an input to the BlaSkhole
valuation model to determine the fair value of thtions. The following assumptions were applieddatermining the fair value of t
exchanged MakerBot stock options:

Risk-free interest rat 0.36%
Expected option terr 1.38 year
Expected price volatilit 59.41%
Dividend yield —
Weighted average merger date fair ve $ 92.7:

The computation of expected volatility was basedistorical volatility of the Compang’stock. The expected option term was calcu
in accordance with a combination of historical eigrece and the simplified method in ASC 718. Theerest rate for periods within 1
expected life of the award is based on the U.Sadusy yield curve in effect at the time of the Mdkat transaction.

In accordance with ASC Topic 805, the estimatedh-eat obligations as of the MakerBot transaction deéee included in the purche
price. The estimated fair value of the obligatimbased on managementissessment of whether, and at what level, tledial metrics wi
be achieved, and the present value factors asedaidath the timing of the payments. Because theuarhof the earrsut obligation is based
the Company’s ordinary shares, changes in the pfitke Company’s ordinary shares through the eatrdetermination date will change
dollar obligation. Management re-measures theviiie of the earmut obligations at the end of each reporting penwith any changes in f:
value being recorded in that perisdtatement of operations and comprehensive incoheefair value was estimated based on a Monteo
simulation, under which many scenarios are comptdadeasure possible outcomes of the financialioseéind the likelihood of occurren
The resultant probability-weighted financial medriare then applied to the earn-out formula to datex the cash flows under the eaun-
Those cash flows were then discounted using rdtéeeqields for U.S. treasury bonds with similarms to maturity.

This earneut obligation fair value measurement is basedignificant inputs not observable in the market #imags represents a Leve
measurement within the fair value hierarchy. Udinig valuation technique, the fair value of the tcactual obligation to pay the Makert
earn-out was determined to be approximately $28I®mat the MakerBot transaction date.
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Under the transaction agreement, MakerBot stocldrslgvere eligible for two earn-out payments. Thst fivas for the sixnonth perio
ended December 31, 2013, which amounted to $10l®mand which was paid in cash during April 20T4e second earodt period was f
the year ended December 31, 2014, for which MakiesBkholders could qualify for a total paymenupfto approximately 0.8 million of t
Company’s ordinary shares, depending on the lefvachievement of financial metrics for the periddhe second earaut payment was n
earned, thus there would be no additional paymentssuance of the Compasyordinary shares for MakerBot stockholders. Duting yea
ended December 31, 2014 the Company recorded inain$48.3 million under change in fair value of ightions in connection wi
acquisitions in the Company’s consolidated statémehoperations and comprehensive income.

Certain MakerBot employees participated in a pentmice bonus plan adopted in connection with thedvddt transaction. Participati
employees were entitled, contingent on certaininairtg employment conditions, to bonus paymentsasfipensation that in the aggregate
are equal, dollar-for-dollar, to the actual amouwdgtermined in the eamut calculation. Accordingly, an amount of $10.8liom was earned
connection with the performance bonus plan forfite¢ earn-out period. Since the second eautpayment was not earned, the related k
payments will not be paid.

Under the acquisition method of accounting, thetaegible and intangible assets of MakerBot acagluivere recorded at their fair value
the MakerBot transaction date. The allocation efgiirchase price to assets acquired and liabiisssmed was as follows:

Allocation of
Purchase Price
U.S. $ in thousand

Cash and cash equivalel $ 3,40t
Accounts receivabl- Trade 87¢
Accounts receivabl- Other 922
Deferred tax asse 5,964
Inventories 10,31«
Property, plant and equipme 4,65¢
Goodwill 372,00¢
Intangible assel 168,38t
Other non-current assets 7,06¢
Total assets acquirec 573,60
Accounts payable & other liabilitie 6,581
Unearned revent 4,07t
Deferred tax liabilities 69,12(
Other non-current liabilities 17¢
Total liabilities assumed 79,95/
Net assets acquired $ 493,65(
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The allocation of the purchase price to the nettasscquired and liabilities assumed resultederréicognition of the following intangible
assets:

Weighted Average
U.S. $in thousands Life (Years)
Developed technolog $ 43,227 5
Trade nam 42,13: 11
Customer relationshig- Distributors 19,31t 10
Customer relationshif- Direct 3,43¢ 1
Non-compete agreeme 10,00¢ 4
IPR&D - Printers 34,18¢ Indefinite
IPR&D - Peripherals 16,08: Indefinite

Total $ 168,38

The fair values of the developed technology, inepes research and development (“IPR&D”), custoretationships and nocempet
agreement were estimated using a discounted prea&rd income approach. Under the income approachintangible asset’fair value i
equal to the present value of future economic benéb be derived from ownership of the asset. dations of value are developed
discounting future net cash flows to their preseaitie at market-based rates of return. The campete agreement restricts a key indivi
from competing with the Company for a period ofrfgaars from the MakerBot transaction date. Thevalue of the trade name was estim
using an income approach, specifically known asrétief from royalty method. The relief from royalinethod is based on the hypothe!
royalty stream that would be received if the Conypamrre to license the trade name and was basedpatted revenues. The useful life of
intangible assets for amortization purposes wasrohéhed considering the period of expected cashisflosed to measure the fair value of
intangible assets adjusted as appropriate for ntigyespecific factors, including legal, regulatory, aactual, competitive, economic or ot
factors that may limit the useful life of intangbdssets. Refer to Note 7 for further information.

The goodwill recognized as a result of the Maker@Basaction is attributable primarily to the stgit and synergistic opportunities in
entry level portion of the additive manufacturirgestrum, expected corporate synergies and the asséworkforce. None of the goodv
recognized is deductible for income tax purposes.

The Company incurred $6.1 million of costs relatethe MakerBot transaction that were expensechdi2013. These costs are included
in selling, general and administrative costs in@loenpany’s consolidated statements of operatiodscamprehensive income.

The unaudited pro forma condensed financial re$ait® been prepared for illustrative purposes anty do not purport to be indicative
the results of operations that actually would heasulted had the acquisition of MakerBot occurradlanuary 1, 2012, or of future result
the combined entities. The unaudited pro forma easdd combined financial information does not oefny operating efficiencies and ¢
savings that may be realized from the integratibthe acquisition.

Unaudited supplemental pro forma combined restltperations:

Year ended December 31,
2013 2012
(U.S. $in thousands, except
per share date

Net sales $ 518,71 $ 230,05:
Net loss attributable to Stratasys L (23,929 (30,21)
Net loss per ordinary share attributable to Styastésd - basic (0.59) (0.7
Net loss per ordinary share attributable to Styatasd - diluted $ (0.59) $ (0.7¢)
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Adjustments for the unaudited supplemental pro foommbined results of operations are as follows:

Year ended December 31

2013 2012
(U.S. $ in thousand:
Increase in amortization of intangibl $ 14,13¢ $ 23,55¢
Adjust performance bonus expen (169) 19,83¢
Adjust expenses related to business combinatioal {des, inventory
and deferred revenues s-up and ear-out revaluation (11,309 11,27:
Taxes related adjustments to the supplementalqoroef (4,239 (20,226

$ 1,56 $ 3443
Actual MakerBot results of operations includedhie Consolidated Results of Operations:

Year ended
December 31, 2013
(U.S. $ in thousand:

Net sales $ 35,60:
Loss attributable to MakerBot $ (5,30¢)

MakerBot results of operations were included in@wenpany’s consolidated statements of operatiodamprehensive income
commencing August 15, 2013.

Fiscal 2012 Acquisitions

Merger between Stratasys, Inc. and Ol

On December 1, 2012, Stratasys, Inc. and Objet agptheir merger. Pursuant to the StrataBpfet merger, Objet issued to Strata
Inc. stockholders one Objet ordinary share for estedre of Stratasys, Inc. common stock outstandintyStratasys, Inc. became an indi
wholly-owned subsidiary of Objet. Immediately priorthe closing of the merger, Obgshareholders approved a conversion of all outstg
Objet preferred shares into ordinary shares anevarse split of Obje$’ ordinary shares at a ratio of 1 for 8.691. Afiaing effect to th
reverse split and the conversion ratio of one Otmjdinary share for each share of Stratasys, Immneon stock, the former holders of Strate
Inc. common stock held 55% of the Company’s ordinstiares and the holders of Objet ordinary shaetmined 45% of the Comparsy’
ordinary shares, on a fully diluted basis. The waltion of the ordinary shares to be held afterntfegger by the Stratasys, Inc. stockholders
the Objet shareholders gave effect to the assuentiee of all outstanding in-theeoney options of each entity as determined onrénstr
stock basis of accounting.

At the completion of the merger, each outstandiption to purchase one share of Stratasys, Inc. ammstock was converted into
option to purchase one ordinary share of the Compamn exercise price equal to the original esergrice of the Stratasys, Inc. option,
otherwise in accordance with the remaining origiteams of the Stratasys, Inc. option. Under thengeof the Stratasys, Inc. options,
outstanding Stratasys, Inc. options granted priothe merger date plus certain options granted ay M012 became fully exercisa
automatically as a result of the completion of terger. Stoclbased compensation expense of $4.5 million waggrézed on the merger d:
upon the options becoming fully exercisable, repmnéiag the unamortized expense calculated at the &f the original option grant.
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The merger has been accounted for as an acquigifio®bjet by Stratasys, Inc. in accordance with A$Qpic 805, Busines
Combinations,'using the acquisition method of accounting withagtsys, Inc. as the accounting acquirer. SinceaSira Ltd. (formerly know
as Objet Ltd.), as the parent company of Stratdsygs,after the merger, is the legal acquirer, tierger has been accounted for as a re
acquisition. Under these accounting standardsteSlys, Inc$ total purchase price is calculated as if StrataByc. had issued its share:
Objet’s shareholders and converted options to @selObjet’s ordinary shares to options to purcBasgasys, Inc. common stock, as follows:

U.S. $ in millions

Number of shares of Objet ordinary shares outsitendh December 1, 20: 15.¢
Exchange ratio 1.C
Stratasys, Inc. shares deemed (for accounting pagonly) issued to Objet shareholders 15.¢
Total fair value of stock considerati $ 1,158.(
Fair value of deemed (for accounting purposes ardyversion of Objet equity awar 183.(
Fair value of non-controlling interest 0.2
Total purchase price $ 1,341

Under the acquisition method of accounting, theltptirchase price is allocated to the net tangihtéintangible assets of Objet acquired
in the merger, based on their fair values at thegeredate. The allocation of the purchase pricestets acquired and liabilities assumed is as
follows (in thousands):

Allocation of
Purchase Price
(U.S. $in thousand:

Cash and cash equivalel $ 41,52
Restricted cas 84t
Shor-term bank depos 30,06:
Accounts receivabl- Trade 23,63
Accounts receivabl- Other 12,47"
Prepaid expenst 1,011
Inventories 40,36¢
Deferred tax asse 1,75k
Property, plant and equipme 15,47¢
Goodwill 797,06:
Intangible assel 490,17¢
Other non-current assets 2,53¢
Total assets acquirec 1,456,92.
Accounts payable & other liabilitie 49,87t
Unearned revent 8,67¢
Deferred tax liabilities 51,00:
Other non-current liabilities 6,474
Total liabilities assumed 116,02°
Total purchase price $ 1,340,89
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The allocation of the purchase price to the nettasscquired and liabilities assumed resultederréicognition of the following intangible
assets:

Weighted Average

U.S. $in thousands Life (Years)
Developed technolog $ 374,12t 9.6
Customer relationshir 72,67¢ 10
Trade nam 15,29: 9
IPR&D 28,08( Indefinite
Total intangible assets $ 490,17!

The fair values of the developed technology, IPR&RI customer relationships were estimated usingaunted present value inca
approach. The fair value of the trade name wamastid using an income approach, specifically knawihe relief from royalty method. T
useful life of the intangible assets for amortiaatpurposes was determined considering the pefiedpmected cash flows used to measur
fair value of the intangible assets adjusted asagpiate for the entitygpecific factors, including legal, regulatory, a@atual, competitivi
economic or other factors that may limit the uséfal of intangible assets. Six of the IPR&D prdjgevere launched in 2014 and 2013 ant
classified as developed technology as of Decembge2@®14.

The goodwill recognized as a result of the mergeatiributable primarily to the strategic and sgmdic opportunities across the en
additive manufacturing spectrum, expected corpasgtergies and the assembled workforce. None ofjdloelwill recognized is deductible
income tax purposes.

The Company incurred $7.6 million of Stratasys,’'macquisitionrelated costs that were expensed during the yededeBecember 3
2012. These costs are included in selling, geraraladministrative costs in the Company’s const#diatatements of operations.

The actual Objet net sales and net income inclidiélde Companys consolidated statements of operations and corapsére income fc
the year ended December 31, 2012 (for the permu the December 1, 2012 merger date through Deae®ih@012, which are not indicat
of the results to be expected for a full year) #rasupplemental unaudited pro forma net salemahihcome of the combined entity had
acquisition been completed on January 1, 2011sfellaws:

Unaudited supplemental pro forma combined restltperations:

Year ended
December 31, 2012
(U.S. $ in thousands,
except per share dai

Net sales $ 359,05-
Loss attributable to Stratasys L (21,577
Loss per ordinary share attributable to Strataggis- basic and dilute: $ (0.5¢)
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Adjustments for the unaudited supplemental pro foommbined results of operations are as follows:
Year ended

December 31, 2012
(U.S. $in thousand:

Stoclk-based compensation related to business combir $ 22,64
Increase in amortization of intangibl 44,23¢

Adjust expenses related to business combinatioal {des, inventory stepp, backlog, deferre
revenues, sto-based compensation acceleratic (28,85()
Adjust taxes related to the adjustments to the lsnpgntal pro forma (2,899
$ 35,13:

These unaudited pro forma condensed combined fialarsults have been prepared for illustrativeppges only and do not purport tc
indicative of the results of operations that adyualould have resulted had the acquisition occumedthe first day of the earliest per
presented, or of future results of the combinediest The unaudited pro forma condensed combiimeth€ial information does not reflect ¢
operating efficiencies and cost savings that magebézed from the integration of the acquisition.

Actual Objet results of operations included in @@nsolidated Results of Operations:

Year ended
December 31, 2012
(U.S. $ in thousand:
Net sales $ 19,09¢

Loss attributable to Objet $ (4,62¢)

Subsequent transaction

Transaction in China

On February 10, 2015 the Company acquired certsiata and assumed certain liabilities of Intellig@AD/CAM Technology Ltd., a
Hong Kong Company. This acquisition is expectedrtable the Company to expand its operations ilCtlieese market.

Financial information giving effect to this busisesombination has not been provided as the aciuisg not material.
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Note 3. Fair Value Measurement

The following tables summarize the Companfjhancial assets and liabilities that are caraethir value on a recurring basis, by fair vi
hierarchy, in the condensed consolidated balaneetsh

December 31, 201:
(U.S. $ in thousand:

Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets:
Foreign exchange forward contracts not
designated as hedging instrume $ 3,75:% $ — $ 3,75¢
Liabilities:
Foreign exchange forward contracts not
designated as hedging instrume (2,907 — (2,90
Foreign exchange forward contracts designate
hedging instrument (1,249 — (1,249
Obligations in connection with acquisitions — (35,65¢) (35,65¢)
$ (391) $ (35,65¢6) $ (36,047

December 31, 2013
(U.S. $in thousand:

Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets:
Long term investmer $ 1,63¢ $ — $ 1,63¢
Foreign exchange forward contracts not
designated as hedging instrume 301 — 301
Foreign exchange forward contracts designate
hedging instrument 15z — 15z
Liabilities:
Foreign exchange forward contracts not
designated as hedging instrume (1,549 — (1,549
Obligations in connection with acquisitions — (29,029 (29,02Y)
$ 54t $ (29,02)) $ (28,48()

Long term investment consists of an investmentahtdecurities classified as available-$ate and are recorded at fair value. The
value is based on the sale of similar securitieth@market, as well as last sales of these s@muiit the market (Level 2 inputs). The ¢
securities were sold during the first quarter 0120

The Companys foreign exchange forward contracts are classHied.evel 2, as they are not actively traded aedvatued using pricir
models that use observable market inputs.

Other financial instruments consist mainly of casidl cash equivalents, short-term bank depositseruand noreurrent receivables, r
investment in sales-type leases, shertn debt, accounts payable and accruals. Thevdhie of these financial instruments approximalbes
carrying values.

F-33



STRATASYS LTD.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following table is a reconciliation of the clganfor those financial liabilities where fair valogeasurements are estimated utili:
Level 3 inputs, which consist of obligations in oextion with acquisitions (in thousands):

2014 2013

(U.S. $in thousand:
Fair value as of January $ 29,028 % —
Cash settlemen (10,79Y —
Additions 43,57¢ 28,27
Change in fair value recognized in earnings (26,15() 754
Fair value as of December 31 $ 35,65¢ % 29,02¢

The Companys additions to the obligations in connection witlgaisitions during 2014 relates to the deferredmpents in connection wi
the Solid Concepts transaction. The additions ¢odtligations in connection with acquisitions dgr2013 relates to the eaont obligations i
connection with the MakerBot transaction. The Conyfs payments during 2014 of the obligations in cotineawvith acquisitions are relat
to the earmut payment in connection with the MakerBot tratismc Change in fair value recognized in earningsirdy 2014 include
approximately $7.9 million unrealized gain due g¢waluation of the deferred payments in connectigh the Solid Concepts transaction.
further information on these obligations refer aten?2.

Note 4. Inventories

Inventories consisted of the following:

December 31 December 31
2014 2013
(U.S. $in thousand:

Finished good $ 66,77¢ $ 42,25:
Work-in-process 7,81t 164
Raw material 48,79 45,99:

$ 123,38! $ 88,40¢

Note 5. Net Investment in Salesype Leases

Certain sales made under lease arrangements aneledcas saletype leases and may include systems, other produmctanaintenan
contracts. The portion of lease arrangements cetatenaintenance contracts is deferred and recednitably over the coverage period.
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The Company’s net investment in sales-type leasesisted of the following:

December 31 December 31
2014 2013
(U.S. $in thousand:
Future minimum lease payments receive $ 24,93( $ 19,40:
Less allowance for doubtful accounts (452 (183
Net future minimum lease payment receive 24,47¢ 19,22(
Less unearned interest income (1,48¢) (1,309
Net investment in sal-type leases $ 22,99: $ 17,91t

Future minimum lease payments due from customedensales-type leases as of December 31, 2014asdodlows:

U.S. $ in thousands

Year ending December 31

2015 $ 9,32¢

2016 6,96(

2017 5,031

2018 2,752

2019 and thereafter 862
$ 24,93(

The interest income for salége leases is recorded in financial income (expgnset and amounted to approximately $0.8 milli®o.k
million and $0.4 million for the years ended DecemB1, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Note 6. Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment, net consisted ofdhewing:

December 31 December 31
2014 2013
(U.S. $in thousand:

Machinery and equipme| $ 95,55¢ % 58,44
Buildings and improvemen 53,17: 34,82(
Computer equipment and softw 40,55¢ 31,10:
Office equipment, furniture and fixtur: 14,55¢ 9,93(
Land 11,10: 11,12;
214,94t 145,41°

Accumulated depreciation (84,22%) (61,439
130,71¢ 83,97¢

Capital work-in-progress 26,31¢ 7,02
$ 157,03t $ 91,00¢

Depreciation expenses were $26.2 million, $14.6ioniland $7.6 million in the years ended Decemider2®14, 2013 and 2012,
respectively.
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Note 7. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill

Changes in the carrying amount of the Company’slgdlbfor the years ended December 31, 2014 an20& as follows:

Goodwill as of January
Goodwill impairment charge
Goodwill acquirec
Translation differences
Goodwill as of December 31

Other Intangible Assets

Other intangible assets consisted of the following:

Developed technolog

Patents

Trademarks and trade nan

Customer relationshiy

Non-compete agreemer

Capitalized software development cc
In process research and development

Accumulated amortization
Net book value of other intangible ass

December 31, 2014

2014 2013
(U.S. $in millions)

$ 1,195¢ $ 822.t

(102.9) —
233.3 372.(

(3.2) 1.4

$ 1,323 $ 1,105(

December 31, 2013

Gross Gross
Carrying Accumulated Carrying Accumulated
Amount Amortization Amount Amortization
(U.S. $ in thousand:
$ 497,41¢ $ 106,46t $ 447,84 $ 54,02¢
15,20¢ 8,13¢ 14,06 6,527
60,04¢ 9,51¢ 59,01¢ 3,817
148,33¢ 26,21¢ 100,67¢ 10,79:
10,84: 3,95: 10,35 1,24¢
17,29( 14,42 16,61 13,82¢
17,47¢ — 63,99¢ —
766,61t $ 168,71! 712,56¢ $ 90,23¢
168,71 90,23¢
$ 597,90: $ 622,33(

In process research and development projects witioss carrying value of $49.5 million as of Decem81, 2013, of which $24.7 milli
were acquired in connection with the Strata®jget Merger and $23.7 million were acquired inmection with the MakerBot transaction, w
launched during 2014 and are now classified asldpgd technology.

During 2014 the Company recorded impairment chaodel4.6 million related to one of its developedtnology assets. The Comp
assessed the recoverability of the asset basdteagstimated undiscounted future cash flows exgeoteesult from it. The impairment char
were measured as the difference between the cgraymount of the asset and its fair value. Thevalue of the asset was determined unde

income approach based on a discounted cash flovelnusthg updated future revenue and operating iecprojections.

Amortization expense relating to intangible asfatshe years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 an2i, 2&ds approximately $81.9 millic

$61.3 million and $8.1 million, respectively.
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As of December 31, 2014, estimated amortizatioreege relating to intangible assets currently salbgeamortization for each of the n
five years and thereafter was as follows:

U.S. $in thousanc

Year ending December 31

2015 $ 88,09¢
2016 85,49¢
2017 83,74
2018 77,83¢
2019 71,91(
Thereafter 173,34!
Total $ 580,42

Note 8. Income Taxes

The components of the Company’s deferred tax afiggtdities) at December 31, 2014 and 2013 weréotlows:

December 31 December 31
2014 2013
(U.S. $ in thousand:

Current deferred tax asse

Inventory relatec $ 11,87¢ % 9,30¢
Tax losses carry forwal 263 3,77:
Deferred revenu 2,272 612
Allowance for doubtful accoun 43C 462
Research and development credit carryforv 2,00¢ 47¢
Reserve for warranty expens 37% 67
Provision for employee related obligatic 6,50¢ 1,21¢
Issuance cos! 541 431
Foreign currency loss¢ 1,26( —
Other 16€ 15%

Current deferred tax assets $ 25,697 $ 16,50

Long-term deferred tax asse

Tax losses carry forward and ott 27¢ 407
Foreign currency loss¢ — 35¢
Stock-based compensation expense — 58€

Long-term deferred tax assets $ 27¢ $ 1,357

Current deferred tax liabilitie

Issuance costs — (112
Current deferred tax liabilities $ — $ (112)
Long-term deferred tax asse
Stocl-based compensation expel $ 567 % 90:<
Tax losses carry forwal 35,36: 8,311
Depreciatior 3,907 57¢
Research and developmen credit carryforv — 1,90¢
Issuance cosf — 47¢
Foreign tax credi — 89:
Provision for employee related obligatic 3,011 —
Other Carryforward 1,26¢€ —
Other 12¢ 367
Long-term deferred tax asse 49,34% 13,43t
Long-term deferred tax liabilities
Intangibles (103,54) (115,24
Issuance cos! — (430
Depreciatior (1,55¢ (3,659
Valuation allowance (85) —
Long-term deferred tax liabilities $ (105,18) $ (119,330
Total long-term deferred tax liabilities, net $ (55,83Y) $ (105,90)
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As of December 31, 2014, the Company had a tappetating loss carryforward of approximately $9iflion, resulting in a deferred ti
asset of approximately $35.4 million. The Compaaldves it is more likely than not that it will fulutilize this net operating loss
carryforward using future, projected taxable incoared accordingly, no valuation allowance has hgerided for this deferred tax asset. A
valuation allowance has been recorded in 2014dpital losses that are not expected to be reabeéate their expiration.

Included in the net deferred tax liability are nperating loss and credit carryovers of $40.1 orillivhich expire in years ending from
December 31, 2019 through December 31, 2034.

Income (loss) before income taxes for the yearg@mkcember 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 was as follows:

2014 2013 2012
(U.S. $ in thousand:
Domestic (1) $  25,90: $ (13,39) $ 23,27¢
Foreign (180,62)) (15,990 (4,762)

$ (154,719 $ (2938) $ 18,51

(1) As a result of the Stratasys-Objet Merger, “éstit” reflects income (loss) from continuing oginas before income taxes and non-
controlling interest for Israel in 2014 and 20138l dor the U.S. for 201Z

The components of income tax (benefit) for the gearded December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 werdl@asgo

2014 2013 2012
(U.S. $ in thousand:
Current

Domestic (2] $ 10,65 $ 14,71« $ 12,31¢
Foreign 7,98¢ 1,914 1,44
18,63¢ 16,62¢ 13,76¢

Deferred
Domestic (2] (5,177%) (9,429 (3,119
Foreign (48,710 (9,674 (969)
(53,88) (19,107) (4,077
Total income taxes $ (3524H ¢ (2,479 % 9,681

(2) For 2014 and 2013, domestic represents Isaaekt while foreign represents non-Israel taxedydling U.S. federal, state and local
taxes. For 2012 domestic represents U.S. federastavhile foreign reflects n-U.S.

A reconciliation of the statutory federal incoma tate and the effective tax rate for the yearsedrdecember 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012 i
set forth below:

2014 2013 2012
Statutory rate (3 26.5% 25.(% 35.(%
Approved and Privileged enterprise bene 3.7 6.C —
State income taxes, net of federal ber — — 2ol
Goodwill impairment (7.9 — —
MakerBot ear-out revaluatior 3.1 — —
Stock compensation exper (3.7 (7.9 3.4
Manufacturing deductio — — (5.9
Tax contingencie 1.€ (12.7 (3.9
Non-deductible acquisition expens (0.7 (4.9 12.¢
Earning taxed under foreign le 9.€ 13.2 3.4
Other (0.9) (1.6 4.t
Effective income tax rate 22.8% 8.4% 52.2%
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(3) As a result of the Stratasys-Objet merger statutory rate for 2014 and 2013 reflects the Istautory rate of 26.5% and 25%,
respectively. For 2012 (since income was primanilthe U.S with the December 1, 2012 merger déte)statutory rate reflects the U.S.
statutory rate of 35%.

As a result of the Stratasys-Objet merger, theeffect of foreign operations for 2014 and 2013 ¢steof non-Israel jurisdictions. For
2012, the tax effect of foreign operations congi$tson-U.S. jurisdictions.

Significant judgment is required in evaluating fempanys tax positions and determining its provision focdme taxes. During t
ordinary course of business, there are many tréinsacand calculations for which the ultimate tatedmination is uncertain. The Comp
establishes reserves for tedated uncertainties based on estimates of whetimel the extent to which, additional taxes will dhee. Thes
reserves are established when the Company belibaesertain positions might be challenged despsteelief that its tax return positions
fully supportable. The Company adjusts these resem light of changing facts and circumstanceshsas the outcome of a tax audi
changes in the tax law. The provision for incomegaincludes the impact of reserve provisions drahges to reserves that are consic
appropriate. Accruals for tax contingencies are/igied for in accordance with the requirements ofCABI0.

The Company is subject to income taxes in the Waipus states, Israel and certain other foraigisdictions. In the U.S., Stratasys, In
currently being audited by the Internal RevenuesiSer(“IRS”) for the years 2011 and 2012 and may be subjectamimation for 2013. Tt
IRS has completed its examination of Stratasys, drfederal income tax returns for the years 2009201d. The Company files income
returns in various jurisdictions with varying stsi of limitations. Tax returns of Stratasys Ltsbmitted in Israel through the 2012 tax yeal
considered to be final following settlement uponliauThe expiration of the statute of limitatioredated to the various other foreign and
income tax returns that the Company and its sudnséd file vary by state and foreign jurisdiction.

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company tmadcagnized tax benefits of $8.6 million and $1@8lion, respectively. |
recognized, these benefits would favorably imphetéffective tax rate. A reconciliation of the begng and ending amount of unrecogn
tax benefits is as follows:

December 31 December 31 December 31
2014 2013 2012
(U.S. $in thousand:

Balance at beginning of ye $ 10,34¢  $ 4,041 % 1,59¢
Additions for tax positions related to the

current yea 2,708 3,99 45F
Additions for tax positions related to

previous year 734 2,56: 14
Reduction of reserve for statute expirati (5,239 (259 (1,156
Addition from the Stratasys-Objet mergt — — 3,13(
Balance at end of year $ 855: $ 10,34¢ $ 4,041

The balance of the reserve for tax uncertaintietudes $183 thousand for estimated interest andlfies at December 31, 2014. °
Company does not expect uncertain tax positiomhamge significantly over the next twelve months.

The Company is asserting that all future profitétsnsubsidiaries will be indefinitely reinvestedtbat there is no expectation to distrik
any taxable dividends from these subsidiaries. @armination of the amount of the unrecognizecededl tax liability related to tl
undistributed earnings is estimated as a non-naigmount.

F- 39



STRATASYS LTD.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The enacted statutory tax rates applicable to thagainy’s major subsidiaries outside of Israel aréofows:

Company incorporated in the U.S.—tax rate of 35%.
Company incorporated in Germany—tax rate of 27.9%.
Company incorporated in Hong Kong—tax rate of 16.5%

A significant portion of the Company’s income aftee December 1, 2012 merger date is taxed inllsthe following is a summary
of how the Company’s income is taxed in Israel:

a. Basis of taxation:
Tax rates:

Corporate tax rates in Israel were as follows: 284@ 2013-25%, 2014 and thereafter-26.5%. The Caynekected to compute its taxable
income in accordance with Income Tax Regulationdg®for Accounting for Foreign Investors Comparsied Certain Partnerships and
Setting their Taxable Income), 1986. Accordinghe Company’s taxable income or loss is calculatdd.5. dollars. Applying these
regulations reduces the effect of foreign exchamatge fluctuations (of the NIS in relation to theSUdollar) on the Company’s Israeli taxable
income.

b. Tax benefits under the Law for Encouragement o€apital Investments, 1959 (the “Law”):

Various industrial projects of the Company havenbg®nted “Approved Enterprise” and “Beneficiaryt&mprise” status, which provides
certain benefits, including tax exemptions for whdbuted income and reduced tax rates. Incomeligible for Approved Enterprise and
Beneficiary Enterprise benefits is taxed at thail@gcorporate rate, which was 26.5% in 2014.

The Company is a Foreign Investors Company, or &éGjefined by the Israeli Investment Law. FICseartitled to further reductions in
the tax rate normally applicable to Approved Entisgs and Beneficiary Enterprises, depending omethed of foreign ownership. When
foreign (non-Israeli) ownership equal or exceed% 9the Approved Enterprise and Beneficiary Entegimcome is either tax-exempt for a
limit period between two to ten years dependinghenlocation of the enterprise or taxable at arédex of 10% for a 10-year period. The
Company cannot assure that it will continue to ifipials a FIC in the future or that the benefitsab®ed herein will be granted in the future.

In the event of distribution of dividends from tha&id tax-exempt income as described above, the @ndisiributed will be subject to
corporate tax at the rate ordinarily applicabléhe Approved Enterprise’s or Beneficiary Enterpasecome. Dividends paid out of income
attributed to Approved Enterprise’s or Benefici&tyterprise are subject to withholding tax at therse at the rate of 15%, unless a lower rate
is provided in a treaty between Israel and theedf@der’s country of residence.

The entitlement to the above benefits is conditiopan the Company’s fulfilling the conditions silpted by the Investment Law and
regulations published hereunder. Should the Comfaihto meet such requirements in the future, meaattributable to its Approved
Enterprise and Beneficiary Enterprise programsabel subject to the statutory Israeli corporateréd and the Company could be required tc
refund a portion of the tax benefits already reediwith respect to such programs.

The Company does not intend to distribute any arnsoofits undistributed tax-exempt income as didig as it intends to reinvest its tax-
exempt income within the Company. Accordingly, mdedred income taxes have been provided on incdimibuaable to the Company’s
Approved or Beneficiary Enterprise programs, asuth@istributed tax exempt income is essentiallyr@arent in duration.

As of December 31, 2014, tax-exempt income of agprately $148.1 million is attributable to the Coamy’s various Approved ai
Beneficiary Enterprise programs. If such tax exempdme is distributed, it would be taxed at théueed corporate tax rate applicable to :
income, and taxes of approximately $14.8 millioruwdobe incurred as of December 31, 2014.

A January 2011 amendment to Investment Law (th&128mendment”) sets alternative benefit trackshtise previously in place, as
follows: an investment grants track designed faemises located in national development
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zone A and two new tax benefits tracks (“Prefeeterprise” and “Special Preferred Enterprise”)jchtprovide for application of a
unified tax rate to all preferred income of the gamy, as defined in the Investment Law.

The 2011 Amendment canceled the availability oftteeefits granted in accordance with the provismfithe Investment Law prior to
2011 and, instead, introduced new benefits fornmegenerated by a “Preferred Company” throughriégéePred Enterprise (as such term is
defined in the Investment Law) effective as of Jagul, 2011 and thereafter. A Preferred Compauwgimed as either (i) a company
incorporated in Israel and not fully owned by a @mmental entity or (ii) a limited partnership th@) was registered under the Partnerships
Ordinance; (b) all of its limited partners are c@migs incorporated in Israel, but not all of therm governmental entities, which, among other
things, has Preferred Enterprise status and arteotled and managed from Israel. Pursuant to tHel Z0mendment, a Preferred Company is
entitled to a reduced corporate flat tax rate ¢foMith respect to its preferred income derivedtbyPireferred Enterprise in 2011-2012, unless
the Preferred Enterprise is located in a certaireldgpment zone, in which case the rate will be 184ch corporate tax rate will be reduced to
12.5% and 7%, respectively, in 2013 and will inseto 16% and 9% in 2014 and thereafter. Incomeattby a Preferred Company from a
“Special Preferred Enterprise” (as such term isngef in the Investment Law) would be entitled, dgra benefits period of 10 years, to further
reduced tax rates of 8%, or to 5% if the Speciafdtred Enterprise is located in a certain devekmrzone.

Dividends paid out of income attributed to a PnefdrEnterprise were subject to withholding taxhat$ource at the rate of 15% before 2014
and 20% in 2014 and thereafter or such lower ratmay be provided in an applicable tax treaty. Heweif such dividends are paid to an
Israeli company, no tax will be withheld. Shouldampany elect to implement the 2011 Amendment vaipect to its existing Approved and
Benefiting Enterprises prior to June 30, 2015, dbwids distributed from taxable income derived figpproved Enterprises or Benefiting
Enterprises to another Israeli company would at#de subject to tax.

The 2011 Amendment also provided transitional miovis to address companies already enjoying cubenefits. These transitiol
provisions provide, among other things, the follogi

« The terms and benefits included in any certifiaztapproval that was granted to an Approved Eniegpihat chose to receive gra
before the 2011 Amendment came into effect, withaé subject to the provisions of the Investmenw lzss in effect on the date
such approval, while provided that certain condiiare mel

« The terms and benefits included in any certificat@approval that was granted to an Approved Enisgpthat had participated in
alternative benefits program, before the 2011 Ameamt came into effect will remain subject to thevisions of the Investment L
as in effect on the date of such approval, provithed certain conditions are met. However, a corgghat has such enterprise can
a request with the Israeli Tax Authority, to tréatincome derived as of January 1, 2011 as subjeitie provisions of the Investm
Law as amended in 201

« A Beneficiary Enterprise can elect to continue ¢émdfit from the benefits provided to it before #6581 Amendment came into effe
provided that certain conditions are met, or céndirequest with the Israeli Tax Authority to tréa income derived as of Januar
2011 as subject to the provisions of the Investrhamt as amended in 2011. Such request may not thelnaivn.

The Company has examined the possible effect,yif ahthese provisions of the 2011 Amendment offifiancial statements and has deci
at this time, not to opt to apply the new benefitsler the 2011 Amendment.

c. Tax benefits under the Israeli Law for the Encotagement of Industry (Taxation), 1969:
The Company is an “Industrial Compargs8 defined by the Israeli Law for the Encouragenoéimdustry (Taxation), 1969, and, as suc
entitled to certain tax benefits including acceledadepreciation, deduction of public offering exges in three equal annual installments and

amortization of other intangible property rights fax purposes.
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Note 9. Commitments and Contingencies

a. Commitments
The Company leases certain of its facilities under-cancellable operating leases, which expireutinc2025.

Future minimum annual lease payments under allcamtelable operating leases with an initial terraxoess of one year as of December
31, 2014 are as follows:

Operating lease payment

Year ending December 31 (U.S. $ in thousand:

2015 $ 12,72

2016 11,00:

2017 7,097

2018 6,607

2019 6,04
Thereafter 24,60°

$ 68,08(

Rent expense for the years ended December 31, 2013,and 2012 was approximately $10.7 million7$#illion and $1.0 million,
respectively.

In November 2013, a wholly-owned subsidiary of @@mpany entered into an unsecured five-year rengleredit facility (“credit
facility”) of up to $250 million, which is intendet serve as the Company’s primary senior unsedosed credit facility to meet the liquidity
needs of the Company. The credit facility mature®ctober 2018. Interest is calculated at definadgins above the Eurodollar, prime or
Federal Funds rates.

The obligations under the credit facility are gudead collectively by the Company, its active I§ragbsidiaries and certain U.S
subsidiaries. The credit facility requires the Campto maintain certain financial ratios and alsotains other events of default and covenant
that limit various matters.

During 2014, the Company has borrowed $50 milliader the credit facility. As of December 31, 20thte Company was in compliance
with all the required covenants under the crediilifg agreement.

As of December 31, 2014, the Company also had afixhigs in connection with acquisitions, mainly doehe Solid Concepts transaction.
For additional information refer to note 2.

b. Contingencies
Claims and Proceedings

In December 2008, an employee, whose employmeit tivée Company was subsequently terminated, filethian against the Compa
demanding that, based on an alleged undertakinGongpany had made, the Company issue to him aarogitat would allow him to mainte
an equity interest of 1.45% in the Company, as wsllreimburse salary reductions he had suffereghimggregate sum of NIS 552,
($142,000). In July 2009, the Company filed itsestzent of defense, rejecting the claims raisedheyformer employee. Together with
former employee, the Company initiated mediatiomhef dispute, but did not reach a settlement. Bh@ér employee later amended his in
pleading to seek an additional NIS 441,000 ($113,@® account of alleged wrongful termination bg @ompany. The claim was dismisse
November 2013 by the Israeli labor court, also alivey the Company legal expenses of NIS 55,000. plamtiff has appealed the decisii
and the appeal is currently ongoing at the natitsrakli labor court.

On March 4, 2013, four current or former minorityaseholders (two of whom were former directorsihef Company filed two lawsu
against the Company in an Israeli central dist@irt. The lawsuits demand that the Company amsnchpitalization table such that cer
share issuances prior to the Stratasys-Objet mesgartain of Objet shareholders named as defendants would be aahoelth a conseque
issuance of additional shares to the plaintiffadoount for the subsequent dilution to which thayehbeen subject. The lawsuits also nan
defendants Elchanan Jaglom, Chairman of the Compaoward of directors,
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David Reis, Chief Executive Officer, various shanlelers of the Company who were also shareholde@bgét, and, in one of the lawsu
llan Levin, a director. The lawsuits allege in parar that a series of investments in Objet du20§2 and 2007 was effected at a price
share that was below fair market value, therelegdlly diluting those shareholders that did notipigate in the investments. The plaintiffs ¢
allege that a portion of the amount invested irs¢htransactions was actually invested by an invegih® was already a shareholder of C
and allegedly acting in concert with Mr. Jaglom¢ dhat the interest of these two shareholdersasdhransactions was not properly discl
to the minority shareholders at the time. The latgsiurthermore claim that the Company effectivelygaged in backdating the issuanc
certain shares, in that shares that Objet rep@seldaving been issued in 2006 and 2007 were actisalied at a subsequent dags-ate ¢
2009. The Company filed its statements of defendday 2013 denying the plaintiff€laims. Also, the Company filed motion to dismiks
claims on grounds of statute of limitations, laches lack of cause. On April 8, 2014, the courdhelhearing on the motion and the pa
submitted summation briefs. The court's decisigmeisding.

On February 5, 9, and 20, 2015, lawsuits styledlass actions were commenced in the United Staistsidd Courts for the District
Minnesota, the Southern District of New York, amhe Eastern District of New York, respectively, naghthe Company and certain of
Companys officers as defendants. The lawsuits allege timia of the Exchange Act in connection with alldigefalse and misleadit
statements concerning the Companpusiness and prospects. The plaintiffs seek desnagd awards of reasonable costs and exp
including attorneysfees. These lawsuits are in their initial stages ram substantive proceedings have occurred to @heeCompany intends
mount vigorous defenses to these lawsuits.

The Company is a party to various other legal pedaggs, the outcome of which, in the opinion of agement, will not have a mate
adverse effect on the financial position, resultsgerations or cash flows of the Company.

Note 10. Equity

a. Share capital

On September 18, 2013, the Company completed @falh public offering of 5.2 million of its ordinanhares and received net proce
of $462.9 million.

During 2012, Hewlett-Packard Company exercise@vdsrant to purchase 0.5 million shares of the Camgphrough a “cashless exercise’
in accordance with the terms of the warrant and is&sed 360,115 shares. The Company received lzeteefit of $6.1 million in excess of 1
tax benefit based on intrinsic value on date afasge of the warrant and the tax benefit is refléets an increase to additional peicapital ir
the statement of changes in equity.

As discussed in note 2, the StrataGfget merger was accounted for as reverse acquisitith Objet as the legal acquirer and Strat:
Inc. as the accounting acquirer. Under reverseisitigm accounting, the U.S. dollar amount for oty shares is based on the nominal \
and number of shares issued by Obijet (reflectimglelyal structure of Objet as the legal acquirerXtee merger date plus subsequent sl
issued by the Company. The amounts in additiondHpacapital represent that of Stratasys, Inc. actuge the fair value of shares deeme
accounting purposes to have been issued by Stsathsy on the merger date and the fair value ef @jet stock options included in
purchase price calculation. The Stratasys, Incitiaddl paidin capital was also adjusted for the differencenreen the number of ordine
shares discussed in note 2 above and the histowicaber of shares of Stratasys, Inc. common s@gkyell as the elimination of the recor
number of Stratasys, Inc. treasury stock. In Sep&n2012 Objet shareholders adopted resolutioosrding to which, upon the effectiven
of the merger, the Comparsyauthorized share capital was reduced to 60 millicdinary shares of a nominal value of NIS 0.0&heall
outstanding ordinary shares are validly issuedy fasid and non-assessable.
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The current authorized share capital reflectsh@ @automatic conversion of all Objet preferred eband options to purchase prefe
shares outstanding prior to the effective timehefinerger into ordinary shares and options to @mseh

ordinary shares, respectively, on a onedpe basis, in accordance with the articles of aason of Objet in effect prior to the closing
the merger, and (ii) a one-for-8.691 reverse sg@ik ratio and accompanying reduction in Olgetuthorized share capital from NIS 5 mil
to NIS 0.6 million and a corresponding reductionhia nominal value per share from NIS 0.0833 to OlEL, each of which became effectiv
the effective time of the merger.

At the Company’s annual general meeting held ineJR@13, the Company’s shareholders approved an daeart to the Company’
articles of association to increase the numberrdinary shares the Company is authorized to iseu#80 million and correspondingly
increase the Company’s share capital to NIS1.danill

b. Stock-based compensation plan

The Stratasys Ltd. 2012 Omnibus Equity IncentivenRithe “2012 Plan”), which became effective upéwsiog of the Stratasy@bje!
merger, provides for the grant of options, restdcshares, restricted share units (“RSUs”) andrathare-based awards to the Compararic
its subsidiariesrespective directors, employees, officers, conatdtaand advisors and to any other person whosecesrare consider
valuable to the Company or any of its affiliatesiddr the 2012 plan, options and RSUs generally has@ntractual term of ten years from
grant date. Options granted become exercisabletbgeearesting period, which is normally a foggar period beginning on the grant date, su
to the employea continuing service to the Company. As of Decen®igr2014, 3.1 million shares were available faniggawards under tl
2012 plan. On January 1, 2015, the reserve poaruheé 2012 plan was automatically increased byrllion shares.

Stratasys-Objet merger stock options

The Company recognized a otiee stock compensation expense of $4.5 millior2@i2 in connection with stock options grantec
Stratasys, Inc. prior to the date of the mergeeagent and certain options granted in May 2012falVhich became fully exercisable un
their terms on completion of the merger. Stratabys, options outstanding on the merger date weptaced with Company options with
same terms and equivalent value.

Objet options outstanding on the merger date remdasutstanding under their original terms. Underchase accounting, the value
options that were vested and exercisable on thgenetate was included as part of the purchase.pFioe value of options with remaini
vesting after the merger date wasvedded as of the merger date and that value willdfkected in stock compensation expense ove
remaining vesting period. The valuation on the reedpate used assumptions of risk free interestafa®e4% to 0.5%; expected option term
2.5 10 3.7 years; expected price volatility of 88.7% 62.6%; and no dividend yield.

A summary of the stock option activity (reflectihgstorical Stratasys, Inc. stock options prior e Stratasy©bjet merger date) for t
year ended December 31, 2014 is as follc

Per Share Weighted Average
Number of Options Exercise Price Exercise Price

Options outstanding as of December 31, 2 2,007,43. $ 221 -% 1205  $ 29.6¢
Granted in 201 239,58: 91.4¢ - 115.1: 103.5¢
GrabCAD options from merger in 20: 72,87¢ 2.8¢ - 9.3 7.2¢
Exercised in 201. (557,609 2.21 - 99.01 14.1¢
Forfeited in 2014 (43,046 2.74 - 120.5: 52.2%
Options outstanding as of December 31, 201 1,719,24. 2.21 - 120.5: 43.8¢
Exercisable options as of December 31, 201¢ 870,56¢ $ 221 - % 120.5: $ 22.7(
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The following table summarizes information abowaicktoptions outstanding at December 31, 2014:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Outstanding Weighted- Average Exercisable
options at Remaining Weighted- Average options at Weighted- Average
Range of December 31 Contractual Exercise December 31 Exercise

Exercise Prices 2014 Life in Years Price 2014 Price
$ 221 - $ 9.9C 579,60! 3.9t $ 6.9C 478,30" $ 6.7¢
9.91 - 46.8 552,96¢ 2.9¢ 28.8¢ 282,49! 24.9¢
46.8¢ - 101.9¢ 387,09° 8.6( 86.5¢ 108,75( 85.7¢
$ 101.9¢ - $ 120.5: 199,57( 8.4¢ 106.3¢ 1,01¢ 120.5.
1,719,24. $ 43.8¢ 870,56¢ $ 22.7(

Aggregate intrinsic valu
(U.S. $ in thousands) $ 74,501 $ 53,01(

The weighted average life remaining on vested optiwas 3.8 years at December 31, 2014. The weighterhge grant date fair va
based on the Blackcholes model was $60.82 for options granted ird20he Company issues new ordinary shares uportisgenf stoc
options. The total intrinsic value of options exsed was approximately $55.6 million in 2014, $16fillion in 2013 and $74.5 million
2012.

The Company used the Black-Scholes option-pricinglehto determine the fair value of grants mad2Gh4, 2013 and 2012. The
following assumptions were applied in determining tompensation cost:

2014 2013 2012
Risk-free interest rat 1.3%- 2.0% 1.4%-1.7% 0.8%
Expected option term (year 4.2-6.5 5.1-5.2 4.5
Expected price volitility 45.8%- 47.6% 56%- 57% 62%
Dividend yield — — —
Weighted average grant date fair va $ 60.8: % 40.9¢ $ 22.3¢

As of December 31, 2014, there were 848,672 undexgigons of the Company. As of December 31, 2@iel unrecognized compensa
cost related to all unvested stock options of $36illion is expected to be recognized as an expemnse a weightedverage period of 1..
years.

During the years ended December 31, 2014 and 208X;ompany granted RSUs for 475,511 and 215, 1di8any shares of the Compsz
at a weighted average fair value of $92.66 and8 tespectively. Stockased compensation expense equal to the aggregiataliie of th
RSUs at grant date, less an estimate of forfeifuseseing recorded on a straight-line basis okerfouryear vesting period. As of Decem
31, 2014, the unrecognized compensation cost telatall unvested RSUs of $56.1 million is expectede recognized as expense ¢
straight-line basis over a weighted-average pesfd@i52 years.

Equity classified stock-based compensation expenskgled in the Company’s Statements of Operativai®:

2014 2013 2012
U.S. $ in thousamc

Cost of sale: $ 4,49t $ 2,98( $ 602
Research and development, 4,86 3,491 96(
Selling, general and administrative 20,85( 17,79: 7,311

Total stock-based compensation expen  $ 30,20° $ 24,26. $ 8,87«
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c. Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)

The following table presents the changes in thepmrants of accumulated other comprehensive inctwss)( net of taxes for the yi
ended December 31, 2014:

Realized gains and losses on cash flow hedgesreelgssified to research and development and gedli general and administrat
expenses.

Other reclassifications from accumulated other c@hensive income were reclassified to financiabine (expense), net.

Year ended December 31, 201

Net unrealized gain Foreign currency
(loss) on cash flow translation
hedges adjustments Other Total

(U.S. $ in thousand:

Balance as of January 1, 2014 $ 158 $ 1,927 $ (167 $  1,90¢
Other comprehensive income before

reclassification: (2,227) (4,326 — (6,54¢)
Amounts reclassified from accumulated

other comprehensive income 82€ — 167 99:
Other comprehensive income (loss) (1,396 (4,326 167 (5,555
Balance as of December 31, 2014 $ (1,249  $ (2,409 % = $ (3,649

Note 11. Derivatives and Hedging Activities

The Company carries out transactions involvingifpreeurrency exchange derivative financial instratse The transactions are desig
to hedge the Comparg/exposure in currencies other than the U.S. dollae Company is primarily exposed to foreign exgwarisk with
respect to recognized assets and liabilities, st transactions and net assets denominated e Israeli Shekel (“NIS"and the Eurc
The Company manages its foreign currency exposaresconsolidated basis, which allows the Compamet exposures and take advan
of any natural offsets. In addition, the Compangsuderivative instruments to reduce the net exgoguforeign exchange. Gains and losse
the hedging instruments offset losses and gainh®hedged items. Financial markets and currentatility may limit the Companys ability
to hedge these exposures.

The following table summarizes the consolidate@dihed sheets classification and fair values of the@any’s derivative instruments:

Fair Value Notional Amount
December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31
Balance sheet locatioi 2014 2013 2014 2013

(U.S. $ in thousand:

Assets derivatives -Foreign

exchange contracts, not

designated as hedging

instruments Other current asse $ 3,75: $ 301 % 45,000 $ 12,49(
Assets derivatives -Foreign

exchange contracts,

designated as cash flow hec Other current asse — 152 — 5,76(
Liability derivatives -Foreign

exchange contracts, not

designated as hedging Accrued expenses and otl
instruments current liabilities (2,907 (1,549 18,42 54,00(
Liability derivatives -Foreign
exchange contracts, Accrued expenses and otl
designated as cash flow hec current liabilities (1,249 — 38,42¢ —
$ (391)) $ (1,089 $ 101,850 $ 72,25(
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Foreign exchange forward contracts are valued pifiynbased on observable inputs, including interasé curves and both forward
spot prices for currencies (Level 2 inputs).

As of December 31, 2014, the Company had foreigthamge forward contracts, not designated as hedgsiguments in effect for tl
conversion of $45.0 million into33.9 million and $18.4 million into NIS 66.3 millio These derivatives are primarily used to redhedrmpac
of foreign currency fluctuations on certain balasbeet exposures. With respect to such derivatgess, of $4.4 million was recognized un
financial income (expense), net for the year endedember 31, 2014. Such gain partially offset #naluation of the balance sheet ite
which are also recorded under financial income ¢esp), net.

As of December 31, 2014, the Company had foreigia&xge forward contracts in effect for the convmrsif $38.4 million designated a
cash flow hedge for accounting purposes. The Compaes shorterm cash flow hedge contracts to reduce its exgotu variability ir
expected future cash flows resulting mainly fronyrmp#l costs denominated in New lIsraeli Shekels. Tieé changes in fair value of th
contracts of $1.4 million and $0.2 million for tlyears ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, respgctave included in the Company’
accumulated other comprehensive income (loss).eTbestracts mature through September 30, 2015.

Note 12. Entity-Wide Disclosure

Net sales by geographic area were as folloy

Year ended December 31,
2014 2013 2012
(U.S. $ in thousand:

North America $ 405,88 $ 262,61« $ 113,85
EMEA 183,46: 126,21« 62,78:
Asia Pacific 150,47! 90,02 35,45(
Other 10,31: 5,552 3,15¢

$ 750,12 $ 484,40: $ 215,24«

*Net sales are attributed to geographic areas basé¢le location of customer

Property, plant and equipment by geographical wexa as follows:

December 31,
2014 2013
(U.S. $in thousand:

North America $106,89¢ $ 63,14:
EMEA 46,23¢ 25,36(
Asia Pacific 3,80¢ 2,50¢
Other 93 —

$157,03¢ $ 91,00¢

Property, plant and equipment that were locatddrael amounted to $31.5 million and $20.1 millfonthe years ended December 31,
2014 and 2013, respectively and are included uthdeEMEA region in the above table.

No single customer accounted for 10% or more of @amy’s total net sales, or Company’s net accowtsivable, in any fiscal year
presented.
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Note 13. Retirement Plans and Employee Rights Updrermination

Israeli law generally requires the Company to pagweerance payment upon dismissal of an employepar termination of employme
in certain other circumstances. The Company makgsing deposits into its Israeli employee pensilampto fund their severance liabiliti
According to the general collective pension agragnie Israel, Company deposits with respect to eygds who were employed by
Company after the agreement took effect are madieunof the Company severance liability therefore, no obligation isyided for in th
Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Severance pay liabilities with respect to employebe were employed by the Company prior to theemtive pension agreement effec
date, as well as employees who have special con#laarrangements, are provided for in the Commaiegnsolidated financial stateme
based upon the number of years of service and lditest monthly salary. These liabilities, in threaunt of $3.2 million for each of the ye
ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, are presenti@ @ompany’s consolidated balance sheets under ntm-current liabilities.

The liability is funded in part from the purchadénsurance policies or by the establishment ofsp@mfunds with dedicated deposits in
funds. The amounts used to fund these liabilitiess iacluded in the balance sheets under othercoorent assets. These policies are
Companys assets. However, under employment agreementsudoject to certain limitations, any policy may bensferred to the ownership
the individual employee for whose benefit the funase deposited.

In accordance with its current employment agreemetith certain employees, the Company makes regi@posits with certain insurar
companies for accounts controlled by each appkcabiployee in order to secure the employergjhts upon retirement. The Company is 1
relieved from any severance pay liability with respto each such employee after it makes the paggnoanbehalf of the employee. The liabi
accrued in respect of these employees and the ambunded, as of the respective agreement datesiadreflected in the Compasybalanc
sheets, as the amounts funded are not under ttisocand management of the Company and the permi@everance pay risks have kt
irrevocably transferred to the applicable insuracm@panies (the “Contribution Plans”).

The Company has a defined contribution retiremésm fthe “Plan”)under the provisions of Section 401(k) of the InggmRevenue Cot
of 1986, as amended (the “Codéfiat covers eligible U.S. employees as definedhéRlan. Participants may elect to contribute upQ% o
pretax annual compensation, as defined by the Plamo @gpmaximum amount prescribed by the Code. Thgaay, at its discretion, mal
matching contributions equal to the lesser of $3,003% of the participarg’annual compensation. On January 1, 2014, the &wynghange
its contributions to the lesser of $3,000 or 4%hef participant annual compensation. The Company, at its distrethay make additior
contributions, also subject to Code limitationsr Floe years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2@ Zompany made 401(k) P
contributions of approximately $2.8 million, $1.1lllon and $0.8 million respectively.

Note 14. Computation of net income (loss) per share

The Company complies with ASC 26Barnings Per Share which requires dual presentation of basic andtell income (loss) p
ordinary share attributable to Stratasys Ltd. fbperiods presented. Basic net income (loss) paresis computed by dividing net income (I
by the weighted average number of shares outstgrfdinthe reporting periods. Diluted net incomesflpper share is computed using
weightedaverage number of ordinary shares and the potetitigive ordinary shares outstanding during theique Potential diluted shat
outstanding include the dilutive effect of in-themney options and restricted stock units (“RSUsSing the treasury stock method, as wel
shares held back from issuance in connection WwghMakerBot transaction. In addition, the effecthsf earnsut obligation is included in ba:
net income (loss) per share calculation only whesrd is no circumstance under which the earmsettlement shares would not be iss
When calculating diluted net income (loss) per shaarneut obligation settlement shares are included éndtenominator of the calculation
of the beginning of the interim period in which ts&n-out conditions are satisfied.
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The following table presents the calculation ofibasid diluted net income per share:

Year ended December 31
2014 2013 2012
(In thousands, except per share amot

Numerator:
Net income (loss— numerator for basic net income (loss) per sl $ (119,420 $ (26,959 % 8,491
Add:

Dilutive effect of earn-out obligation — (1,687 —
Numerator for diluted income (loss) per sh $ (119420 $ (2863) $ 8,491
Denominator
Weighted average shares — denominator for basinoeme (loss) pe

share 50,01¢ 42,07¢ 22,81
Add:

Dilutive effect of ear-out obligation — 20 —

Additional shares from the assumed exercise of eyel stock

options — — 964
Denominator for diluted income (loss) per share 50,01¢ 42,09¢ 23,77¢
Net income (loss) per shs
Basic $ (239 $ (069 $ 0.37
Diluted $ (239 % (069 % 0.3¢€

The computation of diluted net income (loss) parstexcluded stock options, RSUs and shares heldibaonnection with the MakerB
transaction to purchase 3.0 million, 2.9 milliordgh3 million for the years ended December 31, 2@043 and 2012, respectively, because
their inclusion would have had an anti-dilutiveeeff on the diluted net income (loss) per share.
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VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS AND RESERVES

Years ended December 31, 2014, 2013, and 201BRdirsands):

COLUMN A Column B Column C- Additions Column D Column E
Balances at Charged to Balances
beginning of costs and Charged to at end

Description period expense: other accoun Deductions of period

2014

Reserve for bad debts and allowan $ 1987 $ 95¢ % — 3 1,46¢ % 1,47

2013

Reserve for bad debts and allowan $ 95t $ 1,30C % —  $ 26¢  $ 1,981

2012

Reserve for bad debts and allowan $ 1,31¢ % 23z $ —  $ 50¢ $ 95t



ITEM 19. EXHIBITS.

Iltem 19. Exhibits .

Exhibit
Number Document Description

1.1 Amended and Restated Articles of Association cétasys Ltd. (1

1.2 Memorandurrof Association of Stratasys Ltd. (

2.1 Specimen ordinary share certificate of Stratasygs (3)

4.1 Stratasys Ltd. (formerly known as Objet Geometkites) Amended and Restated 2004 Omnibus Stock @t Restricted
Stock Incentive Plar4)

42.1 Stratasys Ltd. 2012 Omnibus Equity Incentive PI5)

4.2.2 Amendment to Stratasys Ltd. 2012 Omnibus Equitgiive Plan 6)

4.3 Form of Indemnification Agreement by and betweenatasys Ltd. and each of its directors and exeeudfficers (7 )

4.4 Employment Agreement, dated September 15, 2008ntybetween Stratasys Ltd. (formerly known as OBgametries Ltd.)
and David Reis 8)

4.5 Employment Agreement, dated June 27, 2011, by ahwlden Stratasys Ltd. (formerly known as Objet)Lathd llan Levin Q)

4.6 OEM Purchase and License Agreement, effective &agf5, 2011, by and between Stratasys Ltd. (folyrlerown as Objet
Geometries Ltd.) and Ricoh Printing Systems Ameiiice. (10 )#

4.7 Assignment, dated October 23, 1989, from S. Scattp to Stratasys, Inc. (a subsidiary of Stratasglg with respect to a
patent application for an apparatus and methodrimating thre-dimensional objects11)

4.8 Assignment, dated June 5, 1992, from S. Scott Criangiratasys, Inc. (a subsidiary of Stratasys)Mith respect to a patent
application for a modeling apparatus for three disi@nal objects 11)

4.9 Assignment, dated June 1, 1994, from S. Scott Crudeames W. Comb, William R. Priedeman, Jr., andeRafinniel to
Stratasys, Inc. (a subsidiary of Stratasys Ltdthwéspect to a patent application for a procedsaaparatus of support removal
for three-dimensional modeling11)

4.10 Credit Agreement, dated November 7, 2014, by anohgnstratasys Ltd., Stratasys International LténiBof America, N.A., as
Administrative Agent and Swing Line Lender, and ldreders party theretcl2)

411 Stratasys Ltd. Compensation Policy for Executivéd@fs and Directors13)

8.1 Subsidiary List of Stratasys Lt

12.1 Certificate of Chief Executive Officer pursuantRale 13-14(a)/Rule 15-14(a) under the Exchange #

12.2 Certificate of Chief Financial Officer pursuantRale 13i-14(a)/Rule 15-14(a) under the Exchange #

13 Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chigihancial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(b)/Rubel-114(b) under the
Exchange Act and 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adqpteiant to Section 906 of the Sarbi-Oxley Act of 200z

15.1 Consent of Kesselman & Kesselman, a member firRPricewaterhouseCoopers International Limited, aefrendent registered
public accounting firn

101 The following financial information from Stratasktl.’s Annual Report on Form 20-F for the year eh@ecember 31, 2014

formatted in XBRL (eXtensible Business Reportingigaage): (i) Consolidate
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Balance Sheets at December 31, 2014 and 2018 qjiyolidated Statements of Operations and Compsalemcome for the
years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012C¢ipolidated Statements of Changes in Equitylferyears ende
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012; (iv) Consolid&tatements of Cash Flows for the years ended Desedl, 2014, 2013
and 2012; and (v) Notes to Consolidated Finanditiethents, tagged as blocks of text. Users oftihtia are advised, in
accordance with Rule 406T of Regulation S-T proratédd by the SEC, that this Interactive Data Fildeemed not filed or part
of a registration statement or prospectus for psep®f Sections 11 or 12 of the Securities Adesmed not filed for purposes
of Section 18 of the Exchange Act, and otherwismissubject to liability under those sectio

1)

(2)

3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

(10)

(11)

(12)

(13)

Incorporated by reference to Appendix A to the segint’s proxy statement for its February 3, 2@&raordinary general meeting of
shareholders, attached as Exhibit 99.1 to the tragiss report of foreign private issuer on ForrK @drnished to the SEC on January
6, 2015

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3 to tegistrant’s registration statement on Form FECS-ile No. 333-182025, filed with the
SEC onJune 8, 201

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4 to tegistrant’s registration statement on Form FECS-ile No. 333-182025, filed with the
SEC on June 8, 201

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7He registrant’s registration statement on Form BEC File No. 333-182025, filed with
the SEC on June 8, 20

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8He registrant’s registration statement on Form BEC File No. 333-182025, filed with
the SEC on June 8, 20

Incorporated by reference to Proposal hefregistrant’s proxy statement for its Februéd§2extraordinary general meeting of
shareholders, attached as Exhibit 99.1 to the tragiss report of foreign private issuer on ForrK @drnished to the SEC on January
28, 2013

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.%He registrant’s registration statement on Form BEC File No. 333-182025, filed with
the SEC on June 8, 20

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8He registrant’s registration statement on Form BEC File No. 333-182025, filed with
the SEC on June 8, 20

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.%He registrant’s registration statement on Form BEC File No. 33-99108) filed with the
SEC on June 8, 201

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.d6he registrant’s registration statement on Forfl) SEC File No. 333-182025, filed with
the SEC on June 8, 20

Incorporated by reference to Amendment Nim. $tratasys, Inc. ’s registration statement om¥8B - 2 ( SEC File No. 333- 99108)
filed with the SEC oiDecember 20, 199

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 torbgistrant’s report of foreign private issuer ome®-K furnished to the SEC on
November 7, 201

Incorporated by reference to Appendix Bhe tegistrant’s proxy statement for its Februar@®.,5 extraordinary general meeting of
shareholders, attached as Exhibit 99.2 to the tragiss report of foreign private issuer on ForrK @drnished to the SEC on January
6, 2015

# Portions of this exhibit have been omitted atetifseparately with the SEC pursuant to a confidetrteatment request.
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SIGNATURES

The registrant hereby certifies that it meets athe requirements for filing on Form 20-F and thdttas duly caused and authorized the
undersigned to sign this annual report filed orbékalf.

STRATASYS LTD.
/s/ David Reis

David Reis
Chief Executive Office

March 3, 201¢

120



EXHIBIT 8.1

Subsidiaries
JURISDICTION OF
INCORPORATION
ENTITY OR ORGANIZATION
Stratasys, Inc Delaware
Objet Geometries Inc. (dba Objet In Delaware
Stratasys AP Limite: Hong Kong
Stratasys Shanghai Lt China
Stratasys GMB} Germany
Technimold, S.R.L Italy
Stratasys Japan Co. Lt Japar
Stratasys International Lt Israel
Stratasys Direct, Inc California
Solidscape, Inc Delaware
Stratasys Advanced Technologies, | Delaware
Stratasys Schweiz AG (Stratasys Switzerland | Switzerland
Stratasys Singapore Pte. Ltd. (Singap Singapore
Stratasys Latin America Representacao De Equiparadndl., Brazil
Stratasys Korea Lt( Korea
Baccio Corporation Delaware
MakerBot Industries, LL( New York
Thinginverse, LLC New York
GrabCAD, Inc. Delaware
GrabCAD UK Limited England
GrabCAD OU Republic of Estonia



Exhibit 12.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
RULE 13a-14(a)/RULE 15d-14(a) UNDER
THE EXCHANGE ACT

I, David Reis, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 2ff-Btratasys Ltd.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notador@ny untrue statement of a material fact or émnéttate a material fact necessary to

make the statements made, in light of the circuntsts.under which such statements were made, niatadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material

respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the company as of, andffier periods presented in this report;

4. The company'’s other certifying officer(s) anaré responsible for establishing and maintainirsgldsure controls and procedures (as

defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirg @defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15
(f) for the company and have:

(@)

(b)

()

(d)

Designed such disclosure controls and procsgorecaused such disclosure controls and procedortee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the company, including its consolidatedsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duriig tperiod in which this report is being prepai

Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finahi@gorting to be designed under
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggitte reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with geneealbepted accounting principle

Evaluated the effectiveness of the companyssldsure controls and procedures and presentdikineport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pros] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation;

Disclosed in this report any change in the canys internal control over financial reporting thatorred during the period covered
the annual report that has materially affecteds oeasonably likely to materially affect, the caang’s internal control over financial
reporting; anc

5. The company’s other certifying officer(s) anlgalve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimernal control over financial

reporting, to the company’s auditors and the acmlitmittee of the company’s board of directors (@nspns performing the equivalent
functions):

(@)

(b)

All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the comy’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpeancial information; an

Any fraud, whether or not material, that inv@dvmanagement or other employees who have a sagmiifiole in the company’s internal
control over financial reporting

Date: March 3, 201

/s/ David Reis

David Reis
Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 12.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
RULE 13a-14(a)/RULE 15d-14(a) UNDER
THE EXCHANGE ACT

I, Erez Simha, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 2ff-Btratasys Ltd.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notador@ny untrue statement of a material fact or émnéttate a material fact necessary to

make the statements made, in light of the circuntsts.under which such statements were made, niatadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material

respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the company as of, andffier periods presented in this report;

4. The company'’s other certifying officer(s) anaré responsible for establishing and maintainirsgldsure controls and procedures (as

defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirg @defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15
(f) for the company and have:

(@)

(b)

()

(d)

Designed such disclosure controls and procsgorecaused such disclosure controls and procedortee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the company, including its consolidatedsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duriig tperiod in which this report is being prepai

Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finahi@gorting to be designed under
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggitte reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with geneealbepted accounting principle

Evaluated the effectiveness of the companyssldsure controls and procedures and presentdikineport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pros] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation;

Disclosed in this report any change in the canys internal control over financial reporting thatorred during the period covered
the annual report that has materially affecteds oeasonably likely to materially affect, the caang’s internal control over financial
reporting; anc

5. The company’s other certifying officer(s) anlgalve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimernal control over financial

reporting, to the company’s auditors and the acmlitmittee of the company’s board of directors (@nspns performing the equivalent
functions):

(@)

(b)

All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the comy’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpeancial information; an

Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a s@mifiole in the company’s internal
control over financial reporting

Date: March 3, 201

/sl Erez Simhi

Erez Simhe
Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 13

CERTIFICATION OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND CH IEF
FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT TO
RULE 13a-14(b)/RULE 15d-14(b) UNDER THE EXCHANGE ACT
AND 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Stratasys. I(the “Company”) on Form 20-F for the period ended December 8142as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiothe date hereof (theReport ), we, David Reis, Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, and Erez Simha, Chief Financial Officethef Company, certify, pursuant to Rule 13a-14(bl)¢R.5d-14(b) under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended and 18 U.S.C.(§ E85adopted pursuant to 8906 of the Sarbanesr@xleof 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof1934; anc

(2) The information contained in the Report faphesents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and result of operations of the
Company.

Dated: March 3, 201

By /s/ David Rei
David Reis
Chief Executive Office

By /s/ Erez Simhi
Erez Simhe
Chief Financial Office




Exhibit 15.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémt¢lee Registration Statements on Form S-8 (N8-B3240 and 333-190963) and Form F
3 (No. 333-190965) of Stratasys Ltd. of our reglaied March 3, 2015 relating to the financial stegets, financial statement schedule, and th
effectiveness of internal control over financigdoeting, that appears in this Form 20-F.
/sl Kesselman & Kesselman
Certified Public Accountants (lIsr.)
A member firm of PricewaterhouseCoopers Inteameti Limited

Tel-Aviv, Israel
March 3, 2015

Kesselman & Kesselman, Trade Tower, 25 Hamere@iSife-Aviv 68125, Israel,
P.O Box 50005 Tel-Aviv 61500 Telephone: +972-3-5854 Fax:+972-3-7954556, www.pwc.com/il

Kesselman & Kesselman is a member firm of PriceshateseCoopers International Limited, each memiper &f which is a separate legal entity



